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" TATA 
NOTICE OF 41 ST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

NOTICE is hereby given that 41st Annual General Meeting of Tata Housing Development 
Company Limited will be held on Friday, 29th day of January, 2021 at 
3.00 p.m. at Bombay House, 3rd Floor, Meeting Room No. 301, Homi Mody Street, Fort, Mumbai 
400 001 to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1. To receive, consider and adopt: 

A. Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended 
March 31, 2020 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors 
thereon; and 

B. Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended 
March 31, 2020 together with the Report of Auditors thereon. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

2. Appointment of Mr. Nipun Aggarwal (DIN: 08094159) as a Director: 

To consider and, if thought fit, approve with or without modification(s), the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (''Act") read with Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time 
being in force), Mr. Nipun Aggarwal (DIN: 08094159), based on the recommendation of 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board and in respect of whom the Company has 
received a notice in writing under Section 160(1) of the Act from a Member, signifying its 
intention to propose Mr. Aggarwal's candidature for the office of Director of the Company, be 
and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, with immediate effect, liable to retire by 
rotation." 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all Directors and the Company Secretary be and are hereby 
severally authorized to settle any question, difficulty or doubt, that may arise in giving effect to 
this resolution and to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, proper or 
expedient for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution". 

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 

Regd. Office:- E Block, Valtas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033 
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3. Ratification of Cost Auditor's Remuneration: 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or re­
enactment thereof for the time being in force) and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, as amended from time to time, the Company hereby ratifies the remuneration of " 
2,47,500/- (Rupees Two Lakh Forty Seven Thousand Five Hundred Only) plus Goods and Service 
tax, travel and actual out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with the audit, payable to 
M/s. Vi nod C. Subramaniam & Co, Cost Accountants (Firm registration No.: 102395), who are 
appointed as Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of cost records maintained by the Company for 
the financial year ending March 31, 2021." 

4. To approve Issue of Non-Convertible Debentures on Private Placement Basis: 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution 
as Special Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 23, 42, 71 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') read with the Companies (Prospectus and 
Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 
2014, including any amendment, modification or variation thereof for the time being in force, 
and subject to all other applicable Regulations, Rules, Notifications, Circulars and Guidelines 
prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI'), as amended, including the 
SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008, as amended, the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, SEBI (Issue of 
Capital and Disclosure Requirements), 2018, as amended if applicable and the enabling 
provisions of the listing agreements entered / to be entered into with the Stock Exchanges 
where the securities of the Company be listed (the 'Stock Exchanges'), and subject to the 
applicable Regulations, Rules, Notifications, Circulars and Guidelines prescribed by the Reserve 
Bank of India ('RBI'), the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association of the 
Company, and subject to such approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions as may be 
required from the Government of India, SEBI, RBI, the Stock Exchanges or any regulatory or 
statutory authority as may be required (the 'Appropriate Authority') and subject to such 
conditions and/or modifications as may be prescribed or imposed by the Appropriate Authority 
while granting such approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions, which may be agreed to 
by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the 'Board' which term 
shall be deemed to include any Committee(s) constituted/to be constituted by the Board to 
exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this Resolution), subject to the total 
borrowings of the Company not exceeding the borrowing powers approved by the Members --
rrom time to time :~:: ::::!::~:::::::::~ :::o:~:: ::::::mbers of the tO} 
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Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board and the Board be and is hereby authorised 
to create, offer, invite for subscription, issue and allot, from time to time, in one or more 
tranches and/or series, whether secured or unsecured, cumulative or non-cumulative, listed or 
unlisted, redeemable non-convertible debentures including but not limited to bonds and/or other 
debt securities, denominated in Indian rupees ('NCDs'), aggregating to an amount not 
exceeding "2300 Crore (Rupees Twenty Three Hundred Crore only), on a private placement 
basis, during the period of one year from the date of passing of this resolution or such other 
period as may be permitted under the Act and other applicable laws, as the Board in its absolute 
discretion deems fit and on such terms and conditions as may be decided by the Board. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution, the Board be 
and is hereby authorised on behalf of the Company to determine the terms of issue including 
the class of investors to whom the NCDs are to be issued, time, the number of NCDs, tranches, 
issue price, tenor, interest rate, listing (in India or overseas) and to do all such acts, deeds, 
matters and things and deal with all such matters and take all such steps as may be necessary 
and to sign and execute any deeds/ documents/ undertakings/ agreements I papers I writings, 
as may be required in this regard and to resolve and settle all questions and difficulties that 
may arise at any stage from time to time. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to delegate all or any of 
the powers conferred herein to any Committee of Directors or any Director(s) or 
executive(s)/officer(s) of the Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as also to 
execute such documents, writings, etc. as may be necessary to give effect to this Resolution. " 

By order of the Board of Directors 
For Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: January 5, 2021 

Registered Office: 
E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg, 
Chinchpokli, Mumbai 400033 
Tel No: 022-6661 4444 
E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in Website: www.tatarealty.in 
CIN: U45300MH 1942PLC003573 

Ritesh Kamdar 
Company Secretary 

ACS- 20154 
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Notes: 

1. The relative Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 
('the Act') in respect of the business under item nos. 2, 3 and 4 set out above and the 
relevant details of the Director seeking appointment at this Annual General Meeting 
('AGM'/ 'the meeting') in respect of business under item nos. 2 as required under the 
Act and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by The Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India ('Secretarial Standard') are annexed hereto. 

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO 
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON HIS/HER BEHALF AND THE 
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. The duly completed and signed instrument 
appointing proxy as per the format included in the Annual Report should be returned to 
the Registered Office of the Company not less than forty-eight ( 48) hours before the 
time for holding the AGM. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companies must be 
supported by appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable. A person can act as a proxy 
on behalf of Members not exceeding 50 and holding in the aggregate not more than 
10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. In case a proxy is 
proposed to be appointed by a member holding more than 10% of the total share capital 
of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any 
other person or Member. 

3. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the 
AGM are requested to send to the Company, a certified copy of the Board Resolution 
authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the AGM. Members, 
Proxies and Authorized Representatives are requested to bring the duly completed 
Attendance Slip enclosed herewith to attend the AGM. 

4. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding as 
maintained under Section 170 of the Act, the Register of Contracts or Arrangement in 
which the Directors are interested as maintained under Section 189 of the Act and 
relevant documents referred to in the Notice and the Explanatory Statement are open 
for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working 
days between Monday to Friday except public holidays, between 10:00 a.m. (IST) to 
1:00 p.m. (IST) up to the date of the meeting and also at the venue during the meeting. 

5. The Members may avail the facility of nomination in terms of Section 72 pf the Act read 
with rule 19 (1) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014, by 
nominating in the Form SH 13, any person to whom his/ their shares in the Company 
shall vest in the event of death of shareholder(s). SH-13 to be submitted in the duplicate 
with the Company. 

6. The format of the Register of Members prescribed by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
f'MCA'') under the Act requires the Company/Registrars and Share Transfer Agents.,._-·---­
C'RTA'') to record additional details of Members, including their PAN details, e-mail ~~~~~::. .~ .. ,,~ 

0 --~~ 
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address, bank details for payment of dividend etc. Members holding shares in physical 
form are requested to submit the filled in form to the Company at the registered office 
of the Company or RTA. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to 
submit the details to their respective Depository Participant. 

7. The Shareholders may choose to hold ordinary shares of the Company in electronic 
mode. The ISIN allotted by NSDL is INE582L01016. In case of any query, you may get 
in touch with the Company or the Registrar and Transfer Agent i.e. Link Intime India 
Pvt. Ltd. Add: 247 Park, C 101 1st Floor, LBS Marg, Vikhroli (W), Mumbai - 400 083 
Phone: +91 22 49186000. 

8. The MCA has mandated that securities of Public Companies can be transferred only in 
dematerialised form w.e.f. October 02, 2018. Accordingly, the Company/Link intime has 
stopped accepting any fresh lodgment of transfer of shares in physical form. Members 
holding shares in physical form are advised to avail of the facility of dematerialisation. 

9. Members desiring any information as regards the Accounts are requested to write to the 
Company at an early date so as to enable the management to keep the information 
ready at the meeting. Further, the Members who would like to express their views or 
ask questions during the AGM may raise the same at the meeting or send them in 
advance (mentioning their name and folio no. /DP ID - Client ID), at 
riteshkamdar@tatarealty.in 

10. To support the 'Green Initiative', the Members who have not yet registered their email 
addresses are requested to register the same with their Depository Participants ('DPs'') 
in case the shares are held by them in electronic form and with M/s. Link Intime India 
Pvt. Ltd. in case the shares are held by them in physical form. The members who are 
desirous of receiving the Annual Report may write to the Company's RTA for a copy of 
the same. 

THE MEMBERS WHO HAVE NOT REGISTERED THEIR E-MAIL ADDRESSES 
WITH COMPANY'S RTA /DEPOSITORIES ARE REQUESTED TO CONTRIBUTE 
TO THE GREEN INITIATIVE BY REGISTERING THEIR E-MAIL ADDRESS, FOR 
RECEIVING ALL FUTURE COMMUNICATIONS THROUGH E-MAIL. 

Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2019-20 is being sent by electronic 
mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company, unless 
any Member has requested for a physical copy of the same. 

11. Attendance Slip, Proxy Form and the Route Map showing directions to reach the venue 
of the AGM are annexed hereto. 

12. The Company had filed a Petition with the Honorable High Court at Bombay in the matter 
of the Scheme of Re-construction. The High Court approved the same vide order dated 

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED .. , .... .... . 

CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 .. ~~:::... · . 
Regd. Office: - E Block, Valtas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 03 ~.::;,~'/ -1_., . ·A:. 

Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in ct t~:~ ., ' 
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February 15, 1980. Subsequently, Annual general Meeting was held on October 22, 1980 
which is numbered as the first annual general meeting post reconstruction as mentioned 
above. Thereafter, the Annual General Meeting(s) of the Company are chronologically 
numbered . 

13. The Members may note that the Notice of AGM and Annual Report for FY 2019-20 would 
be made available on the Company's website viz. www.tatarealty.in. 

14. There has been a delay in holding the 41 st AGM of the Company for reasons beyond the 
control of the Company. As per the provisions of Section 96(1) of the Act, read with 
order dated September 8, 2020 issued by the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, 
Mumbai, December 31, 2020 was the last date by which the Company ought to have 
held its 41 st AGM. The Company had approached the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in this 
regard to extend the current time limits to hold the AGM of the Company. 

By order of the Board 
For Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: January 5, 2021 

Registered Office: 
E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg, 
Chinchpokli, Mumbai 400033 
Tel No: 022-6661 4444 
E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in Website: www.tatarealty.in 
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 

~~ .. ~ 
.------·----· - · ---· 

Ritesh Kamdar 
Company Secretary 

ACS- 20154 
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STATEMENT PURSUA~T TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ("THE 
ACT") 

The following Explanatory Statement, pursuant to Section 102 of the Act, sets out all material 
facts relating to the Special Business mentioned in the Notice: 

Item No. 2 

Mr. Nipun Aggarwal (DIN: 08094159) was appointed as a Director on the board of directors of 
the Company on March 24, 2018 and was liable to retire by rotation at the 41 st AGM of the 
Company. Mr. Aggarwal retired from his office on December 31, 2020 (which was the last date 
by which the 4pt AGM of the Company ought to have been held). 

The Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160(1) of the Act, from a Member, 

signifying its intention to propose Mr. Ni pun Aggarwal as Director of the Company. Accordingly, 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board at its meetings held on January 5, 
2020, considered such notice and recommended the appointment of Mr. Aggarwal as Director 

of the Company, so that suitable proposal can be made in the notice convening the Annual 
General Meeting of the Company. 

Details of Mr. Nipun Aggarwal (DIN: 08094159), as are required to be disclosed as per the Act 
and under Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings, are provided as under: 

Name Mr. Nipun Aggarwal 

Director Identification 08094159 

Number 
Age 47 years 

Qualification Mr. Aggarwal has completed his PGDM from Indian Institute 

of Management - Calcutta after his Electrical Engineering 
degree from Delhi College of Engineering. 

Experience Over 22 Years 

Terms and Conditions of To be appointed as a non executive Director, liable to retire 
Appointment by rotation. His appointment will be subject to no specific 

terms or conditions, other than those required of non-
executive directors under applicable law. His role and duties 

will be those as stated in the Act and the articles of association 
-

of the Company. /8 (? Cl 
~ 0 
<ii MUMBAI ~I 
? ~ 
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Remuneration 
(Proposed) 

Remuneration (Drawn) 

Date of First 
Appointment 

Shareholding in the 
Company 
Relationship with other 
Directors 
Relationship with 
Manager and other Key 
Managerial Personnel of 
the Company 
Number of Meetings of 
the Board Attended 
during the year 
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Except Sitting Fees (for attending Board Meetings), Mr. 
Aggarwal would not draw any remuneration from the 
Company. 

Total sitting fees paid to him in the last financial year (2019-
20) was'{ 80,000/- and in this financial year (2020-21) to date 

was ~ 60,000/-. 

He was receiving sitting fees of ~ 20,000/- per meeting. 
Except sitting fees, he was not receiving any remuneration 
from the Company. 

Appointed as Additional Director with effect from March 24, 

2018 which appointment was regularized at the 39th AGM of 

the Company held on September 28, 2018. He was liable to 
retire by rotation at the 41st AGM of the Company. 
Mr. Aggarwal retired from his office on December 31, 2020 

(which was the last date by which the 41st AGM of the 
Company ought to have been held). 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board 

have recommended the appointment of Mr. Aggarwal as 
Director of the Company at their Meetings held on January 5, 

2020. 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

During the calendar year 2021, he has not been a director 
and has consequently not attended any board meetings. 

In financial year 2019-20, he has attended all the Board 

Meetings which were held amounting to 4 meetings. Further, 
during financial year 2020-21 (up to the date of his retirement 

i.e. December 31, 2020) he has attended 3 board meetings 

out of 4 board meetings which were held. 

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED ~~~\..VPJt1s-...,1 
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 /C!J<:,/ _,.." 

Regd. Office:- E Block, Valtas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 4i:~ Oi4l_1rnBAI ~ 
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Other Directorship, Sr. Name of the Company Current 
membership/chairmansh No. Designation 
ip of committees of the 1 Tata Electronics Private Limited Additional Director 
other Boards 2 TP Central Odisha Distribution Additional Director 

Limited 
3 Tata Projects Limited Director 

And Member of 
Project Review 
Committee, 
Permanent 
Special Invitee 
of Audit Committee 

4 Tata Value Homes Limited Director 
5 TRIL Roads Private Limited Director 
6 TRIL Urban Transport Private Director 

Limited 
7 Talace Private Limited Director 

The Board commends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No.2 of the Notice in relation to 
appointment of Mr. Nipun Aggarwal as Director, liable to retire by rotation. 

None of the directors or the key managerial personnel(s) of the Company and/or any of their 

respective relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution as 
set out at Item No. 2. 

Item No. 3 

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on September 9, 2020, upon the 
recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved the re-appointment of 
M/s. Vinod C. Subramaniam & Co, Cost Accountants (Firm registration No.: 102395), as Cost 
Auditors for auditing the cost records of the Company for the financial year 2020-21 at a 
remuneration not exceeding " 2,47,500/- (Rupees Two Lakh Forty Seven Thousand Five 
Hundred Only) plus taxes and out-of-pocket expenses. 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, ratification for the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the 
Financial Year 2020 - 21 by way of an Ordinary Resolution is being sought from the members 
as set out at Item No.3 of the Notice. 

The Board commends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No.3 of the Notice for approval 
of the Members. 
None of the Directors and the key managerial personnel(s) or their respective rela · · 
deemed to be concerned or interested in the aforesaid resolution. ~.,,,o? Nt ~ 

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 
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CJ ~ .. ~,~«> ~ -r.. , ... , '"<' ...., ,... 

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 4 ·<>-Y 
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in '/../ li'l-Vl.. ... 

Website: www.tatarealty.in 
9 



., 
Tl\TI\ 

Item No. 4: 

To meet the funding requirements of the Company, the Company has from time to time issued 
NCDs, in one or more series / tranches on private placement basis in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act. 

In order to augment long term resources for financing, inter alia, refinancing of the existing 
debt, ongoing working capital requirement and for general corporate purposes, the Company 
may require further offering or inviting subscription, from time to time, in one or more tranches 
and/or series, whether secured or unsecured, cumulative or non-cumulative, listed or unlisted, 
redeemable non-convertible debentures including but not limited to bonds and/or other debt 
securities, denominated in Indian rupees ('NCDs') on private placement basis. The pricing for 
any instrument which may be issued by the Company on the basis of the Resolution set out at 
the Notice will be done by the Board (which term includes a duly constituted Committee of the 
Board of Directors) in accordance with applicable laws including the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 and other applicable 
statutory requirements, if any. 

The provisions of Sections 23, 42 and 71 of the Act read with Rule 14 of the Companies 
(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 (the 'PAS Rules'), provide that a Company 
shall not make a private placement of its securities unless the proposed offer of securities or 
invitation to subscribe to the securities has been previously approved by the Members of the 
Company by a Special Resolution. The third proviso to Rule 14(1) of the PAS Rules provides 
that in case of an offer or invitation to subscribe to NCDs on private placement basis, the 
Company can obtain prior approval by means of a Special Resolution once a year for all offers 
or invitations for such NCDs during the year, subject to certain conditions. 

In terms of the provisions of Rule 14(1) of the PAS rules, disclosures pertaining to NCDs are as 
follows: 

a) Particulars of the offer including the date of passing of the Board Resolution: 
The Board resolution passed on November 29, 2018, which inter-alia provides for 
issuance of NCDs on a private placement basis. 

b) Kinds of Securities offered and the price at which security is being offered: 
Non-Convertible Debentures at such price as may be determined by the Board from time 
to time. 

c) Basis of justification for the price (including premium, if any) at which the 
offer or invitation is being made: 
The NCDs would be issued at price as may be determined by the Board from time to 
time. 

d) Name and address of valuer who performed valuation: 
Not Applicable 

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 
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e) Amount which the company intends to raise by way of such securities: 
Up to " 2,300 Crore. 

f) Material terms of raising such securities, proposed time schedule, purposes 
or objects of offer, contribution being made by the promoters or directors 
either as part of the offer or separately in furtherance of objects; principle 
terms of assets charged as securities: 
As may be _determined by the Board, from time to time 

The Shareholders had approved the issuance of NCDs amounting to "2,300 Crore vide its 
resolution passed at the EGM held on December 12, 2019. The said approval had expired on 
December 11, 2020. The NCDs are within the overall borrowing limits of "2,500 Crore, approved 
by the Shareholders, pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) and other applicable 
provisions of the Act, at their AGM held on September 10, 2014. 

As on September 30, 2020, the net worth of the Company is "1286.12 crore and the total long 
term debt of the Company is "1850 crore including outstanding NCDs of n800 crore. The 
proposed borrowings would be within the overall borrowing limits of "2500 Crore approved by 
the Shareholders. 

The approval of the Members is being sought for issue of NCDs up to an amount of "2,300 
Crore by way of a Special Resolution in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act 
read with the Rules made thereunder, from time to time, in the manner as set in this Notice. 

The Directors recommend the Resolution of the accompanying Notice, for the approval of the 
Members of the Company by way of a Special Resolution. 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Persons of the Company or their respective relatives is 
in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution set out in this 
Notice. 

By order of the Board 
For Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

, 0:~ 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: January 5, 2021 

Registered Office: 
E Block, Valtas Premises, T B Kadam Marg, 
Chinchpokli, Mumbai 400033. Tel No: 022-6661 4444 
E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty. in Website: www.tatarealty. in 
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 

< ·' R1tesh Kamdar 
Company Secretary 

ACS- 20154 
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ATTENDANCE SLIP 

PLEASE FILL THE ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF 
THE MEETING VENUE 

Joint Shareholders may obtain additional Attendance Slip in request 

I Regd. Folio No./ DP ID-Client ID 

NAME AND ADDRESS OF SHAREHOLDER: 

NO. OF SHARES HELD: ________ _ 

I/We hereby record my presence at the 41 st Annual General Meeting of Tata Housing 

Development Company Limited held on Friday, 29th day of January, 2021 at 

3.00 p.m. at Bombay House, 3rd Floor, Meeting Room No. 301, Homi Mody Street, Fort, Mumbai 
400 001. 

Signature of the Shareholder or Proxy 

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 

Regd. Office: - E Block, Valtas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033 
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in 
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Form No. MGT-11 

Proxy form 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies AcC 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014} 

CIN: U45300MH194 2PLC003 573 

Name of the company: TATA Housing Development Company Limited 

Registered office: E Block, Valtas Premises, TB Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai 400 033 

Name of the member (s): 

Registered address: 
E-mail Id: 

Folio No/ Cl ient Id: 
DP ID: 

I/We, being the member (s) of ...... .. ... .. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint 

1. Name: 
Address: 
E-mail id: 

Signature: or failing him 
2. Name: 

Address: 
E-mail id: 

Signature: or fai ling him 
3. Name: 

Address: 
E-mail id: 

Signature: 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 41st 

Annual general meeting of the company, to be held on the Friday, 29th day of January, 2021 at 

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 

Regd. Office:- E Block, Valtas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033 
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3.00 p.m. at Bombay House, 3rd Floor, Meeting Room No. 301, Homi Mody Street, Fort, Mumbai 

400 001 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

Resolution No. 

1. To receive, consider and adopt: 

A. the Audited Standalone Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2020 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the 
Auditors thereon; and 

B. the Audited Consolidated Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2020 together with the Report of the Auditors thereon. 

2. Appointment of Mr. Nipun Aggarwal (DIN: 08094159) as a Director. 

3. Ratification of Cost Auditor's Remuneration. 

4. To approve Issue of Non-Convertible Debentures on Private Placement Basis. 

Signed this .. ............... day of .................. . 2021 

Signature of the shareholder 

Signature of the proxy holder(s) 

Affix 
Revenue 

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and 
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before 
the commencement of the Meeting. 
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BOARD'S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS, 

The Directors present the Annual Report of Tata Housing Development Company Limited (the 
"Company" or "THDC") along with the audited financial statements for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2020. The consolidated performance of the Company and its subsidiaries has been 
referred to wherever required. 

1. Financial Results 
(Rs. In crores) 

Standalone Consolidated 
2018-19 2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 

Revenue 1188.84 670.61 1475.54 951.46 

Other income 218.85 253.86 170.29 184.72 
Total income 1407.69 924.47 1645.83 1136.18 
Expenses 
Operating expenditure 1100.87 790.67 1659.52 1134.10 
Depreciation and amortization expenses 5.87 4.10 6.32 4.50 
Total Expenses 1106.74 794.77 1665.84 1138.6 
Profit before finance cost and tax 300.95 129.7 (20.01) (2.42) 
Finance cost 226.11 212.61 310.56 299.78 
Profit before tax (PBT) (175.73) (808.92) (387.78) (465.92) 
Tax expense (59.49) 181.03 (46.97) 186.63 
Profit for the year (116.24) (989.95) (444.03) (979.85) 

Attributable to: 
Shareholders ofthe company (116.24) (989.95) (436.12) (981.49) 

Non-Controlling Interest - - (7.91) 1.64 

Opening Balance of retained earning 88.16 (389.01) (105.45) (964.82) 

Profit for the Year (116.24) (989.95) (436.12) (981.49) 
Other comprehensive income I (losses) (0.62) (0.17) (0.57) (0.21) 
Total comprehensive income (28.70) (1,379.12) (542.14) (1946.52) 
Dividend (including tax on dividend) - - - -
Buy-back of equity shares - - - -
Expenses for buy-back of equity shares - - - -
Issue of Bonus shares - - - -
Realized loss on equity shares carried at fair - - - -
value through OCI 
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Transfer to Special Economic Zone re- - - - -
investment reserve 
Transfer from Special Economic Zone re- - - - -
investment reserve 
Transfer to reserve ( Impact of Ind-AS 115, (360.31) - (422.68) -
net of tax) 
Closing balance of retained earnings (389.01) (1379.12) (964.82) (1946.52) 

2. Dividend 

In view of the loss incurred during the year under review and with a view to conserve available 
resources for the growth of the Company's operations in the future, the Directors do not 
recommend any dividend for the year 2019-20. 

3. Transfer to Reserves 

Your Directors do not recommend transferring any funds to reserves of the Company. 

4. Company's Performance 

On a standalone basis, the revenue for FY 2019-20 was Rs. 670.61 crore, lower by 43.59% over 
the previous year's revenue of 1188.84 crore in FY 2018-19. The loss after tax (LAT) attributable 
to shareholders for FY 2019-20 was Rs. 989.95 crore registering a de-growth of 751.64 % percent 
over the LAT of Rs. 116.24 crore for FY 2018-19. 

On a consolidated basis, the revenue for FY 2019-20 was Rs. 951.46 crore, lower by 35.52% 
over the previous year's revenue of 1475.54 crore. The LAT attributable to shareholders and non­
contro\\ing interests for FY 2019-20 and FY 2018-19 was Rs. 979.85 crore and Rs. 444.03 crore 
respectively. The LAT attributable to shareholders for FY 2019-20 was Rs. 981.49 crore 
registering a de-growth of 125.05% over the LAT of Rs. 436.12 crore for FY 2018-19. 

State of the Company's Affairs: 

The Company has been in the residential housing segment for more than 35 years and has 
developed an overall area of 18.3 mn. sq. ft. with another 21 mn. sq. ft. area currently under 
development and planning stage. With a total of 42 projects present in 15 cities, these projects 
cater to various customer groups. Your company offers a wide product portfolio spanning from 
luxury to affordable housing projects, holiday homes, senior living homes and weekends homes 
projects in 15 cities. 

5. Subsidiary Companies 

The Company has 14 subsidiaries, 1 associate and 11 joint venture companies. There has been 
no material change in the nature of the business of the Subsidiaries. 
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raised 3 year NC D's aggregating to Rs. 700 crores through this source. The Company was also 
able to establish new banking lines during the lock down period. The activity by Mutual Funds in 
Commercial Papers which remained subdued during April has revived once again from second 
half of May & early June. The Company raised Rs.300 crores through placement of Commercial 
Papers with Mutual Funds. 

The Company has adequate liquidity in the form of cash & cash equivalents and undrawn credit 
lines & is confident of meeting its debt servicing requirements during the year. 

The Company has sound internal control measures for all its processes and there has been no 
impact on the internal financial reporting and controls of the Company. 

vii. Impact of CoVID-19 on supply chain: 

In the initial stages, restrictions on movement of materials across states hampered operations, 
even resulting in sporadic price surges in certain materials like cement. However, over time, these 
issues have subsided, and the overall supply chain has improved with vendors able to 
manufacture and transport material to sites. Other equipment like face-masks also have been 
secured in sufficient volumes. 

viii. Existing contracts/agreements where non-fulfilment of the obligations by any party will 
have significant impact on the listed entity's business: 

The Company is well positioned to fulfil its obligations and also does not foresee any significant 
impact on the business due to non-fulfilment of the obligations by any party. 

ix. Other relevant material updates about the business: 

Generally, the Company publishes its annual audited accounts by second week of May of each 
year. However, due to the current situation, standalone results was approved by the Board on 
July 3, 2020 and consolidated financials are expected to be approved by December, 2020. 

7. Industry Outlook and Future Prospects 

The Indian economy with its sound fundaments is set to dominate on the global map in the 21st 
century - this is evident from its GDP growth rate between 2013 and 2018 of 56% - the highest 
in comparison to other major economies like China, US and UK, which registered a growth of 
51 %, 22% and 19% respectively. With more than 1.3 billion people, India represents 24.3% of 
global population providing for a very attractive demography - both from a supply & demand 
perspective. 

Younger population (Median age in 2030 will be 31.4 years vs. 40 years in US and 42 years in 
China) acts as a great talent pool and will be the biggest consumer segment. With -10 million 
people migrating to cities every year - the urban population will contribute 75% to the GDP by 
2030. 
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All these factors will boost the demand for real estate in India. By 2030, India is likely to need 25 
million affordable housing units to meet the urban population's demand. The growing economy to 
drive the dema.nd for commercial and retail space. 

As per IBEF, the contribution of real estate sector was expected to increase from current 6% to 
13% of GDP by 2025 and the sector was expected reach US$ 1 Trillion by 2030 from US$ 120 
Billion in 2017 at an expected CAGR of 19.5% - however the current economic downturn due to 
COVID 19 may push growth by 1-2 yrs. 

Though 2019 has been a mixed year for residential real estate - with developers battling liquidity 
crisis and a sluggish demand - various Government policies and reforms helped boost the 
demand in the sector, especially in the affordable housing segment. The real estate sector 
showed resilience with -2.96 lakhs units sold (a growth of 6% y-o-y) in 2019 in top seven cities 
and office absorption touching historical highs. In 2019, private equity investments worth US$ 
5,336 million were recorded, a 29% increase from 2018. Provision for reduction in minimum 
capitalisation for FD\ investment from US $10 million to US $5 million - will further help boost 
urbanization. 

Residential real estate 

Current Scenario: 

• The Indian Real Estate sector gradually came to terms with the multiple reforms and 
changes brought to the industry in the past couple of years with demonetization, GST, 
RERA, Indian Bankruptcy Code, etc. and started moving towards a more transparent and 
accountable way of working. 

• These reforms also led to the downfall of small and financial weak real estate developers, 
leading to consolidation in the market and stronger emergence of branded players who 
have a better hold on their processes and fiscal situation. 

• Governments policy push to affordable housing with its efforts under Housing for All - saw 
increased traction in the segment accounting for 40% of total new supply in 2019. 

• With increased number of units (2.96 \akhs) sold - 6% higher than 2018 and 5% reduction 
on new launches, helped in reduce inventory overhang from 34 months in 2018 to 32 
months in 2019 - however prices majorly remained constant in most markets. 

• Branded developers with healthy balance sheets registered decent sales and project 
launches resulting in increasing market share. 

Future Outlook: 

• By 2030, India will need 25 million more affordable housing units to oblige to growing 
urban population. 

• Top 6-7 cities of India are contributing nearly 30-40% of GDP growth and hence are a 
major focus for residential real estate demand & supply. 

• In the coming years, more industry consolidation is on the cards as policy push will weed 
out non-compliant developers. More foreign investors might enter the market as FD\ 
norms ease out. 
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• Over and above the measure announced by the government like Alternative Investment 
Fund (AIF) for completion of stuck project in affordable and mid segment, there is scope 
for further impetus to easy the liquidity crunch, easy policies on the sale of RTMI 
inventories, etc. 

• Trends on the increased attractiveness of affordable housing to continue and branded 
players to gain more prominence as millennials quest for branded product to remain high 
and many house buyers will also be cautious with their investments - after bearing the 
bitter experiences of dealing with smaller developers. 

Regulation in the Sector: 

The following regulatory reforms provided the much need stimulus to the residential real estate 
segment, with some showing upfront benefits and others to have an impact in the near future -

• The creation of a stressed asset fund (AIF) of Rs 25,000 crore, which came as breather 
for homer buyers, to provide last mile funding to stuck affordable & mid-segment housing 
projects. Net worth positive projects (including NPAs and projects undergoing NCL T 
proceedings) can avail the benefits of the funding. 

• To bring down cost, GST on under-construction properties outside the affordable segment 
were revised to 5% with no Input Tax Credit (ITC) and 1 % without ITC for affordable 
housing properties. 

• A tax holiday was provided on the profit earned by developers of affordable housing. 
• Lending under subvention schemes banned by Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) as 

per directive from the National Housing Bank as the option was getting misused by some 
developers and buyers. In the long run, the move will make Indian real estate more 
transparent, predictable and an attractive marketplace for end-users and investors. 

• RBl's guidelines to commercial banks to link their lending interest rates with the repo rate 
will help end-customers gain direct benefits of lower rates. 

• Government Smart Cities mission to promote sustainable and inclusive cities that provide 
core infrastructure and give good quality of life to its citizens, a clean and sustainable 
environment, and the application of 'Smart' solutions. 100% FOi for township and 
settlement development projects - will act as an added advantage. 

*Source: RBI Annual report, IBEF, Anarock, JLL, PropEquity, Media reports, Press articles 

8. Share Capital And other Securities: 

A. Share Capital: 

During the year under review, the Company has not raised any capital. As at March 31, 2020, the 
issued, subscribed and paid-up equity shares capital of the Company stands at 
Rs. 7,30, 15,27,230 divided into 73,01,52,723 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each. 
B. Debt Management: 

As on March 31, 2020, the Company had outstanding debt of 2842.81 Crore and increase of 
Rs.482.24 over the outstanding debt as at March 31, 2019. About 31 % of the total debt is through 
working capital lines I short term loans from banks that are renewable from lime to time, 31 % by 
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way of Commercial Papers which are short term in nature and 38 % by way NCD's that at 
issuance range in tenor from 18 months to 36 months. 

During the year the Company issued and allotted unlisted NCD's. As on date March 31, 2020, the 
outstanding Listed NCDs stand at Rs. 600 Crore (Rupees Six Hundred Crore Only) and Unlisted 
NCDs stand at Rs.489.40 Crore (Rupees Four Hundred and Eighty-Nine Crore Forty Lacs Only). 

Due to regulatory changes during the year, the Company was required to list all its outstanding 
CP's by December 31, 2019 date and any further issuance of CP's was on listed basis from 
thereon. 

The Company's CP's & NCD's are listed on BSE. 

The Debt raised during the year was utilized for various ongoing projects of the Company and its 
SPV's, refinancing, working capital requirements & genera.I corporate purposes. 

The weighted average interest rate for the outstanding debt as at March 31, 2020 was 8.19 % 
p.a. as against 8.53 % p.a. as at the end of previous year, lower by about 34 bps. 

Credit Ratings: 

Your Company has been offering itself to be rated by rating agencies as per following: 

if!rr!lll'!!l:fi~a~;;:~~Ji~~~icig,"_g~ IBJ!tm"9~9~m;ylf&~"'§:.Si tJlli11~il~~~ ,~.iii'giiiit~~~ ~Rei"lil!.rf~~""'~ 
Commercial Paper Credit Analysis & CARE A 1 + 
(Short term) Research Limited IND A1+ ~ 1200 Crore 

India Rating & Re-affirmed 
Research 

Non-Convertible Debenture ICRA Limited ICRAAA ~ 1150 Crore Re-affirmed 

Non-Convertible Debenture Credit Analysis & CARE AA 
~ 1300 Crore Rated Research Limited 

Short Term Bank Facilities Credit Analysis & CARE AA 
~ 950 Crore Re-affirmed (Fund and Non Fund Based) Research Limited 

9. Depository System 

Your Company's Equity Shares are available for dematerialization (Demat) through National 
Securities Depository Limited. The Shareholders may choose to hold the Ordinary Shares of the 
Company in the demat mode. The ISIN as allotted by NSDL is INE582L01016. In case of any 
query, you may please get in touch with the Company or the Registrar & Transfer Agent i.e. Link 
Inti me India Pvt. Ltd. Add: C-101, 247 Park, L. B. S. Marg, Vikhroli (W}, Mumbai 400 083 Phone: 
+91 22 4918 6270. As on March 31, 2020, 73,01,52,435 (99.99%) of the Ordinary Shares of your 
Company were held in dematerialized form. 

Pursuant to the insertion of Rule 9A of the Issue of securities in dematerialised form by unlisted 
public companies of Chapter Ill Part I The Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) 
Rules, 2014, Every holder of securities who (a) intends to transfer such securities on shall get 
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such securities dematerialised before the transfer; or (b) subscribes to any securities of the 
company (whether by way of private placement or bonus shares or rights offer) shall ensure that 
all his existing securities are held in dematerialized form before such subscription. 

Therefore, Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their 
shareholding to dematerialized form. 

10. Directors' Responsibility Statement 

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and 
maintained by the Company, the work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors 
and external consultants, including the audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting 
by the statutory auditors and the reviews performed by management and the relevant board 

·committees, including the audit committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company's internal 
financial controls were adequate and effective during FY 2019-20. 

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of its knowledge and 
ability, confirm that: 

(i) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been 
followed and there are no material departures; 

(ii) They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the loss 
of the Company for that period; 

(iii) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

(iv) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

(v) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such 
internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; and 

(vi) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

11. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

The Company's composition of Board is an adequate blend of Executive, Non-executive and 
Independent Directors including a Woman Director. In addition to provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the Board governance guidelines adopted by the Board, set out the role and 
responsibility of the Board, composition of the Board and code of conduct. 
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Presently, Board of your Company consists of following Members: 

• Mr. Banmali Agrawala - Chairman 

• Mr. S. Santhanakrishnan - Independent Director 

• Mr. Sanjay Dutt - Managing Director & CEO 

• Mr. Nipun Aggarwal - Director 

• Mr. Dileep Choksi - Independent Director 

• Mrs. Sucheta Shah - Independent Director 

• Mr. K. Venkataramanan - Director 

During the year under review, there were no change in the Directors of the Company. 

Mr. Nipun Aggarwal, Director of the Company retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself 
for re-appointment. A resolution seeking shareholders' approval for his re-appointment forms part 
of the Notice. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Act, the independent directors have submitted 
declarations that each of them meet the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of 
the Act along with Rules framed thereunder. There has been no change in the circumstances 
affecting their status as independent directors of the Company. 

During the year under review, the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary 
relationship or transactions with the Company, other than sitting fees and reimbursement of 
expenses incurred by them for the purpose of attending meetings of the Board/Committee of the 
Company. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company as on March 31, 2020 are Mr. Sanjay Dutt, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer 
of the Company (appointed with effect from April 01, 2018 for a period of 5 years), Mr. Khiroda 
Jena, Chief Executive Officer of the Company (appointed with effect from August 07, 2019) and 
Mr. Ritesh Kamdar, Company Secretary of the Company (appointed with effect from May 08, 
2019). 

12. Number of Meetings of the Board 

There were four meetings of the Board, held during the year under review. The said meetings 
were held on May 8, 2019, August 7, 2019, November 26, 2019 and March 17, 2020. The details 
the presence of Directors were given herein below: 

Name of the Board Member Board Meeting Attendance 

Mr. Banmali Agrawala 4 out of 4 
Mr. Saniav Dutt 3 out of 4 
Mr. Nioun Annarwal 4 out of 4 
Mr. S. Santhanakrishnan 4 out of 4 
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Mrs. Sucheta Shah 4 out of 4 
Mr. Dileep Choksi 3 out of 4 
Mr. K. Venkataramanan 4 out of 4 

13. Board Evaluation 

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board 
committees, and individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act. 

The performance of the board was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from all the 
directors on the basis of criteria such as the board composition and structure, effectiveness of 
board processes, information and functioning, etc. 

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the 
committee members on the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness 
of committee meetings, etc. 

The above criteria are broadly based on the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India on January 5, 2017 

As per MCA general circular no.11/2020 dated March 24, 2020, the Independent Directors have 
not been able to hold a separate meeting of independent directors for FY 19-20. However, they 
have shared their views for evaluation amongst themselves through telephone over the 
performance of non-independent directors, the board as a whole and the Chairman of the 
Company, taking into account the views of executive directors and non-executive directors. 

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of 
individual directors on the basis of criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to the 
board and committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and 
constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. The Chairman of the Board also had one on 
one meeting with Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee discussing the 
performance of the Board. 

In the board meeting and meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the performance 
of the board, its committees, and individual directors was also discussed. Performance evaluation 
of independent directors was done by the entire board, excluding the independent director being 
evaluated. 

14. Nomination and Remuneration committee 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) also consists of all Independent Directors 
namely, Mr. S. Santhanakrishnan, Chairman of the Committee, Mr. Dileep Choksi and Mrs. 
Sucheta Shah, as its Members. The Committee met 2 (Two) limes during the year under review. 
The said meetings were held on May 08, 2019 and August 7, 2019. The details the presence of 
Members are given herein below: 
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Name of the Member NRC Meeting Attendance 

Mr. S. Santhanakrishnan 2 out of 2 
Mr. Dileep Choksi 2 out of 2 
Mrs. Sucheta Shah 2 out of 2 

The Company's policy on directors' appointment and remuneration and other matters provided in 
Section 178(3) of the Act has been annexed to this report at "Annexure B- (a) and (b)" and shall 
also be made available on www.tatarealty.in. 

15. Internal Financial Control Systems and their Adequacy 

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and 
maintained by the Company, work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors · 
and external consultants and the reviews performed by management and the relevant Board 
Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company's 
internal financial controls were adequate and effective. 

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in 
the design or operation was observed. In the opinion of the Auditors of the Company, there exist 
an adequate internal control procedure commensurate with the size of the Company. 

16. Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee consists of all Independent Directors namely, Mr. S. Santhanakrishnan, 
Chairman of the Committee, Mr. Dileep Choksi and Mrs. Sucheta Shah, as its Members. The 
terms of reference of the Audit Committee was as prescribed under Section 177 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. The Committee met 5 (Five) times during the year under 
review. The said meetings were held on May 8, 2019, August 7, 2019, November 26, 2019, 
December 17, 2019 and March 17, 2020. The details the presence of Members are given herein 
below: 

Name of the Member Audit Meeting Attendance 

Mr. S. Santhanakrishnan 5 out of 5 
Mr. Dileep Choksi 5 out of 5 
Mrs. Sucheta Shah 5 out of 5 

17. Auditors 

The Shareholders of the Company at their Annual General Meeting held on September 28, 2017 
appointed M/s. BS R & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm registration number 101248W/W-
100022) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 years commencing from FY 
2017-18., subject to ratification of their appointment by Members at every AGM, if so required 
under the Act. The requirement to place the matter relating to appointment of auditors for 
ratification by Members at every AGM has been done away by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 
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2017 with effect from May 7, 2018. Accordingly, no resolution is being proposed for ratification of 
appointment of statutory auditors at the ensuing AGM and a note in respect of same has been 
included in the Notice for this AGM. 

18. Auditor's Report and Secretarial Audit Report 

The standalone statutory auditor's report and the secretarial audit report do not contain any 
qualifications, reservations, or adverse remarks or disclaimer. Secretarial audit report is attached 
to this report as Annexure C. As regard to consolidated statutory auditor's report, the Auditor's 
has put certain qualification in their report to which management has put forward the following 
below mentioned reply: 

Qualification as is mentioned in the consolidated auditor's report: 

The consolidated financial statements include the Group's investment in three joint venture 
accounted for by the equity method which is carried at Rs (233.71) crore on the consolidated 
balance sheet as at 31 March 2020 and the Group's share of the three joint venture's net loss 
(and other comprehensive income) of Rs 233.85 crore which is included in the Group's 
consolidated loss for the year ended 31 March 2020, which are based on the unaudited financial 
statements of such joint venture. Consequently, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate 
audit evidence and were unable to determine whether any adjustments to these amounts were 
necessary. 

Management's Response: 

In respect of two joint ventures of the Group, disagreements have arisen between the 
shareholders of the joint ventures regarding positions taken on specific provisions and obligations 
of the joint ventures under the Share Subscription and Shareholder Ag.reement which are not in 
alignment. In view of the same, the joint venture partner has written to the aforesaid joint ventures 
and the Group that an Enforcement Event has occurred, which has been denied by the Group. 
However, there are ongoing discussions with the joint venture partner in this regard to amicabl\y 
resolve the disagreements. Accordingly, Management believes that this matter would not have 
any material impact on the consolidated financial statements 

In one of the other JV Project, JV partner have not been able to attend board meetings on account 
of his personal reasons. We are in discussion with the land owners for a resolution and hopeful 
for a resolution in next couple of months. 

19. Risk Management 

The Company is governed by the Risk Management Charter and Policy Documents. An integrated 
Enterprise Risk Management Charter & Policy has been developed with the objective of 
establishing a common understanding & methodology for identifying, assessing, responding, 
monitoring & reporting to provide management, the board of directors with the assurance that key 
risks are being effectively managed. As per the said Policy, a Risk Management Steering 
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Committee ('RMSC') comprising of MD & CEO and Functional Heads has been formed. The 
charter and policies provide the overall framework for Risk Management process which includes 
risk identification, assessment, evolution, treatment and other related process. The RMSC is the 
Apex Committee in the RM Organization structure comprising of key decision makers within the 
Organization. It is responsible for adopting and implementing the RM Framework across the 
Organization. They are charged with the responsibility of taking decisions to manage the risks 
and also report about various initiatives to the Board I Audit Committee and other stakeholders 
on a regular basis. The Risk Management is also certified under ISO 31000:2009. 

Based on said ERM framework, the risks identified by the Company are reviewed by the executive 
team comprising of employees of the Company including the top management. Risk identification 
is a continual process and appropriate mitigation plans are deployed as required. All the risks are 
evaluated on the count of occurrence and impact. Based on the risk ranking, high risk areas are 
identified and presented to the Audit Committee. There are no elements of risk exist, which in the 
opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the Company. 

20. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments 

Your Company falls within the scope of the definition "infrastructure company" as provided by the 
Companies Act, 2013 ('Act'). Accordingly, the Company is exempt from the provisions of Section 
186 of the Act with regards to Loans, Guarantees and Investments. 

21. Related Party Transactions 

In line with the requirements of the Act, the Company has formulated a Policy on Related Party 
Transactions (Policy) at its Board Meeting held on May 21, 2015, to ensure due and proper 
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act. The said policy also provides guidance for 
entering into transactions with related parties to ensure that a proper procedure is defined and 
followed for approval I ratification and reporting of transactions as applicable, between the 
Company and its Related Parties. 

During the year under review, all transactions entered into with related parties were approved by 
the Audit Committee. In view of the same, the requirement of giving particulars of contracts I 
arrangements made with related parties, in Form AOC-2 is not applicable for the year under 
review. Nevertheless, the Company has made disclosures of all related party transactions in 
notes of the Standalone audited financial statements for the FY 2019- 20. 

22. Corporate Social Responsibility 

Presently, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company consist of Mr. Banmali 
Agrawala, Chairman of the Committee, Mr. Sanjay Dutt and Mrs. Sucheta Shah, as its Members. 

The Company has formulated a CSR policy, mentioning its objective, CSR scope, activity 
schedule, monitoring and reporting method. The CSR policy shall be made available on website 
of the Company i.e. www.tatarealty.in. 
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In view of the losses (as per the calculation of net profit under Section 198 of the Companies Act, 
2013) incurred, the Company was not required to spend any amount on CSR activities for the 
Financial Year 2019-20. The Report on CSR activities is furnished in the prescribed format at 
"Annexure D'', of this report. The contents of the CSR policy has been disclosed in the report on 
CSR. 

23. Extract of Annual Return 

As per the requirements of Section 92(3) of the Act and Rules framed thereunder, the extract of 
the annual return for FY 2019-20 is given in "Annexure A" in the prescribed Form No. MGT-9, 
which is a part of this report. The Annual Return shall also be placed on the website of the 
Company at www.tatarealty.in. 

24. Particulars of Employees 

Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the 
Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed to the Report as Part A of "Annexure F". 

The statement containing names of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and the 
particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(2) and 
5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, 
is provided in Part B of Annexure F. In terms of proviso to Section 136(1) of the Act, the Report 
and Accounts are being sent to the shareholders excluding Part B of "Annexure F". The said 
Statement is also open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company. Any member 
interested in obtaining a copy of the same may write to the Company Secretary. None of the 
employees listed in the said Annexure are related to any Director of the Company. 

25. Disclosure Requirements 

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and that 
such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

26. Deposits from Public 

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public and as such, no amount on account of 
principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on the date of the balance sheet. 

27. Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange 
Earnings and Outgo 

The particulars relating to the Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign 
Exchange Earnings and Outgo as per Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
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the Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in the "Annexure E" to this 
report. 

28. Cost Auditors 

Your Board has appointed M/s. Vinod C. Subramaniam & Co., Practicing Cost Accountant having 
their address at B-504, Mauli Chhaya CHS, KurarV1llage, Kokni Pada, Malad (East), Mumbai 400 
097 as Cost Auditors of the Company for conducting cost audit for the FY 2019-20. A resolution 
seeking approval of the members for ratifying the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for 
FY 2020-21 is provided in the Notice to the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

As required under Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company confirms that 
jt has prepared and maintained cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub­
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the financial year ended March 31, 
2020. 

29. Details of significant and material orders passed by the Regulator or Courts or 
Tribunals impacting the Going Concern Status and Company's Operations in Future 

During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by any 
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and company's operation in 
future. 

30. Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (Act) 

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy 
on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the 
provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder for prevention and redressal of complaints of 
sexual harassment at workplace. 

Prevention of Sexual Harassment Committee (POSH) ("Internal Complaints Committee") is in 
place as per the policy and provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Committee has not received any complaints on alleged 
harassment, during the year under review. 

31. Vigil Mechanism 

The Company has formulated a Vigil Mechanism Policy ("the Policy"), under Section 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, with a view to provide a mechanism for employees and Directors of the 
Company to approach the Ethics Counsellor to ensure adequate safeguards against victimisation. 
This policy is also placed on the website of the Company at www.tatarealty.in and would help to 
create an environment where individuals feel free and secure to raise an alarm where they see a 
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problem. It will also ensure that complainant(s) are protected from retribution, whether within or 
outside the organization and makes provision for direct access to the chairperson of the Audit 
Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases. We confirm that during the financial year 2019-
2020, no employee of the Company was denied access to the Audit Committee. Further, Whistle­
blower complaints are dealt with by a due process of fully investigating the issues and appropriate 
action being taken based on the enquiry. The Board believes that there is no material impact of 
any such open matter on March 31, 2020, in the financial statements of the company. 

32. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the 
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the 
Company and to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report 

Except as stated above, there are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial 
position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the 
Company to which the financial statements relates and the date of this report. 
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On Behalf of the Board of Directors 
For Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

~~~~, ~~v~ 
Banmali Agrawala ~ -
Chairman 
DIN: 00120029 

Date: December 30, 2020 
Place: Mumbai 
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Annexure C - Secretarial Audit Report (MR-3) 
Annexure D - Annual Report on CSR 
Annexure E - Conservation of Energy, Tech. Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo 
Annexure F - Details of Remuneration of Directors, Employees and comparatives 
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FORM NO. MGT.9 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

As on the financial year ended on March 31, 2020 

AnnexureA 

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS: 

i. Corporate Identification 
Number 

ii. Registration Date 
iii. Name of the Company 
iv. category I Sub-Category Of 

the Company 
v. Address of the Registered 

office and contact details 

vi. Whether listed company 
vii. Name, Address and Contact 

details of Registrar and 
Transfer Agent, if any 

U45300MH1942PLC003573 

March 19, 1942 
Tata Housing Development Company Limited 
Company limited by Share/Indian Non-
Government Company 
E Block, Valtas Premises, T B Kadam Marg, 
Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033 
Telephone No : (022) 6661 4444 
Yes (Debt Listed) 
Link Intime India Private Limited 
C 101, 247 Park, L B S Marg, 
Vikhroli West,Mumbai 400 083 
Telephone No : (022) 4918 6270 
Fax No : (022) 4918 6060 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY: 

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company 
shall be stated: 

1 Construction of buildings and 4100 100% 
other related services 

*Note: As per National industry Classification, 2008 
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III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

Sr. 
No 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

Name and address of the company 

Holding/ 
Subsidiar 

CIN / GLN y/ 
Name Address / LLPIN Associate 

I Joint 
Venture 

Tata Sons Private Bombay House, 24 Horny U99999MH19 Holding 
Limited Modi Street, Fort, 17PTC00047 

Company Mumbai 400 001 8 
E Block, Voltas Premises, U45400MH20 Tata Value Homes T B Ka dam Marg, 09PLC19560 Subsidiary 

Limited Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 5 
400033 
E Block, Voltas Premises, U45400MH19 Concept Developers T B Kadam Marg, 69PLC01437 Subsidiary 

& Leasing Limited Chinchpokli, Mumbai -
5 

400033 
E Block, Voltas Premises, U74999MH20 THDC Management T B Kadam Marg, OOPLC12872 Subsidiary 

Services Limited* Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 0 400033 
E Block, Voltas Premises, U45400MH20 Kriday Realty Private T B Kadam Marg, 11PTC22408 Subsidiary 

Limited Chlnchpokli, Mumbai -
400033 

4 

E Block, Voltas Premises, U45400MH20 
Promont Hillside T B Kadam Marg, 12PTC22789 su.bsidiary Private Limited Chinchpokli, Mumbai -

400033 7 

Flat No. GF- 3, Naurang U45400DL20 
HLT Residency House, Plot No. 5, Block- 13PTC25480 Subsidiary 
Private Limited* 134, 21 Kasturba Gandhi 

Mara New Delhi- 110 001 7 

Princeton 
Flat No. GF- 3, Naurang U45201DL20 

Infrastructure 
House, Plot No. 5, Black- 05PTC13576 Subsidiary 134, 21 Kasturba Gandhi 

Private Limited Marq, New Delhi- 110 001 
8 

North Bombay Real 
E Block, Voltas Premises, 

U45209MH20 
Estate Private 14PTC25386 Subsidiary 
Limited* 

T B Ka dam Marg, 4 
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0/o of 
share 

s 
held/ 
partn 
ershi 

p 
intere 

st 
held* 

99.96 

100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033 
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in 

Website: www.tatarealty.in 

Applic 
able 

Sectio 
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2(46) 

2(87) 

2(87) 

2(87) 

2(87) 

2(87) 

2(87) 

2(87) 

2(87) 



10. 

11. 

12. 

13 .. 

14. 

15. 

16. 

17. 

18. 

19. 

20. 

• TATA 
Chinchpokli, Mumbai -
400033 

Smart Value Homes E Block, Voltas Premises, 
U45209MH20 

(Boisar) Private T B Kadam Marg, 12PTC23489 Subsidiary 
Limited 

Chinchpokli, Mumbai -
3 400033 

Synergizers E Block, Voltas Premises, U85191MH20 
Sustainable T B Kadam Marg, 12NPL23106 Subsidiary Foundation Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 9 (Section 8 companv) 400033 

E Block, Voltas Premises, 
U45200MH20 Ardent Properties T B Kadam Marg, 07PTC26241 Subsidiary Private Limited Chinchpokli, Mumbai -

4 400033 
E Block, Voltas Premises, U45209MH20 Promont Hilltop T B Kadam Marg, 12PTC23613 Subsidiary Private Limited Chinchpokli, Mumbai -

4 400033 

Smart Value Homes E Block, Voltas Premises, 
U45400MH20 

(Peenya Project) T B Kadam Marg, 13PTC24110 Subsidiary 
Private Limited* Chinchpokli, Mumbai -

8 400033 
Flat No. GF- 3, Naurang 

U45200DL20 HL Promoters Private House, Plot No. 5, Block-
13PTC25483 Subsidiary Limited* 134, 21 Kasturba Gandhi 

Marg. New Delhi- 110 001 2 

Kolkata-One E Block, Voltas Premises, 
U45400MH20 

Excelton Private T B Kadam. Marg; 13PTC24995 Subsidiary 
Limited Chinchpokli, Mumbai -

6 400033 
Flat No. GF- 3, Naurang 

Sector 113 Gatevida House, plot No. 5, Block- U45202DL20 
Developers Private 134, 21 Kasturba Gandhi 11PTC27718 Subsidiary 
Limited Marg, New Delhi- 110 2 

001 

Technopolis E Block, Voltas Premises, U70101MH19 Associate 
Knowledge Park T B Kadam Marg, 97PLC11091 (Joint 
Limited 

Chinchpokli, Mumbai -
5 Venture) 400033 

World-One 
80 Robinson Road, #02-Development Pte. NA Subsidiary 

Ltd. (Singapore) 00, Singapore 068898 

World-One (Sri 
80 Robinson Road, #02-Lanka) Projects Pte. NA Subsidiary 

Ltd., (Sinqapore) 00, Singapore 068898. 
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2(87) 
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2(87) 

2(87) 

2(6) 

2(87) 

2(87) 



One-Colombo 
21, Castle Avenue, 

21. Project (Private) NA Subsidiary 100 2(87) 
Limited (Sri Lanka) 

Colombo 08, Sri Lanka 

Apex Rea Jty Private 
13S, Gaakoshi, Ameene 

22. Magu, K. Male' 20013S, NA Subsidiary 6S 2(87) 
Limited (Maldives) 

Republic of Maldives 
Smart Value Homes E Block, Voltas Premises, 

23. 
(New Project) T B Kadam Marg, 

AAD-S942 Subsidiary Sl 2(87) 
Limited Liability Chinchpokli, Mumbai -
Partnership ** 400033 

E Block, Voltas Premises, 
Associate 

24. 
Arvind and Smart T B Kadam Marg, 

AAA-4S87 (Joint so 2(6) 
Value Homes LLP** Chinchpokli, Mumbai -

Venture) 
400033 
E Block, Voltas Premises, 

Associate 
2S. Sohna City LLP** 

T B Kadam Marg, 
AAB-2208 (Joint so 2(6) 

Chinchpokli, Mumbai -
Venture) 

400033 

One Bangalore 
E Block, Voltas Premises, 

26. Luxury Projects 
T B Kadam Marg, 

AAE-8922 Subsidiary Sl 2(87) 
LLP** 

Chinchpokli, Mumbai -
400033 
Lotus Business Park, 
Ground Floor, Tower B, 

U70200UP20 
27. 

Land Kart Builders Plot No. 8, Sector 127, 
16PTC08278 Subsidiary Sl 2(87) 

Private Limited* Gautam Buddha Nagar 
Noida 201304, Uttar 

0 

Pradesh 

*The above details includes % stake held directly and indirectly through it's subsidiary(s) by the 
Company. 
**Partnership Interest in case of LLP. 

Note: Relationship of Subsidiary has been considered basis the equity holding in each of the 
above entities. From Indian Accounting Standard perspectives, some of the entities 
may be considered as the Joint Ventures. 
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IV. 

i) 

A. Promoters 
(1) Indian 
a) Individual/ 
HUF 
b) Central 
Govt 
c) State Govt · 
Isl 

.,,, 
TATA 

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total 
Equity) 

Categorv-wise Share Holding 

d) Bodies 730,151,736 730,151,736 99.9998 730,151,736 730,151,736 99.9998 
Coro. 
e) Banks/FI 
f) Any other 
Sub-total (A) 730,151,736 
rn:-
(2) Foreign 
a) NRis ~ 
Individuals 
b) Other -
Indivfduals 
c) Bodies 
Com, 
d) Banks I FI 
e) Any Other 
Sub-total (A) 
(2):-

Total 
shareholding 
of Promoter 
(A)= 
(A)(l)+(A)( 
21 
B. Public 
Shareholdina 
1. 
Xnstitution's 
a) Mutual 
Funds 
b) Banks/FI 
c) Central Govt 
d) State 
Govt(s) 
e) Venture 
Capital Funds 
f) Insurance 
Companies 
g) Flis 
h) Foreign 
Venture 
CaDital Funds 

730,151,736 

730,151,736 99.9998 730,151,736 730,151,736 

730,151,736 99.9998 730,151,736 730,151,736 

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
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• TATA 
i) Others - - - - - - - -(soecif..,\ 
Sub-total 
(111(11:- - - - - - - - -
2. Non-
Institutions 
a) Bodies - - - - - - -Coro. 
n Indian - . - - - - -
II) Overseas - - - - -
bl Individuals 699 288 987 0.0002 699 288 987 0.0002 
i) Individual 
shareholders 
holding - - - - - -
nominal share 
capital upto 
Rs. 1 lakh 
ii} Individual 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal share - - - - - -
capital in 
excess of Rs 1 
lakh 
c) Others - - - - - -(soecifl./\ 
Sub-total 

699 288 987 0.0002 699 288 987 0.0002 (B)(2):-

Total Public 
Shareholding 699 288 987 0.0002 699 288 987 0.0002 (B) = (8)(1) 
+ 1Bll2l 
C. Shares 
held by 
Custodian 
forGDRs & 
AD Rs 
Grand Total 
IA+B+Cl 

1 

2 

- - - - - - - -

730,152,435 288 730,152,723 100.0000 730,152,435 288 730,152,723 100.0000 

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters 

Tata So ns 
Private Limited 
Tata So ns 
Private Limit ed 
jointly with 4 
individuals 

729,867,222 99.96 729,867,222 99.96 

176 0.00 176 0.00 

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
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3 

SI. 

1 
2 
3 

4 

5 

6 

1 
2 
3 

Tata Industries 
284,338 ().038 284,338 0.038 Limited 

- -
Total 730,151.736 99.99 - 730,151.736 99.99 -

(iii) Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify. if there is no change) 

Tata Sons Private Limited 729 867 222 729 867 222 99.96 
Tata Industries Limited 284 338 284 338 0.038 
Tata Sons Private Limited 45 45 0.00 
/w Mr. Nikhil Kumar 
Tata Sons Private Limited 45 0.00 45 0.00 

w Mr. K. R. Bha at 
Tata Sons Private Limited 45 0.00 45 0.00 

w Mr. F. N. Subedar 
Tata Sons Private Limited 41 0.00 41 0.00 
· w Mr. E. N. Ka adia 
Total 730 151 736 99.99 730 151736 99.99 

(iv) Shareholding Patt~rn of top tSln Shareholders Cother than Directors. Promoters and 
Holders of GDRs and ADRs): 

Mr. P. S. Mistrv 519 0.00 519 0.00 
Mr. F. A. Poncha 288 0.00 288 0.00 
Mr. Ratan Tata 180 0.00 180 0.00 

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

For Each of the Directors and 
KMP 

No. of % of total No. of % of total 
shares shares of the shares 

Company 

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 

shares of 
the 
com an 
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1. 
2. 
3. 

4. 
5. 
6. 
7. 

Directors 
Mr. Banmali Aarawala 
Mr. Saniav Dutt 
Mr. Santhanakrishnan 
Sankaran 
Mr. Nioun Annarwal 
Mr. Dileeo Chinubhai Choksi 
Mr. Venkataramanan K 
Ms. Sucheta Nilesh Shah 

Kev Manaaerial Personnel 

G 
TATA 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 
Nil Nil Nil Nil 
Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 
Nil Nil Nil Nil 
Nil Nil Nil Nil 
Nil Nil Nil Nil 

1 Saniav Dutt Nil Nil Nil Nil 
2 Khiroda Jena A Nil Nil Nil Nil 
3 Ritesh Kamdar @ Nil Nil Nil Nil 

A Mr. Khiroda Jena was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect 
from August 07, 2019 

@ Mr. Ritesh Kamdar was appointed as Company Secretary of the Company with effect 
from Mav 8. 2019 

V. INDEBTEDNESS 
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due 
for payment 

Secured Loans Unsecured Loans Deposits 
excluding deposits 

Indebtedness at the 
beginning of the 
financial year 

il Princioal Amount 1.394.49 966.08 -

ii) Interest due but not - - -
iii) Interest accrued 

90.71 but not due 0.43 -

Total fi+ii+iin 1.485.20 966.51 -
Change in 

Indebtedness 
during the financial 

year 

Addition 972.58 3.740.10 -
Reduction 860.44 3.370.00 -

Interest accrued but 
not due 4.55 -0.12 -

NetChanae 116.68 369.98 -

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 

(Rs. In Crores) 
Total 

Indebtedness 

2 360.57 
-

91.14 

2.451.70 

4.712.68 
4.230.44 

4.43 

486.67 

Regd. Office:- E Block, Valtas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumba·1 - 400 033 
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Indebtedness at the 
end of the financial 

year 
il Princioal Amount 1 506.63 1 336.18 2 842.81 

iil Interest due but not - - - -
iii) Interest accrued 

but not due 95.26 0.31 95.57 

Total (i +ii +iii) 1,601.89 1,336.49 - 2,938.38 

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: 
(Rs. In Crores) 

:~g_ ·.• %sR~~i~ilw.~·gr;~~lit~~Eit~tio!1- ...... ····-••··· M~~;~~7ri!~i;.Pe~r 
1. Gross salary 

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) 2,68,71,624/-
of the Income-tax Act, 1961 · 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, Nil 
1961 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- Nil 
tax Act, 1961 

2. Stock Option 
3. Sweat Equity 
4. Commission 

*Note: 

as % of profit 
- others specifv - Performance linked incentive* 
Total (A) 
Ceiling as per the Act (As per schedule V of the 
Companies Act, 2013) 

The above information is as per Form 16 (Salary certificate). 

Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
1.61.86.618/-

4,30,58,242/-* 

NA 

This remuneration Is being the 60% reimbursement made to Tata Realty and Infrastructure 
Limited 

B. Remuneration to other directors: 
(Amount in Rs.) 

1 Indeoendent Director Mr. Santhanakrishnan S 
• Fee for attending board & Rs. 10,50,000 Rs. 10,50,000 

committee meetings 
• Commission 
• Others, please soecify 
Independent Director Mr. Dileep Choksi 

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 
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'SI .. 
no; 

2 

3 

4 

• TATA 
-

- particulars of_- - --· -- --- •• _ •. 
I•-•·-·--·-•_-- ~~meofDir~_ors 

- -·- Total Amoullt 
- _.- - - - - - : - -____ 'Remu11erntion>1< • > ~~-; ---,- - : 

- -1:~ -~:'- ·_-'; __ --- . ---, _c - - - __ '-_ "- - - - --::-, - • _': - -_-_ 

• Fee for attending board & Rs. 9,50,000 Rs. 9,50,000 
committee meetings 

• Commission - -
• others, please specify - -
Independent Director Ms. Sucheta Shah 
• Fee for attending board & Rs. 10,50,000 Rs. 10,50,000 

committee meetings 
• Commission - -
• others, please soecify - -
Total (1) Rs. 30.50.000 
Other Non-Executive Mr. K. Venkataramanan 
Director 
• Fee for attending board/ 

Meetings - -
• Commission - -
• Others. Please specify - -
Other Non-Executive Mr. Banmali Agrawala 

Director 
• Fee for attending Board Rs. 80,000 Rs. 80,000 

meetings 
• Commission - -
• Others. olease soecify - -
Other Non-Executive Mr. Nipun Aggarwal 

Director 
• Fee for attending board Rs. 80,000 Rs. 80,000 

committee meetings 
• Commission - -
• Others. please specify - -
Total (2) - Rs. 160,000 
Total (B) = (1 + 2) - Rs. 32,10,000 
Total Managerial 

NA NA 
Remuneration 
Overall Ceiling as per the Act 
(1 % of profits calculated under 

NA NA 
section 198 of the Companies 
Act, 2013) 

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD 
Rs. In Crores 

Sr .. 
> 11.0. -

Paiticular5°of'' 
Remun~ration 

1. Gross salary 
(a) Salary as per provisions 

contained in section 17(1) 
of the Income-tax Act, 

1961 
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 

17(2) Income-tax Act, 
1961 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary 
under section 17(3) 

Income-tax Act 1961 

22,10,841/- 22,10,841/-

2. Stock 0 tion 
3. Sweat Equity 

4. Commission 
- as % of profit 

others, specify -
Contribution to PF 

Total 

87360/- 87360/-

22 98 201 - 22 98 201 -
" Mr. Khiroda Jena was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from August 07, 
2019 

@ Mr. Ritesh Kamdar was appointed as Company Secretary of the Company with effect from May 8, 2019, 
however, he has been in the employment of the Company with effect from April 1, 2019. Hence, his 
remuneration was given for the entire financial year. 

The remuneration details mentioned above are as per the Income Tax Act, 1961 and include performance 
incentive paid by the Company during FY 2019 - 20 pertaining to FY 2018 ·- 19. 

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
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VII. PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES UNDER THE ACT: 

Section of Details of Penalty I 
the Brief Punishment/ Type 

Companies Description Compounding fees 
Act imposed 

A. COMPANY 
Penalty 
Punishment Not Applicable 
Compounding 

B. DIRECTORS 
Penalty 
Punishment Not Applicable 
Compoundinq 

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 
Penalty 
Punishment Not Applicable 
Compounding 

On Behalf of the Board of Directors 
For Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

~~AA\/v~ · 
Banmali Agrawala 
Chairman 
DIN: 00120029 

Date: December 30, 2020 
Place: Mumbai 

Authority 
[RD/ NCLT/ 

COURT] 

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
CIN: U45300MH 1942PLC003573 

Appeal 
made, if 

any 
(give 

Details) 
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Annexure B (a) 

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND 
OTHER EMPLOYEES 

The philosophy for remuneration of directors, Key Managerial Personnel ("KMP") and all 
other employees of Tata Housing Development Company Limited ("Company") is based on 
the commitment of fostering a culture of leadership with trust. The remuneration policy is 
aligned to this philosophy. 

This remuneration policy has been prepared pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(3) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 C'Act'') and Clause 49(IV)(B)(1) of the Equity Listing Agreement 
("Listing Agreement''). In case of any inconsistency between the provisions of law and 
this remuneration policy, the provisions of the law shall prevail and the company shall abide 
by the applicable law. While formulating this policy, the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee ("NRC'') has considered the factors laid down under Section 178(4) of the Act, 
which are as under: 

"(a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain 
and motivate directors of the quality required to run the company successfully; 

(b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 
benchmarks; and 

(c) remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a 
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance 
objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals" 

Key principles governing this remuneration policy are as follows: 

• Remuneration for independent directors and non-independent non-executive 
directors 

o Independent directors ("ID'') and non-independent non-executive directors ("NED'') may 
be paid sitting fees (for attending the meetings of the Board and of committees of which 
they may be members) and commission within regulatory limits. 

o Within the parameters prescribed by law, the payment of sitting fees and commission will 
be recommended by the NRC and approved by the Board. 

o Overall remuneration (sitting fees and commission) should be reasonable and sufficient to 
attract, retain and motivate directors aligned to the requirements of the company (taking 
into consideration the challenges faced by the company and its future growth imperatives). 

1 
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Annexure B (a) 
o Overall remuneration should be reflective of size of the company, complexity of the sector/ 
industry/ company's operations and the company's capacity to pay the remuneration. 

o Overall remuneration practices should be consistent with recognized best practices. 

o Quantum of sitting fees may be subject to review on a periodic basis, as required. 

o The aggregate commission payable to all the NEDs and IDs will be recomme.nded by the 
NRC to the Board based on company performance, profits, return to investors, shareholder 
value creation and any other significant qualitative parameters as may be decided by the 
Board.· 

o The NRC will recommend to the Board the quantum of commission for each director based 
upon the outcome of the evaluation process which is driven by various factors including 
attendance and time spent in the Board and committee meetings, individual contributions at 
the meetings and contributions made by directors other than in meetings. 

o In addition to the sitting fees and commission, the company may pay to any director such 
fair and reasonable expenditure, as may have been incurred by the director while 
performing his/ her role as a director of the company. This could include reasonable 
expenditure incurred by the director for attending Board/ Board committee meetings, 
general meetings, court convened meetings, meetings with shareholders/ creditors/ 
management, site visits, ind.uction and training (organized by the company for directors) 

. and in obtaining professional advice from independent advisors in the furtherance of his/ her 
duties as a director. 

• Remuneration for managing director ("MD")/ executive directors ("ED")/ KMP/ 
rest of the employees1 

o The extent of overall remuneration should be sufficient to attract and retain talented and 
qualified individuals suitable for every role. Hence remuneration should be: 

• Market competitive (market for every role is defined as companies from which the 
company attracts talent or companies to which the company loses talent) 

• Driven by the role played by the individual, 
• Reflective of size of the company, complexity of the sector/ industry/ company's 

operations and the company's capacity to pay, 

1Excludes employees covered by any long term settlements or specific term contracts. 
The remuneration for these employees would be driven by the respective long term 
settlements or contracts. 
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• Consistent with recognized best practices and 
• Aligned to any regulatory requirements. 

o In terms of remuneration mix or composition, 

• The remuneration mix for the MD/ EDs is as per the contract approved by the 
shareholders. In case of any change, the same would require the approval of the 
shareholders. 

• Basic/ fixed salary is provided to all employees to ensure that there is a steady income 
in line with their skills and experience. 

• In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, the company provides employees with certain 
perquisites, allowances and benefits to enable a certain level of lifestyle and to offer 
scope for savings and tax optimization, where possible. The company also provides all 
employees with a social security net (subject to limits) by covering medical expenses 
and hospitalization through re-imbursements or insurance cover and accidental death 
and dismemberment through personal accident insurance. 

• The company provides retirement benefits as applicable. 

• [In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances as provided 
above, the company provides MD/ EDs such remuneration by way of commission, 
calculated with reference to the net profits of the company in a particular financial year, 
as may be determined by the Board, subject to the overall ceilings stipulated in Section 
197 of the Act. The specific amount payable to the MD/ EDs would be based on 
performance as evaluated by the Board or the NRC and approved by the Board.]2 

• [In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances as provided 
above, the company provides MD/ EDs such remuneration by way of an annual 
incentive remuneration/ performance linked bonus subject to the achievement of 
certain performance criteria and such other parameters as may be considered 
appropriate from time to time by the Board. An indicative list of factors that may be 
considered for determination of the extent of this component are: 

./ Company performance on certain defined qualitative and quantitative 
parameters as may be decided by the Board from time to time, 

./ Industry benchmarks of remuneration, 

./ Performance of the individual.]3 

2 To be retained if Commission is provided to MD/ EDs 

3 
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Annexure B (a) 
3 To be retained only if Commission is not provided to MD/ EDs 

• The company provides the rest of the employees a performance linked bonus. The 
performance linked bonus would be driven by the outcome of the performance 
appraisal process and the performance of the company. 

• Remuneration payable to Director for services rendered in other capacity 

The remuneration payable to the Directors shall be inclusive of any remuneration payable 
for services rendered by such director in any other capacity unless: 

a) The services rendered are of a professional nature; and 
b) The NRC is of the opinion that the director possesses requisite qualification for the 
practice of the profession. 

• Policy implementation 

The NRC is responsible for recommending the remuneration policy to the Board. The Board 
is responsible for approving and overseeing implementation of the remuneration policy. 

For Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Sd/-
Sanjay Dutt 
Managing Director & CEO 
DIN: 05251670 

For Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

~ (lAAM,~• ~w ~a~f_COP41~+,_'0 
Banmali Agrawala 6 ~ MUMBAI ~ 
Chairman ~ ~ 
DIN: 00120029 ~~.J. * ·u0 ~ 

Date: December 30, 2020 
Place : Mumbai 

4 
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Annexure B (b} 

Payment of sitting fees and commission for Non-Executive Directors I 

1. Introduction 

This document ("Advisory Note'') serves as an advisory for payment of sitting fees and 
commission to directors based on current and emerging best practices from both within and 
outside Tata companies1• The document has been written from an Indian perspective and 
prepared keeping in view the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act'') and the 
corporate governance requirements as prescribed by Securities and Exchange Board of India 
("SEBI") under Cl.ause 49 of the Equity Listing Agreement ("Clause 49"). In case of any 
inconsistency between the provisions of law and this Advisory Note, .the provisions of the 
law shall prevail and the company shall abide by the applicable law. In case there are any 
changes in the law, companies will have to comply with the applicable amended provisions. 

2. Principles 

The principles governing sitting fees and commission are as follows: 

• Overall remuneration (sitting fees and commission) should be reasonable and sufficient 
to attract, retain and motivate directors aligned to the requirements of the company 
(taking into consideration the challenges faced by the company and its future growth 
imperatives). 

• Overall remuneration should be reflective of size of the company, complexity of the 
sector/ industry/ company's operations and the company's capacity to pay. 

• Overall remuneration practices should be consistent with recognized best practices. 

• The extent of remuneration should be as per the prescribed law. 

• Quantum of sitting fees may be subject to review on a periodic basis, as required. 

3. Sitting Fees 

• The quantum of sitting fees payable per meeting is to be approved by the Board of 
directors ("Board''), based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee ("NRC"), and shall remain applicable unless modified in the future by the 
Board based on the recommendation of the NRC. 

1 

.• 1 For the purpose of this document, a "Tata company" shall mean Tata Sons Limited and every company of which Tata Sons Limited 
or Tata Industries Limited or any company promoted by Tata Sons Limited or Tata Industries Limited Is the promoter or in which such 
companies whether singly or collectively hold directly or Indirectly 26°/o or more of the paid up equity share capltal or In which the 
shareholdlng of such companies represents the largest Indian holdlng apart from holdlngs of financial Institutions/ mutual funds or a 
company which is permitted by Tata Sons Limited to use the Tata brand/ name. 
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• As per the Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, "A company may pay sitting fee to a director for attending 
meetings of the Board or committees thereof, of such per meeting of the Board or 
committee thereof: 

Provided that for independent directors and women directors, the sitting fee shall not be 
less than the sitting fee payable to other directors." 

• While determining the quantum of sitting fees payable, the Board may consider the 
quantum of such fees paid in the past and follow a staggered approach for increasing 
the quantum upto the prescribed limit. 

• In case of Tata companies that currently and in the foreseeable future do not have 
adequate profits to pay commission (in the judgment of their respective Boards), it is 
suggested that quantum of sitting fees balance the need to attract the right caliber of 
directors and the company's capacity to pay. The Board of such a company (supported 
by the NRC) may determine sitting fees such that the total annual remuneration payable 
to each director (eligible for sitting fees) amounts to at least Rupees six lakhs and does 
not exceed Rupees twelve lakhs. In case the Board (supported by the NRC) is of the 
view that the total annual remuneration payable to each director must exceed Rupees 
twelve lakhs, the matter would be referred to the NRC of the parent/ holding company 
for consideration/ approval. The range of annual remuneration provided herein are 
subject to review at least once in every 3 years by the Board (supported by the NRC). 

• However, it is recommended that the per meeting sitting fees payable to current 
employees of Tata companies who are non-executive directors ("NED'') other than 
woman directors on Boards of Indian Tata companies not exceed Rs.20,000. 

• Sitting fees may vary for Board meetings and various committee meetings. Same 
amount of sitting fees per meeting may be considered for Board meetings, Audit 
Committee meetings and NRC meetings. 

• The Board and committees should meet as o~en as it is necessary in the best interest of 
the company. Normally, we have observed that the frequency of meetings are typically 
as follows: 

o Board meetings: 4-8 in a year 
o Audit Committee: 6-8 in a year 
o Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 3-4 in a year 
o Committee of the Board: 6-8 in a year 
o Other Committees: 1-3 in a year 

However, it is the Board/ committee's discretion to have more frequent meetings, if so 
required. 

2 
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Annexure B {b) 

• If any Board I committee meeting is held solely for approving a procedura l matter, the 
directors present may, at their entire discretion, resolve not to take any sitting fee for 
that meeting. 

4. Commission 

• The payment and computation of commission will be governed by guidelines issued in 
the past in this regard . 

For Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Sd/-
Sanjay Dutt 
Managing Director & CEO 
DIN: 05251670 

For Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

~ 't\,\.AM,~\' ~"1\f""f(,Q_ 
Banmali Agrawala 
Chairman 
DIN: 00120029 

Date: December 30, 2020 
Place: Mumbai 
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To, 

BHATT & ASSOCIATES 
co·MPANY SECRETARIES LLP 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 5T MARCH, 2020 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

The Members, 

Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 

the adherence to good corporate governance practice by Tata Housing Development Company 

Limited (hereinafter called "the Company") . Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 

provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts I statutory compliances and 

expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed 

and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, 

its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we 

hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial 

year ended on 31st March, 2020, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also 

that the Com;:iany has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, 

in the manner and subject to the reporting made here:nafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forrns and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company, for the financial year ended on 31s1 March, 2020, according to the 

provisions of: 

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules mcide thereunder; 

D / 101, Lata Annexe, Above Axis Bank, W. E. Highway, Borivali (East), Mumbai - 400 066. 
Mob. : 98671 51081, 80979 85754 •Telefax: 022 2846 1715 
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ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made 

thereunder; 

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder 

- Not Applicable; 

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment; Overseas Direct Investment 

and External Commercial Borrowings - Not Applicable; 

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') :-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 - Not applicable; 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015; 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2009 - Not Applicable; 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 

Regulations, 2014 - Not Applicable; 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008; 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993, regarding the Companies Act and dealing 

with client - Not applicable; 



g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 

Regulations, 2009 - Not applicable; 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of Securities) Regulations, 

1998 - Not applicable; 

vi. Further we report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the 

Company and on examination of the relevant documents, records in pursuance thereof, 

on test-check basis and on declaration by the officer in charge, the Company has 

complied with the Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016 and its Rules, 

regulation, notifications, Orders and Circulars etc. , pertaining to infrastructural 

development companies. 

On account of pandemic "COVID 2019" and nationwide lockdown imposed by governments, the 

audit process has been modified, wherein certain documents /records etc were verified in 

electronic mode, and have relied on the representations received from the Company for its 

accuracy and authenticity. 

We have examined compliances with applicable clauses of 

i. Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of the Company Secretaries of India for 

General Meetings and Board Meetings. 

ii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

During the financial year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 

Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

We further report that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. No change in the composition of the 

Board of Directors took place during the year under review. 

Adequate notice, agenda and detailed notes were given to all Directors to schedule the Board 

Meetings at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 

information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 

participation at the meeting. 



As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of 

the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded. 

We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for adequate systems 

and processes in the company commensurate with its size & operation to monitor and ensure 

compliance with applicable laws. 

We further report that during the year under report, the Company has undertaken event I action 

having a major bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, 

regulations , guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above viz. 

(i) Appointment of Company Secretary; 

(ii) Appointment of Chief Financial Officer; 

(iii) Approval from members for Issuance of Non-Convertible Debentures on private 

placement basis; 

(iv) Allotment of Non-Convertible Debentures on Private Placement basis; 

(v) Issuance and Repayment of Commercial Papers; and 

(vi) Listing of Non-Convertible Debentures of the Company on SSE limited. 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 22.06.20 

For Bhatt & Associates Company Secretaries LLP 

·· , ika Bhatt 
Desig at.ed Partner 

ACS No.: 36181, COP No.: 13376 
UDIN: A0361818000362606 

This Report is to be read with our letter annexed as Appendix A, which forms integral part of this 

report. 
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APPENDIX A 

To, 

The Members, 

Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. The responsibility of maintaining Secretarial record is of the management and based on 

our audit, we have expressed our opinion on these records. 

2. We are of the opinion that the audit practices and process adopted to obtain assurance 

about the correctness of the Secretarial records were reasonable for verification on test 

check basis. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books 

of accounts of the Company. 

4. The management is responsible for compliances with corporate and other applicable laws, 

rules, regulations, standards etc. our examination was limited to the verification of 

procedure on test basis and wherever required, we have obtained the Management 

representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations etc. 

5. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 

the affairs of the Company. 

For Bhatt & Associates Company Secretaries LLP 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 22.06.20 

- ika Bhatt 

Designat~ Partner 

ACS No.: 36181, COP No.: 13376 
UDIN: A036181 B000362606 
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ANNEXURE D 

REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES IN ACCORDANCE WilH SECTION 135 OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH THE COMPANIES (CORPORATE SOCIAL 

RESPONSIBILITY POLICY) RULES, 2014 

1. A brief outline of the Company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or 
programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR 
policy and projects or programs. 

The Company believes that the primary purpose of the business is to improve the quality of life 
of people in the community it serves. The Company's triple-bottom-line (social, economic and 
environmental) perspective to business places people, planet and profit at the core of its business 
strategy. The Company believes in integrating its corporate values and business needs to meet 
the expectations of its customers, employees, partners, investors, communities and public at 
large. 

In this regard, the Company will volunteer its resources to the extent it can reasonably afford, 
but not less than the regulatory requirements, so as to sustain the environment and to improve 
the quality of life of the people of the communities in which it operates. 

The Company will continually endeavor to prevent pollution, ensure optimum use of resources 
and minimize harmful impacts on society and environment during construction processes and 
materials movement and its delivery throughout our supply chain. It will encourage its partners 
and service providers to adopt responsible business policies, business ethics and abide by its code 
of conduct. 

In line with the above social responsibility and commitment towards the community as a whole, 
the Company shall contribute actively through TAAP for the development of SC & ST, and support 
& undertake activity(ies) for promotion of education and employability enhancement of people 
other than SC & STs, environmental sustainability, community infrastructure development, 
construction of toilets for individual families, Children health and managing of developmental 
disorders in children, Promoting gender equality and empowering women, combating disease and 
hygiene and sanitation initiatives etc. as outlined in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Company has branded its CSR activities under the following area(s) of focus: 

•TAAP (Tata Affirmative Action Programme) - Employability, Employment, Education and 
Entrepreneurship development of SC/STs; 
•SAMARTH - Skill Development including of economically backward; 
•SRIJAN - Educational Development including of economically backward; 
•BIG (Beautiful is Green) - Environmental Sustainability; 
•SPARSH and SWACHH - Community Infrastructure Development including providing basic 
utilities like construction of toilets, etc.; and 
•SYNERGIZERS - Employee Volunteering Programme. 

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 

Regd. Office:- E Block, Valtas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033 
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealtv.in 

Website: www.tatarealtv.in 



• TATA 
The CSR Policy of the Company is available on the website of the Company at the following link: 
http://www.tatatreatly.in 

2. The Composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

Non-Executive Director 

Member 

3. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years: Not applicable, as 
Company has incurred losses during last three financial years 

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent. of the amount as in item 3 above): Rs. Nil 

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year: 

(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below. 
(Rs. In Crores): 

(1) 
Sr. 
No. 

(2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) 
CSR project or Sector Projects or Amount Amount Cumulative 
activity 
identified 

in which programs (1) outlay spent on the expenditure 
the Local area or (budget) projects or upto 
project other (2) project or programe reporting 
is Specify the programs Subheads: period 
covered State and wise (1) (Direct 

district expenditure 
where on projects 
projects or or 
programs programs) 
was (2) 
undertaken Overheads 

Not Aoolicable 

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 

the 

18) 
Amount 
spent: 
Direct or 
through 
impleme-
nting 
agency 
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6. In case the company has failed to spend the two percent, of the average net profit of 
the last three financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the 
reasons for not spending the amount in its Board Report: 

Not applicable, as Company have incurred losses (based on calculations made as per Section 198 

of the Companies Act, 2013). 

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and 
monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the 
Company: 

The Company was not required to implement, monitor and report any CSR activities, during the 
year under review. 

For Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

~ ~~\,\,~ ~~-J 
Banmali Agrawa~a 
Chairman 
DIN: 00120029 

Date: December 30, 2020 
Place: Mumbai 

Sanjay Dutt 
MD &CEO 
DIN: 05251670 

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 
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Annexure E 

THE CONSERVATION OF ENERGY. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION. FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

The particulars relating to the Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign 
Exchange Earnings and Outgo as per Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
the Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as under: 

A. Conservation of Energy 

Considering the nature of activities undertaken by the Company, the Company has taken certain 
feasible initiatives/steps towards sustainability, which include initiatives which has impact on 
energy conservation. 

Steps taken or Impact on Conservation of Energy 

Sustainability is an integral part of the Company's business philosophy. The Board of Directors of 
the Company has urged its stakeholders for undertaking appropriate steps for conservation of 
energy. The Company has always endeavor to undertake appropriate steps for conservation of 
energy. In this regard, the Company has taken the following steps in the project: 

a. Energy metering: Energy meters for external lighting, municipal water pumping, grey 
water pumping (for flushing) and water pumping for landscaping; 

b. Installation of energy efficient equipment: Minimum 60% efficiency for pumps 
greater than 3HP and ISI rated pumps for others, minimum 75% efficiency for motors 
greater than 3HP and ISI rated motors for others, elevators operating with intelligent 
group controls and water level controllers; 

c. Electric Charging Facility for Vehicles: Electric Charging Facility shall be provided for 
5 % of total parking; 

d. Use of maximum daylight: Use of maximum Day light in Apartments and common 
areas by providing glazed windows facing South /North Direction; 

e. Use of natural ventilation: Use of natural ventilation in Apartments and common areas 
by providing big size windows facing South /North Direction; 

f. Energy efficient light fixtures: Use of Energy efficient fixtures like LED, TS having low 
power consumptions; 

g. Low loss transformers: Use of Level 2 Transformers which have low/ no load and full 
load losses; 

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 
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h. Energy efficient air conditioning: Use of 5 star rated AC having low power 
consumption; 

i. Lighting Automation: Use of timers and other energy saving devices for common area 
lights, in case of day time it will switch off through automation; and 

j. Home automation: Home Automation is done to reduce ideal mode power 
consumptions of lights, fans, AC and other electrical devices. 

Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of Energy 

a. Employee awareness: The Company has in its day to day working environment have 
urged its employees for usage of electronic gadgets which saves energy, encouraging 
carpooling, make· them aware about water conservation, climate change, waste 
management and energy conservation with a view to encourage water and energy 
conservation. 

b. Use of Solar Powered Lights in common areas and landscape to reduce power demand of 
project. 

c. At Corporate Office, Company switch off 50% AC plant during lunch for one hour. The 
Company has also kept water taps on low force setting to save water and used signage's 
to minimize use of paper and water in washrooms. Further, Lights are switched off in 
pockets beyond 6.30 pm as staff leaves. Waste bottled water is being used for cleaning 
and plants. 

Capital investment on energy conservation equipment's; 

During the year under review, the Company has not undertaken any capital investment on energy 
conservation equipment. 

B. Technology Absorption 

(i) Efforts made towards technology absorption: 

The Company endeavors to undertake alternatives for technology absorption. However, during 
the FY 2019-20, the Company has not undertaken activities relating to technology absorption. 

(ii) Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution: 

The Company has not undertaken new technology implementation during the FY 2019-20. 

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 
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(iii) Imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of 
the financia l year)-

The Company has not imported any technology during the last three years immediately preceding 
the FY 2019-20. 

(iv) Expenditure incurred on Research and Development. 

The Company has not incurred any expense on Research and Development during the FY 2019-
20 

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo 

Disclosure of information relating to Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo as required is already 

given in Notes, which forms part of the audited financial statements for the year ended March 
31, 2020. 

On Behalf of the Board of Directors 
For Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

~~\A"~ A pv,,,J_ 
Banmali Agrawala ~ 
Chairman 
DIN: 00120029 

Date: December 30, 2020 
Place: Mumbai 
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"Annexure F" 

Part A 

DISCLOSURE OF MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION 

a- The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the 
Company for the financial year: 

Sr. Name of Director Ratio of Director's remuneration to the 
No. median remuneration of the employees 

of the Comoany for the financial year 
1 Mr. Banmali Agrawala* NA 

Desianation: Chairman 
2 Mr. Sanjay Dutt 1 :18 

Designation: MD & CEO 
3 Mr. Santhanakrishnan S* NA 

Desianation: Independent Director 
4 Mr. Nipun Aggarwal* NA 

Desii:1nation: Director 
5 Mr. Dileep Choksi* NA 

Desianation: lndeoendent Director 
6 Ms. Sucheta Shah* NA 

Desianation: lndeoendent Director 
7 Mr. Venkataramanan K. Not applicable, as Director has not 

Designation: Director received any sitting fees or any other 
remuneration durina the vear .. 

* Not Applicable, as only s1tt1ng fees being paid 

b- The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive 
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year: 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director and Key Managerial Percentage (%) increase in 
Personnel remuneration in the financial 

vear 
Mr. Banmali Agrawala NA 
Desianation: Chairman 
Mr. Sanjay Dutt 9 % on Basic/ 7% on Total 
Desianation: MD & CEO Remuneration 
Mr. Santhanakrishnan S NA 
Desianation: Independent Director 
Mr. Nipun Aggarwal NA 
Desianation: Director 
Mr. Dileep Choksi NA 
Desianation: Independent Director 
Ms: Sucheta Shah NA 
Desianation: Independent Director 
Mr. Venkataramanan K. Not applicable, as Director has 
Desianation: Director not received anv sittina fees or 

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 
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any other remuneration during the 
year 

Mr. Khiroda Jena 
Designation: Chief Financial Officer Not Applicable, as appointed 
Mr. Ritesh Kamdar during the year 
Desiqnation: Company Secretary 

*Not Applicable, as only sitting fees being paid 

(c) The median remuneration of employees of the-Company during the financia l year 2019-20 
was Rs. 23,30,598/- per annum & the percentage increase in the median remuneration of 
employees in the financial year was 7.5%; 

(d) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company: 261 

(e) (i) Average percenti le increase in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel 
was 7.5%; and 

(ii) Average increase in remuneration of Managers (defined as MD and ED on the board of the 
Company) was 7.3%. 
Reason: Basis Performance Result of the Company 

(f) It is affirmed that the remuneration is as per the 'Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and other employees, approved by the Board. 

For the purposes of the above.-

(i) the expression "median" means the numerical value separating the higher half of a 
population from the lower half and the median of a finite list of numbers may be found by 
arranging all the observations from lowest value to highest value and picking the middle one. 

(ii) if there is an even number of observations, the median shall be the average of the two middle 
values. 

By order of the Board 
For Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Banmali Agrawala 
Chairman 
DIN: 00120029 

Date: December 30, 2020 
Place: Mumbai 
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8 SR & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

5th Floor, Lodha Excelus, 
Apollo Mills Compound 
N. M. Joshi Mai-g,Mahalaxmi 
Murnba1 - 400 011 
!ndia 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Telephone +91 (22) 4345 5300 
Fax +91 (22) 4345 5399 

To the Members of Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Tata Housing Development Company Limited 
('·the Company.,), which complisc the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2020, and the 
standalone statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), standalone statement of 
changes in equity and standalone statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
standalone financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
('·Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
plinciples generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and 
loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that 
date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropliate to provide a basis for 
our opinion on the Standalone financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current peliod. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

BS R & Co la P-"rtnership firm with 
Registration No. BAl31223) converted into 
BS R & Co. LLP la limited Liability, Partnership 
with U.P Reg1strnlion No. AAB-8181) 
with uffectfrom Octolrnr 14, 2013 

Regisfored Office: 
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Apollo Mills Compound 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued) 

To the Members of Tata Housing Development Company 
Limited 
Key Audit Matter (continued) 

Descriptiou of Key Audit Matter 

Revenue Recognition 
See note 18 to the standalone financial statements 

The kev audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 
Revenues from sale of residential units Our audit procedures on Revenue recognition 
represents the largest portion of the total included the following: 
revenues of the Company. 

- Evaluate the Company's revenue 
In accordance with Ind AS 115 Revenue from recognition accounting policies, their 
Contracts with Customers, the analysis of application to the customer contracts 
whether these contracts comprise of one or including consistent application vis a vis the 
more performance obligations, and whether requirements of the applicable accounting 
the performance obligations are satisfied over standards; 
time or at a point in time, are areas requiring - Identification and testing operating 
critical judgement by the Company. Revenue effectiveness of key controls over existence 
is recognised upon transfer of control of and recording of revenue recognised for the 
residential and commercial units to customers projects; 
for an amount that reflects the consideration - Evaluating the criteria applied by the 
which the Company expects to receive in Company for detennining the point in time 
exchange for those units and the customer has at which revenue is recognised; 
the significant risks and rewards of ownership - agree the amount of revenue recognised 
of the asset. with the underlying agreements with the 

customers on the sample basis; and 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the - Test on a sample basis the discounts granted 
consideration received/ accrued. Revenue is are as per Company policies. 
adjusted for estimated cost pending to be 
incurred by the company for the completion of 
the project. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued) 

To the Members of Tata Housing Development Company 
Limited 
Key Audit Matters (continued) 

Deferred Tax Assets 
See note 6 to the standalone financial statements 

The kev audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 
The carrying amount of the deferred tax assets Our audit procedures included, amongst 
is Rs. 41.26 crores as at 31 March 2020. others: 

- Obtained an understanding of the process and 
Recognition and measurement of deferred tax tested the controls over recording of deferred 
assets tax and assessment of deferred tax at each 
The Company has deferred tax assets m reporting date; 
respect of brought forward losses and other - We tested the computation of the amounts 
temporary differences, as set out in note 6 recognized as deferred tax assets; 
The recognition of deferred tax assets involves - we evaluated Company's assumptions used to 
judgment regarding the likelihood of the determine probability of recoverability of 
reasonable certainty of realisation of these deferred tax assets recognized, through taxable 
assets, evaluating based on future cashflows income in future years, by comparing them 
for taxable profits in future periods which against profit trends and future business plans; 
sustenance recognition of these assets. - We assessed the disclosures on deferred tax 

included in Note 6 to the financial statements. 

NRV oflnventories 
See note 7 to the standalone financial statements 

The kev audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 
The Company's inventory comprise of Our audit procedures/ testing included, among 
ongoing and completed real estate projects, others: 
unlaunched projects and development rights. - Evaluate the Company's accounting policies 
As at 31 March 2019, the carrying values of for inventory including consistent 
inventories amounts to 3,180.30 crores. application vis a vis the requirements of the 
The inventories are carried at the lower of the applicable accounting standards; 
cost and net realizable value ('NRV'). The - We evaluated the process, methodology and 
determination of the NRV involves estimates key assumptions for detennination of NRV 
based on prevailing market conditions, current of the inventories; 
prices and expected date of commencement - - We have tested the NRV of the inventories 
and completion of the project, the estimated to its carrying value in books on sample 
future selling price, cost to complete projects basis. 
and selling costs. 
Considering significance of the ainount of 
carrying value of inventories in the fmancial 
statements and the involvement of significant 
estimation and judgement in such assessment 
of NRV, the same has been considered as key 
audit matter. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued) 

To the Members of Tata Housing Development Company 
Limited 
Key Audit Matters (continued) 

Investment in Subsidiaries and loans to group companies 
See note 4 (a), 4(b) and 8 (e) to the standalone financial statements 

The kev audit matter How the matter was addressed iu our audit 
The Company has significant investments in Our procedures in assessing the management's 
its subsidiaries and joint ventures. As at 31 judgement for the impairment assessment 
March 2020, the carrying values of included, among others, the following: 
Company's investment in its subsidiaries and - We assessed the Company's valuation 
joint ventures amounts to 1941.04 Crores. methodology applied in detennining the 
Company evaluate regularly for any indicators recoverable amount of the investments; 
of impairment of the investments by reference - We obtained and read the valuation report 
to the requirements under Ind AS 36 used by the management for determining 
"Impairment of Assets". the fair value ('recoverable amo1mt') of its 
For investments where impairment indicators investinents; 
exist, significant judgments are required to - We considered the independence, 
determine the key assumptions used in the competence and objectivity of the 
discounted cash flow models, such as revenue management specialist involved in 
growth, unit price and discount rates. detem1ination of valuation; 
Considering, the iinpainnent assessment - We tested the fair value of the investment as 
involves significant assumptions and mentioned in the valuation report to the 
judgement, the same has been considered as carrying value in books; 
key audit matter. - Made inquiries with 1nanage1nent to 

understand key drivers of the cash flow 
forecasts, discount rates etc 

- - Involved experts to evaluate the 
assumptions used by the 1nanage1nent 
specialists. We read the disclosures made in 
the financial statements regarding such 
investments. 

Other Information 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Company's Annual Report but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. We have obtained prior to the date of this 
report a draft of the other information to be included in the Company's Annual Report. 
Management has represented that the final information to be included in the Annual Report which 
is expected to be made available to us after the date of our report is not expected to be substantially 
different from the draft provided to us. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and 
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 

~ 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued) 

To the Members of Tata Housing Development Company 
Limited 

Other Information (Continued) 

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the 
date of this auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report on the basis of the draft 
information provided to us. 

Management's and Board ol' Directors' Responsibi.lity for the Standalone Financial 
Statements 

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in 
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements 
that give a true 1md fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, 
changes in cqnity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under 
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes mttintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether clue to 
fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are 
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. disclosing. as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accmmting unless 
the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial 
statements. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued) 

To the Members of Tata Housing Development Company 
Limited 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements (continued) 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures in the standalone financial statements made by the 
Management and Board of Directors. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

ett-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued) 
To the Members of Tata Housing Development Company 
Limited 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements (continued) 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

!. As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the 
Central Government in terms of section 143 (II) of the Act, we give in the "AnnexureA" a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 
applicable. 

2. (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books 

c) The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including 
other comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the 
standalone statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 
books of account 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS 
specified nuder section 133 of the Act. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 
2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as 
on 31 March 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the 
Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in "Annexure B''. 

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best 
of our infonnation and according to the explanations given to us: 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued) 

To the Members of Tata Housing Development Company 
Limited 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued) 

i, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2020 
on its financial position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 29 to the 
standalone financial statements; 

11, The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or 
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts 
including derivative contracts- Refer Note 24 to the standalone financial statements; 

iii, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company; 

1v, The disclosures in the standalone financial statements regarding holdings as well as 
dealings in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 
December 2016 have not been made in these financial statements since they do not 
pertain to the financial year ended 31 March 2020, 

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors' Report under section 197(16): 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the current year is in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act The remuneration paid to any director is not 
in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act The Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be 
commented upon by us, 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 3 July 2020 

For B S R & Co LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No, 01248W/W100022) 

fjff"'caf ""'(f 
Himanshu Chapsey 

Partner 
Membership No, 105731 

UDIN: 20105731AAAADB9249 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report - 31 March 2020 

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditors' Report to the members 
of the Company on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, we 
report the following: 

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full paiiiculars, including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets. 

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets, by 
which all fixed assets are verified over a period of three years. In our opinion, this 
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with the above programme, the 
Company has verified certain fixed assets and no material discrepancies were noticed 
in respect of assets verified during the year and have been properly dealt with in the 
books of accounts. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds immovable properties 
which are freehold as disclosed in Note 3 to the standalone financial statement, are 
held in the name of the Company as at balance sheet date, except the following: 

Land/Building No of Gross Block Net block Remarks 
cases (Rs. In Cr.) (Rs. In Cr.) 

Office Space 1 2.27 1.20 Conveyance deed yet to be 
at Eruchshaw executed in the naine of the 
building, Company for the purchases 
Mumbai of office space as per 

agreement dated 23 
November 1999 

(ii) The inventory comprising of construction materials, construction work-in-progress and 
finished goods, except for stock lying with the third paiiies, has been physically verified by 
the management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is 
reasonable. In respect of stock lying with the third parties at the year-end, written 
confirmation has been obtained. No material discrepancies were noticed on verification 
between the physical stocks and the book records. 

(iii) The Company has granted unsecured loans to fifteen companies one limited liability 
partnership and two body corporates covered in the register maintained under Section 189 
of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'). Other than these loans, the Company has not 
granted any loans to any other paiiies covered in the register maintained under Section 189 
of the Act. 

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the audit 
procedures conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the rate of interest and other 
terms and conditions on which the unsecured loans have been granted to the 
companies listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act are not, prima 
facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company. 
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Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report - 31 March 2020 (continued) 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the unsecured loans granted 
to thirteen companies one limited liability partnership and two body corporates and 
interest thereon covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act are 
repayable on demand. The payment of interest and repayment of the loans has not been 
demanded by the Company during the year and accordingly, the provision relating to 
regularity of repayment of payment of interest and repayment of principal is not 
applicable. The Company has also given unsecured loan to two companies which are 
repayable on completion of the projects/availability of surplus funds in those entities. 
The provision of clause 3 (iii) (b) of the Order are not applicable to the aforesaid loans 
as the projects are still under progress/ do not have surplus funds. 

( c) In view of our comments in clause (b) above, the provision of para iii ( c) of the order 
are not applicable. 

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 of the Act is respect of loans 
covered by the said section. According to the information and explanation given to us, 
the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of the loan given, guarantee given or 
securities provided are not applicable to the Company, since it is covered as a Company 
engaged in business of providing infrastructural facilities. According to the information 
and explanation given to us, the Company has compiled with the provision of Section 
186 of the in respect of the investment made during the year. 

(v) In our opinion, and according to the infonnation and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not accepted deposits as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of 
India under the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the 
Act and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (v) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to 
the rules prescribed by the Central Govermnent for maintenance of cost records under 
Section 148 ( 1) of the Act and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed 
accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not made a 
detailed examination of the records. 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of 
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Employees' 
State Insurance, Income tax, Goods and service tax, Profession tax, Duty of customs, 
Cess and other material statutory dues have been regularly deposited with the 
appropriate authorities. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts 
payable in respect of Provident fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income tax, Goods 
and service tax, Professional tax, Duty of customs, Cess and other material statutory 
dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2020 for a period of more than six months from 
the date they became payable. 



BS R &Co. LLP 

Independent Auditors' Report (Continued) 

Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report - 31 March 2020 (continued) 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of 
Income Tax, Goods and service tax, Sales tax, Value added tax and Duty of customs 
as on 31 March 2020, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities 
on account of any dispute. 

(viii) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans to banks or to the debenture holders. 
The Company did not have any outstanding dues to govermnent and financial institutions 
and during the year. 

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) and has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(x) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried 
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to 
the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of 
material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or 
reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the management. 

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has paid/ provided for managerial 
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provision of 
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

(xii) In our opinion and according to the infonnation and explanations given to us, the Company 
is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has entered into transactions with the related 
parties in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The Details of such related 
party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone Ind AS financials statements as 
required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosure specified 
under Section 13 3 of the Act, read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standard) Rules, 2015. 

(xiv) According to the infonnation and explanations given to us and based on our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xiv) of the order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
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(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to 
be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company, 

Mumbai 
3 July 2020 

For B S R & Co, LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No: 101248W!W-100022 

Himanshu Chapsey 
Partner 

Membership No: 105731 
UDIN: 20105731AAAADB9249 
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Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Annexnre B to the Independent Auditors' report on the financial statements of Tata Housing 
Development Company Limited for the period ended 31March2020. 

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements 
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 

(Referred to in paragraph A(g) nuder 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements' section of our report of even date) 

Opinion 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Tata 
Housing Development Company Limited ("the Company") as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction 
with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as 
at 31 March 2020, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note"). 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal fmancial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial infonnation, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to 
as "the Act"). 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and whether such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. 
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, 
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements. 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include 
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Mumbai 
3 July 2020 

ForB SR& Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No:l0!248W/W-100022 

Himanshu Chapsey 
Partner 

Membership No. 105731 
UDIN: 20105731AAAADB9249 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 
Standalone Balance Sheet 
as at 31 March 2020 

Particulars 

ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Capital work-in·prog:ress 
Intangible assets 
Financial assets 
i. Investments 
ii. Loans 
iii. Other financial assets 
Income-tax assets (net) 
Defoned tax assets (net) 
Other non-cu1Tent assets 
Total Non-Current Assets 

Current Assets 
Inventories 

Financial assets 
i. fuveshnents 
ii, Trade receivables 
iii. Cash and cash equivalents 
iv. Bank balances other than (iii) above 
v. Loans 
vi. Other financial assets 
Other cunent assets 

Total Current Assets 
Total Assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITillS 
EQUITY 
Equity share capital 
Other equity 
Total Equity 

LIABILITIES 
Non-Current Liabilities 
Financial liabilities 
i. Borrowings 
ii. Trade payables 

a. total outstanding dues of micro enterp1ises and small enterprises 
b. total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterpdses and small enterprises 

iii. Other financial liabilities 
Provisions 
Other 11011-cunent liabilities 
Total Non-Current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
Financial liabilities 
i. Borrowings 
ii. Trade payables 

a. total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
b. total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

iii. Other financial liabilities 
Provisions 
Other cunent liabilities 
CmTent tax liabilities (net) 
Total Current Liabilities 
Total Liabilities 
Total Equity and Liabilities 
Summary of significant accounting policies 

The accompanying notes 1 to 4 l are an inte1;,'l'a! pmt of the standalone financial statements 

ForB SR& Co. LLP 
Chartered accountants 

Film's Registration No: l01248W!W- 100022 

~ 
Partner 
:Niembership No: 105731 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: July 03,2020 

.:. 
Tl'\. TI'\. 

(~in crores) 
Note 
No 31 :V!arch 2020 31 March2019 

3(o) 

3(b) 

4(o) 

4(b) 

4(o) 

6 
6 
5 

7 

8(0) 

8(b) 
8(0) 

8(d) 
8(0) 

8(1) 
9 

10 
11 

12(a) 

12(b) 

12(c) 

13 
14 

15(a) 

lS(b) 

15(o) 
16 
17 
6 

2 

13.71 

0.60 
7.15 

70235 
1,217.15 

4.28 

95.29 

41.56 
106.68 

2,188.78 

3,180.30 

95.24 
58.47 

132.03 

0.01 

34.71 
84.89 
76.39 

3,662.04 

5 850.82 

730.15 
614.01 

1,344.16 

706.27 

10.73 
23.80 

147.05 
887.85 

1,753.29 

766.16 
472.79 
35.45 

588.89 
2.23 

3,618,81 
4,506.66 
5 850.82 

7.98 

2.17 

796.56 
935.49 

4.12 
81.12 

219.01 
98.19 

2,144.64 

3,656.21 

0.24 

48.25 

25.18 

581.79 
63.92 

181.94 

4.557.53 

6702.17 

730.15 
1,604.12 

2,334.27 

800.10 

10.74 

39.15 

0.41 

199.29 
1,049.69 

1,110.61 

884.13 

517.43 

96.48 
707.33 

2.23 
3,3 l8.21 

4,367.90 

6 702.17 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Chief Financial OjJicer 
DIN No: 06928529 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: July 03,2020 

Sanjay Dutt 
.lid an aging Director & C.E.O 

DIN No: 05251670 

~ 
-------nitesh Kaflldnr 

Company Secretary 
Membership No: A20154 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Standalone Statement of profit and loss 
for the year ended 31 March 2020 

Particulars 

INCOME 
Revenue fr01n Operations 
Other Inco1ne 

Total Income 

EXPENSES 
Construction Costs 
E1nployee Benefits Expenses 
Finance Costs 
Depreciation and Aino1iisation Expense 
Other Expenses 
Total Expenses 

Profit/(Loss) before Impairment of investment in and loans given to 
subsidiaries and joint ventures 

I:inpainnent of investn1ent in and loans given to subsidiaries and joint ventures 

Loss before tax 

Tax expense: 
Current tax 
Deferred tax Charge/(Credit) 

Loss for the year 

Other Comprehensive Jncome/(Loss) 
Items tl1at will not be reclassified to profit or loss: 
Remeasure1nents ofpost-e1nploy1nent benefit obligations 
Inco1ne tax on the above 

Other Comprehensive Loss for the year, net of tax 
Total Comprehensive Loss for the year 

Earnings per Ordinary share: 
Basic and dilutOO earnings per share (face value of ( 10/- each) (In<) 

Note 

No 

18 
19 

20 
21 
22 
23 
24 

27 

Year Ended 
31March2020 

670.61 
253.86 
924.47 

454.31 
76.89 

212.61 
4.10 

259.47 
1,007.38 

(82.91) 

726.01 

(808.92) 

3.58 
177.45 
181.03 

(989.95) 

(0.17) 

(0.17) 
(990.12) 

(13.56) 

-•• T/\T/\ 

(fin crores) 
Year Ended 

31 March2019 

1,188.84 
218.85 

l,407.69 

714.28 
66.77 

226.11 
5.87 

319.82 
l,332.85 

74.84 

250.57 

(175.73) 

2.06 
(6 l.55) 
(59.49) 

(116.24) 

(0.95) 
0.33 

(0.62) 
(l 16.86) 

(2.6 l) 

Su1runary of significant accounting policies 2 
The acco1npanying notes 1 to 41 are an integral part of the standalone financial state:inents 

For B S R & Co. LLP 
Chartered accountants 
Finn's Registration No: l01248W/W-100022 

~ 
Hi1nanshu Chapsey 
Partner 
Me1nbership No: 105731 

Place: Mu1nbai 
Dale: July 03,2020 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

CIN: U45300MHl 942PLC003573 

~ ~ ~-==~§'.:!:~Jctt-J~. ~, Banmali Agra la Sanjay Dutt 

Director lvlanaging Director & C.E. 0 
DIN: 00120029 DIN No: 05251670 

~v:~ 
~a 
Chief Financial Officer 
DIN No: 06928529 
Place: fvlutnbai 
Date: July 03,2020 

~ 
~ar 

Company Secretary 
Membership No: A20154 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Standalone Cash Flow Statement 
for the year ended 31 March 2020 

Particulars 

A. Cash flow rrom Operating Activities 
Loss before tax 
Adjust1nents for:~ 
Depreciation and aiuortisation expense 

Net (gain)/loss on sale of Property, plant and equip1nent 
Net unrealised gain on Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations 

Provision for Contingencies Costs 
I:tnpainnent ofinvesttnent in and loans given to subsidiaries and joint 

ventures 
Ilnpainnent of advances and receivables 

NRV loss of inventory 
Interest Income 

Dividend Income from_ investtnents tneasured at fair value through profit and loss 
Gain on sale of cuffent investrnents 
Guarantee Coilllnission 

Provision for Custo1ner Compensation 

Finance Costs 

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 

Adjust1nents for changes in working capital:-

(Increase) in trade receivables 

Decrease in Inventories 

Decrease in Other fmancial assets,Other assest (cuffent & non-current) 

Increase I (Decrease) in trade payables, Other financial liabilities, Other liabllities and 
provisions 

Cash generated from Operating Activities 

Direct Taxes Paid (net) 

Net Cash tlows generated from Operating Activities A 

B. Cash flow from Investing Activities 

Purchase of property, plant and equip111ent (including Capital work-in-progress) 

Proceeds frotn sale of property, plant and equipment 

Purchase of investlnents 

Loans granted 

Loans repaid 

Guarantee Corntnission 

Fixed Deposit (1nade)/rede1need 

Interest received 

Dividend received 

Net Cash flo"v used in Investing Activities B 

c. Cash Flow from Financing Activities 

Share Capital issued (including Securities Prc1niu1n) 

Proceeds frotn boffowings 

Repayinent of borrowings 

Net (decrease)/increase in working capital borrowings 

Inter Corporate Deposits accepted 

Inter Corporate Deposits repaid 

Repayment of lease liability 

Finance Costs paid 

Net Cash t10'w generated from Financing Activities c 

~ 

Year Ended 
31March2020 

(808.92) 

4.10 

(2.58) 

14.89 

726.01 

24.85 

82.61 

(238.11) 

(0.01) 

(0.85) 

(2.50) 

(4.19) 

212.61 

7.91 

(188.47) 

332.78 

54.65 

(120.29) 

86.57 

(17.75) 

68.82 

(8.72) 

0.10 

(124.66) 

(1,400.97) 

1,245.76 

1.50 

(0.01) 

62.73 

0.01 

(224.25) 

3,970.90 

(3,960.44) 

536.78 

205.00 

(270.00) 

(0.05) 

(219.91) 

262.27 

-.,. 
TATA 

(~in crores) 
Year Ended 

31March2019 

(175.73) 

5.87 

(0.09) 

(3.38) 

7.52 

250.57 

10.28 

108.68 

(176.53) 

(0.07) 

(l.64) 

(2.38) 

0.75 

226.11 

249.96 

(421.64) 

93.94 

273.69 

32.23 

228.18 

(26.12) 

202.05 

(4.77) 

0.59 
(348.51) 

(1,153.66) 

654.32 

1.38 

7.50 

60.90 

0.07 

(782.17) 

1,299.08 

4,200.00 

(4,550.08) 

(65.36) 

25.00 

(100.00) 

(224.21) 

584.43 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Standalone Cash Flow Statement (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2020 

Cun-ency in Indian Ruppes 

Net increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A) + (B) + (C) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 

Notes: 

For the Year Ended 
31March2020 

106.84 

25.18 
132.03 

(~in crores) 
For the Year Ended 

JI March20I9 

4.3 I 

20.87 
25.18 

(i). The acco1npanying notes 1to4 l are an integral part of the standalone financial state1nents 

(ii) The above Cash Flow State1nent has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 - "Cash 
Flow Statements". 

Debt reconciliation statetnent in accordance with IND AS 7 

Opening Balances 
Long-tenn borrowings 
Short-tenn borrowings 

Changes as per Statement of Cash Flow 
Long-tetm borrowings 
Sho11-tenn botTowings 

Closing Balances 
Long-tenn borrowings 

Shoti-tenn borrowings 

For B S R & Co. LLP 
Chartered accountants 

Firm's Registration No: l01248VV/W-100022 

31 March 2020 JI March20I9 

1,249.96 1,350.04 
1,110.61 l,500.97 

(160.44) (100.08) 
642.68 (390.36) 

1,089.52 I,249.96 
1,753.29 l,I I0.6I 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

CIN: U45300MHI 942PLC003573 

Hiinanshu Chapsey 

Partner 
~ali~ 

Director
1 

Agtwaia 
Sanjay Dutt 

Managing Director & C.E. 0 

iv1e1nbership No: 10573 l 

Place: Mutnbai 
Date: July 03,2020 

DIN: 00 I20029 

'u\IY 
K~na 
Chief Financial Officer 

DIN No: 06928529 
Place: ivlu1nbai 
Date: July 03,2020 

11S67~) 
Ritesh Kamdar 

Company Secretary 

lvlembership No: A20154 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Standalone statement of changes in equity 
for the year ended 31 }vfarch 2020 

A) 

B) 

Equity Share Capital 

Particulars 

Balance as at 1 April 2019 

Changes in equity share capital during the year 

Balance as at 31 l\'larch 2020 

Other Equity 

Particulars 

Balance as at 1 April, 2018 

Loss for the year 

Adjustment on adoption ofind AS l IS, (net of tax) 

Other comprehensive loss for the year {net of tax) 

Security premium on issue of share capita! during the year 

Balance as at JI March 2019 

Balance as at 1April,2019 

Loss for the year 

Other comprehensive loss for the year (net of tax) 

Balance as at 31 March 2020 

For B S R & Co. LLP 
Chartered accountants 
Finn's Registration No: 10 1248 W /'vV ~ l 00022 

(tin crorcs) 

Amounts 

730.15 

730.15 

Securities 
premium 

account 

806.74 

974.31 

1,781.05 

1,781.05 

1,781.05 

Debenture 
redemption 

reserve 

188.67 

188.67 

188,67 

188.67 

(fin crores) 

Reserves and sm·plus Total Other 
Equity 

General 
reserve 

23.41 

23.41 

23.41 

23.41 

Total Comprehensive Income 

Retained Other Total 
earnings Comprehensive 

income 

86.89 1.27 88.16 1,106.98 

{116.24) (116.24) (l 16.24) 

(360.31) (360.3 l) {360.J l) 

(0.62) (0,62) (0.62) 

974.31 

(389,65) 0,65 (389.00) 1,604.13 

(389.66) 0.65 (389.01) 1,604.12 

(989,95) (990) (989.95) 

{0.17) (0.17) (0.17) 

(1,379.60) 0.48 (1,379.12) 614.01 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Tata Housing Development Company Lhnited 

CIN: U45300MHl942PLC003573 

Hinrnnshu Chapsey 
Partner 

~MA.~~Agr~ 
Director iwah~ __. 

Sanjay P.utt 
lvfanaging Director & C.E.O 

!v[embership No: 105731 

Place: !vlumbai 

Date: July 03,2020 

DIN: 00120029 

\\l .o \t~_,..-­
KJJ,~a· 
Chief Financial Officer 

DIN No: 06928529 
Place: Mu1ubai 
Date: July 03,2020 

~70 

~mdar 
Company Secretary 

1v[embership No: A20154 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 

(~ in crores) 

Background 

Tata Housing Development Company Ltd [CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573] ("the Company") is a 
Company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in India. The Company is engaged in the development 
of real estate, being one of the first corporate players in India in the sector. Since 1984, it has constructed 
various prestigious residential buildings/complexes, luxury residences, commercial complexes and integrated 
townships. The Company develops real estate and key activities of the Company include identification ofland, 
project conceptualising and designing, development, management and marketing. 

1. Basis of Preparation 

a. Statement of Compliance with Ind AS 

The standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act. The accounting 
policies followed in the preparation of these financials statements are the same as those of the previous 
year except for the adoption of Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS 
17 leases, and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosure ofleases for both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, on-balance sheet 
lease accounting model for lessees. 

All of the Company leases at 1 April 2019 were either cancellable or short term or had a remaining 
period of less than one year from that date. Accordingly, the transition to Ind AS 116 did not have any 
impact on the financial statements of the Company as at that date. 

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 
July 3, 2020. 

b. Going Concern 

As at 31March2020, the Company's short-term borrowings comprising commercial paper and non­
convertible debentures ('NCD") (including current maturities oflong-term borrowings) payable in the 
next one year, net outflow from operations and commitment for fonding subsidiaries aggregate Rs 1,862 
crores. 

The Board of Directors based on cash flow forecasts and management plans have concluded on the 
ability of the Company to continue as going concern and the financial statements have been prepared 
on that basis. In making this assessment the management has considered the available cash in hand, 
investment in liquid fonds and undrawn credit facilities aggregating Rs. 727 crores. Further, the 
Company has also raised long term Non-Convertible debenture aggregating Rs. 1,300 crores post year 
end and is evaluating other funding proposals. 

The company's facilities continue to be rated at "AA" by on the long-term side and enjoys highest credit 
rating of "Al+" on the short term side which are unchanged. 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 

(~ in crores) 

The ftmds available (including undrawn credit facilities) and amounts raised post year end in the 
current scenario indicates the Company's ability to continue as going concern and will be able to 
discharge its liabilities and realise the carrying amount of its assets as on March 31, 2020. 

c. Historical cost convention 

The standalone financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except 
for certain items that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies. 

d. Functional and presentation currency 

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the functional and 
presentation currency of the Company. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest crores, unless 
otherwise indicated. 

2. Significant accounting policies 

a. Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and are net of 
cancellations, value added taxes, service tax, OST, other applicable taxes and amount collected on behalf 
of third parties. 

i. Revenue from real estate development projects 

The Company enters into contracts with customers to sell property that are either completed or 
under development. 
The sale of completed property constitutes a single performance obligation and the Company 
recognizes revenue when the same has been satisfied. 

Company recognise revenue when the below mentioned conditions get satisfied; 

occupancy certificate for the project is received by the Company 
possession is either taken by the customer or offer letter for possession along with the 
invoice for the full amount of consideration is issued to the customer 
substantial consideration has been received and the Company is reasonably certain that 
the remaining consideration will flow to the entity. 
there are no legal claims/ complains been made by the customer 

The Company considers whether there are promises in the contract that are separate performance 
obligations or are to be delivered even after completing the aforesaid conditions and to which a 
portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated and if so the Company allocates the 
attributable transaction price and as control is deemed to have passed to the customer recognizes 
revenue over time as the related obligations are satisfied. 

For contracts relating to the sale of property under development, the Company is responsible for 
the overall management of the project and identifies various goods and services to be provided. 
The Company accounts for these items as a single performance obligation because it provides a 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 

(~ in crores) 

significant service of integrating the goods and services (the inputs) into the completed property 
(the combined output) which the customer has contracted to buy. 

ii. Project Management/Marketing fees 

Revenue from project management/marketing services is recognised in the accounting period in which 
services are rendered in accordance with the substance of the agreement. 

iii. Other Income from Customers 

Other income from customers are accounted on accrual basis in accordance with the terms of 
agreement/allotment letters. 

b. Dividend and interest income 

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been 
established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will ±low to the Company and the 
amount of income can be measuredrealiably). 

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will 
±low to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a 
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is 
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset 
to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

c. Construction Costs 

Construction costs comprise project costs incurred to enable the Company to complete its performance 
obligations. These include cost of land and cost of development rights, construction and development 
costs, borrowings costs incurred and also include cost of development of common facilities and 
amenities. 

These costs are allocated to each unit of sale (residential or commercial) on a systematic basis as 
construction progress and are expensed when the related revenue in respect of the unit is recognised. 

Pending recognition of revenue, the costs are accumulated and disclosed as construction work in 
progress/Finished goods within inventory. 

d. Income tax 

Current tax: 
Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable profit for the year. 

Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the standalone statement of profit and loss 
because of items of income or expenses that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are 
never taxable or deductible. The current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 

(~in crores) 

Deferred tax: 
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of the assets and 
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable 
profits. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax 
assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against 
which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit 
may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred 
tax asset only to the extent that is has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other 
evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be 
realized. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred 
tax asset to be utilised. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in 
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow 
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the 
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they 
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, 
current tax and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, 
respectively. 

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic 
benefits in the form of adjustment to the future current tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is 
reasonable certainty of it being set off against regular tax payable within the stipulated statutory period. 
MAT credit is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of MAT credit is written down 
to the extent there is no longer reasonable certainty to the effect that the Company will pay regular tax 
during such specified period. 

e. Leases - as a lessee 

Policy applicable before 1April2019 

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company, as lessee, has substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease's 
inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease 
payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or 
other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and 
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the lease period so as 
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. 
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the 
Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any 
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis 
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over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general 
inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases. 

Policy applicable after 1April2019 

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 effective from April 1 2019 using modified retrospective 
approach. For the purpose of preparation of Financial Information, management has evaluated the 
impact of change in accounting policies required due to adoption of Ind AS 116 for year ended March 
31 2020. 

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or 
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control tl1e use of an identified asset for a period of 
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of 
an identified assets, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contact involves the use of an identified asset 
(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period 
of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. 

As a lessee, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement 
date. The right of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease 
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial 
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the lmderlying asset or to restore 
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. 

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of- use asset or the end of the 
lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those 
of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment 
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at 
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be 
readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its 
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the fixed payments, 
including insubstance fixed payments; The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method. The Company has used number of practical expedients when applying Ind 
AS 116: - Short-term leases, leases oflow-value assets and single discouut rate. 

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases 
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases oflow-value assets. The Company recognises the 
lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straightline basis over the lease term. 
The Company applied a single discouut rate to a portfolio ofleases of similar assets in similar economic 
environment with a similar end date 

f. Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, Cash comprises cash on hand and demand 
deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of tlu·ee months 
or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known 

~ 
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amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank 
overdraft and cash credit are disclosed under current borrowings in financial liability in the balance sheet. 

g. Inventories 

Construction costs comprise project costs incurred to enable the Company to complete its performance 
obligations. These include cost ofland and cost of development rights, construction and development 
costs, borrowings costs incurred and also include cost of development of common facilities and 
amenities. 

Inventories comprises of cost of construction material, finished residential or commercial properties and 
costs of projects under construction/development (construction work-in-progress). Inventories are valued 
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of construction material is determined on a weighted 
average basis. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of 
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

h. Financial Assets 

Classification 
The Company classifies fmancial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through 
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of its business model for 
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 

Initial recognition and measurement 
The Company recognises financial assets when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. All fmancial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are 
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 

Subsequent measurement 
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the financial assets are classified in three categories: 

• Debt instruments at amortised cost 
• Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss 
• Equity investments 

Debt instruments at amortised cost 
A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting 
contractual cash flows, and 

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance 
income in the Standalone statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised 
in the Standalone statement of profit and loss. 

Debt instruments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 
Debt instruments included in the fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) category are measured at fair 

~ 
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value with all changes recognised in the Standalone statement of profit and loss. 

Equity investments 
All equity investments other than investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate are measured at 
fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity 
instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as at fair value through other comprehensive 
income (FVTOCI) or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. 
The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the 
instnunent, excluding dividends, are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). There is no 
recycling of the amounts from OCI to the Standalone statement of profit and loss, even on sale of such 
investments. 

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognised in the Standalone statement of profit and loss. 

Derecognition 
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognised when: 

a. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
b. the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or 
c. the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks aud rewards of the 

asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

Impairment of financial assets 
The Company applies 'simplified approach' measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the 
following financial assets and credit risk exposure: 

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt 
securities, deposits, and bank balance. 

b. Trade receivables. 

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. 
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime expected credit loss at each reporting 
date, right from its initial recognition. 

Financial liabilities and eguity instruments 

Classification 
The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost. 

Initial recognition and measurement 
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and 
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

Loans and borrowings 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the Effective Interest Rate (E!R) method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Standalone 
statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognisecl. 
Amortised cost is calculated by ta!dng into account any discount or premium on acquisition and 
transactions costs. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Standalone statement of 
profit and loss. 

~ 
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Derecognition 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled 
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different tenns, or the tenns of an existing liability are substantialty modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as the dcrccognition of the original liability and the recognition of 
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Standalone 
statement of profit and loss. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if 
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 
settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

Equity Instruments 
Equity instruments are recognised at the value of the proceeds, net of direct costs of the capital issue. 

i. Property, plant and equipment 

Recognition & Measurement 

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing 
costs, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property, 
plant and equipment comprises: 

its purchase price, includes non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and 
rebates. 
any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. 
the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling. and removing the item and restoring the site on 
which it is located. 

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss 
on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss. 

Capital work-in-progress in respect of assets which are not ready for their intended use are carried at 
costs, comprising of direct costs, related incidental expenses and attributable interest. 

Subsequent Expenditure 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefit associated 
with the expenditure will flow to the Company. 

Disposals or retirement 
Any gains or losses arising on the disposals or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
detennined as difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised 
in standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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j. Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value 

Depreciation is provided using the written down value method using the useful life as follows: 
Assets Useful life 
Buildings 60 years 
Office Equipment 5 years 
Computers 3 years 
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years 
Electrical Fittings 10 years 
Motor Vehicles 8 years 
Cellular Phones 2.5 years 

Leasehold improvements are amortised over lease of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease period. 
The Lease period where the Company is lessee includes the periods where the Company has the unilateral 
right to renew the lease and intends to do. 

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period, with the effect of any change in estimate accmmted for on a prospective basis. 

k. Capital Work-in Progress 

Capital expenditure on assets not owned by the Company is reflected as a distinct item in Capital Work­
in Progress till the period of completion and thereafter in the Property, plant and equipment. 

I. Intangible assets 

Intangible assets purchased is stated at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses. 

Amortisation methods and periods 
The Company amortises cost of software over a period of 3 years on a straight-line basis. 

m. Impairment of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets 

The carrying amounts of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets are reviewed at each balance 
sheet date to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. 
If any such indications exists, the recover able amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the 
extent of the impairment loss, if any. 

An impairment loss is recognised in the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss wherever the carrying 
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of the asset's fair 
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using appropriate discount factor. When there is an indication that an 
impairment loss recognised for the asset in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have 
decreased such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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n. Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs include interest, other costs incurred and exchange differences arising from foreign 
currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Borrowing costs, 
allocated to and utilised for qualifying construction project I assets, pertaining to the period from 
commencement of activities relating to construction I development of the qualifying construction project I 
assets up to the date of substantial completion of project I capitalisation of such asset are added to the cost 
of construction project I assets. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement 
of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active development activity on the qualifying construction 
project I assets is interrupted. A qualifying construction proj eel I asset is an asset that necessarily takes 
substantial time or more to get ready for its intended use or sale and includes the real estate properties 
developed by the Company. 

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowing pending their expenditure on 
qualifying construction project I assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. 

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 

o. Provisions and Contingencies 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surro1mding the 
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its 
carrying amount is the' present value of those cash flows. 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from 
a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be 
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation 
that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount 
of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation 
in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision 
or disclosure is made. 

Contingent assets are not disclosed in the financial statements unless an inflow of economic benefits is 
probable. 

p. Employee benefits 

i. Post-employment obligations 

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes: 

(a) Defined benefit plan 

The Company's obligation towards gratuity to employees, post-retirement medical benefits and 
ex-directors pension obligations is detennined using the Projected Unit Credit method, with 
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actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Re-measurement, comprising 
actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the chauges to the asset ceiling and the return on plan asset, 
is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other 
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in other 
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in the retained earnings and not reclassified to 
profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in the standalone Statement of Profit or Loss in the 
period of a plan amendment. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to 
the net balance of the defined benefit obligation aud the fair value of plau assets. This cost is 
recognised as employee benefit expense in the staudalone statement of profit and loss. 

(b) Defined contribution plan 

The Company's contributions to Provident fund, Superannuation Fund and employee's state 
insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution plaus. The Compauy is liable for 
contributions aud auy deficiency compared to interest computed based on the rate of interest 
declared by the Central Government under the Employees' Provident Fund Scheme, 1952 and 
recognises, if auy, as an expense in the year it is determined. The contributions are recognised as 
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as au asset to 
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available. 

ii. Other Long-term employee benefit obligations 
The Compauy's obligation towards other long term employee benefits in the form of compensated 
absences aud long service awards are based on actuary valuation. The valuation is carried out using the 
Project Unit Credit Method as per Ind AS 19 to determine the Present Value of Benefit Obligations aud 
the related Current Service Cost and, where applicable, Past Service Cost. 

iii. Short-term obligations 
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled 
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service 
are recognized in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured 
at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. 

q. Dividends to equity shareholders 
Dividend to equity shareholders is recognised as a liability and deducted from shareholders' equity, in the 
period in which the shareholders have the right to receive the dividend which in the case of interim 
dividends are when these are declared by the Board of Directors of the Compauy aud when these are 
approved in the Annual General Meeting of the Company in any other case. 

r. Segment Reporting 
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") of the Compauy. The CODM, who is responsible for allocating 
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Managing 
Director & CEO of the Company. 

s. Foreign Currency Transactions 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the 
dates of the trausactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such 
trausactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. 

t. Operating cycle 
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current based on operating cycle 
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detennined in accordance with the guidance as set out in the Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013. 
The operating cycle of the Company is detennined to be 12 months. 

u. Critical estimates and judgements 

The preparation of the standalone financial statements in confonnity with the Ind AS requires 
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures as at date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and expenses for the years presented. The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to 
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates noder different assumptions and conditions. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that 
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future 
periods. 

a) Critical Judgements 

In the process of applying the Company's acconoting policies, management has made the following 
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amonots recognised in the financial 
statements: 

1. Discom1t rate used to detennine the carrymg amount of the Company's defmed benefit 
obligation: 
In detennining the appropriate discom1t rate for plans operated in India, the management 
considers the interest rates of goverrnoent bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of 
the post-employment benefit obligation. 

ii. Contingences and commitments: 
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigations and other 
clain1s against the Company. Where the potential liabilities have a low probability of 
crystallising or are very difficult to quantify reliably, the Company treats them as contingent 
liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the fmancial 
statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal 
proceedings, the Company does not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on financial 
position or profitability. 

iii. Classification of entities as subsidiaries and joint ventures: 

A. Entities as subsidiaries with 50% voting rights 

The management has concluded that the Company controls Technopolis Knowledge Park 
Limited (TKPL), even though it holds only 50% of the voting rights of this subsidiary. 
This is because the Company has control of composition of the Board of Directors of TKPL. 
The Shareholder's agreement grants the right of casting vote to the chairman of Board, appointed 
by the Company. This gives the Company the ability to direct relevant activities of TKPL 
proving that the Company has control over TKPL. 

B. Classification of joint ventures 
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The below entities are limited liability entities whose legal form confers separation between the 
parties to the joint arrangement and the Company itself. Furthermore, there is no contractual 
arrangement or any other facts and circumstances that indicate that the parties to the joint 
arrangement have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of the joint arrangement. 
Accordingly, these entities are classified as joint ventures of the Company. 
1. Sector 113 Gatevida Developers Private Limited (formerly known as Lemon Tree Land & 

Developers Private Limited) 
2. Promont Hilltop Private Limited 
3. Smart Value Homes (Peenya project) Private Limited 
4. Kolkata-one Excelton Private Limited 
5. HL Promoters Private Limited 
6. Smart Value Homes (New Project) LLP 
7. One Bangalore Luxury Projects LLP 
8. Ardent Properties Private Limited 

The assessment of control is made since the remaining share in the respective entities is held by 
one unrelated partner. Also, that in case of these entities, neither of the parties have the practical 
ability to direct the relevant activities unilaterally as relevant activities require consent of both 
parties. Hence the management has concluded that the Company does not have unilateral control 
over these entities. 

b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below: 

1. Impairment for doubtful recoverable, advances and financial assets (Refer note 4(a),4(b), 5, 
8(b), 8(e), 8(±) & 9): 
The Company makes impairment for doubtful recoverable, advances and financial assets based 
on an assessment of the recoverability. The identification of doubtful debts requires use of 
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such 
difference will impact the carrying value of the other receivables and advances and impairment 
expenses in the period in which such estimate has been changed. 

ii. Valuation of deferred tax assets (refer note 6) 
The Company review the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting 
period. 

iii. Provision for customer compensation (refer not 16) 
Provision is made for estimated compensation claims to be paid to customers in respect of delay 
in handing over possession of flats. These claims are expected to be settled in the next financial 
year. Management makes an estimate of the provision based on expected time of delivery and 
taking into consideration past experiences. 

iv. Net realisable value of inventory (refer note 7) 
Management makes an estimate of the net realisable value of inventory based on expected 
realisation from inventory taking into consideration past experiences/valuation reports. 
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3 (a) Property, plant and equipment 

PARTICULARS 

Year ended 31 March, 2020 

Gross carrying amount 

Balance as at I April, 2019 

Additions 

Disposals 

Balance as at 31March2020 [A] 

Accumulated depreciation 

Balance as at I April, 2019 

Depreciation expenses during the year 

Disposals 

Balance as at 31March2020 JBJ 

Net carrying amount as at 31March2020 (A-BJ 

Year ended 31 March, 2019 

Gross carrying amount 

Balance as at 1 April, 2018 

Additions 

Disposals 

Balance as at 31 March, 2019 [CJ 

Accumulated depreciation 

Balance as at 1 April, 2018 

Depreciation expenses during the year 

Disposals 

Balance as at 31March,2019 [DJ 

Net carrying amount as at 31st March 2019 IC-DJ 

Note: 

(i) Prope11y, plant and equipment pledged as security 

Buildings 
(refer footnote li & 

iii) 

6.32 

-
-

6.32 

3.90 

0.12 

4.02 

2.30 

6.32 

6.32 

2.09 

1.81 

-
3.90 

2.42 

Leasehold 
Improvements 

2.35 

0.51 

0.44 

2A2 

0.83 

0.50 

0.43 

0.91 

l.5l 

1.61 

1.74 

1.00 

2.35 

0.84 

0.80 

0.81 

0.83 

l.52 

Refer to note 39 for information on property, plant and equipment pledged as security by the Company. 

Motor Vehicles 

2.30 

0.23 

2.07 

1.48 

0.24 

0.17 

1.54 

0.54 

2.50 

0.20 

2.30 

1.21 

0.39 

0.13 

l.48 

0.83 

(<" - ---, 
Information 

Office Equipment Office .Furniture Technology Electrical Fittings ROU Assen Total 
Ilardware 

2.28 2.13 4.61 0.07 20.06 
0.11 0.05 LOO 6.79 8.47 
0.06 0.09 0.82 
234 2.18 5.52 0.07 6.79 27.71 

l.34 1.08 3.41 0.04 12.08 
0.42 0.28 0.78 0.01 0.28 2.64 
0.05 - 0.07 - 0.72 
l.72 136 4.12 o.os 028 14.00 

0.62 0.81 l.40 0.02 6.51 13.71 

1.56 l.77 4.07 0.15 17.98 
0.81 0.59 0.83 0.04 - 4.00 
0.09 0.23 0.29 0.12 - 1.92 
2.28 2.13 4.61 0.07 20.06 

1.06 0.92 2.78 0.09 - 8.99 
0.34 0.29 0.87 0.02 - 4.51 
0.06 O.l3 0.23 0.07 - 1.42 
1.34 l.08 3.41 0.04 - 12.08 

0.94 l.05 l.20 0.03 7.98 

(ii) Buildings include cost of 10 shares of~ 50 each in a Co-operative Housing Society~ 5001- (As at 31 March, 2019 ~ 500/-) and the cost of 400 shares of ~10 each in Prabhadevi Properties and Trading Co Ltd. ~ 4,000/- (As at 31 
March, 2019 ~4,000/-). 

{iii) Buildings include 2338 sq. ft. super built up area [Dee1ned Cost~ 1.30 crores (As at 31 March, 2019 ~ 1.30 crores)] on the 4th floor in the building known as Eruchshaw Building, Mwnbai by virtue of Agreement dated 23 
Nove1nber 1999 duly executed between the Owner and the Co1npany. The conveyance deed is yet to be executed in the name of the Company, however, the Cmnpany is in possession of this area and is paying the requisite maintenance 

charges to the owner. 

fJtt!_ 
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3 (b) Intangible assets 

Particulars 

Year ended 31 l\tlarch, 2020 

Gross carrying amount 
Balance as at l April, 2019 

Additions 

Balance as at 31 lVIarch,2020 [A] 

Accumulated amortisation 
Balance as at 1April,2019 
Depriciation & Amortisation expenses during the year 
Balance as at31 l\ilarch,2020 [B] 

Net carrying amount as at 31 l\tlarch,2020 [A~BI 

Year ended 3 L l\ilarch, 2019 

Gross carrying amount 
Balance as at l April, 2018 
Additions 

Balance as at31!V'larch,2019 [CJ 
Accumulated amortisation 
Balance as at 1April,2018 
Amortisation expenses during the year 

Balance as at31l\-Iarch,2019 [DI 

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2019 [C~DJ 

(fin crores) 

Computer software 

8.73 
6.45 

15.18 

6.56 

1.46 
8.02 

7.15 

7.96 
0.77 
8.73 

5.20 

1.36 
6.56 

2.17 
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Particulars 

4 (a) Investments - Non-current 

(A) 
(i) 

(ii) 

Fully paid-up unquoted equity instruments 
In subsidiary companies measured at cost less impairment (Refer Note 38(A)) 
Concept Developer & Leasing Liinited (fo1111erly lmown as Concept Marketing and Advertising 
Lintlted) 
5,000 (As at 31March,2019: 5,000) Equity Shares of~ 100/- each 

Tata Value Homes Li1nited 
400,000,000 (As at 31MaTCh,2019: 100,000,000) Equity Shares of<' 10/- each 

Apex Realty Private Limited 
6,500 (As at 31March,2019: 6,500) Equity Shares of Maldivian Rufiyaa 10/- each 

Kriday Realty Private Limited 
10,000 (As at 31 March, 2019 : 10,000) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each 
Less: Provision for ilnpainnent 

Premont Hillside Private Liinited 

10,000 (As at 31 March, 2019 : 10,000) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each 
Less: Provision for llnpairment 

World-One Development Co1npany Pte. Limited 
2,474,421 (As at 31March,2019: 2,474,421) Equity Shares of SOD l/- each 

Less: Provision for llnpafrment 

Tecbnopolis Knowledge Park Lirnited 
1,810,000 (As at 31March,2019: 1,810,000) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each 

Synergizers Sustainable Foundation 

150 (As at 31 March, 2019 : 150) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each 

Princeton Infrastructure Private Lhnited 

2,547,550 (As at 31 March, 2019 : 2,547,550) Equily Shares of~ I 0/- each 
Less: Provision for i1npainnent 

In joint ventures measured at cost less impairment 
Ardent Propetties Private Linlitecl 
99,200 (As at 31 rvrarch, 2019: 99,200) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each 

Less: Provision for impainnent 

Pro1nont Hilltop Private Limited 
3,330,000 (As at 31March,2019: 3,330,000) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each 

Sector 113 Gatevida Developers Private Limited (fonnerly kno'Nll as Letnon Tree Land 

& Developers Private Lllnited) 
12, 750 (As at 31 March, 2019 : 12,750) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each 
Less: Provision for iinpairrnent 

I(olkata-One Excelton Private Linrited 

5, 100 (As at 31 March, 2019 : 5, 100) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each 

One Bangalore Luxuty Projects LLP 

- Fixed capital 
- Additional Capital 
- Current Capital 

As at 
31 LVIarch 2020 

0.88 

400.00 

0.06 

0.01 

(0.01) 

0.01 

(0.01) 

10.90 

(10.90) 

30.08 

(30.08) 

40.90 

(40.90) 

44.44 

0.01 

(0.01) 

0.01 

0.01 

140.00 
47.16 

("(in crores) 

As at 
31 March2019 

0.88 

400.00 

0.06 

0.01 

0.01 

(0.01) 

10.90 

' 

30.08 

(30.08) 

40.90 

(17.77) 

44.44 

0.01 

0.01 

0.01 
121.00 
44.36 
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Particulars 

4 (a) Investments - Non-current (Continued) 

(ii) In joint ventures measured at cost less impairment (Refer Note 38(A)) 
Sohna City LLP 
- Fixed capital 

- Additional Capital 

- Current Capital 
Less: Provision for llnpainnent 

(iii) In others - at Fair Value through Profit and loss 
Casa Decor Private Lintited 
373,378 (As at 31March,2019: 373,378) Equity Shares of{ 10/- each 

(B) Fully paid-up unquoted Debt instruments 

(i) 

(C) 

In others - at Fair Value through Profit and loss (Refer Note 38(A)) 
Ardent Properties Private Litnited 
13,368,421 (As at 31 March, 2019: 13,368,421) Series A Co1npulsorily Convertible 
Debentures of { 10/- each carry a coupon of 16.?o/o with tenure of 15 years 
48,345,864 (As at 31 i\ifarch, 2019: 48,345,864) Series B & C Compulsorily Convertible 
Debentures of~ [ 0/- each carry a coupon of 16. 7% with tenure o-f 30 years 

18,255,601 (As at 31 March, 2019: 18,255,601) Series D C01npulsorily Convertible 
Debentures of ~lO/- each carry a coupon of 0.00001 o/o with tenure of 30 years 

In Preference Shares (partly paid-up) - at amortised cost 
01nate Housing Private Limited 

200,000 (As at 31 March, 2019 : 200,000) 11 o/o Redeemable, Cu1nulative, Non-pmticipating, 
Non-convertible Preference Shares of~ 10/- each, ~ 2.50/- each paid-up 

Aggregate mnount of quoted investJ.nents and market value thereof 

Aggregate amount of unquoted invest1nents 

Aggregate mnount of llnpainnent 

Amount below~ 50,000 are denoted by'*'. 

4 (b) Loans - Non-current 
(unsecured, considered good) 
Loans and Inter-Corporate Deposits to related parties (refer note 33) 

Less: Provision for Impainnent 

4 (c) Other financial assets - Non-current 
(unsecured, considered good) 
Security Deposits 

Security Deposits with a related party (refer note 33) 

Balance with bank in fixed deposits, with 111aturity beyond 12 months 

Note: 
Figures below~ 50,000 are denoted by'*'. 

5 Other non-current assets 
(unsecured, considered good) 
Deposit with Govermnent Authorities 

Advance for projects 

Less: Provision for Iinpainnent 

As at 
31 March 2020 

0.03 

63.01 

64.15 

(62.69) 

1.14 

4.10 

0.05 

702.35 

921.70 

219.35 

1,997.52 

(780.37) 

1217.15 

4.28 

• 

4.28 

0.13 
127.32 

(20.77) 

106.68 

(~ in crores) 
As at 

31 March2019 

0.03 

63.01 

61.55 

(33.80) 

13.20 

47.71 

0.05 

796.56 

897.30 

100.74 

1,033.49 

(98.00) 

935.49 

3.82 

0.30 

4.12 

6.91 

9 l.28 

98.19 
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Particulars 

6 Income tax 

(a) Income tax expense 
Current tax 
Current tax on profits for the year 
Adjustlnents for current tax ofp1ior periods 
IVrAT credit utilisation 
Total current tax expense 

Deferred Tax (including MAT credit) 
Decrease/(lncrease) in deferred tax assets 
Increase/(Decrease) in deferred tax liabilities 
Total deferred tax expense 
Income tax expense/( credit) 

(b) The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at statutory income tax rate to income tax 
expense reported in statement of profit and loss is as follows: 
Loss before tax 
S tatuto1y income tax rate 
Expected incotne tax expense 

Differences due to: 
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes (CSR Expenses) 
Adjl1stments for current tax of prior periods 
Effect tax rate chage 
Pennanent ditlerences 
Notional fnco1ne from House Property not provided in books 
Reversal of DTA created earlier 
DTA not created on cany fo1ward loss 
DTA not created on current year i1npainnent provisions 
Total income tax expense/( credit) 

(c) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 
The balance c01nprises ten1poraiy differences attributable to: 

Deferred income tax assets 
i\fAT credit entitle1nent 
Difference between book balance and tax balance of Property, plant and equip1nent 
Cany forward business losses and depreciation 
Provision for etnployees benefits expenses 
Iinpainnent Provisions 
Total deferred tax assets 

Deferred income tax liabilities 
Interest included in Inventories 
Total deferred tax liabilities 

Net deferred tax liabilities/(assets) (net) 

As at 
31March2020 

3.58 

3.58 

260.60 
(83.15) 

177.45 

181.03 

(808.92) 

34.94°/o 
(282.67) 

(0.18) 

3.58 

1.09 

177.45 
55.62 

226.14 
181.03 

15.30 

3.03 
23.23 

41.56 

(41.56) 

(t in crores) 
As at 

3 l March 2019 

2.06 

2.06 

(67.42) 

5.87 
(61.55) 

(59.49) 

(175.73) 

34.94% 
(61.41) 

1.75 
0.17 

(59.49) 

15.30 

3.50 
139.45 

2.61 

141.30 
302.16 

83.15 

83.15 

(219.01) 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued) 
as at 31March2020 

6 Income tax (Continued) 

(d) 1\-lovements in deferred tax liabiJities 

At I April 2018 

Charged/( credited) 

- to profit or loss 

- directly to retain earnings [IndAS 115 impact) 

At 311\tlarch 2019 

Charged/( credited) 

- to profit or loss 

At 311\'Inrch 2020 

(g) Movements in deferred tax assets 
MAT credit Property, plant 
entitlement and equipment 

At 1April2018 17.36 2.80 

( Clrnrged)!credited 

- to profit or loss (2.06) 0.70 

- to other comprehensive income 

- directly to retain earnings (IndAS L 15 
impact) 

At 31 lVIarch 2019 15.30 3.50 

[ Charged)/credited 

- to profit or loss (0.47) 

At At 311\-Iarch 2020 15.30 3.03 

~ 

Tax losses 

2.59 

(L5.16) 

152.02 

139.45 

(116.22) 

23,23 

('< in crores) 
Difference in Interest included in Total 

method of inventories 
computation of 
profit between 
books and tax 

41.29 77.28 118.57 

5.87 5.87 

(41.29) (41.29) 
83.15 83.15 

(83.15) (83.15) 

Defined benefit Impairment Total 
obligation Provisions 

5.11 56.59 84.45 

(2.83) 84.71 65.36 

0.33 0.33 

152.02 

2.61 141.30 302, 16 

(2.61) (141.30) (260.60) 

41.56 
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Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued) 
as at 31 March 2020 

Particulars 

7 Inventories (refer notes 7.1, 7.2, 7.3 and 7.4) 
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value) 

Construction Materials 
Finished Goods 
Constniction workwiri~progress 

As at 
31 March 2020 

22.45 

679.79 
2,478.06 

3 180.30 

(~ in crores) 
As at 

31March2019 

29.21 

687.22 
2,939.78 
3,656.21 

Notes: 
7.1 Disclosure with respect to inventories which are expected to be recovered after more than twelve months are not provided as it is practically 

not feasible to disclose the sa1ne considering the nature of the industry in which the Co1npany operates. 

7.2 The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the period in respect of continuing operations was~ 454.31 crores (for the year ended 
31 March 2019 : ~ 714.28 crores) 

Refer note 12 and 15 in respect of above 1nentioned inventory under lien. 7.3 

7.4 During the period the co1npany has written down inventories to the extent of< 82.61 crores (for the year ended 31 Nfarch 2019 : < 105.87 

crores) 

Particulars 

8 (a) Investments - current 

Investments in Mutual Funds -unquoted- at Fair Value Through Profit 

and Loss 
204,042.259 Units (As at 31 Marc,h, 2019 : 204,042.259 Units) of Birla Sun Life - Short Tenn 
Fund - Monthly Dividend - Regular Plan -Payout of< 10 each 

2,975,401.883 Units (As at 31 March, 2019: Nil Units) of Aditya Birla Sunlife Liquid Fund­
Direct Growth Plan 

8 (b) Trade receivables 

Unsecured, considered good 
- from related parties [refer note 33] 

- others 

Less:- Provision for in1pairment 

8 (c) Cash and cash equivalents 

Balances with Banks - in Cun-ent Accounts# 
Cheques on Hand 

Cash on Hand 
Deposits with original 1naturity of less than 3 1nonths 

# Includes balances with banks - in RERA specified accounts, which shall be used only for 
specified purposes as defined under Real Estate (Regulation and Developtnent) Act, 2016. 

As at 
31~larch2020 

0.24 

95.00 

95.24 

60.60 

11.73 

(13.86) 

58.47 

12.56 

0.01 
0.01 

119.45 

132.03 

5.90 

(~ in crores) 
As at 

31 March2019 

0.24 

0.24 

36.62 
21.91 

(10.28) 
48.25 

25.17 

0.01 

25.18 

0.84 
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Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued) 
as at 31 March 2020 

Particulars 

8 ( d) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 

Eannarked Current Accounts 

Details of bank balances/deposits 
Bank deposit available on de1nand with original 1naturity of 3 1nonths or less included under 
"Cash and cash equivalents" 

8 (e) Loans - current 
(unsecured) 

Loans and Inter-Corporate Deposits to related pat1ies (refer note 33) 
Less: Provision for itnpainnent 

Loans and Inter-Corporate Deposits with Others 
Less: Provision for i1npainnent 

8 (f) Other financial assets - current 
(unsecured) 

Contractually reiinbursable expenses 
Less: Provision for ilnpainnent 

Advances recoverable frotn related parties (refer note 33) 

Advances recoverable from others 

Deposit with others 

9 Other current assets 
(unsecured) 

Advance for projects 

Less: Provision for impainnent 

Deposit with Govermnent Authorities 

Less: Provision for itnpainnent 

Mobilisation Advance 

Prepaid expenses 

Balances with govennnent authorities (GST) 

As at 
31 LVIarch 2020 

0.01 

0.01 

119.45 

21.54 

21.54 

28.07 

(14.90) 

34.71 

10.31 

(10.31) 

46.24 

37.33 

1.32 

84.89 

47.68 
(12.89) 

34.79 

0.49 

0.49 

7.54 

15.88 

17.69 

76.39 

(~ in crores) 
As at 

31 March2019 

664.27 

(102.57) 

561.70 

20.09 

581.79 

10.31 

(10.31) 

52.16 

8.79 

2.97 

63.92 

153.59 
(13.86) 

139.73 

2.74 

(2.25) 

0.49 

7.74 

12.47 

21.5 l 
181.94 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued) 
as at 31 March 2020 

Particulars 

10 Equity Share Capital 

Authorised 
1000,000,000 (As at 31March,2019: 1000,000,000) Ordinary Shares of < 101- each 

Issued, Subscribed and fully Paid-up 
730, 152,723 (As at 31 March, 2019 : 730,152,723) Ordinary Shares oH 101· each 

As at 
31 March 2020 

I 000.00 

730.15 
730.15 

(fin crores) 
As at 

31 March2019 

1,000.00 

730.15 
730.15 

10.1 Reconciliation of number of Ordinary Shares and amount Outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Year: 

Particulars As at 31 J\llarch 2020 Asat31 March2019 

Number Of Zin crores Number Of Zin crores 
Shares Shares 

At the Beginning of the Year 73,01,52,723 730.15 40,53,80,912 405.38 

Issued during the Year 32,47,71,811 324.77 

Outstanding at the End of the Year 73,01,52,723 730.15 73,01,52,723 730.15 

10.2 The Ordinary Shares ranl(pari-passu, having voting rights and are subject to preferences and restrictions as per Cotnpanies Act, 2013. The 
shareholders of Ordinary shares are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Cotnpany after distribution of all preferential amounts, in 
proportion to their shareholdings, in the event of liquidation. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share held.The Dividend proposed by 
Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholder's in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

10.3 Details of shares issued otherwise than for cash/bonus shares/shares bought back during the llmnediately preceding 5 years ~None. 

10.4 Shares held by Holding Company and its subsidiary: 

729,867,398 (As at 31 March, 2019 : 729,867,398) [including 98 shares held jointly] Ordinary shares are held by the Holding Cotnpany, Tata 
Sons Private Limited. 
284,338 (As at 31 March, 2019 : 284,338) Ordinary Shares are held by Tata Industries Lilnited, a Subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Li111ited. 

10.5 Details of Ordinary Shares held by Shareholders holding more than 5o/o of Ordinary Shares in the Company: 

Particulars 

Tata Sons Private Limited 

(Ordina1y Shares ofZ 10 each) 

As at 31 l\'Iarch 2020 

Number Of 
Shares 

72,98,67,398 

'Yu Holding 

99,96o/o 

As at31 March2019 

Number Of 
Shares 

72,98,67,398 

% Holding 

99.96% 
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Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued) 
as at 31 March 2020 

11 

(i) 

(fin crores) 
Particulars As at As at 

31 March 2020 31 March2019 

Other Equity 

Securities Pre1niu1n Account 1,781.05 1,781.05 
Debenture Rede1nption Reserve 188.67 188.67 
General Reserve 23.41 23.41 
Retained earnings (l,379.12) (389.01) 

614.01 1,604.12 

Securities Premium Reserve 
As per last Balance Sheet 1,781.05 806.74 
Add: Premiutn on shares issued during the year 974.31 
Closing Balance 1,781.05 1,781.05 

Debenture Redemption Reserve 
As per last Balance Sheet 188.67 188.67 
(Less)/Add: Transfer (to)/fro1n Retained earnings (net) 
Closing Balance 188.67 188.67 

General Reserve 23.41 23.41 

Retained earnings 
As per last Balance Sheet (389.01) 88.16 

(Less): Changes on adoption of Ind AS l l5, (net of tax) (360.31) 
(389.01) (272.15) 

Add: (Loss) for the year (989.95) (116.24) 
Add/(Less): Other comprehensive inco1ne/(loss) arising fr01n remeasuretnents of post~ (0.17) (0.62) 
employ1nent benefit obligations, net of tax 

Closing Balance (1,379.12) (389.01) 

614.01 1,604.12 
Nature and purpose of reserves 

Securities premium account 

Securities prentiu1n account represents the premiu1n on issue of shares. The account is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the 
Co1npanies Act, 2013. 

(ii) Debenture redemption reserve (ORR) 

The Co1npany is required to create DRR out of the profits which is available for payn1ents of dividend for the purpose of rede1nption of 
debentures until such debentures are redeemed. 

(iii) General reserve 

The general reserve is used frotn time to time to transfer profits fr01n retained earnings for appropriation purpose. As the general reserve is 
created by transfer frotn one co1nponent of equity to another and is not an item of other co1nprehensive income, items included in the general 

reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss. 

(iv) Retained earnings 

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, debenture redetnption reserve, 
dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. 
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Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued) 
as at 31 il!larch 2020 

12 (a) Borrowings 

Pllrticulars 

Secured· at amortised cost: 

(a) Debentures - N!m-Convcrtible Redeemable (refer note l2.{ below) 

1600 (previolls year 4000), 3.19% - Debentures ofi!" 1 ,000.000 each 

(Due for redemption on 23 Aplil, 2020 i.e. at the end oftlu·ee yeai:s and three 
mon.ciis from the darn ofiS1Jue) 

541 (previous year 2000), 8. ! 9% - Debentures ofi!" l,000,000 each 

(Due forredernption: i!" 54. 10 crore.s on 23 ApriL 2020 i.e. Jt the end of three years 
1t11d four months from the date of issue) 

l 753 (previous year 2000), 8.50% - DebentUl'es of'<: 1.000.000 each 

(Due for redemption Z !75,30 crores on 20 ApriL 2020 i.e. at tile end of three and 
hnlfyenrs from the date of issue) 

2000 (previous year 2000), 8.25% - Debentures of't" 1.000.000 each 

Nil (previous year 500), 9.55%- Debentures of'<: l.000.000 each 

1000 (previous year 1000), 9.15% - Debentures ofZ 1.000.1100 each 

(Due for redemption on 27 Septembel', 202 l i.e. at the end of three years and one 
months from the date of issue) 

JOOO (previous year Nil), 8.80 %- Debentures of't" 1.000.000 each 

(Due for redemption on 26 December. 2022 i.e. at the end of three years and one 
months from the date of issue) 

5000 (previous year Nil), 8.60 %- Debentures of~ 1,000.000 each 

(Due for redemption on 06 Feburnry 2023 i.e. at the end of three years from the 
dateofissue) 

(b) Term Lonn rrom Banks 

State Bank ofBikaner and Jaipur 1refor note 12.2 below) 

(c) Vchicfo Loans from HDFC Bank Limited (refer note 12.3 below) 

Unsecured - at amortised cost: 

(a) Lease liabilities 

Total 

12.1 Details of security provided in respect of the Secured Debentures: 

Security for Item Nos. 1 to 8 of L2 (a) above : (Also Refer Note 39) 

As at 

3 l March 2020 

Long-term Current 

l00.00 

l00.00 

500.00 

700.00 

700.00 

6.27 

6.27 

706.27 

maturities or 
loug-term debts 

160.00 

54.10 

175.30 

389..JO 

0.12 

389.52 

0.47 

0..17 

389.99 

(i!" in crores) 

As at 

31March,20l9 

Long-teim Current 

+oo.oo 

100.00 

200.00 

100.00 

800.00 

0.10 

800.10 

300.10 

maturities oflong­
teim debts 

100.00 

200.00 

50.00 

350.00 

99,73 

0.13 

449,86 

449.36 

First Charge on loans and advances including loans and advances to subsidiaries, Non-Current Investments, Interest accrued on 
Loans with related parties (excluding those charged in favour of banks). present and future. 

2 Item Nos. l to 6 of 12 (a) above are further secured: 
Secured by way of token security by first charge on retail units in the complex known as Shubh Griha, being constructed on the 
property bearing Gut Nos. 110. 101:5 situated at Village Betgaon, Taluka Palghar. District Tiiane: 

12.2 (a) Secured by FSI available for Free Sale Component admeasuring 144,052.89 sq.mtrs. in the project situated on land bearing CTS No. 
1320 A (Part) of Village J\ifulund (E), Talulrn Kurla, District rvrumbai Suburban and secured by exclusive charge on stock and 
receivables ofMulund project. 

(b) Term Loan of< Ni! (previous year < 99. 73 crores): The terrn loan is due for repayment in 8 quarterly installments starting June 
2018 of< 25 crores each. 111e rate of interest is 8.60% p.a. 

12.3 (a) Secured by first and exclusive charge of the Vehicles acquired under said loans. 

(b) Loan is to be repaid in Equated Monthly Installments (ErvlI) between 54 months to 60 months. '01e rate of interest 9.46% p.a .. 
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Particulars 

12 (b) Trade Payables -Non-current 

12 (c) 

13 

14 

Trade payables due to Micro, S1nall and Medium Enterprises (Refer Note No. 36) 
Trade payables other than acceptances due to other than :Micro, S1nall and Ivfediu1n 
Enterprises 

Retention 1noney payable 

Other financial Iiabilites - Non-current 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowing 
Security and other deposits payable 

Non-current Provisions 

Provision for Employee Benefits 
- Post retire1nent tneclical benefits 

Other non-current liabilities 

Advance fron1 custo1ner/Contractual liability 

~ 

As at 
31 March 2020 

10.73 

10.73 

23.34 

0.46 

23.80 

147.05 

147.05 

(~ in crores) 
As at 

31 March20!9 

10.74 

10.74 

38.55 

0.60 

39.15 

0.41 

0.41 

199.29 

199.29 
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Particulars 

15 (a) Current borrowings 

Notes: 

Secured - at amortised cost 
Loans repayable on de1nand from banks (includes cash credits, working capital de1nand 
loans and short-tenn loans) [refer notes 15.2] 

Unsecured - at amortised cost 
Loans repayable on detnand fro1n banks (refer notes 15. l) 
Inter Corporate Deposits from related parties (refer note 15.1 and 35) 

Inter Corporate Deposits from others (refer notes 15.1) 
Co1n1nercial papers (refer note 15.3) 

As at 
31March2020 

417.11 

465.28 

870.90 
1,336.18 

1,753.29 

(~in crores) 
As at 

31 March2019 

144.53 

20 l.08 

50.00 

15.00 
700.00 

966.08 

l,110.61 

15.l The interest rate for unsecured loan repayable on deinand from bank, short tenn loan from others, inter corporate deposits from related parties 
and others are ranging frotn 8.40% p.a. to 8.85% p.a. (for the year ended 31March,2019: 8.30o/o p.a. to 9.20% p.a.) 

15.2 Rs. 417.11 crores (As at 3 l March, 2019 < 144.53 crores) are secured by pari passu hypothecatlon of construction materials, book debts, 
cun-ent assets and n1oney receivables, both present and future. Further, there is negative lien on the Pre1nises situated at Mutnbai for cash 
credit from a bank of Rs. 133.93 crores (As at 31March,2019 < 52.97 crores). 
The interest rate is ranging fron1 8. (0% p.a. to 8.65% p.a. (for t11e year ended 31 N!arch, 2019: 8.55% p.a. to 8.85% p.a.) 

15.3 The Company has outstanding Co1n1nercial Papers aggregating face value of< 870.90 crores {net proceeds < 853.88 crores) [As at 31 March, 
2019 < 700.00 crores (net proceeds< 687.11 crores )]. The Con11llercial Papers cany interest ranging from 6.30o/o to 8.50o/o (As at 31 March, 
2019 7.75% p.a. to 8.06% p.a.) & are repayable within a period ranging frotn 60 days to 91 days from the date of allottnent. 

15 (b) Trade Payables 

Trade payables due to Micro, Stnall and Mediutn Enterprises (Refer Note No. 36) 
Trade payables other than acceptances due to other than Micro, S1nall and Mediu111 Enterprises 
Retention tnonies payable 

15 (c) Other financial liabilities 

CutTent 1naturities of long-tenn debts (refer note 12) 
Interest accrued on borrowings 
Employee related payables 
Security and other deposits payable 
Earnest money deposits 
Current tnaturities of long-term lease liability (refer note 12) 

732.46 

33.70 

766.16 

389.52 
72.23 

0.76 
9.70 

0.11 
0.47 

472.79 

846.66 
37.47 

884.13 

449.86 

52.58 
0.54 

14.34 
O.l l 

517.43 
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Particulars 

16 Provision 

17 

Provision for Employee Benefits 
Gratuity 
Compensated absences 
Provision for Contingencies Costs 
Provision for custo1ner compensation 
Provision for foreseeable loss on inventoty 

Other Current Liabilities 

Revenue received in advance 
Unexpired guarantee inco1ne 
Statutory dues payable; 

- Provident fund 
- Professional Tax 
- Goods and service tax 
- Tax deducted at source 

~ 

As at 
31 March 2020 

7.08 
4.50 

23.87 

35.45 

581.51 
0.24 

0.18 
0.01 
3.52 
3.43 

588.89 

(~in crores) 
As at 

31 March2019 

5.14 
5.90 
8.99 
4.19 

72.26 

96.48 

701.25 
l.24 

0.19 
0.01 
0.27 
4.37 

707.33 
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18 

19 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

20 

21 

Revenue from Operations 
Sale of properties 

Sale of services 

Particulars 

- Project Manageinent Fees and Marketing Charges 

Other operating revenues 
- Other inco1ne frotn customers 

Other Income 

Interest fncome 
Interest inco1ne on financial assets at mnortised cost 
Interest on delayed collections fro1n custo1ners 

Dividend Inco111e fro1n investlnents 1neasured at fair value through profit and loss 

Other non-operating income 
Guarantee Co1n1nission 
Penal interest 
Interest on Inco1ne-tax refund 
Provision Written Back 
Miscellaneous Incotne 

Other gains/(losses) 
Gain on sale of current investtnents 
Net Gain on sale of Property, plant and equip1nent 
Net (Loss)/Gain on Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations 

Construction Costs 

Construction Costs (Refer Note 25) 

Employee Benefits Expense 

Salaries 
Contribution to Gratuity, Provident and Other Funds 
Staff Welfare Expenses 

Less : Apportionn1ent to projects 
Less : Rehnburse1nent fron1 group cotnpanies 

gtt 

For the Year Ended 
31 L\tlarch 2020 

630.35 

16.75 

23.51 

670.61 

237.00 
1.11 

238.11 

0.01 

2.50 
3.04 
0.03 
6.54 
0.20 

12.31 

0.85 

2.58 
3.43 

253.86 

454.31 

454.31 

72.74 
4.21 
3.22 

80.17 
3.28 

76.89 

(~ in crores) 
For the Year 

Ended 
31March2019 

1,143.37 

12.59 

32.88 

1,188.84 

173.95 
2.58 

176.53 

0.07 

2.38 
31.96 

2.80 
37.14 

1.64 
0.09 
3.38 
5.11 

218.85 

714.28 

714.28 

76.84 
2.71 
1.89 

81.45 
13.80 
0.88 

66.77 
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Particulars 

22 Finance Costs 

Interest and finance charges on financial liabilities not at fair value 
through profit or loss 

- Interest on Borrowings 
- Interest on Vehicle Loans 

- Interest on Leased Liability 

Less: Apportiornnent to construction work in progress 

For the Year Ended 
31 March 2020 

224.13 

0.01 

0.21 
224.35 

11.74 

212.61 

(fin crores) 
For the Year Ended 

31 March2019 

242.88 

O.o3 

242.91 

16.80 

226.11 
Note: The capitalisation rate used to detennine the mnount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted average interest rate applicable to the 
Co1npany's general borrowings which is 8. l6%, (for the year ended 3 l March, 2019: 8.41 %) 

23 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 

Depreciation on property, plant and equip1nent 2.36 4.51 
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 1.46 l.36 
Ainortisation of Leased assets 0.28 

4.10 5.87 

24 Other Expenses 

Professional Fees 15.46 14.87 
Travelling Expenses 0.99 l.26 

Rent 5.46 9.07 

Repairs and Maintenance 
- Buildings 

- Others 35.73 21.00 
Electricity Expenses 1.43 2.03 
Insurance 4.92 4.73 
Rates and Taxes 0.23 2.22 
Directors' Sitting Fees to independent & non-executive Directors 0.32 0.26 

Payable to Statutory Auditors 
As auditor: 
- Audit Fees 0.40 0.27 

In Other Capacity 
- Certification Fees 0.02 
- Others 0.07 0.11 
- Reilnbursement of Expenses 0.03 0.03 

Foreseeable loss on inventory 2.81 
Advances written off 4.12 
Ilnpairment for advances and receivables 24.85 10.28 
I:tnpact ofNRV on inventory 82.61 105.87 
Contingencies costs 14.89 7.52 
Donations 0.05 0.03 
Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility 0.50 0.01 

Custo1ner cotnpensation costs 8.37 28.53 

Other Expenses 10.33 52.3 l 

Selling Expenses 
-Brokerage 28.50 21.39 
-Advertising & others 20.21 35.07 

~ 
259.47 319.82 
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25 Inventories includes: 

Particulars 

(A) Construction Work"in-progress & construction material at the commencement of the year 

Add: 

Impact of Ind.As 115 

Constrnction cost (including material and labour cost) 

Finance Cost 
Other Constrnction overheads 
Employee Benefits Expense 

Rent 

Professional Fees 

Electricity expenses 

Travelling expenses 

Less: 

Impact of~R Von inventory 

Charged to Construction Costs 

Transferred to Finished Goods 

Construction "\York-in-progress & construction material at the end of the year 

(B) Finished Goods at the commencement of the year 

Add: 

Impact ofindAs 115 

Transferred from Construction Work-in-progress 

Less: 

Impact ofNRV on inventoty 

Charged to Construction Costs 

Finished Goods at the end of the year 

Total constrnction work-in-progress, construction material and finished goods 

Charged to Conslruction Costs 

JD Share adjutment from Construction Costs 

(~in crores) 

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 

31 ~Iarch2020 3 l March, 2019 

2,968.99 2,776.53 

- 689.83 

102.56 155.62 

11.74 16.80 

17.44 49.38 
3.28 13.80 

0.02 0.02 

4.26 4.02 

o.74 

0.24 0.1 [ 

146.00 

160.30 279.88 
302.46 457.24 

2,500.51 2,968.99 

687.22 570.59 

93.79 

302.46 457.24 

6.05 

303.84 434.40 

679.79 687.22 

464.14 

(9.83) 

454.31 714.28 
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26 Fair value measurements 

Financial instruments by category 

The following table shows the canying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. 

Carrying amount as at 31March2020 

FVTPL Amo1ilsed cost Total 

Current Non-current Current Non-current Current N'on-current 

Financial assets 
i. Investments - Preference Shares 0.05 0.05 
- Subsidiruy 
- Compulsorily Convertible 5.24 5.24 
Debenhn·es 

• Mutual funds 95.24 95.24 
ii, Trade receivables 58.47 58.-1.7 
iii. Cash and cash equivalents 132.03 132.03 
iv. Bank balances other than cash 0.01 0.01 
and cash equivalents 

v. Loans 34.71 l,217.15 3..J..71 l,217.15 
vi. Other financial assets 8..J..89 4.28 8..J..89 ..J..28 

Total financial assets 95.24 5.24 310.11 1,221...J.8 405.35 (,226.72 

Financial liabilities 
i. Bon-owings 2,142.81 706,27 2,l42.81 706.27 
ii. Trade payables 766.16 10.73 766.16 10.73 
iii. Other financial liabilites 83.27 23.80 83.27 23.80 
Total linancial liabilities 2,992.24 740.80 2,992,24 740.80 

Carr)1ng amount as at 3 l ~I arch 20 l 9 

FVTPL Amo1tised cost Total 

CtUTcnt Non"cLnTent Current Non-cuuent Cu!1'cnt Non-cunent 

Financial assets 

i. Investments - Preforence Shares 0.05 0.05 

- Subsidiruy 

- Compulsorily Conve1tible Debentu 60.91 60.91 

- Mutual funds 0.24 0.24 

ii. Trade rccdvables 48.25 48.25 

iii. Cash and cash equivalents 25.18 25.18 

iv. Bank balances other than cash 
and cash equivalents 

v. Loans 581.79 935A9 581.79 935.49 

vi. Other financial assets 63.92 4.12 63.92 4.12 

Total tfoanclal assets 0.24 60.91 719.14 939.66 719.38 l,000.57 

Financial liabilities 

i. Boffowings 1,560.47 800.10 1,560.47 800.10 

ii, Trade payables 884,13 10.74 884.13 10.74 

iii. Other linancial liabilites 67.57 39.15 67.57 39.15 

Total financial liabilities 2,512.18 8..+9.99 2,512.18 849.99 

Level 1 

95.24 

Fair Value 

Level 2 

0.05 

5.24 

1,251.86 

95,24 1,257.15 

Fair Value 

Leve13 

58.47 
132.03 

0.01 

89.17 

279.68 

2,849.08 
776.89 
107.07 

3,733.04 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

0.05 

60.91 

0.2..i. 

48.25 

25.18 

1,517.28 

68.04 

0.24 !,578.24 141.48 

2,360.57 

894.87 

106.72 

3,362.17 

(~ m crores) 

Total 

0.05 

5.24 

95.24 
58..17 

132.03 
0.01 

!,251.86 
89.17 

1,632.07 

2,849.08 
776.89 
l07.07 

3,733.04 

(Zin crores) 

Total 

0.05 

60.9! 

0.24 

48.25 

25.18 

1,517.28 

68.0-1 

1,719.95 

2.360.57 

894.87 

l06.72 

3,362.17 
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Fair value hierarchy 

This section explains thejudge1nents and estirnates 1nade in detennining the fair values of the financial instrmnents that are (a) recognised and 1neasured at fair value 
and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statetnents. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used 
in detennining fair value, the c01npany has classified its financial instrutnents into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each 
level tbllows underneath the table, 

The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in note above have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique. 
The hierarachy gives the highest priority to quoted ptices in active market for identical assets or liabilities (level l measuretnents) and lowest priority to unobservable 
inputs (level 3 measure1nents). The categories used are as follows : 

Level 1 : Level l hierarchy includes financial instruments tneasured using quoted prices. 

Level 2: The fair value of financial instru1nents that are not traded in an active market {for exainple, traded bonds, over-thecounter derivatives) is detennined using 
valuation techniques which tnaxhnise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. Considering that all significant 
inputs required to fair value such instruments are observable, these are included in level 2. 

Level 3: If one or 1nore of the significant inputs is not based on observable tnarket data, the instnnnent is included in level 3. 

The canying amounts of trade receivables, inter corporate deposits, cutTent investments, contractually rehnbursable expenses, cash and cash equivalents and other 
bank balances, cutTent trade payables and cunent bonowings are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-tenn nature. 

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the canying amounts are equal to the fair values. 

Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs 

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values for financial instnnnents 1neasured at fair value in the 
staten1ent of financial position as well as the significant unobservable inputs used. 

Financial instruments measured at fair value 

Type 

Investments in unlisted corporate 
debt instruments: 

Compulsodly Conveitible 
Debentures of Ardent Prope11ies 
Pdvate Limited 

Valuation technique 

Discounted cash flow Method : For the purpose of value of the equity holders 
of the Company based on free cash flows availabki from operations undertaken 
by the company, Discounted Cash Flow (DCP) Method has been adopted. 
Free cash tlows to equity in the explicit forecast period and those in perpetuity 
are discounted by Cost of Equity ('Kc'), Ke is the appropdate rate of discount 
to calculate present value of future cash flows for valuing the equity shares of 
the company as it considers risk and expected retwn to the equity stockholders. 

Significant 
unobservable Inputs 

Not applicable 

Inter-refatiooship between 
significant unobservable inputs and fair value 

measurement 

Not applicable 
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27 Earnings Per Share 

Particulars 

Loss after Tax - (:( m crores) 

Number of Ordinaiy shares 

Weighted average number of Ordinary shares outstanding during 

Weighted average number ofOrdinaiy shares for diluted EPS 

Basic earnings per share ofit: 10 each - (:() 

Diluted earnings per share of:; 10 each - (:\) 

Face Value Per Share - (:() 

28 Segment Reporting 

For the Yenr 
Ended 

31 March, 2020 

(989.95) 

73,01,52,723 

73,0l,52,723 

73,01,52,723 

(13.56) 

(13.56) 

IO 

For the Year 
Ended 

31 ~larch, 2019 

(116.24) 

73,01,52,723 

44,45,31,486 

44,45,31,486 

(2.61) 

(2.61) 

10 

The Company is engaged only in the business of development of property and related activities in India. It has no other reportable segments in tenns of Indian 
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 108 on Segment Reporting specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("the 2013 Act"). 

29 Contingent liabilities and Commitments 

(i) Contingent liabilities 
(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of suits filed by owners and customers of certain properties constructed/developed by the 

Company atnounting to< 5.06 crores (As at 3 l March 2019 < 1.96 crores) (inclusive of interest) against which the Company has made counter claims of mil crores 
(As at 31 }darch 2019 <Nil crores). The Company based on past experience does not anticipate any material liability to devolve on it as a result thereof. 

Future ultitnate out±1ow of resources embodying economic benefits in respect of the above matters are uncertain as it depends on the final outc01ne of the matters 
involved. 

(b) Corporate Guarantees given to banks by the Company on behalf of subsidiaries : < 597, 06 crores (As at 31 March 2019 < 551.11 crores ). 

(c) Corporate Guarantee given to the debenture trustee by the Company on behalfofasubsidiaty: < 400 crores (As at 31 March 2019 < ..+OO crores) and together with 
redemption premimn of Yield To Rede1nption ofS.40°/o p.a. (for year ended 31st Nfarch, 20 l 9: 8.40'% p.a.) and other charges, 

(d) Clailns against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of de1nand raised by Service Tax Deprat1nent of < 30.55 crores (As at 31 March 2019 <Nil) 

(ii) Commitments 
(a) Esthnated atnount of contracts re1naining to be executed on capital account and not provided for: Tangible assets - <Nil crores (As at 31 March, 2019 <Nil crores) 

and for Intangible assets'< 0.34 crores (As at 31 [\/[arch, 2019 <Nil crores) 

(b) Com1nitment towards uncalled portion on partly paid 11°/o Redee1nable, Cumulative, Non-participating, Non-convertible Preference Shares of Ornate Housing 
Private Ltd ("Ornate") mnounting to < 0 .1 5 er ores (As at 31 March, 2019 < 0 .15 er ores). The Co1npany is committed to this amount only in the event of Ornate 
winning the bid for a project. 
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30 Financial risk management 

The Co1npany's business activities expose it to a variety of financial Jisks, nmnely liquidity risk, 1narket risks and credit risk. The Co1npany1s 
senior tnanageinent has the overall responsibility for the establislnnent and oversight of the Cotnpany's risk 1nanagement framework. The 
Company has constituted a Risk iv1anagetnent Com1nittee, which is responsible for developing and inonitoring the Company's risk 1nanageinent 
policies. The Con1pany's risk 1nanage1nent policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Cotnpany, to set appropriate risk 
litnits and controls and to tnonitor risks and adherence to !Units. Risk 1nanagement policies and syste1ns are revie\.ved regularly to reflect changes 
in inarket conditions and the Co1npany1s activities. 

The Risk rvianage1nent Co1mnittee of the Company is supported by the Finance departlnent that provides assurance that the Co1npany1s financial 
risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance 
with the Co1npany1s policies and risk objectives. The Finance department activities are designed to: 
- protect the Co1npany1s financial results and position fron1 financial risks 
- 1naintain tnarket risks within acceptable parameters, while optimising returns; and 
- protect the Co1npany's financial investJnents, while 1naxitnising returns. 

A) lVIanagement of liquidity risk 

B) 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Co1npany will face in 1neeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Company's approach 
to inanaging liquidity is to ensure that it vvill have sufficient funds to tneet its liabilities when due without incuning unacceptable losses. In doing 
this, management considers both nonnal and stressed conditions. 

Maturities of financial liabilities 
The following table shows the inatu1ity analysis of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractually agreed undiscounted cash flows as 
at the Balance sheet date: 

As at 31 :\'larch 2020 earring Amount 

Borrowings 2,849.08 

Trade payables 776.89 

Financial guarantees 

Other liabilities !07.07 

As at 31 March, 2019 Curring Amount 

Borrowings 2,360.57 

Trade payables 894.87 

Financial guarantees 

Other liabilities 106.72 

Management of market risk 

Less tlian 1 year 1-3Yenrs 

2,230.24 889.70 
766.16 l0.73 

997.06 

83.27 23.80 

Less than 1 year i,3 Years 

1,673.26 875.60 

876.61 10.74 

951.11 

67.57 39.15 

3-5 Years 

3-5 Years 

(~in crores) 

Total 

3,l l9.94 

776.89 

997.06 

107.07 

(~in crores) 

Total 

2,548.86 

887.35 

951.11 

106.72 

The Co1npany's size and operations result in it being exposed to the following tnarket risks that arise from its use of financial instru1nents: 
• interest rate risk 
• currency risk 
The above risks 1nay affect the Co1npany's inco111e and expenses, or the value of its financial instruments. The objective of the Cotnpany's 
manage1nent of 111arket risk is to maintain this risk within acceptable para1neters, while optilnising returns. The Co1npany's exposure to, and 
management of, these risks is explained below: 

Particulars 

Fixed rate iustrumenbl 

Debentures - Non-Convertible Redeemable 

Short tenn loan from others 

Inter Corporate Deposits 

Commercial papers 

Term loan from banks 

Working Capital Demand loan from Banks 

Vehicle loans 

Total 

Variable-rate instruments 

Loans repayable on demand from banks 

Total 

As at 

3 l '.\1arch, 2020 

1,089.40 

870.90 

815.00 

0.12 

2,775.42 

67.39 

67.39 

As at 

31 March20l9 

1,150.00 

65.00 

700.00 

99.73 

290.00 

0.23 

2,304.96 

55.61 

55.61 
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30 Financial risk management (Continued) 

B) iVIanagement of market risk (Continued) 

POTEi"'ITIAL IMPACT OF RISK 

(I) Interest rate risk 

i\"IA..'l"AGEMENT POLICY SENSITIVITY TO RISK 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a The Company's strategy is to mitigate interest As an estimation of the approximate impact of the interest rate 
financial instrnment will fluctuate because of changes in rate risk by ensuring a proper mix of borrowings risk, with respect to financial instruments, the Company has 

market interest rates. at calculated the impact of a 0.25% change in interest rates. 0.25% 
The Company is mainly exposed to interest rate risk due to fixed and variable interest rates, p.a. decrease in interest on aforesaid loans will reduce interest 
its variable interest rate botTowings. The interest rate risk expense by ~ 0.17 crores for the year ended 31 March 2020 
arises due to uncertainties about the foture market interest The Company's interest rate tisk is monitored by 
rate ofthese investments. the management and treasury team on a monthly 0.25% p.a. decrease in interest on aforesaid loans will reduce 

basis. Management analyses the Company's interest expense by ~ 0.14 crores for financial year ended 31 

The Company's fixed rate bonowings are carried at interest rate exposure on a dyllalnic basis. March, 2019 
amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest Vatious scenarios are simulated, t:aking into 
rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the consideration refinancing, renewal of existing A 0.25% increase in interest rates would have led to an equal but 
carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate positions and alternative financing sources. Based opposite effect. 

because of a change in market interest rates. on these scenarios, the Company calculates the 
impact on profit and loss of a defined interest rate 

As at March 31, 2020, borrowings amounted to ~ 67.39 shift. The scenarios are nm only for liabilities that 
crores (as at 31 March, 2019: ~ 55.61 crores) is exposed represent the major interest-bearing positions. 
to interest rate risk. The simulation is done on a monthly basis to 

(ii) Currency risk 

verify that the maximum potential loss is within 
the limits set by management. 

The Company unde1takes transactions denominated in The Company has not hedged any of its assets or As an estimation of the approximate impact of the currency risk, 
foreign currencies which is mainly receivables from its liabilities repayable in a foreign cuffency, being with respect to financial instnunents, the Company has calculated 

subsidiaries based in Maldives and Singapore; receivables frotn its subsidiaries. the impact of a 5% change in currencies. 
consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations Following table details the Company's sensitivity to a 5% increase 

arise. and decrease in~ against the relevant foreign currencies. 

TI1e exposure to currency risk due to foreign currency transactions 

Particulars ForciguCurrency(FC) As at 31 l\tlarch, 2020 Asat31 March,2019 

Amount in FC (Zin cJ'ores) AmountinFC {~in crores) 

Receivables SOD 1,63,84,714 

Receivables MVR 49,87,576 

Receivables AED 85,580 

SGD = Singapore$, MVR =Maldivian Rufiyaa, AED = United Arab Emirates Dir ham, USD = l:nited States Dollar 

Sensitivity analysis (only for 1najor currencies) 

Particulars 

MVR 

Increase in exchange rate by 5% 

Decrease in exchange rate by 5% 

SOD 

Increase in exchange rate by 5% 

Decrease in exchange rate by 5% 

(Zin crores) 

Effect on pt'ofit after tax ancl total 

equity 
For the year ended 

31 March, 2020 

0.12 

(OJ2) 

4.31 

(4.31) 

31March,2019 

0.07 

(0.07) 

2.70 

(2.70) 

86.30 1,53,75,789 82.53 

2.40 49,87,576 2.20 

0.17 85,580 O. l5 

A positive number above indicates an increase in the profit or total equity where the < weakens 5o/o against the relevant currency. for a 5% 
stTengthning of the < against the relevant currency, there would be a comparable ilnpact on the profit or total equity, and the balances below 
would be negative. 
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30 Financial risk management (Continued) 

C) 1"Ianagement of credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Co1npany if a custo1ner or counterparty to a financial instn1111ent fails to meet its contractual 
obligations, and arises principally frotn the Coinpany's receivables frotn custo1ners, investlnents in debt securities, loans given to related parties 
and project deposits. 

The carrying a1nount of financial assets represents the tnaxllnum credit exposure. 

Trade Receivables 
Customer credit risk is managed by requiring custo1ners to pay advances through progress billings before transfer of ownership, therefore 
substantially elhninating the Cotnpany's credit risk in this respect. 

The Co1npany's credit risk with regard to trade receivable has a high degree of risk diversification, due to the large nutnber of projects of vmying 
sizes and types with numerous different custom.er categories in a large nutnber of geographical 1narkets. 

Investment in Debt Securities, Loans to Related Parties and Project Deposits 
The Con1pany has invest:tnents in compulsorily convertible debentures I optionally convertible debentures, loans to related parties and project 
deposits. The settletnent of such instru1nents is linked to the cotnpletion of the respective underlying projects. Such Financial Assets are not 
ilnpaired, other than provided for in note 8( e ), as on the reporting date. 

Cash and Bank balances 
Credit risk from cash and bank balances is inanaged by the Company's treasu1y departinent in accordance with the Company's policy. 

The Company's 1naxilnu1n exposure to credit risk as at 31 March 2020 & 31 March, 2019 are the carrying value of each class of financial 
assets as disclosed in notes 4(b), 4(c) and 8(a) to 8(f). 

31 Capital Management 
The Co1npany manages its capital to ensure that the Co1npany will be able to continue as going concern ·while tnaxilnising the return to 
stakeholders through optimisation of debt and equity ~alance. 

The Cotnpany's risk 1nanage1nent conllnittee reviews the capital struclure of the Co1npany on a se1ni-annual basis. As part of this review, the 
c01umittee considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. 

The Con1pany 1nonitors capital using Debt-Equity ratio, which is total debt divided by total equity. For the purposes of the Co1npany's capital 
manage1nent, the Con1pany considers the following components of its Balance Sheet to be managed capital: 
Total equity as shown in the Balance Sheet includes General reserve, Retained earnings, Share capital, Security pre1niu1n. Net debt includes 
current debt plus non-current debt less cash and bank balances. 

Long-tenn Borrowings 

Current maturities of long-tenn debts 

Cun'ent borrowings 

Interest Accrued on Borrowings 

Total debt 

Total Equity 

Net debt to equity ratio ('.'<o. of times) 

31March2020 

706.27 

389.52 

l,753.29 

95.57 

2,944.65 

l,344.16 

2.19 

(~in crorcs) 

31 l\'larch 2019 

800.10 

449.86 

1,110.61 

91.13 

2,451.71 

2,334.27 

1.05 
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32 Employee Benefits 

A Defined benefit plans: 
(i) Gratuity (funded) 

The Co1npany tnakes annual contributions to the Tata Housing Develop1nent Co1npany Lhnited E1nployees' Co1nprehensive Gratuity Schetne, 
which in tum has invested in a group gratuity cum life insurance policy of Tata AIG Life Insurance Company. The schetne provides for lu1np 
sum paytnent to vested employees at retire1nent, death while in etnploy1nent or on tennination of etnploy1nent as per Cotnpany's Gratuity 
Schetne. Vesting occurs on cotnpletion of five years. 

(ii) Post-retirement medical benefits (PRMB) (Unfunded) - (discontinued from 1 April 2019) 

The was Cotnpany operates post-retiretnent inedical benefit sche1nes upto 31 March 2019. The plan is a unfunded plan. The 1nethod of 
accounting, significant assutnptions and the frequency of valuations are similar to those used for the gratuity scheme set out above. 

(iii) Pension (unfunded) - (discontinued from 1April2019) 

The Co1npany operates a defined benefit pension plan for cetiain specified e1nployees and is payable upon the en1ployee satisfying certain 
conditions, as approved by the Board of Directors. 

(iv) Long term service award scheme (LTSA) (unfunded)~ (discontinued from l April 2019) 

The Company operates Long tenn service award sche1ne upto 31 March 2019. The plan is a unfunded plan. The method of accounting, 
significant asswnptions and the frequency of valuations are sirnilar to those used for the gratuity scheme set out above. 

Balance sheet amount 
(~in crores) 

Particulnrs Gratuity Pension PRJ\IIB LTSA 

Present value of Fair value of Net amount (unfunded) (unfunded) (unfunded) 

obligation plan assets 
I April, 2019 6.80 (1.67) 5.14 0.41 

Current service cost LOO l.00 (0.41) 

Interest expense/(income) 0.51 (0.12) 0.40 

Past Service Cost 0.38 0.38 

Total amount recognised in profit and loss 1.89 (0.12) 1.77 (0.41) 

Remeasurements 

Return on plan assets, excluding amount included in interest (0.23) (0.04) (0.27) 
expense/( income) 
(Gain) I Loss from change in fmancial assumptions 0.61 0.61 

Experience (gainsJ1losses (0.17) (0.17) 

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 0.21 (0.04) 0.17 

Employer contributions 

Benefit payments (1.54) 1.54 

31:\![arch,2020 7.36 (0,28) 7.08 -

(~in crotes) 

Particulars Gratuity Pension PR;,IB LTSA 

Preseut value of Fair value of Net amount (lTnfunded) (unfunded) (unfunded) 

obligation plan assets 
1 April, 2018 9.99 (5.94) 4.05 OA2 0.64 

Current service cost (0.10) (0.10) 

Interest expense!( income) 0.68 (0.45) 0.23 

Past Service Cost {0.0 LJ (0.64) 

Total amount recognised in profit and loss 0.59 (0.45) 0.14 {0.01) (0.64) 

Remeasurements 

Ren1m on plan assets, excluding amount included in interest 0.19 0.19 
expensel(income) 
(Gain) I Loss from change in financial assumptions OJ6 0.16 

E11:perience (gains)ilosses 0.61 0.61 

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 0.76 0.19 0.95 

Employer contributions 

Benefit payments (4.53) 4.53 

311\llatch, 2019 6.80 (1.67) 5.14 0.41 
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32 Employee Benefits (Continued) 

A Defined benefit plans: (Continued) 
The net liability disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans are as follows: 

Particulars 

311\'Iarch, 2020 

Present value of funded obligations 
Fair value of plan assets 

Deficit 

31 l\'Iarch, 2019 

Present value of funded obligations 
Fair value of plan assets 

Deficit 

JVlajor category of plan assets for Gratuity fund are as follffws: 
The cotnpany has invested entire mnollllt of plan assets in insurance fund. 
Insurer J\llanaged Fund Detailed Pattern •Y,, Invested 

As at As at 
31 March 2020 31 March2019 

Government Securities 
Corporate Bonds 
Infrastructure Bonds 

Reverse Repos' 

Risk exposure 

47.44°/o 
51.37°/n 

0.00% 
t.19% 

100.00%. 

47.44% 
51.37% 

0.00% 
1.l9% 

100.00% 

Gt"atuity 

7.36 
(0.28) 
7.08 

6.80 
(1.67) 
5.L4 

Pension 

(Unfunded) 

PRJ\llB 
(unfunded) 

0.41 

0.41 

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a nu1nber of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below: 

Asset volatility 

(~in crores) 

LTSA 
(unfunded) 

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields; if plan assets underperfonn this yield, this will create a 
deficit. Most of the plan asset invest1nents is in fixed inco1ne securities with high grades and in goverrunent securities. TI1cse are subject to 
interest rate risk and the fund 1nanages interest rate risk with derivatives to 1nini1nise risk to an acceptable level. 

Changes in bond yields 

A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the plans' bond 
holdings. 

Life expectancy 

The pension and medical plan obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the 1ne1nber, so increases in life expectancy will result in an 
increase in the plans' liabilities. This is particularly significant where inflationaiy increases result in higher sensitivily to changes in life 
expectancy. 

Salary Risk 
The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in 
salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability. 

The Company ensures that the investment positions are 1nanaged within an asset-liability matching (ALM) framework that has been developed 
to achieve long-tenn investinents that are in line with the obligations under the employee benefit plans. Within this frmnework, the Co1npany's 
ALrvl objective is to tnatch assets to the benefit obligations by investing in long-term fixed interest securities with 1naturities that match the 
benefit pay1nents as they fall due and in the appropriate currency. 

Defined benefit Liability and employer contribution 

Expected conlribution to post employ1nent benefit plans for the year ending March 31, 2021 are<" 8.02 crs 

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 7 years (2018 - 7 years) (~in crorcs) 

Gratuity PR:\.IB L TSA 

~Iaturity analysis of Projected benefit obligation: from the 

fund: 
311\larch 2020 3 I March 2019 31 :\larch 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 

1st following year 
2nd following year 
3rd following year 
4th following year 
5th fol\owingyear 
Sum ofyears 6 to 10 

1.52 

t.30 

1.29 

1.10 

0.89 

3.41 

l.36 

0.98 

0.87 

0.93 

0.83 

3-14 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2020 

32 Employee Benefits (Continued) 

B Defined contribution plans: 

Benefit (Contribution to) 

Provident Fund 

Superannuation Fund 

Total 

(i) Superannuation fund 

For the Year 
Ended 

31 l\'farch 2020 

1.79 

0.24 

2.03 

(fin crorcs) 

For the Year 
Ended 

3l i'v1arch2019 

l.55 

0.52 

2.07 

The cotnpany has superannuation scheme administrated by LIC, in which the co1npany contributes 15o/o on basic salary. 
The payn1ents to defined contribution retire1nent benefit schetne for eligible einployees in the fonn of superannuation fund are charged as an 
expense as they fall due. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Co1npany does not carry any further obligations, 
apart frotn the contributions tnade. 

(ii) Provident fund 
The Cotnpany also has certain defined benefit plans. Contributions are 1nade to Tata Housing provident fund trust for einployees at the rate of 
12% of basic salary as per regulations. The Cotnpany is liable for contributions and any deficiency compared to interest cotnputed based on the 
rate of interest declared by the Central Goverrunent under the Etnployees' Provident Fund Scheme, 1952 and recognises, if any, as an expense 
in the year it is detennined. 

The Tn1stees of the Fund are required by law and by its trust deed to act in the interest of the Fund and of all relevant stakeholders in the 
schen1e. The Tn1stees of the Fund are responsible for the invest1nent policy with regard to the assets of the Fund. 

The Co111pany's contributions paid I payable during the year towards Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund are charged to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss or debited to the project costs every year. These funds and the sche1nes thereunder are recognised by the Income-tax authorities 
and ad1ninistered by trusts. 

The details of provident fund and plan asset position are given below: 

Particulars 

Plan assets as period end 

Present value of funded ubligation 

Amount recognised in Balance sheet 

31-Mnr-20 

36.40 

35.65 

("tin crorcs) 

Jl-Mar-19 

37.81 

36.60 

Assu1nptions used in detennining present value of obligation of interest rate guarantee under a deterministic approach: 

Particulars 31-;'.War-20 31-Mar-19 

Guaranteed rate ofreturn 8.5ou;,, 8.65% 

Discount rate for remaining term to maturity of investlnents 5.55°/o 7.31% 

Expected rate of return on investments 8.50°/o 8.40% 

C Compensated absences 

The leave obligations cover the Co111pany's liability for sick and eaiued leave. The leave obligation is co1nputed by actuary who gives a 
bifurcation for current and non-current. 

a) Changes in Present Value of Obligation: 

Particulars 

Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning 

Interest Cost 

Service Cost 

Bendits Paid 

Actuarial (Gain) I Ll:Jss on obligations 

Past Service Cost 

Present Value of Obligation as at the end 

(~in crorcs) 

Compensated absences 

For the Year For the Year 
Ended Ended 

31 :\1arch 2020 31 March 2019 

5.90 

OA2 

2.55 

(1.55) 

0.43 

(3.25) 

4.50 

13.08 

0.99 

0.66 

(8.89) 

(0.82) 

0.88 

5.90 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2020 

32 Employee Benefits (Continued) 

C Compensated absences (Continued) 

b) Bifurcation of Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the year: 
(tin crores) 

Particlllars Compensated absences 

For the Year For the Year 
Ended Ended 

31 lVIarch 2020 31March2019 

Current liability 4.50 5.90 

Non-Cmrent liability 

Present Value of Obligation as at the end 4.50 5.90 

c) Expenses Recognised during the year: 
(~in crores) 

Particulars Compensated absences 

For tl1e Year For the Year 
Ended Ended 

31 iVIarch 2020 31 March2019 

Interest Cost 0.42 0.99 

Service Cost 2.55 0.66 

Actuarial Loss /(Gain) recognised 0.43 (0.82) 

Past Service Cost (3.25) 0.88 

Expenses Recognised during the year 0.15 1.72 

D Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity 
The significant actuarial assu1nptions for were as follows: 

Particulars 

Gratuity 

Discount rate 

Rate of return on plan assets 

Salary growth rate 

Retirement age 

Moitality Rate During employment 

Mortality Rate After employment 

Maximum gratuity payable per person 

Compensated absences 

Discounting Rate 

Retirement Age 

Future Salaiy Rise 

Mortality Table 

Withdrawal Rates 

Post Retirement J\Iedical Benefits aud Pension Liability 

Expected Retwn on plan assets 

Rate of discounting 

Medical cost inflation 

Rate of emploayee turnover 

Mortality Rate During employment 

Mo1tality Rate After employment 

Long term service award scheme 

Discounting Rate 

Retirement Age 

Mortality Table 

Attrition! Witlldrnwal rate (per annum) 

As at 
31 i\Iarch 2020 

5.55% 

7.00"/o 

60 years 

As at 
31 Nfarch 2019 

7.15% 

7.00% 

60 years 

Indian Assured Liv!!s l\ilortality Indfan Assured Lives ,'v[ortality (2006-
(2012-14) 08) 

Indian Assured Lives l\ilortality Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-
(2012-14) 08) 

Unlimited 

5.55"/o 

60 years 

7.00"/o 

L'nlimited 

7.15% 

60 years 

7.00% 

Indian Assured Lives JVIortality Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-
(2012-14) 08) 

23,00"/o 15.00%, 

N.A N.A. 

N.A N.A. 

N.A N.A. 

N.A :-J.A. 

N.A S.A. 

N.A N.A. 

N.A N.A. 

N.A N.A. 

N.A N.A. 

N.A N.A. 
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2020 

32 Employee Benefits (Continued) 

D Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity (Co11tinued) 
Significant actuarial assutnption for the determination of defined obligation are rate of discounting, rate of salary increase and rate of employee 
turnover. The sensitivity analysis below have been detennined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assutnptions occutTing at 
the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. 

Particulars 

Projected benefit obligation on cmrent assumptions 

Delta effect of+ 1 % change in rate of discounting 

Delta effect of -1 % change in rate of discounting 

Delta effect of 1'" 1 % change in rate of salary increase 

Delta effect of -1 % change in rate of salary increase 

Delta effect of+ I% change in rate of employee tun10ver 

Delta effect of - I% change in rate of employee turnover 

Gt·atuity PR.c'VIB L TSA 

31March2020 31 March2019 31 :Vlarch 2020 31March20l9 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 

7.35 6.79 

(0.30) (0.33) 

0.32 0.36 

0.31 0.31 

(0.29) (0.29) 

(0.03) (0.05) 

0.03 0.01 

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the 
change in assutnptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assutnptions inay be correlated. Furthennore, in presenting the 
above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit inethod at the 
end of the reporting period, which is the satne as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the Balance 
Sheet. 
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Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2020 

33 Related Party Transactions 

As per Indian Accounting Standard on "Related Party Disclosures" (Ind AS~24) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
relevant provisions of the Cotnpanies Act, 2013 ("the 2013 Act") are as follows: 

33.l List of Related Parties and Relationships 

Sr. No. Related Party 

Holding Company 
Tata Sons Private Limited 

Subsidiaries (including step down subsidiaries) 

Concept Developers & Leasing Limited (formerly known as Concept Marketing and Advertising Limited) 

Tata Value Homes Limited 

4 Apex Realty Private Limited 
Kriday Realty Private Limited 

6 THDC Management Services Limited {fonnerly known as THDC Facility Management Limited) 

7 Promont Hillside Private Limited 
World-One Development Company Pte. Limited 

World-One (Sri Lanka) Projects Pte. Limited 

10 One Colombo Project (Private) Limited 

11 Smart Value Homes (Boisar) Private Limited 

12 HLT Residency Private Limited 

13 North Bombay Real Estate Private Limited 

14 Synergizers Sustainable Foundation 

15 Technopolis Knowledge Park Limited 

16 Princeton Infrastructure Private Limited (ceased to be a joint venture and is a subsidiary w.e.f. 15.03.2019) 

Joint Ventures (Including step down Joint Ventures) 

17 Ardent Properties Private Limited 

LS Arvind and Smart Value Homes LLP 

l9 Sohna City LLP 

20 Sector 113 Gatevida Developers Private Limited (fonnerly !mown as Lemon Tn:e Land & Developers Private Limited) 
21 Promont Hilltop Private Limited 

22 One Bangalore Luxury Projects LLP 

23 Kolkata-One Excelton Private Limited 

24 Smart Value Homes (Peenya Projer,'t) Private Limited 

25 Smart Value Hornes (New Project) LLP 

26 HL Promoters Private Limited 

27 Landkart Builders Pvt. Ltd. ( w.e.f from 18th July 2019) 

Fellow Subsidiaries with whom transactions are entered 
27 lnfiniti Retail Limited 

28 Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited 

29 Tata Consultancy Services Limited 

30 Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited 

3 L Arrow Infraestate Private Limited 

32 Ecofirst Services Limited 

33 International lnfrabuild Pvt. Ltd. 

34 TRIL lnfopark Limited 

35 Tata Communications Limited 

36 Tata Teleservices Limited 

37 Tata Tclescrvices C:Vlaharashtra) Limited 

Associates of Parent Company with wlrnm transactions are entered 

38 Tata Coffee Ltd. 

39 Voltas Limited 

40 Tata Business Support Services Limited 

41 The Tndian Hotels Company Limited 

42 Tata Global Beverages Limited 

43 Tltan Company Limited 

Joint Ventures of Parent Company with whom transactions are entered 
44 Tata Sky Limited 

Employee Trusts where there is significant Influence 
45 Tata Housing Development Company Ltd- Employees Provident Fund 

46 Tata Housing Development Company Ltd - Employees Group Super Annuation 

47 Tata Housing Develop1'nent Company Ltd- Employees Comprehensive Gratuity Trust 

Key Management Personnel, with whom transactions are entered 
48 San jay Dutt - Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer 

49 Dileep Choksi 

50 S Santhanalcrishnan 

51 Sucheta Shah 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued) 
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33.2 Transactions and balances with related parties: 

Key l\tlanagement Personnel 
a. Transactions 

Particulars 
Managing Director & CEO 
Sale of properties (based on percentage completion method) 
Short-tenn benefits 

Post-employment benefits (PF and Superannuation) 

Othe1's 

Directors Sitting Fees 

(~in crores) 

31 !\'larch 2020 31 March, 2019 

0.32 0.26 

The re1nuneration of tnanaging director & CEO is detennined by the remuneration cotmnittee having regard to the perfonnance of the individual 
and the Group. The same excludes gratuity and cotnpensated absence. 

b. Outstanding Balances - IVIanaging Director & CEO 

Particulars 

Liabilities 

Income received in advance (L'nearned revenue) 

Outstanding Payable - Other Payable 

Outstanding Payable - Remuneration 

2 Related Parties 

(~in crores) 

311\llllrch 2020 31March,2019 

The Group1s material related party lTansactions and outstanding balances are with its joint-ventures with wb.01n the Group routinely enters into 
transactions in the ordinaiy course of business. 

a. Transactions 

Particulars 

(l) EXPENSES 

Receiving of Services 

Holding Company 

Fellow Associates 

Fellow Subsidiaries 

Pul'chase of Materials 

Joint ventures 

Fellow Joint ventures 

Certification Fees 

Fellow subsidiaries 

Fellow Associates 

Insunmce Premium paid 

Fellow subsidiaries 

Repairs and ;vraintenance - Others 
Fellow subsidiaries 

Subsidiaries 

Fellow Associates 

Donation-CSR 

Subsidiaries 

Rent 

Subsidiaries 

Fellow Associates 
Fellow subsidiaries 

Administrative and Other Expenses 

Fellow subsidiaries 

Fellow Associates 

Contribution to Employee Benefit Plans 

Emp\yoee Trust 

Sc!ling Expenses 

Fellow subsidiaries 

Associates 

31 l\larch 2020 

0.11 

0.79 

2.94 

0.01 

0.12 

0.37 

5.07 

1.33 

0.03 

0.45 

0.34 

2.54 

0.17 

1.28 

0.55 

3.98 

0.28 

('!in crores) 

31March,2019 

0.01 

0.08 

0.01 

0.09 

4.50 

1.76 

0.78 

0.68 
2.32 

0.23 

1.78 

3.67 

0.10 
0.25 
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Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued) 
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33.2 Transactions and balances with related parties: (Continued) 

2 Related Parties (Continued) 

a. Transactions (Continued) 

Particulars 

(II) INCOIVIE 

Sale of Services 

Joint ventures 

Sale of Branding Fee 

Joint ventures 

Sale of Development Rights 

Joint ventures 

Sale of Materials 
Joint ventures 

(III) REll\iIBGRSEIVIENT TRANSACTIONS 

Expenses incurred on behalf of Related Party 
Holding Company 
Subsidiaries 

Joint ventures 

Fellow Associates 

Expenses incurred by Related Party on our behalf 
Subsidiaries 
Fellow subsidiaries (reimbursement of remuneration of managing director) 

Joint ventures 

(IV) OTHER INCOiVIE 
Interest Income on Loan and Inter Corporate Deposits 
Subsidiaries 

Joint ventures 

Pellow subsidiaries 

Interest Income on Compulsorily Convertible Debentures 
Joint ventures 

Interest Income on Capital Contribution LLP 

Joint ventures 

Interest on Project Management Fees 

Joint ventures 

Guarantee Commission 
Subsidiaries 

Claim Received 
Fellow subsidiaries 

Rent Received 
Fellow subsidiaries 

Other Income 
Fellow Associates 

(V) FINANCE COSTS 

Interest Expense on Inter Corporate Deposits 
Associates 

(VI) I~VESTlVIENTS A.'lD Gl:ARANTEES 
Investment made 
Subsidiaries 

Joint ventures 

(~in crores) 

31 l\ilarch 2020 3 l l\ifarch, 2019 

12.20 10.12 

4.54 2.47 

1.48 0.83 

0.06 

4.81 2, 18 

0.11 0.49 
1.20 2.34 

0.03 

0.00 0.26 

2.94 6.05 

0,62 

84.66 62,03 

111.68 85.75 

8.46 0.21 

13.65 l l.59 

9.96 7.12 

2.59 2.59 

1.50 1.38 

0.28 0.12 

0.35 

0.03 

5.30 7.55 

300.00 

24.93 44.43 
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Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued) 
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33.2 Transactions and balances with related parties: (Continued) 

2 Related Parties (Continued) 

b. Outstandin!! Balances arising from sale/nurchase of goods and services: 

(A) ASSETS 
Purchase of Fixed Assets 

Fellow subsidiaries 
Fellow Associates 

Outstanding Receivables 

Holding Company 
Subsidiaries 
Fellow subsidiaries 
Joint ventures 

Particulars 

Interest accrued on Compulsorily Convertible Debentures 

Joint ventures 

Interest accrued on Capital Contribution 

Joint ventures 

Deposit 

Subsidiaries 
Fellow Associates 

Advances 

Subsidiaries 
Fellow subsidiaries 
Joint ventures 

Prepaid Expenses 
Fe!low subsidiaries 

(B) PAYABLES 

Outstanding Payable 

Holding Company 
Subsidiaries 
Fe!low subsidiaries 
Joint ventures 

Fellow Associates 

Employee Trusts 

(C) PROVISIONS FOR DOL'IlTFUL LOANS 

Subsidiaries 

Joint ventures 

(~in crores) 

31 March 2020 31March,2019 

OAS 
0.80 

43.11 38.30 
3. 16 14.26 

42.15 54.35 

26.29 13.59 

25.61 16.30 

0.30 
1.80 1.80 

13.28 0.52 
0.05 

1.71 2.33 

0.01 0.00 
0.36 1.18 
4.46 6.72 
1.02 0.75 
0.01 2.14 
7.28 5.33 

382.82 102.57 
397.55 98.00 
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33.2 Transactions and balances with related parties: (Continued) 

3 Loans to/from related party 

Pa1·ticulars 
Loans to subsidiaries 

Beginning of the year 

Loan advanced 

Loan repayment received 

Subsidiary converted into Joint Venture 
Joint Venture Converted into Subsidiary 

Interest charged (net ofTDS) 
Interest received 
Forex difference 

End of the year 

Particulars 
Loans to Joint ventures 

Beginning of the year 

Loan advanced 
Loan repayment received 

Joint Venture Converted into Subsidiary 

Subsidiary converted into Joint Venture 

Interest charged (net ofTOS) 

Interest received 

End of the year 

Particulars 

Loans to Fellow subsidiaries 

Beginning of the year 

Loan Given 

Interest charged (net ofTDS) 

Loan repayments 

Interest received 

End of the year 

Particulars 

Loans from Fellow Associates 

Begiuning of the year 

Loan received 

Loan repayments made 

End of the year 

(<in crores} 

311\'Iai·ch 2020 31March,2019 

903.13 607.05 
586.65 762.71 

(390.47) (590.37) 

-
- 102.84 

79.51 57.32 
(22.56) (38.7l) 

2.36 2.30 

1,158.62 903.13 

31 lVIarch 2020 31 March, 2019 

638.13 473.19 
372.26 250.46 

(279.39) (58.79) 

(102.84) 

103.83 78.80 
(0.02) (2.68) 

834.82 638.13 

31 iVIarch 2020 31March,20L9 

140.19 

435,90 !40.00 

(575,90) 0.19 

7.61 
(7.80) 
-0.00 140.19 

31 March 2020 31March,2019 

65.00 50.00 

95.00 65.00 

(160.00) (50.00) 

65.00 
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33.2 Transactions and balances with related parties: (Co11tl11ued) 

4 Significant related party disclosures 

Particulars 

Nature of Transaction 

Insurance premium paid 

Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited 

Repairs and Maintenance· Others 

Tata Consultancy Services Limited 

Contribution to Employee Benefit Plans 

Tata Housing Development Company Ltd - Employees Provident Fund 

Tata Housing Development Company Ltd- Employees Group Super Anmmtion 

Tata Housing Development Company Ltd- Employees Comprehensive Gratuity Trust 

Investment made In Compulsorily Convertible Debentures 

Ardent Properties Private Limited 

Investment made in Limited Liability Partnership 

One Banglore Luxary Project LLP 

Sohna City LLP 

Invl.'stment made in Shares 

Tata Value Homes limited 

Loans and Advances given 

Premont Hillside Plivate Limited 

Kdday Realty Plivate Limited 

Promont Hilltop Plivate Limited 

Princeton Infrastructure Private Limited 

Tata Value Homes Limited 

Sector 113 Gatevida Developers Private Limited 

HL T Residency Private Limited 

Smart Value home (Boisar) Private Limited 

Kolkata-One Exce!ton Private Limited 

Smart Value home (Peenya Project) Private Limited 

Tata Realty & Infrastructure Limited 

International lnfrabuild Pvt. Ltd. 

TRlL Infopark Ltd. 

Landkart Builders Pvt. Ltd, 

Advances repnld 

Kriday Realty Private Limited 

Premont Hilltop Private Limited 

Princeton Infrastructure Private Limited 

K.olkata-One Excelton Private Limited 

Smart Value home (Peenya Project) Private Limited 

Tata Realty & Infrastrncture Limited 

International Infrabuild Pvt. Ltd. 

TRIL Infopark Ltd. 

Landkart Builders Pvt. Ltd. 

31 ;\'larch 2020 31March,2019 

5.07 4.50 

1.27 1.76 

1.79 1.55 

0.24 0.52 

1.95 1.60 

79.99 

22.32 22.55 

2.60 21.88 

300.00 

34.52 35.06 

5.78 38.93 

0.54 20.69 

9.80 37.55 

47.71 636.24 

70.43 96.85 

62.17 33.02 

60.54 17.86 

15.34 93.03 

4.26 3.94 

428.40 140.00 

3.00 

4.50 

69.15 

18.97 35.00 

29.59 5.00 

1.50 

15.50 

165.15 3.09 
568.40 

3.00 

4.50 

69.15 



33.2 Transactions and balances with related parties: (Continued) 

4 Significant related party disclosures (Continued) 

Particulars 

Sale of services 
Ardent Properties Private Limited 

Sector I l3 Oatevida Developers Ptivate Limited 

Promont Hilltop Private Limited 

Interest Income 

Kli<lay Reality Private Ltd 

Sector 113 Oatevida Developers Pvt. Ltd.( Fonnerly known Lemon Tree Land And Developers Private Limited) 

Princeton infrnstructt1re Pvt Ltd. 

Promont Hillside Private limited 

Kolkata One Excelton Pvt Ltd' 

Smart Value Homes (BOISAR) Pvt. Ltd. 

Apex Realty P1ivate Limited 

World One Development Co.Pte Ltd 

Promont Hilltop Pvt Ltd 

Ardent Properties Private Limited 

Smart Value Homes (Peenya Project) Pvt Ltd 
Tata Value Homes limited 
HL T Residency Pvt.Ltd. 
Tata Realty & Infrastmcture Limited 

Issue of Equity Shares 
Tata Sons Ltd 

Interest Expense on Inter Corporate Deposits 
Titan Co. Limited 
TATA Global Beverages Limited 
TATA Coffee Limited 

Guarantee Commission 
One Colombo Project (Pvt.) Ltd. 
Apex Realty Private Limited 

Interest Income on Capital Contribution LLP 
Sohna City LLP 

luterest lucome on Compulsorily Convertible Debentures 
Ardent Pronerties Private Limited 
Figures below'!' 50,000 are denoted by'*'. 

31 !Vlarch 2020 31 ~tarch, 2019 

7.06 8.28 

5.33 4.68 

1.48 0.83 

12.23 10.23 

96.98 62.40 

9.68 9.33 

10.20 7.03 

9.36 8.49 

6.06 1.45 

3.59 10.10 

4.96 4.79 

OM 1.90 

3.59 3.59 

0.24 0.05 
2[.06 23.62 
10.34 4.29 

8.39 0.21 

1,299.09 

0.97 3.90 
1.02 

1.18 2.63 

l.50 1.38 

9.96 7.12 

13.65 11.59 
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued) 
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34 Provision for customer compensation and contingencies for customers claim 

Provision is made for estimated compensation claims to be paid to customers in respect of delay in handing over possession of flats, These 
claims are expected to be settled in the next financial year. Management makes an estimate of the provision based on expected time left for 
delive1y and taldng into consideration past experiences, 

Pnrticutru·s 

Provision outstnnding ns at the beginning of the yeor 

Add: Additions to provisions 

Less: Vti!isation 

Revei·sal (witltdrnwn as no longe1· required) 

Provision for customer comperumtlon 

As nt 

31Mal"ch2020 

4.19 

8.37 

12.56 

As at 
31 Marcl120l9 

4.19 

28.53 

28.53 

(tin crnres) 

Provision for Contingencies for 
cusfomers claim 

Asnt As at 
3 L March 2020 31 March20l9 

8.99 8.99 

14.88 

Prnvision outstanding as nt the end of the year (expected to be incurred within a 
year) --------------------------4 

4.19 23.87 8.99 

35 Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility 

(a) Pnrt!culars 

Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act 

Amollllt paid/spent during the yenr on: 

(i) Constructiowacquisition of any asset 

(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 

Amount yet to be paid: 

(i) Constructio!llocquis'1tion of nny asset 

(ii) On purposes other thnn (i) above 

Total 

('{in crores) 
For the Yeo!' Ended for the Year Ended 

31Mnrcl!2020 3! Ma1·c1120l9 

0.50 0.01 

0.50 0.0! 

(b) Details of related party transactions - Synergizers Sustainable Foundation (a Section 25 company incorporated under the Companies Act, 
1956 controlled by the Company): 
Contributions during the year t>nded 31 March, 2020: ~ 0.45 crores (311-farcb 2019: ~ Nil crores) 
Payable as at 31 March, 2020 - <Nil crores (as at 31 Murch 2019: <Nil crores) 

36 l\tlicro, Small and l\'ledium Enterprises 

Based on the infonnation available with the Company, the balance due to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small 
and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 is< Nil (31 March, 2019: <Nil) and no interest has been paid or is payable 
during the year under the tenns of the MSMED Act, 2006. The information provided by the Company has been relied upon by the auditors. 

Parllctclars 

a. Amounts payable to suppliers under MS MED (suppliers) as on 31 ~larch, 2019 

Prindoal 
!ntcn:st due thereon 

h P"vnrnnto !TTMI~ tn <11nnli'"" h~vnnrl th~ "nnninted 11"v rl11dnu tlw ve:H 
Principal 

Interest due thereon 

c. Arnoun1· of interest due and payable for delay in payment (which have been paid but beyond tl1e appointed day during the 
year) but without adding lhc intere.<:t Linder MS MED 

d. Ammmt of intere.<:t accrned and remaining unpaid as on 31 March. 2020 

e. Amount of interest rnmaining due and pnyoble to suppliers dis allowable as deductible expenditure under Income Tax Act, 
1961 

Allat 

31Mnreh2020 

(<:in crores) 

"'"' 31 March20l9 

37 Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on 28 March 2018 is effective 
from accounting period beginning on or after 1 April 2018 and replaces Ind AS IS the existing revenue recognition standard. The 
application of Ind AS 115 has impacted the Company's accom1ting for recognition of revenue from real estate residential projects. The 
Company's contracts with its customers did not meet the c1iteria for recognisition of revenue over time as per Ind AS 115, accordingly, it 
has reversed the revenue recognised over a petiod of time and has recognisedJwill recognise revenue at a point in time. 

The Company adopted Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial application of I April 2018. 
L'nder this method, the standard can be applied either to all contracts at the date of initial application or only to contracts that are not 
completed at this date. The Company elected to apply the standard to all contracts as at l April 2018. 

The cumulative effect of initially applying Ind AS 115 is recognised at the date of initial application as an ndjustment to the opening 
balance of retained earnings. 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 3 / March 2020 

38 Loans and Investments under Section 186 of the Act 

The details of loans, guarantees and investtnents under Section l86 of the Act read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) 
Rules, 2014 are as follovvs: 

A. Details of investments made by the Group as on 31 March 2020 (including investments made in the previous year) 

Investment In equity shares 

Name of the entity 

Concept Developer & Leasing Limited 

Tata Value Homes Limited 

Apex Realty Private Limited 

Ardent Properties Private Limited 

Kriday Realty Private Limited 

Promont Hillside Private Limited 

Premont Hilltop Private Limited 

Sector 113 Gatevida Developers Private Limited 

World-One Development Company Pte. Limited 

Kolkata-One Excelton Private Limited 

Synergizers Sustainable Foundation 

Princeton Infrastructure Private Limited 

Investment in Preference Shares 
Name of the entity 

Ornate Housing Private Limited 

Investment in Other Non-current investments 
Name of the entity 

One Bangalore Luxury Projects LLP 

Sohna City LLP 

lnvesbnent in Compulsorily Convertible Debentures 
Name of the entity 

Ardent Properties Private Limited 

As at 
31March2020 

0.88 

400.00 

0.06 

40,90 

0.01 

0.01 

44.44 

0.01 

10.90 

0.01 

' 
30.08 

527.30 

As at 
311\'lnrch 2020 

0.05 

As at 
J l l\lllll'Ch 2020 

187.17 

127.19 

314.36 

As at 

31 l\llarch 2020 

79.99 

(tin crores) 

During the year At 
31 March2019 

0.88 

400.00 

0.06 

40.90 

0.01 

0,01 

44.44 

0.01 

10.90 

0.01 

' 
30.08 

527.30 

(Zin crore.s) 

During the year At 
31March20L9 

0.05 

(Zin crores) 

Dunng the year At 
31 March2019 

2l.80 165.37 

2.60 124.59 

24.40 289.96 

(tin crores) 

During the year At 
31 March2019 

79.99 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2020 

38 Loans and Investments under Section 186 of the Act (Continued) 

B. Details of loans given by the Company are as follows : 

Name of the entity (refer note l) 

Standard Fanns Private Limited 

Promont Hillside Private Limited 

Kriday Realty Private Limited 

Promont Hilltop Private Limited 

Princeton Infrastructure Private Limited 

Tata Value Homes limited 

Sector 113 Gatevida Developers Private Limited 

Ardent Properties Private Limited 

Apex Realty Private Limited 

World-One Development Company Pte. Limited** 

HL T Residency Private Limited 

Smart Value home (Boisar) Private Limited 

Kollrnta-One Excelton Private Limited 

Smmt Value home (Peenya Project) Private Limited 

Tata Realty & Infrastructure Limited 

International Infrabuild Pvt. Ltd. 

TRIL Infopark Limited 

Landlcart Builders Pvt. Ltd. 

Note 1: 

Rate of interest 
(p.a.) 

l8% 

9% 

9% 

12% 

9% 

9% 

18% 

10% 

12% 

9% 

9% 

9% 

12% 

12% 

9% 

9% 

9% 

9% 

Purpose of utilization of loan given to the entities - General purpose loan 

C. Details of Corporate Guarantee given by the Company are as follows 

Name of the entity 

One colombo Project Private Limited (L'S$ 79.50 Mn)** 

Promont Hillside Private Limited 

**The dHirence is due to exchange gain/loss 

As at 
31 ~larch 2020 

24AO 

121.47 

125.36 

3.75 

157.35 

232.11 

386.76 

44.32 

8'6.40 

55.15 

139.04 

58.42 

78.71 

11.83 

1,525.05 

As at 
311\Iarch 2020 

597 

400 

997 

Loan given during 
the year 

6.15 

34.81 

6.88 

7.57 

66.92 

339.06 

92.62 

8.47 

0.36 

77.27 

61.36 

18.32 

176.13 

428.40 

3.00 

4.50 

69.15 

1,400.97 

During the year 

Loan refonded 
during the year 

18.97 

29.59 

337.00 

2.70 

31.80 

!5.50 

165.15 

568.40 

3.00 

4.50 

69.15 

l,245.76 

(~in cJ"ores) 

At 
31 March2019 

551 

400 

951 

(~in crores) 

At 
31 March2019 

18.24 

86.66 

137.45 

25.77 

90.43 

230.05 

294.14 

35.85 

86.40 

53.18 

64.47 

28.86 

75.89 

0.85 

140.00 

1,368.23 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2020 

39 Assets pledged as Security 

The carrying mnounts of financial and non-financial assets pledged as security for non-cu1Tent and cun·ent boITowings are disclosed below: 

Particulars Refer As at As at 
Note 31:\!larch2020 31 March2019 

(A) Current 

Financial assets 

First charge 

Trade receivables 8(b) 58.47 48.25 

Cash and cash equivalents S(c) 132.03 25.18 

Bank balances other than above S(d) 0.01 
Loans 8(e) 34.71 58 l.79 

Other financial assets 8(fj 84.89 63.92 

Non-financial assets 

First charge 

Inventories 7 3,180.30 3,656.21 

Total current assets pledged as security 3,490.41 4,375.35 

(B) Non-current 

Financial assets 

First charge 

Investments 4(a) 702.35 796.56 
Loans 4(b) 1,217.15 935.49 

Other financial assets 4(c) 4.28 4.12 

Non financial assets 

Property, plant and equipment 3(a) 0.54 0.54 

Total non-currents assets pledged as security 1,924.32 1,736.71 

Total assets pledged as security 5,414.73 6,112.06 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2020 

40 IND AS 116 Disclosure: 

.Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through Co1npanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Alnend1nent Rules, 2019 and C01npanies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Second Atnendment Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17 leases, and other 
interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, 1neasure1nent, presentation and disclos1ire of leases for both lessees and lessors. It 
introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting 1nodel for lessees. 

All of the Company leases at I April 2019 were either cancelfoble or shoti tenn or had a remaining period of less than one year fro1n that elate. Accordingly, 
the transition to Ind AS 116 did not have any i1npact on the financial .state1nents of the Co1npany as at that elate. 

Company as a Lessor: 
The C01npany has no assets that are given out on lease and hence has no there is no impact in the current financial year. 

Company as a Lessee: 

A) Breakdown of lease expenses 

Partlcm1rs 

Short-tenn lease expense 

Low value lease expense 

Total lease expense 

B) Maturity analysis 
Particulars 

31 M11rch 2020 

Lease liabilities 

Repayment of lease liabilities 

Interest on lease liabilities 

Total 

31 i\ifarch 2019 

Lease liabilities 

Repayment of lease liabilities 

Interest on lease liabilities 

Total 

31 March, 202-0 

5.46 

5.46 

Less than 
l year 

0.47 

0.53 

1.00 

(~in crores) 

31 lVIarch, 2019 

9.07 

9.07 

Between I and 2 years 

0.51 

0.49 

LOO 

2 and S years 

2.04 

1.18 

3.22 

(~in crores) 

Over S years \Veighted average 
effective interest 

rate o/o 

3.71 8.25% 

0.58 8.25% 

4.29 



41 The World Health Organisation (WHO) declared the outbreak of Coronavin1s Disease (COVID4 19) as a global pandemic on March 11, 2020. Consequent to 
this, Government of India declared a nation wide lockdown on March 25, 2020 and the Co1npany suspended the operations in all of its ongoing projects. The 
lockdown has hnpacted the nonnal business operations of the Cotnpany inter alia by interrupting project execution, supply chain disruption and 
unavailability of personnel . 

The Co1npany has n1ade detailed assess1nent of its liquidily position for the next year and the recoverability and carrying value of its assets co1nprising 
investlnents, invento1y, advances, trade receivables, deferred taxes, other financial and non~financial assets. Based on current indicators of future econo1nic 
conditions, business operations and consequently den1and for its residential units are expected to be at significantly curtailed level at least during the year 
ending 31 i'v[arch 2021. 

While the Co1npany has 1nade the necessary provisions in the financial state1nents and expects to recover tl1e carrying amount of its assets, it has also made 
necessaiy arrange1nents to tneet its liquidity needs (See Note l {b)) and service its debt obligation. 
The actual itnpact of the global health pande1nic 1nay be different fro1n that which has been estitnated, as the COVID 4 19 situation evolves in India and 

globally. The Co1npany will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions. 

In tenns of our report attached. 

ForBSR&Co.LLP 

Chartered accountants 

Finn's Registration No: 101248WIW4 100022 

Himanshu Chapsey 
Partner 

Membership No: 105731 

Place: Mu1nbai 

Date: July 03,2020 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

CIN: U45300MHl942PLC003573 

~l\AA,~Ag~ 
Director :ra,~la ·-.... 

DIN: 00120029 

~),y 
~Jena 
Chief Financial Officer 

DIN No: 06928529 

Place: Mu1nbai 

Date: July 03,2020 

Sanjay Dutt 
Managing Director 

DIN No: 05251670 

~~ 
Rites'h Kamdar 

Company Secretary 

Me1nbership No: A20154 



BS R & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

14th floor, Central Wing, Tovv(lr 4, 
NC$CO Center, Wostorn Express H~gtwvay, 
Goregaon (Eastl, Mumbai~ 400 003, India 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Telephone: +91 {2216257 100C 
Fax: +91 i2:Zl 6267 10iC 

To the Members of Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tata Housing Development Company Limited 
(hereinafter referred to as the 'Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its 
subsidiaries are hereinafter together refeITed to as "the Group") and its joint ventures, which comprise the 
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss 
(including other comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory infonnation (hereinafter 
referred to as "the consolidated financial statements"). 

In onr opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the 
possible effects of the matter des~cribed in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of onr report, and based on 
the consideration of reports of other auditors on the separate fmancial statements of such subsidiaries and 
joint ventures as were audited by the other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair 
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of 
affairs of the Group and its joint ventures as at 31 March 2020, of its consolidated loss and other 
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

The consolidated financial statements include the Group's investment in three joint venture accounted for by 
the equity method which are caITied at Rs (233.71) crore on the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 
2020 and the Group's share of the aforesaid joint ventures' net loss (and other comprehensive income) of Rs 
233.85 crore which is included in the Group's consolidated loss for the year ended 31 March 2020, which are 
based on the unaudited financial statements of such joint venture. Consequently, we were unable to obtain 
sufficient appropriate audit evidence and were unable to determine whether any adjustments to these amounts 
were necessary. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) 
of the Act. Onr responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of onr report. We are independent of the Group, its 
and its joint ventures in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled onr other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us 
along with the consideration ofaudit reports of the other auditors referred to in sub paragraph (a) of the "Other 
Matters" paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements. 

~ ..• 
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BSR&Co.LLP 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued) 

To the Members of Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Emphasis of matters 

We draw attention to Note 44 of the consolidated financial statements, which describes the disagreements between the shareholders of two joint ventures 
of the Group. These relate to positions taken by the respective shareholders on the specific provisions and obligations of the aforesaid joint ventures under 
the respective Share Subscription and Shareholder Agreements ("SSA") which are not in alignment, that has led to an Enforcement Event under the SSA. 
The matters are under discussion between the joint venture partners and management believes that this would not have any material impact on the 
consolidated financial statements. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

We also draw your attention to the following emphasis of matter paragraphs which were included in the audit opinions of the standalone financial statements 
of subsidiaries and joint ventures listed below issued by independent firms of Chartered Accountants and are reproduced by us as under: 

Name of the entity Audit report 
date 

Subsidiary 
Promont Hillside 19 June 2020 
Private Limited 

Apex Realty Private 
Limited (Maldives) 

Joint Ven tu re 
Arvind and Smart 
Value Homes LLP 

~ 

6November 
2020 

20 July 2020 

Emphasis of matter 

We draw attention to Note No. 30 (reproduced as Note 43 of these consolidated fmancial statements) of the 
financial statements, which states that provision of Rs. 1.12 crore for impairment in the value of the Work-in­
progress is based on report of independent professional valuer. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this 
matter. 

We draw attention to note 17.2 (reproduced as Note 43 of these consolidated financial statements) to the 
fmancial statements on the consequences the Company may experience, should the award from arbitration I 
legal proceedings be unfavorable to the Company, and in particular to the intangible asset of Rs 14.96 crore 
(MVR 31,093, 106/-) recorded in the fmancial statements is likely to be impaired. 

We draw attention to Note No. 33 (reproduced as Note 43 of these consolidated financial statements) of the 
fmancial statements, which states that despite the delay in sales of unsold inventory, there is no need for 
provision for impairment in the carrying value of finished goods of Rs 19.71 crore for the reasons stated 
therein. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

2 



BSR&Co.LLP 

Name of the entity Audit report 
date 

Emphasis of matter 

Smart Value Homes 
(New Project) 
Private Limited 

30 July 2020 We draw attention to Note 19 (reproduced as Note 43 of these consolidated financial statements) of Financial 
statement which states the Deed of settlement relating to exit of one of the partners is yet to be finalised, 
pending which WIP is carried forward at cost without impairment, if any. Our opinion is not modified in 
respect of this matter. 

Our audit report on the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company is not modified in respect of the aforesaid matters. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most signifipance in our audit of the consolidated fmancial statements of the 
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

D fKev Audit M: 
Revenue Recognition 
See note 18 to the consolidated financial statements 

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 
Revenues from sale of residential units aggregating Rs. 894.56 crore Our audit procedures on Revenue recognition included the following: 
represents the largest portion of the total revenues of the Company. 

- Evaluating the Company's revenue recognition accounting 
In accordance with Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, the policies, their application to the customer contracts including 
analysis of whether these contracts comprise of one or more performance consistent application vis a vis the requirements of the applicable 
obligations, and whether the performance obligations are satisfied over time accounting standards; 
or at a point in time, are areas requiring critical judgement by the Company. - Identification and testing the operating effectiveness of key 
Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control ofresidential and commercial controls over existence and recording of revenue recognised for 
units to customers for an amount that reflects the consideration which the the projects; 
Company expects to receive in exchange for those units and the customer has - Evaluating the criteria applied by the Company for determining 
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the asset. the point in time at which revenue is recognised; 

- agreeing the amount of revenue recognised with the underlying 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received/ accrued. agreements with the customers on the sample basis; and 
Revenue is adjusted for estimated cost pending to be incurred by the company - Test on a sample basis the discounts granted are as per Company 
for the completion of the proiect. nolicies. 

~ 
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BSR&Co. LLP 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued) 

To the Members of Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Key Audit Matters (continued) 

Deferred Tax Assets 
See note 7 to the consolidated financial statements 

The kev audit matter 
The carrying amount of the deferred tax assets is Rs. 80.89 crores as 
at 31 March 2020. 

Recognition and measurement of deferred tax assets 
The Company has deferred tax assets in respect of brought forward 
losses and other temporary differences, as set out in note 7 
The recognition of deferred tax assets involves judgment regarding the 
likelihood of the reasonable certainty of realisation of these assets, 
evaluated based on future cashflows for taxable profits in future 
ueriods for recognition of these assets. 

NRV oflnventories 
See note 8 to the consolidated financial statements 

The key audit matter 

How the matter was addressed in our audit 
Our audit procedures included, amongst others: 
- Obtaining an understanding of the process and testing the controls over 
recording of deferred tax and assessment of deferred tax at each reporting date; 
- We tested the computation of the amounts recognized as deferred tax assets; 
- we evaluated Company's assumptions used to determine probability of 
recoverability of deferred tax assets recognized, through taxable income in 
future years, by comparing them against profit trends and future business 
plans; 
- We assessed the disclosures on deferred tax included in Note 7 to the 
financial statements. 

How the matter was addressed in onr audit 
The Company's inventory comprises of ongoing and completed real estate Our audit procedures/ testing included, among others: 
projects, unlaunched projects and development rights. As at 31 March 2020, the - Evaluating the Company's accounting policies for inventory 
carrying values of inventories amounts to 4,626,81 crores. including consistent application vis a vis the requirements of the 
The inventories are carried at the lower of the cost and net realizable value applicable accounting standards; 
('NRV'). The determination of the NRV involves estimates based on prevailing - We evaluated the process, methodology and key assumptions 
market conditions, current prices and expected date of commencement and for determination ofNRV of the inventories; 
completion of the project, the estimated future selling price, cost to complete - We have tested the NRV of the inventories to its carrying value 
projects and selling costs. in books on sample basis. 
Considering significance of the amount of carrying value of inventories in the 
financial statements and the involvement of significant estimation and judgement 
in such assessment ofNRV, the same has been considered as kev audit matter. 

6&? 4 



BSR&Co_ LLP 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued) 

To the Members of Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Key Audit Matters (continued) 

Investment in Joint Venture and loans to Joint Venture companies 
See note 5(a), 5(b) and 5(c) to the consolidated financial statements 

The kev audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 
The Company has significant investments in and loan to its joint Our procedures in assessing the management's judgement for the impairment 
ventures. As at 31 March 2020, the carrying values of assessment included, among others, the following: 
Company's investment in and loan to its joint ventures amounts - We assessed the Company's valuation methodology applied in determining the 
to 1,405.52 Crores. recoverable amount of the investments; 
The Company evaluates regularly for any indicators of - We obtained and read the valuation report used by the management for 
impahment of the investments by reference to the requirements determining the fair valne ('recoverable amount') of its investments; 
under Ind AS 36 "Impairment of Assets". - We considered the independence, competence and objectivity of the management 
For investments where impairment indicators exist, significant specialist involved in determination of valuation; 
judgments are required to determine the key assumptions used - We tested the fair value of the investment as mentioned in the valuation report to 
in the discounted cash flow models, such as revenue growth, unit the carrying value in books; 
price and discount rates. Considering, the impairment - Made inquiries with management to understand key drivers of the cash flow 
assessment involves significant assumptions and judgement, the forecasts, discount rates etc 
same has been considered as key audit matter. - Involved experts to evaluate the assumptions used by the management specialists. 

We read the disclosures made in the financial statements regarding such 
investments. 

~ 
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BS R&Co. LLP 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued) 

To the Members of Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Other Information 

The Holding Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other infmmation. The 
other infonnation comprises the information included in the Holding Company's annual report, but does not 
include the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
consolidated financial statements or our lmowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on the work done/ audit report of other auditors, 
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements 

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and 
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in tenn of the requirements of the Act that give a true 
and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated loss and other comprehensive income, 
consolidated statement of changes in eqnity and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its joint 
ventures in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board 
of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its and joint ventures are responsible for 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the 
assets of each company. and for preventing and detecting frauds and other in-egularities; the selection and 
application of appropriate accouating policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation 
of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and Directors of the Holding Company, as 
aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the Group and of its joint ventures are responsible for assessing the ability of each 
company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accmmting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative hut to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its joint ventures is 
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each company. 

6 



BS R&Co. LLP 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued) 

To the Members of Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Andit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, bnt is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated 
financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 1nisrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial 
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls based on our audit. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of 
accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated fmancial statements or, 
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group 
and its and joint ventw·es to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated fmancial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

7 



BSR&Co. LLP 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued) 

To the Members of Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or business 
activities within the Group and its and joint ventures to express an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial 
information of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the 
independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have 
been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and 
perfo1mance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our 
responsibilities in this regard are further described in para (a) of the section titled 'Other Matters' in this 
audit report. 

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of audit reports of the other 
auditors referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities 
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were 
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matters 

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of thirteen subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total 
assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs.1,676.00 crores as at 31 March 2020, total revenues 
(before consolidation adjustments) of Rs 217.31 crores and net cash outflows (before consolidation 
adjustments) amounting to Rs. 9.83 crores for the year ended on that date, as considered in the 
consolidated fmancial statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the Group's share 
of net loss (and other comprehensive income) of Rs. 51.26 for the year ended 31 March 2020, in respect 
of six joint ventures, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements 
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been fumished to us by the Management and our 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures 
included in respect of these subsidiaries and joint ventures, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of 
Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and joint ventures is based solely 
on the audit reports of the other auditors. 
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BSR&Co.LLP 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued) 

To the Members of Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Other Matters (Continued) 

Certain of these subsidiaries are located outside India whose financial statements and other financial 
information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their 
respective countries and which have been audited by other auditors under generally accepted auditing 
standards applicable in their respective countries. The Company's management has converted the 
financial statements of such subsidiaries located outside India from accounting principles generally 
accepted in their respective countries to accounting principles generally accepted io India. We have 
audited these conversion adjustments made by the Company's management. Our opinion in so far as it 
relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries located outside India is based on the report of other 
auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the Company and audited by us. 

(b) As referred to in our Basis for Qualified Opinion Paragraph, the consolidated financial statements also 
include the Group's share of net loss (and other comprehensive income) of Rs. 233.85 crores for the year 
ended 31 March 2020, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of three joiot 
venture, whose financial statements have not been audited. These unaudited financial statements have 
been furnished to us by Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far 
as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this joiot venture, and our report in terms 
of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaidjoiot venture, is based 
solely on such unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and as referred to in our basis for qualified 
opinion paragraph these joiot venture are material to the consolidated financial statements. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements below, except as referred to in our basis for qualified opinion paragraph is not modified in 
respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration ofreports of the 
other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries and joint ventures as were audited 
by other auditors, as noted in the 'Other Matters' paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

a) We have sought and except for the matter referred to in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, 
obtained all the infonnation and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those 
books and the reports of the other auditors. 

c) The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other 
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated 
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account 
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 

d) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph 
In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
under section 133 of the Act. 
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BSR&Co. LLP 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued) 

To the Members of Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued) 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 
31 March 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports 
of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies and joint ventures incorporated in India, none of 
the directors of the Group companies and its joint ventures incorporated in India is disqualified as on 
31 March 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

t) The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are 
as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above. 

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and joint ventures incorporated in India and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A". 

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other 
auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries and joint ventures, as noted in the 'Other 
Matters' paragraph: 

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 
2020 on the consolidated financial position of the Group and joint ventures. Refer Note 31 to 
the consolidated financial statements. 

ii. The Group and its joint ventures did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2020. 

iii. There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies and joint ventures 
incorporated in India during the year ended 31 March 2020. 

iv. The disclosures in the consolidated financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings 
in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not 
been made in the financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 
March 2020. 
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BSR&Co. LLP 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT(Continued) 

To the Members of Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued) 

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's report under section 197(16): 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the reports 
of the statutory auditors of such subsidiary companies and joint ventures incorporated in India which 
were not audited by us, the remuneration paid during the current year by the Holding Company, its 
subsidiary companies and joint ventures to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director by the Holding Company, its subsidiary 
companies and joint ventures is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required 
to be commented upon by us. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30 December 2020 
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BSR&Co. LLP 

Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' report on the consolidated financial statements of Tata 
Housing Development Company Limited for the period ended 31 March 2020 

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 

Referred to in paragraph A. I) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section 
of our report of even date 

Qualified Opinion 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated fmancial statements of the Company as of and for the year 
ended 31 March 2020, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements of Tata Housing Development Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the 
Holding Company") and such companies incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 2013 which are 
its subsidiary companies and its joint venture companies, as of that date. 

In our opinion, the Holding Company and except for the three joint ventures referred to in our Basis of 
qualified Opinion paragraph, such companies incorporated in India which are its subsidiary companies and 
joint venture companies, have, in all material respects, adequate internal fmancial controls with reference 
to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 
March 2020, based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements 
criteria established by such companies considering the essential components of such internal controls 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit oflnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants oflndia (the "Guidance Note"). 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

The consolidated financial statements include the unaudited financial statements of three joint ventures as 
referred to in our Basis of Qualified Opinion in our Audit Report of Consolidated financial statements. 
Consequently, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the internal financial control over financial reporting in respect of aforesaid joint ventures. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective Company's management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the 
criteria established by the respective Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 
2013 (hereinafter referred to as "the Act"). 



BSR&Co. LLP 

Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' report on the consolidated financial statements of Tata 
Housing Development Company Limited for the period ended 31 March 2020 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our respousibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements based on om audit. We conducted om audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and 
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated fmancial statements. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Om 
audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing 
the risk that a material wealmess exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of the internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors 
of the relevant subsidiary companies and joint venture companies in terms of their reports referred to in the 
Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit 
opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 



BSR&Co. LLP 

Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Annexure A to the ludependent Auditors' report on the consolidated financial statements of Tata 
Housing Development Company Limited for the period ended 31 March 2020 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to consolidated Financial 
Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of coutrols, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of 
the internal fmancial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements 
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies 
or procedures may deteriorate. 

Other Matters 

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the 
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to nine 
subsidiary companies and six joint venture companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is based 
on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date:30 December 2020 
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Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Consolidated Balance Sheet 
as at 31 March 2()20 

(<:'in crores) 

Pal'ticu1ars 

ASSETS 

Non-Current Assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Capital work-ffi-progress 
Goodwill on consolidation 
Intangible assets 
Investment injoint ventures 
Financial assets 

i. lnvestments 
ii. Loans 
iii. Otill:r financial assets 

Deferred lax assets (net) 
Income tax asset(net) 
Other non-cun-ent assets 
Total Non-Current Assets 

Current Assets 
Inventories 
Financial assets 

i. Investments 
ii. Trade receivables 
iii. Cash and cash equivalents 
iv. Bank balauooi other than (iiQ above 
v. Loans 
vi. Other financial assets 

Other current assets 
Totnl Current Assets 

Total Assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 
Equity share !;apital 
Other equity 
Equity altrlbutable to Owncl's of the Parent 
Non Controlling Interest 
Totnl Equity 

LIABILITIES 

Non-Currc11t Li:ibilities 
Financial liabilities 

i. Bonuwings 
ii. Trade payables 

a. Dues of micro and small enterprises 
b. Otill:rs 

iii. Other financial liabilities 
Provisions 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 
Other non-current liabilities 
Total Noi1-Current Liabilities 

Current Llnbllltles 
Financial liabilities 

i. Borrowings 
ii. Trade payables 

a. Dues of micro and small enterprises 
b. Others 

iii. Other financial liabilities 
Ptuvillions 
Other current liabilities 
Current tax liabilities (net) 
Total Current Liabilities 
Total Liabilities 

Total Equity and Lhi.bilities 

Siunmary of significant accounting policies 

Note 

N• 

4 
5(a) 

5(b) 
5(c) 
5(d) 

7 

9(a) 
9(b) 
9(c) 
9(d) 
9(e) 
9(Q 
10 

ll(a) 
l l(b) 

1 l(c) 

12(a) 
12(b) 

12(c) 
13 
7 
14 

15(a) 
15{b) 

15(c) 
16 
17 

2 

As at As at 
31 March 2020 31 March2019 

17.43 11.80 
0.60 
4.96 0.10 

13.62 8.64 
401.14 462.38 

5.29 60.95 
999.09 504.83 

6.47 5.91 
80.89 262.83 

106.22 94.60 
107.83 101.40 

1,743.54 1 513.44 

4,626,81 5,540.57 

95.24 0.24 
155,24 152.47 
159.80 I !6.69 
79.06 62.30 
34,71 441.59 

139.64 69.19 
390.09 243.81 

5,680.59 6,626.86 

7 424.13 8,140.31 

730.15 730.15 
56,36 1,041.68 

786.51 1,771.83 
(21,28) (21.10} 
765,23 I 750.73 

1,233.20 1,589.49 

16,47 19.70 
75.62 39.72 

0.41 
0.28 3.48 

147.05 199.29 
1472.62 1,852.09 

2,094,18 1,447.46 

877.56 999.63 
1,473.49 1,029.29 

39.97 96.44 
697.81 960.83 

3.27 3.84 
5.,186.28 4 537.49 
6 658.90 6,389.58 

7,424.13 8,140.31 

The accompanying notes 1 to 45 arc an integral part ofthc consolidated financial statements 

In terms of our report attached 

ForBSR&Co.LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Finn'sRegilltration No: 101248W/W-100022 

~'::pe2(( 
Partner 
Membership No: 105731 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30 December 20 

llor and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

h 
Tata Ho_uslng Developmc11t Company Limited 

l . A~ CIN: U45300MII1942PLC003573 

f}.,INN'V' I~ . ~ 
Banma anvala Sanjay Dutt 
Direct Manugl_Hg-Dl tor & CEO 
DIN No: 00120029 l>TN-Na· 1670 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30 December 20 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
for tlteyearended 31 Marcil 2020 

(~in crores) 

Particulars 

Revenue from Operations 
Other Income 
Total Income 

EXPENSES 
Construction Costs 
Employee Benefits Expenses 
Finance Costs 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 
Other Expenses 
Total Expenses 

Loss before Impairment of Investment and loans 

hnpainnent of investment in and loans given to subsidiaries and joint ventures 

Loss before tax 

Tax expense 
Current tax 
Deferred tax charge I (credit) 

Loss after tax 

Share of\oss ofjoint ventures 

Loss for the year 

Other Comprehensive lncome/(Loss): 
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss: 
Exchange differences in translating the financial statement of foreign operations 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: 
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 
Income tax relating to these items 

Other Comprehensive Loss for the year, net of tax 
Total Comprehensive Loss for the year 

Income J (Loss) for the year attributable to: 
Owners of the Parent 
Non-controlling interests 

Other Comprehensive Loss for the year attributable to: 
Owners ofthc Parent 
Non-controlling interests 

Total Comprehensive Loss for the year attributable to: 
Owners of the Parent 
Non-controlling interests 

Earnings per Ordinary share: 

Note 
No 

18 
19 

20 
21 
22 
23 
24 

7 

Year Ended 
31 March 2020 

951.46 
184.72 

1136,18 

713.90 
98.09 

299.78 
4.50 

322.11 
1,438.38 

(302.20) 

163.72 

(465.92) 

7.51 
179.12 
186.63 

(652.55) 

(327.30) 

(979.85) 

(5.44) 

(0.24) 
0.03 

(5.65) 
(985.50) 

(981.49) 
1.64 

(979.85) 

(3.83) 
(1.82) 
(5.65) 

(985.32) 
(0.18) 

(985.50) 

•T• TATA 

Year Ended 
31March2019 

1,475.54 
170.29 

1,645.83 

1,014.83 
83.42 

310.56 
6.32 

561.27 
1,976.40 

(330.57) 

57.21 

(387.78) 

4.14 
(51.11) 
(46.97) 

(340.81) 

(103.22) 

(444.03) 

(0.71) 

(0.88) 
0.31 

(1.28) 
(445.31) 

(436.12) 
(7.91) 

(444.03) 

(0.70) 
(0.58) 
(1.28) 

(436.82) 
(8.49) 

(445.31) 

Basic and diluted earnings per share (face value of~ 10/- each) (In~) 32 (13.44) (9.81} 

Summary of significant accounting policies 2 
The accompanying notes I to 46 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 

In tenns of our report attached 

ForBSR&Co,LLP 
Chattered Accountants 
Finn's Registration No: 10 l 248W /W-100022 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Tata Ilouslng Development Company Limited 
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 

~~~(( 
Himanshu Chapsey 
Partner 

WN~: A:::~W~===~~~~J:=JU:t::2s::!an~J~aytDutt 
Director garw~la Mann Director & CEO 

Mc..'111bel'Ship No: 105731 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30 December 20 

DIN No: 00120029 51670 

~~~ 
DIN No: 06928529 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30 December 20 

Company Secretary 
Membership No. A20154 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
for the year ended 31March2020 

(~in crores) 

Particulars 

A. Cash flow from Operating Activities 
Loss before tax 
Adjustments for:-
Depreciation and amortisation expense 
Net Gain on sale of Property, plant and equipment 
Sundry Balances Wtitten-back 
Net unrealised Gain/(Loss) on Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations 
Gain on fair value ofinvesttnent 
Goodwill written off 
Provision for doubtful advances and other receivables 
Ilnpairment of Financial Assets 
Provision for diminution in value of investments 
Interest h1come 
Dividend Income frotn investments ineasured at fair value through profit and loss 
Gain on sale of culrent investtnents 
Provision for foreseeable loss on invent01y 
Impainnent of Inventoties 
Provision for Contingencies for custotner claitn 
Provision for Custo1ner Compensation 
Finance Costs 
Operating (Loss)/Profit before Working Capital Changes 

Adjustments for changes in working capital:­
Increase in lrade receivables 
Decrease in Inventories 
(lncrease)/Decrease in Other financial assets,Other non-cunent assets and other cunent assets 
Decrease in trade payables, Other financial liabilities, Other liabilities and provisions 
Cash generated from Operating Activities 
Direct Taxes Paid (net) 
Net Cash flows generated from Operating Activities 

B. Cash flow from Investing Activities 
Purchase of Property, plant and equiptnent (including Capital work-in-progress) 
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equip1nent 
Purchase of Investments 
Proceeds on Sale of cunent investments 
Loans granted 
Repaytncnt of Loans granted 
Fixed Deposit 
Interest received 
Dividend received 
Net Cash flows used in Investing Activities 

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities 
Shate Capital issued (including Securities Premium) 
Proceeds from borrowings 
Repayinent of borrowings 
Net increase /(decrease) in working capital borrowings 
Inter Corporate Deposits accepted 
Inter Corporate Deposits repaid 
Repayment of principal portion of lease liability 
Finance Costs paid 
Net Cash flow generated from Financing Activities 

Net increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A)+ (B) + (C) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve on consolidation 

Add: Acquisition of Subsidia1y Pl'inceton Infraslructurc Private Li1nited (w.e.f. 15.03.2019) 
Add: Effect of exchange differences on restatement of foreign currency cash and bank balances 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 

A 

B 

c 

.. r ... 
TAT.I\ 

31 March 2020 31 March2019 

(465,92) (387.78) 

4.50 6.32 
O.QI (0.09) 

(6.54) 
5.27 (7.96) 

68.36 29.52 
25.58 

31.55 34.95 
69.89 27.69 
25.47 

(172.87) (124.53) 
(0.01) (0.07) 
(0,86) (1.64) 

2.81 
88.57 248.16 
15.93 7.52 

4.19 
299.57 310.56 
(37.08) 175.24 

(325.83) (564.26) 
801.94 241.45 

(209.06) 335.04 
(135.19) (42.66) 

94.78 144.81 
(19.89) (29.08) 
74.89 115.73 

(8.99) (4.87) 
0.09 0.60 

(99.45) (44.38) 
0.86 1.64 

(922.97) (329.21) 
855.29 65.80 
(17.19) (1.85) 
33.81 25.28 

0.01 O.Q7 
{158.54) (286.93) 

1,299.08 
4,208.44 4,523.91 

(4,308.09) (4,649.38) 
639.11 (457.27) 
205.00 25.00 

(270.00) (188.88) 
(0.05) 

(342.21) (360.32) 
132.20 192.14 

48.55 20.94 

116.69 96.25 

(5.44) (2.65) 

0.21 
1.94 

159.80 116.69 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
for the year ended 31March2020 

Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2020 

(~in crores) 

Notes: 

G 
TATA 

(i) The accompanying notes 1to46 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 

(ii) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Accounting Standard (IND AS) 7 - 1'Cash Flow Staten1ent". 

Debt reconciliation statement in accordance with INDAS 7 

Opening Balances 
Long term borrowings 
Short Tenn Borrowings 

Changes- as per Statement of Cash Flow 
Long tenu borrowings 
Short Tenn Borrowings 

Non cash changes 
Changes from loosing control of subsidiary 
Accrued Interest 

Closing Balances 
Long tenn botrowings 
Short Tenn Borrowings 

In terms of our report attached 

ForB S R&Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Finn's Registration No: 101248W/W~100022 

Hitnanshu Chapsey 
Partner 
Metnbership No: 10573 l 

Place: Mmnbai 
Date: 30 Dece1nber 20 

31March2020 31 March 2019 

2,288.71 
1,447.46 

(165.51) 
646.72 

2,123.20 
2,094.18 

2,015.52 
2,324.28 

273.19 
(876.82) 

2,288.71 
1,447.46 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Tata Housing Development Company Linlited 

CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 

l (/v'-\ IMUl~ Ba~·m ~~ 
Direc o 
DIN · 00120029 

Place: Mmnbai 
Date: 30 December 20 

Sanjay Dutt 
Managing Director & CEO 

~ 
~ , Ritesb Kamdar 

Company Secretary 
Membership No. A20154 
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('!'in crores) 

A) Equity Share Capital 

As~ I April, 2018 

Change; in equity share capital during the year 

Asat31 M'.an:h, 2019 

Changes in cqu!t.y share capital during they<'!M 

·As at 31 Mardi, 2020 

B) Other E_auity 

Particulars 

Balance as at 1 April, 2013 

AcljustableonadoptionoflndAS 115, (netoftax) (refernote25) 

Loss for the year 

Other comprehensive im:omel(loss) for the year 

Remcasureme:nts ofpost-cnploymeot benefit obligations(net ofllll<es) 

Security prernimn on il&le of share capital during the year 

Total comprehensive inoome for tile year 

Tramfu fi'om Retained ea~ 

Balance as at31Mardi,2019 

Balance as at l April, 2019 

Loss fur the year 

Other cumprehensive incumel(bi~ fur the year 
Remeasiirements ofpost-employm::nt benefit obligations 

Total coroprehensive iooome/(loss) for tile year 

TiaDsfer fi'om Retallled earning'! 

Balance as at 31 March, 2020 

Note No 

ll(a) 

ll(a) 

Note No 

ll(b) 

(tin erores) 

Amollillll ,,,,, 
32<77 

730.15 

730.15 

Securities 
premium account 

806.74 

974.31 

974.31 

1,781.05 

1,n1.os 

1,781.05 

The accompanying notes I to 46 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 

In terms of our report attached 

ForBSR&Co.LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No: 101248W!W-I00022 

~4"'-,,, 
Himanshu chjSey ~~ 
Port= 
Membership No: 105731 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30 December 20 

Debenture 
redemption 

reserve 

199.79 

199.79 

199.79 

199.79 

AttnDutable to owners of the Parent 

Reserves and snrphis 

TSl!;!! Conmreben~iv~ Inrome 

Q!;ber Coml!rebensive 

""""' """"' Capital Con>~ "'""'"" Foreign Currency ''"' ~· Redemp1ion '~' earnings Translation Reserve on 
Reserve comOJidation 

23.41 0.02 1.46 (105.45) 0.90 (104.55) 

(422.68) (422.68) 
(436.12) (436.12) 

(0.13) (0.13) 

(0.57) (0.57) 

- (859.37) (0.13) (859.SO) 

23.41 OJ)2 l.46 (964.82) 0.77 (964.0S) 

23.41 0.02 IA6 (964.82) o.n (964.05) 

(981.49) (981.49) 

(3.62) (3.62) 

(0.21) (0.21) 

(981.70) (3.62) (985.32) 

l3A1 0.02 I." """'"'~ 
(2.85) (1,949.37) 

~~,~~~ 
Banmali Agarwala 
Director 
DIN No: 00120029 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30 December 20 

""' Non C0ntrolling ''"' attn1Hrtable to Im°""' 
OwnersQfthe Parent 

926.87 (12.61) 91426 

(422.68) (422..68) 

(436.12) (7.91) (444.03) 

(0.13) (0.58) (0.71) 

(0.57) (0.57) 

97431 97431 

114.81 (8.49) 106.32 

1,041.68 (21.10) 1,020.58 

1,041.68 {21.10) I."'.58 
(981.49) .... (979.85) 

Q.6') (l.82) (5.44) 

(0.21) (0.21) 

(98532) (0.18) (985.50) 

56.36 (21.28) 35.08 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Tata Housing DevelC!Jment Company Limited 
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 

:---.-.::;=~u.:tl-
SanjayDutt 

Managing Direetor & CEO 

~ 
< Ritali Kimdar 

t Company Secretary 

Membership No. A20154 
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 
(Currency in Indian Rupees) 

Background 

(~in crores) 

Tata Housing Development Company Limited ("the Parent"), its subsidiaries (collectively called as the 
"Group") and joint ventures has main interest in development of real estate. The Group and its joint ventures 
are one of the first corporate players in India in the real estate sector. Since 1984, it has constructed various 
prestigious residential buildings/complexes, luxury residences, commercial complexes and integrated 
townships. The Group and its joint ventures develop real estate and key activities of the Group and its joint 
ventures include identification of land, project conceptualising and designing, development, management 
and marketing. 

1. Basis of Preparation 

a. Statement of Compliance with Ind AS 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act. The accounting policies 
followed in the preparation of these financials statements are the same as those of the previous year 
except for the adoption of Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the existing lease ?tandard, Ind AS 17 
leases, and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, on-balance 
sheet lease accounting model for lessees. 

All of the Group and its joint ventures leases at 1 April 2019 were either cancellable or short term or had 
a remaining period of less than one year from that date. Accordingly, the transition to Ind AS 116 did not 
have any impact on the financial statements of the Company as at that date 

b. Historical cost convention 

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, 
except for certain items that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies. 

c. Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 

i. Subsidiaries 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Parent and entities 
(including structured entities) controlled by the Parent and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the 
Parent: 

• has power over the investee; 
• is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and 
• has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. 

The Parent reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that 
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above. 

When the Parent has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee 
when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the 
investee unilaterally. The Parent considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or 
not the Parent's voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including: 

• the size of the Parent's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings 
of the other vote holders; 
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• potential voting rights held by the Parent, other vote holders or other parties; 
• rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and 

('{ in crores) 

• any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Parent has, or does not have, the 
current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, 
including voting patterns at previous shareholders' meetings .. 

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Parent obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases 
when the Parent loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary 
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
from the date the Parent gains control until the date when the Parent ceases to control the subsidiary . 

. Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the 
Parent and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to 
the owners of the Parent and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling 
interests having a deficit balance. The Group and its joint ventures present the non-controlling interest in 
the Consolidated Balance Sheet within equity, separately from the equity of the Group and its joint 
ventures as owners. The excess of the Group and its joint venture's share in the net worth of the 
subsidiary on the date of control acquired is treated as goodwill while a deficit is considered as a capital 
reserve on the consolidated financial statement. 

On disposal of the subsidiary, attributable amount on goodwill is included in the determination of the profit 
or loss and recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Impairment loss, if any, to the extent the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is charged off 
to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as it arises and is not reversed. For impairment testing, 
goodwill is allocated to Cash Generating Unit (CGU). 

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their 
accounting policies into line with the Group and its joint venture's accounting policies. 

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions 
between members of the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated in full on consolidation. 

ii. Investments in joint ventures 

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have 
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control 
of an arrangement, which exists only when decision about the relevant activities require unanimous 
consent of the parties sharing control. 

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial 
statement using equity method of accounting. Under the equity method of accounting, the investment in 
a joint venture is initially recognised in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at cost and adjusted thereafter to 
recognise the Group and its joint venture's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and other 
comprehensive income of the joint venture. Dividends received or receivable froni a joint venture reduces 
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group and its joint venture's share of a joint venture 
exceed Group and its joint venture's interest in the joint venture (which includes any long term interest 
that, in substance, form part of the Group and its joint venture's net investment in the joint venture), the 
Group and its joint ventures discontinue recognizing its share of further losses. Additional losses are 
recognised only to the extent that the Group and its joint ventures have incurred legal or constructive 
obligation or made payments on behalf of the joint venture. 

The Group and its joint ventures discontinue the use of equity method from the date when the investment 
ceases to be a joint venture. 

When a Group and its joint ventures entity transact with a joint venture of the Group and its joint ventures, 
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the joint venture are recognised in the consolidated 
financial statements only to the extent of interest in the joint venture that are not related to the Group and 
its joint ventures. 
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d. Critical estimates and judgements 

(~ in crores) 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires 
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures as at date of the consolidated 
financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and expenses for the years presented. 
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are 
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and 
conditions. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that 
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future 
periods. 

Critical Judgements 
In the process of applying the Group and its joint venture's accounting policies, management has made 
the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the 
consolidated financial statements: 

i. Discount rate used to determine the carrying amount of the Group and its joint venture's defined 
benefit obligation: 

In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated, the management considers the interest 
rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit 
obligation. 

ii. Contingences and commitments 
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigations and other claims against 
the Group and its joint ventures. Where the potential liabilities have a low probability of crystallising or 
are very difficult to quantify reliably, the Group and its joint ventures treat them as contingent liabilities. 
Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the consolidated financial statements. 
Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings, the Group and 
its joint ventures do not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on financial position or 
profitability. 

iii. Consolidation decisions and classification of joint ventures 

A. Consolidation of entities as subsidiaries with 50% voting rights 

The management has concluded that the Group and its joint ventures control Technopolis Knowledge 
Park Limited (TKPL), even though it holds only 50% of the voting rights of this subsidiary. 
This is because the Group and its joint ventures have control of composition of the Board of Directors 
of TKPL. The Shareholder's agreement grants the right of casting vote to the chairman of Board, 
appointed by the Parent. This gives the Group and its joint ventures the ability to direct relevant 
activities of TKPL proving that the Group and its joint ventures have control over TKPL. 

B. Classification of joint ventures 

The below entities are limited liability entities whose legal form confers separation between the parties 
to the joint arrangement and the Group and its joint ventures itself. Furthermore, there is no 
contractual arrangement or any other facts and circumstances that indicate that the parties to the 
joint arrangement have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of the joint arrangement. 

Accordingly, these entities are classified as joint ventures of the Group. 

1. Sector 113 Gatevida Developers Private Limited (formerly known as Lemon Tree Land & 
Developers Private Limited) 
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2. Promont Hilltop Private Limited 
3. Smart Value Homes (Peenya project) Private Limited 
4. Kolkata-one Excelton Private Limited 
5. HL Promoters Private Limited 
6. Smart Value Homes (New Project) LLP 
7. One Bangalore Luxury Projects LLP 
8. Ardent Properties Private Limited 

(~ in crores) 

The assessment of control is made since the remaining share in the respective entities is held by one 
unrelated partner. Also, that in case of these entities, neither of the parties have the practical ability 
to direct the relevant activities unilaterally as relevant activities require consent of both parties. Hence 
the management has concluded that the Group and its joint ventures do not have unilateral control 
over these entities. 

e. Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end 
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below: 

i. Use of percentage completion method to recognise revenue and cost of sales 
The Group and its joint ventures use the percentage of completion method to recognise revenue and cost 
of sales in respect of real estate development projects. Use of percentage completion method requires 
management to estimate the cost of completion of real estate development projects at each reporting 
period end. Any change in the estimated cost of completion of real estate development projects will impact · 
the percentage of completion which in turn will impact the amount of revenue and cost of sales recognised 
in the period of such change. 

ii. Goodwill impairment 
Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis and whenever there is an indication that the 
recoverable amount of a cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount based on a number of 
factors including operating results, business plans, future cash flows and economic conditions. The 
recoverable amount of cash generating units is determined based on higher of value-in-use and fair value 
less cost to sell. The goodwill impairment test is performed at the level of the cash-generating unit or 
groups of cash-generating units which are benefitting from the synergies of the acquisition and which 
represent the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. 
Market related information and estimates are used to determine the recoverable amount. Key 
assumptions on which management has based its determination of recoverable amount include 
estimated long term growth rates, weighted average cost of capital and estimated operating margins. 
Cash flow projections take into account past experience and represent management's best estimate 
about future developments. 

iii. Impairment for doubtful recoverable, advances and financial assets 
The Group and its joint ventures make impairment for doubtful recoverable, advances and financial assets 
based on an assessment of the recoverability. The identification of doubtful debts requires use of 
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference 
will impact the carrying value of the other receivables and advances and impairment expenses in the 
period in which such estimate has been changed. · 

iv. Valuation of deferred tax assets 
The Group and its joint ventures review the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each 
reporting period. The policy for the same has been explained under note 2(f). 

v. Provision for customer compensation 
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(~ in crores) 

Provision is made for estimated compensation claims to be paid to customers in respect of delay in 
handing over possession of flats. These claims are expected to be settled in the next financial year. 
Management makes an estimate of the provision based on expected time of delivery and taking into 
consideration past experiences. 

vi. Provision for foreseeable loss on inventory 
Provision is made for estimated foreseeable loss on inventory. Management makes an estimate of the 
provision based on expected realisation from inventory taking into consideration past experiences. 

f. Standard issued but not effective 

In addition to the above, the following amendments to existing standards have been issued, are not yet 
effective and are not expected to have a significant impact on the Group's financial statements: 

- Amendments to Ind AS 103, Business Combinations, and Ind AS 111, Joint Arrangements: This 
interpretation clarifies how an entity accounts for increasing its interest in a joint operation that meets the 
definition of a business. 

- Amendments to Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments: amendments relating to the classification of 
particular prepayable financial assets. 

- Amendments to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes, clarify that all income tax consequences of dividends 
(including payments on financial instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with the 
transactions that generated the distributable profits - i.e. in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or 
equity. Further Appendix C, uncertainty over income tax treatments has been added to clarify how entities 
should reflect uncertainties over income tax treatments, in particular when assessing the outcome a tax 
authority might reach with full knowledge and information if it were to make an examination. 

'- Amendment to Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits - The amendment to Ind AS 19 clarifies that on 
amendment, curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan, the current service cost and net interest 
for the remainder of the annual reporting period are calculated using updated actuarial assumptions - i.e. 
consistent with the calculation of a gain or loss on the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement. This 
amendment also clarifies that an entity first determines any past service cost, or a gain or loss on 
settlement, without considering the effect of the asset ceiling. This amount is recognized in profit or loss. 
The entity then determines the effect of the asset ceiling after plan amendment, curtailment or settlement. 
Any change in that effect is recognized in other comprehensive income (except for amounts included in 
net interest). 

- Amendments to Ind AS 23, Borrowing Costs, clarify that the general borrowings pool used to calculate 
eligible borrowing costs excludes only borrowings that specifically finance qualifying assets that are still 
under development or construction. 

- Amendments to Ind AS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: When applying the equity 
method, a non-investment entity that has an interest in an investment entity associate or joint venture can 
elect to retain the fair value accounting applied by the associate or joint venture to its subsidiaries. Venture 
capital and other qualifying organizations can elect to measure investments in associates or joint ventures 
at fair value through profit or loss instead of applying the equity method. The amendments clarify that 
both these elections apply for each investment entity associate or joint venture separately. 
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2. Significant accounting policies 

(~ in crores) 

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years 
presented, unless otherwise stated. 

a. Segment Reoorting 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") of the Group and its joint ventures. The CODM, who is responsible 
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as 
the Managing Director & CEO of the Parent Group. 

b. Foreign Currency Transactions 

i. Functional and presentation currency 

Items included in financial statements of each of the Group and its joint venture's entities are measured 
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates ("functional 
currency"). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the 
functional and presentation currency of the Parent. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest 
crores, unless otherwise indicated. 

ii. Transactions and balances 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at 
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such 
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit 
and Loss. A monetary item for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable 
future is considered as a part of the entity's net investment in that foreign operation. 

For the preparation of the consolidated financial statements: 

a) Assets and liabilities of foreign operations, together with goodwill and fair value adjustments 
assumed on acquisition thereof, are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the reporting 
period end; 

b) Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates prevailing during the 
period; when exchange rates fluctuate significantly the rates prevailing on the transaction date 
are used instead. 

Differences arising on such translation are accumulated in foreign currency translation reserve and 
attributed to non-controlling interests proportionately. 

On the disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect 
of that operation attributable to the owners of the Group and its joint ventures are reclassified to the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. In relation to a partial disposal, that does not result in 
losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate exchange differences accumulated in equity is 
reclassified to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 

c. Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and are net of 
cancellations, value added taxes, service tax, GST, other applicable taxes and amount collected on behalf 
of third parties. 
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i. Revenue from real estate development projects 

('I' in crores) 

The Group undertakes housing and commercial project development business. The ongoing 
contracts with customers are for development of residential & commercial buildings. 

Revenue from contracts with customers 

The Group enters into contracts with customers to sell property that are either completed or under 
development. 
The sale of completed property constitutes a single performance obligation and the Group 
recognizes revenue when the same has been satisfied. 

Group recognise revenue when the below mentioned conditions get satisfied; 

occupancy certificate for the project is received by the Company 

possession is either taken by the customer or offer letter for possession along with the invoice 
for the full amount of consideration is issued to the customer 

substantial consideration has been received and the Company is reasonably certain that 
the remaining consideration will flow to the entity. 

there are no legal claims/ complains been made by the customer 

ii. Project Management/Marketing fees 
Revenue from project management/marketing services is recognised in the accounting period in 
which services are rendered in accordance with the substance of the agreement. 

d. Dividend and interest income 

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has 
been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and its 
joint ventures and the amount of income can be measured reliably). 

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will 
flow to the Group and its joint ventures and the amount of income can be·measured reliably. Interest 
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest 
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the 
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

e. Construction Costs 

Construction costs comprise project costs incurred to enable the Company to complete its performance 
obligations. These include cost of land and cost of development rights, construction and development 
costs, borrowings costs incurred and alsb include cost of development of common facilities and amenities. 

These costs are allocated to ·each unit of sale (residential or commercial) on a systematic basis as 
construction progress and are expensed when the related revenue in respect of the unit is recognised. 

Pending recognition of revenue, the costs are accumulated and disclosed as construction work in 
progress/Finished goods within inventory. 
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f. Income tax 

Current tax: 
Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable profit for the year. 

(~ in crores) 

Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
because of items of income or expenses that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are 
never taxable or deductible. The current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax: 
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of the assets and 
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable 
profits. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred 
tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against 
which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit 
may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Group and its joint ventures 
recognise a deferred tax asset only to the extent that is has sufficient taxable temporary differences or 
there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such 
deferred tax asset can be realized. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred 
tax asset to be utilised. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period 
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow 
from the manner in which the Group and its joint ventures expect, at the end of the reporting period, to 
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, except 
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in 
which case, current tax and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly 
in equity, respectively. 

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic 
benefits in the form of adjustment to the future current tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is 
reasonable certainty of it being set off against regular tax payable within the stipulated statutory period. 
MAT credit is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of MAT credit is written 
down to the extent there is no longer reasonable certainty to the effect that the Group and its joint 
ventures will pay regular tax during such specified period. · 

g. Leases - as a lessee 

Policy applicable before 1 April 2019 

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company, as lessee, has substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease's 
inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease · 
payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or 
other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance 
cost. The finance cost is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the lease period so as to 
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. 
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the 
Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of 
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any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line 
basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected 
general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases. 

Policy applicable after 1 April 2019 

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 effective from April 1 2019 using modified retrospective approach. 
For the purpose of preparation of Financial Information, management has evaluated the impact of change 
in accounting policies required due to adoption of Ind AS 116 for year ended March 31 2020. 

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or 
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of 
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of 
an identified assets, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contact involves the use of an identified 
asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the 
period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. 

As a· lessee, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease 
commencement date. The right of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial 
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, 
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying 
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives 
received. 

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of- use asset or the end of the 
lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those 
of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment 
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be 
readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its 
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the fixed payments, including 
in substance fixed payments; The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. The Company has used number of practical expedients when applying Ind AS 116: - Short-term 
leases, leases of low-value assets and single discount rate. 

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases 
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises 
the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease 
term. The Company applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar 
economic environment with a similar end date 

h. Impairment of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets 

The carrying amounts of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets or Cash Generating Unit 
(CGU) are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication that those 
assets I CGU have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indications exist, the recoverable amount 
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 
(Currency in Indian Rupees) 

(~ in crores) 

An impairment loss is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss wherever the carrying 
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of the asset's 
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using appropriate discount factor. When there is an indication 
that an impairment loss recognised for the asset in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may 
have decreased such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 

i. Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of presentation in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, Cash comprises cash on 
hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original 
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value, 
and bank overdrafts. Bank overdraft and cash credit are disclosed under current borrowings in financials 
liability in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

j. Unbilled revenue 

Unbilled revenue represents excess of revenue recognised on 'Percentage of Completion Method' over 
actual bills raised. Unbilled revenue is recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

k. Inventories 

Inventories com prises of cost of construction material, finished residential or commercial properties and 
costs of projects under construction/development (construction work-in-progress). Inventories are 
valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of construction material is determined on 
a weighted average basis. 

Cost of project includes, cost of land I cost of development rights, construction and development cost, 
overheads related to project and justifiable borrowing costs which are incurred directly in relation to a 
project or which are apportioned to a project. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs 
of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

I. Financial Assets 

Classification 
The Group and its joint ventures classify financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair 
value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of its business 
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 

Initial recognition and measurement 
The Group and its joint ventures recognise financial assets when it becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs 
that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 

Subsequent measurement 
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the financial assets are classified in three categories: 

• Debt instruments at amortised cost 
• Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss 
• Equity investments 

Debt instruments at amortised cost 
A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual 
cash flows, and 
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b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance 
income in the Consolidated statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised 
in the Consolidated statement of profit and loss. 

Debt instruments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 
Debt instruments included in the fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) category are measured at fair 
value with all changes recognised in the Consolidated statement of profit and loss. 

Equity investments 
All equity investments other than investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate are measured at 
fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity 
instruments, the Group and its joint ventures decide to classify the same either as at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) or FVTPL. The Group and its joint ventures make such election on an 
instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

If the Group and its joint ventures decide to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value 
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). 
There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to the Consolidated statement of profit and loss, even on 
sale of such investments. 

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognised in the Consolidated statement of profit and loss. 

Derecognition 
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognised when: 

a. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
b. the Group and its joint ventures have transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, 

or 
c. the Group and its joint ventures have neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and 

rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

Impairment of financial assets 
The Group and its joint ventures apply 'simplified approach' measurement and recognition of impairment 
loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure: 

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt 
securities, deposits, and bank balance. 

b. Trade receivables. 

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group and its joint ventures to track changes in 
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime expected credit loss at each 
reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

m. Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

Classification 
The Group and its joint ventures classify all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised 
cost. 

Initial recognition and measurement 
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and 
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 
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After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated 
statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised. 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and 
transactions costs. The EIR amortisation is included as finance cost.s in the consolidated statement of 
profit and loss. 

Derecognition 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. 
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit 
and loss. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if 
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 
settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

Equity Instruments 
Equity instruments are recognised at the value of the proceeds, net of direct costs of the capital issue. 

n. Property. plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
loss, if any. 

o. Depreciation methods. estimated useful lives and residual value 

D ' t' 'd d eprec1a ion 1s prov1 e usinq th 'ti d e wri en own vaue me th d 0 us1nq th f I l'f f II e use u 1 e as o ows: 
Assets Useful life 
Buildings 60 years 
Office Equipment 5 years 
Computers 3 years 
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years 
Electrical Fittings 10 years 
Motor Vehicles 8 years 
Cellular Phones 2.5 years 

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the primary period of lease. 

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period, with the effect of any change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 

Any gains or losses arising on the disposals or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is 
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 

p. Intangible assets 

Computer software purchased is stated at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. 
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The Group and its joint ventures amortise cost of software over a period of 3 years on a straight-line 
basis. 

q. Capital Work-in Progress 

Capital expenditure on assets not owned by the Group and its joint ventures are reflected as a distinct 
item in Capital Work-in Progress till the period of completion and thereafter in the Property, plant and 
equipment 

r. Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs include interest, other costs incurred and exchange differences arising from foreign 
currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Borrowing 
costs, allocated to and utilised for qualifying construction project I assets, pertaining to the period from 
commencement of activities relating to construction I development of the qualifying construction project I 
assets up to the date of substantial completion of project I capitalisation of such asset are.added to the 
cost of construction project I assets. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active development activity on 
the qualifying construction project I assets is interrupted. A qualifying construction project I asset is an 
asset that necessarily takes substantial time or more to get ready for its intended use or sale and includes 
the real estate properties developed by the Group and its joint ventures. 

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowing pending their expenditure on 
qualifying construction project I assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. 

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 

s. Provisions and Contingencies 

Provisions are recognised when the Group and its joint ventures have a present obligation °(legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group and its joint ventures will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the 
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered 
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will 
be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation 
that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the 
amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present 
obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, 
no provision or disclosure is made. 
Contingent assets are not disclosed in the financial statements unless an inflow of economic benefits 
is probable. 

t. Employee benefits 

i. Post-employment obligations 

The Group and its joint ventures operate the following post-employment schemes: 
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The Group and its joint venture's obligation towards gratuity to employees, post-retirement 
medical benefits and ex-directors pension obligations is determined using the Projected Unit 
Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Re­
measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset 
ceiling and the return on plan asset, is reflected immediately in the Consolidated Balance Sheet 
with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they 
occur. Re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in 
the retained earnings and not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of a plan amendment. The net interest 
cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation 
and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is recognised as employee benefit expense in the 
Consolidated Statement and Profit and Loss. 

(b) Defined contribution plan 

The Group and its joint ventures's contribution to Provident fund, Superannuation Fund and 
employee's state insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution plans. The Group 
and its joint ventures are liable for contributions and any deficiency compared to interest 
computed based on the rate of interest declared by the Central Government under the 
Employees' Provident Fund Scheme, 1952 and recognises, if any, as an expense in the year it 
is determined. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are 
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a 
reduction in the future payments is available. · 

ii. Other Long-term employee benefit obligations 

The Group and its joint venture's obligation towards other long term employee benefits in the form of 
compensated absences and long service awards are based on actuary valuation. The valuation is 
carried out using the Project Unit Credit Method as per Ind AS 19 to determine the Present Value of 
Benefit Obligations and the related Current Service Cost and, where applicable, Past Service Cost. 

iii. Short-term obligations 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly 
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are 
recognized in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at 
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. 

u. Dividends to equity shareholders 

Dividend to equity shareholders is recognised as a liability and deducted from shareholders' equity, in 
the period in which the dividends are approved by the equity shareholders in the general meeting. 

v. Operating cycle 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current based on operating cycle 
determined in accordance with the guidance as set out in the Schedule Ill of the Companies Act, 2013. 
The operating cycle of the Group and its joint ventures are determined to be 12 months. 
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3 Property, plant and equipment 

Particulars B"'1dlng> 
(refer footnotes ii & iii) 

Year ended 31Mardi,2020 

Gross carrylDg amount 
Balance as at 1 April, 2019 9.46 
Mditions 

Disposals 
Effects of foreign exchange 

Conversion of subsidiary to JoWt Venture 

Ba.lance as at 31March,2020 [A] 9.46 

Accumulated depredation 

Balance as at 1April,2019 4.13 

Depreciation expenses during the year 0.18 
Disposals 
Effects of foreign exchange 

CoDversion of subsidiary to JoiD.t V entu:re 
Balance as at 31 March, 2020 [BJ 430 

Net carrying amount as at 31Mardi,2020 [A-Bl 5.16 

Yearended31 March,2019 

Gross carry:lng amount 

&lance as at l April, 2018 9.46 

Additions 

Disposals 

Effects of foreign exchange 

Conversion of subsidiary to Joint Venture 

Balance as at 31 March, 2019 !CJ 9A6 
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

Balance as at 1 April, 2018 2.26 

Depreciation expenses during the year 1.87 

Disposals 

Effucts of foreign exchange 

Conversion ofsubsidiaryto Joint Venture 

Balance as at31 Man:h.2019 [DJ 4.13 

Net carrying amount as at 31Marcll2019 {C-D] 5.33 

Notes: 
(i) Property, plant and equipment pledged as security 

Leasehold 
Improvements 

2.63 
0.51 

0.44 
0.03 

~73 

LOI 

0.60 
0.43 
0.02 

uo 
1.53 

l.89 

L74 

LOO 

0.02 

2.63 

0.92 

0.90 

0.81 

o.oo 

1.01 

1.62 

Refer Note 37 for information on property, plant and equipment pledged. as security by the Group. 

Motl.Ir V ebicles 

2.30 

-
0.23 
0.00 

2.07 

1.49 

0.25 

0.17 
0.00 

156 

001 

2.50 

0.20 

-
2.30 

l.22 

0.39 

0.13 

o.oo 

1.49 

0.82 

(fin erores) 

Office Equipments Office Furnit'ure Information Electrical Flttings Leased Assets Toml 
Teclmology Hardware 

3.41 2.75 5.34 0.12 26.01 
0.13 0.05 125 o.oo 6.79 8.74 

0.06 0.08 - 0.81 
0.02 0.00 0.00 0.04 
-

3.50 ~80 6.51 0.12 rn 33'9 

2.17 1A4 3.94 0.05 14.22 

0.50 0.34 0.88 0.02 028 3.04 
0.05 0.01 0.06 - o.n 

(0.02) 0.00 0.00 - 0.01 

2.61 1.77 4.76 0.07 028 16.55 

0$9 1.04 1.75 o.os ·~l 17.43 

2.61 237 4.81 020 - 23.84 

0.90 0.61 0.87 0.04 4.15 

0.10 0.23 0.33 0.12 1.98 

(0.00) (0.00) (0.00) 

-
3.41 2.75 ,,. o.u - 26.01 

1.80 121 3.22 0.10 10.73 

0.43 0.35 LOO 0.02 - 4.95 

0.06 0.13 0.28 0.07 - 146 

0.00 (0.00) 0.01 

w 1A4 ~94 o.os - 14.22 

124 l.32 l.41 0.07 - 11.79 

(it) Bw1dings include cost oflO shares of::t 50 each in a Co-operative Housing Society~ 5001- (As at 31March,2018, '!'. 500/-) and the cost of 400 shares of~ 10 each in Prabhadevi Properties and Trading Co Ltd~ 4,000/- (As at 31 March, 2018 ~ 4,000/­

). 

(iii) Buildings include 2338 sq. ft. super built up area [Deemed Cost ~ 1.30 crores (As at 31 March, 2018 '!'. 1.30 crores,)] on the 4th floor in the building knovrn as Eruchshaw Building, Mumbai by virtue of Agreement dated 23 November 1999 duly 
executed between the Owner and the Parent. The conveyance deed is yet to be executed in the name of the Parent;, however, the Parent is in possession of this area andis paying the requisite maintenance charges to the Parent 
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4 Intangible assets 

Pm•ticulars 

Year ended 31March2020 

Gross carrying amount 

Balance as at l April, 2019 

Additions 

Balance as nt 31 March, 2020 (A) 

Accumulated amortisation 

Balance as at I April, 2019 

Amortisation expenses during the year 

Ba1ance RS at 31 March, 2020 [BJ 

Net carrying amount as at 31March,2020 (A-DJ 

Yearended31 Mnrch2019 

Gross carrying amount 

Deemed cost as at 1April,2018 

Additions 

Balance ns at 31 March, 2019 [C] 

Accumulated amortisation and Impairment 

Balance as at I April, 2018 

Amortisation expenses during the year 

Balance as at 31March,2019 [D] 

Net carrying amount as nt31 Ma1·cb 2019 [C..DJ 

(~in crores) 

Computer software 

lS.20 

6.45 

21.65 

6.56 

1.46 

8.02 

13.62 

7.95 

7.25 

15.20 

5.20 

l.36 

6.56 

8.64 
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5 Financial assets 

S(a) Investments - Non-current 

Investment in equity instruments 
(A) Unquoted 

In joint vent11res measured (canying ainount detennined using the equity 
method of accounting) {for tnovement refer note 39} 

Technopolis Knowledge Parle Limited 
1,810,000 (As at 31st March, 2019: 1,810,000) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each 

Sector 113 Gatevida Developers Private Limited (formerly known as Le1non Tree Land 
& Developers Private Litnited) 
12,750 (As at 31March,2019: 12,750) Equity Shares of'{ 10/- each 

Promont Hilltop Private Limited 
3,330,000 (As at 31March,2019: 3,330,000) Equity Shares of'{ 10/- each 

Smart Value Hotnes (Peenya project) Private Limited 
1,275,000 (As at 31st March, 2019: 1,275,000) Equity shares of~ 10 each 

Ardent Properties Private Limited 
99,200 (As at 31 March, 2019: 99,200) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each 
Less : Provision for diminution 
Kolkata-One Excelton Private Litnited 
5,100 (As at 31 March, 2019; 5,100) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each 

HL Protnoters Private Litnited 
4,080,000 (As at 31st March 2019: 4,080,000) Equity Shares of~lO each 

Land Kart Builders Private Litnited w.e.f July 18, 2019 
10,410 (As at 31st March 2019: Nil) equity shares of~ 10 each 

Sohna City LLP 

Alvind and S1nart Value Hoines LLP 

Smart Value Hoines New Project LLP 

One Bangalore Luxury Projects LLP 

As at 
31March2020 

59.13 

2.21 

64.49 

60.39 

27.97 

186.95 

401.14 

As at 
31 March2019 

75.41 

26.07 

18.40 

88.64 

60.59 

27.97 

165.30 

462.38 
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S(b) Investments - Non-current 
(A) In Preference Shares {partly paid-up) - at amortised cost 

Ornate Housing Private Limited 
200,000 (As at 31 March, 2019: 200,000) 11 % Redeemable, Cwnulative, Non-participating, Non­
convertible Preference Shares of~ 10/- each,~ 2.50/- each paid-up 

(B) In others- at Fair Value through Profit and loss 
Ardent Prope1ties Private Limited 
13,368,421 (As at 31 March, 2019: 13,368,421) Series A Compulsorily Convertible Debentures of 
Rs. IO/- each cany a coupon of 16.7% with tenure of IS years 

48,345,864 (As at 31 March, 2019: 48,345,864) Series B & C Compulsorily Convertible 
Debentures of Rs. 10/- each cany a coupon of 16.7% with tenure of 30 years 
18,255,601 (As at 31March,2019: 18,255,601) Series D C01npuls01ilyConvertible Debentures of 
Rs. 10/- each carry a coupon of0.00001 % with tenure of 30 years 

Aggregate runount of quoted invesbnents and market value thereof 
Aggregate ainount of unquoted invesbnents 
Aggregate ainount of impairment on fair valuation in CCD of Ardent Properties Pvt Ltd through 
profit and loss 

5(c) Loans- Non-current 
(Unsecured, considered good) 

Loans and Inter-Corporate Deposits to related parties (refer note 33.2) 
Less: Provision for lmpainnent 

As at 
31 March 2020 

0.05 

1.14 

4.10 

5.29 

106.31 

101.02 

1,064.24 
(65.15) 

999.09 

As at 
31March2019 

0.05 

13.37 

47.53 

60.95 

93.62 
32.67 

514.98 
(10.15) 

504.83 
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5 Financial assets (Continued) 

5(d) Other financial assets -Non-current 
(Unsecured, considered good) 

Security Deposits 
Balances with Banks in fixed deposit, with maturity beyond 12 inonths 

6 Other non-current assets 
(Unsecured, considered good) 

Deposit with Government Authorities 

Advance for projects 
Less: Provision for Impailment 

As at 

31March2020 

6.04 
0,43 

6.47 

1.28 

127.32 

As at 
31 March2019 

5.91 

5.91 

8.06 

93.34 

~~~~~<~2~0.~77~) ~~~~~ccco.,...-
106,55 93.34 

107.83 101.40 
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7 Income tax 

l'orH011!nro 

(n) Inoome tnx ""J>Oll'" 
Curnnl tox 

CUrrelll l'1xoo profl1s lbrlheyeor 

At\IUlitnumrn fur cutren\ t~x of prior periods 

MAT Credit Utili"'1tion 

Toto! ourr<nt till< mipon•o 

O.femldTo• 

Di..'CJ'C11se/ (lncrc;1w)in dcferredtox assets 

Detrel!SC In deferred tnx liahilltlcii 

Totol ddotr<d I"' exponso 

Inoometox oxp011.., 

l'otUoulnr. 

(•) Inoarno lox llobllltl .. 

Opening balance 

Add: Current trut pay.ible for Ute )<'or 

Loss: Taxes Jl(lid 

Oaslog bolonoo 

(d)f11oorueto•"' .. t' 
Openingbolanoo 

Md : Acquisition subsidiory 

Add: T"""' paid in ad'llll'l<:C, ncl ofproYision during the )<la! 

Less : Adjustments fur cum:n1 tax of prior periods 

Les• : lleflmd re<:clvcd 

1'otn! 

Aul M•< 
31Mft«b1020 31Maroh Z019 

l.58 l.10 

4.9l 
··~ 0.01 ''" 

7.51 4.14 

182.31 (32.69) 

(3.ZO) (IS,42) 

179.12 (Sl.11) 

IS<i.63 (46.97) 

A•ol A•nl 

31Mor<b2020 31Mnroh2019 

3.84 2.98 

2.511 2.04 

us 1.18 

3.27 '·M 

A.at A•ol 

31Mon:hl0l0 31 Moroli2(119 

94.611 66,22 

··~ ll.84 IB.M 

"' 5.30 0.15 

106.22 94.60 



7 Income hlx (Contlnuetl) 

l'ortkulara 

(d) O.forred 1'11• A"ot• (oot) 

Tllo balnnce comJl!i"'• temp0rocydi!Turenoos ol1ributoble to: 

lloforrod lnoom< tn u"ol' 

MAT trlldit cntiU\lll\<nl 

Difference between book balnure aad lox b•t.11100 of HM<!"'"°'" 

C1ny fotward b\lsine"" loo"'' ond dcpreciatioJ'I 

l'mYisioo for ciuployoo bcnen1s expenses 

ProYi•ion 

Otbcrltcms 

Shareof1>rofit of joint venture• 

Tolold•kr .. dln0<•ot1 

Doforr<>d lnoomo 1 .. l!obllltl•• 

Diffilrence in mmltod of computation of pro.Ill between books nn<l tax (refur nole 7.l below) 

Interest included !n htventories 

Toto] deforn!d tax llob!lllloo 

Dof<>rr«l to• AHels (not) 

Purtloulon 

(•) Dofetr<d TnllnblllU°' (not) 

Tho bnlru!ce compri= tem[l<l<ary di!Turenoos allribut•ble to: 

llofonod ln•ame In oHots 

MAT cn>dil entiUcrncnt 

Di!Turence between book bl>!anoo and lox b•lnJ>CO offi;w<l n•..:t• 

C1ny lbrward business looses ;md Mprocfolion 

PmYisiOJI for employee ~fits expenses 

Pnwhioru 

Totoldoforr«lt .. ,. ... i. 

D<iforred lnoon10 tnx llobllltl .. 

Diffi:rence in methl>d ofoomputnlion of profit bet1vocn book• nnd tax 

Intoreslinclndedinlnvcntoric1 

Sh(U\I ofpmill ofjoint W<t\ures 

Totnl doforrod lax llohlllHc• 

Doforl'<d lox lloblllllo• (not) 

(0 M""'monls In dofom:<I tnx lloblUllo• 

At l A]n-ll 2018 
Clwgedl(credited) 

·topromorkl.<i• 

·lo other ""'"P"'""'"I'~ illC<lme 
- to other odjus1ment - lndi\JI l lS lmpaot 

Al Jl Moreb 2019 

Chorgedl(cr<:<Jit<:d) 

.to prolltorlo" 
- to othor ccmprehenslve im;Qul(l 

At31 Mo!'<lt2020 

7 Income tnx (Qmtlnued) 

(g) MOl'ellleols lo d<>fnr<d 1010 .. ol• 

At I Aprll2018 

(Charged)/Cl'll<lited 

-1oprofltor1oos 

• to athcr oomprehensiw illWIJK) 

- to other a<ljllfllll>Ctll - JndAs 1 lS impact 

At 3l Morob 1019 

(Ch•rged)lcre<lit-0d 

On ACOOUlll of AcquisitiOJ1 

- to profit or lo" 
- to other ccmpreh.-nsiw ln00100 

·-Offi;<t•ofll>tcign.exch•"ll" 

At31 Mor<lt2020 

(56.59) 

56.59 

Pr-OYt!lon, 

2.24 

l47.7l 

149.95 

(149.95) 

O!hor 
l!eno• 

°'"" Uon" 

(0.69) 

(0.69) 

Dolined bo1100t MAT<rodlt Proporlf, plo"t Tox io,.., Shoto ofprolit Dlffor<>ll<'llln 
obllgotlon ontltle1rumt ""d <qulpmonl of Joln! V<nlur•• melhoc\ of 

(5.11) (17.66) (2.!IO) 

S.ll 17.40 '·M 

o.oo .. ,., (0.00) 

O.ol 

0.00 (0.25) (0.00) 

Doltn<d bonollt MA'forodll l'roporly,p/a11t 
obllgotlon ontitlomco! on<i <q1dprnont 

O.M 13.16 0.2! 

2.04 !5.lO 3.4B 

O.ll 

'·~ ~.~ '" 
(2.62) {0.49) 

0.02 O.Ol 

0.39 2R.66 l.21 

(2.59) ll.45 

2.S9 (S.24) 

l.2! 

(3.21) 

Todo•H• Sl1oroofpr<>fit 
of Joint wnlu!'<• 

92.75 

(37.94) 

158.78 

213.S9 

(170.48) 5.86 

0.3$ 

4lA6 "" 

rornpnlotlon of 
J>r<>Otbotw..>«i 
booboml tnx 

41.81 

o.oi 

(41.29) 

Q.SJ 

O.Ol 

0.54 

Dlffor<ntoln 
rueUwduf 

••mJ>ltlotlunol' 
prolltbttuoon 
haobundt .. 

(0.71) 

0.71 

(0.00) 

(0.00) 

ru" 
31 M1m:k2020 

28.66 

3.21 

43.46 

0.39 

(0.69) .. ~ 
80.89 

o.oo 

'" 
M .. 

ru" 
31Morch1020 

0.25 

0.00 

(0.00) 

O.JS 

··~ 
0.28 

lutol'ffl 
ln<lndodln 
ln""81arlo• 

77.28 

(77.28) 

lnlor<•t 
h1ol11dodlD 
lnvontorle• 

(S2.74) 

(83.31) 

(116.05) 

136.05 

A•ot 
J1Morch2019 

28.6G 

H? 
213.59 

,.w 
l49,9S 

198.88 

(0.00) 

136.05 

ll6.05 

262.83 

Aont 
31 Morch 2019 

0.26 

0.00 

(0.00) 

0.26 

0.53 

).21 

).74 

3.48 

45.79 

(l.02) 

(41.29) 

MS 

(3.20) 

0.2~ 

Tolal 

55.15 

47.9\1 

0.31 

JSS.7S 

262.llJ 

(1S2.32) 

0.03 

0.35 

80.89 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued) 
as at 31 March 2020 

(~in crores) 

8 Inventories {refer notes 8.1, 8.2, 8.3, 8.4,} 
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value) 

Construction Materials 
Finished Goods 
Construction work-in-progress 

Notes: 

As at 
31 March 2020 

30.98 
964.12 

3,631.71 

4 626.81 

Asat 
31March2019 

36.14 
974.04 

4,530.39 

5,540.57 

8.1 Disclosure with respect to inventories which are expected to be recovered after more than twelve months are not provided as it is practically not fuasible 
to disclose the smne conside1ing the nature of the industry in which the Group operates. 

8.2 Construction work-in-progress represents materials at site and unbilled costs on the projects. Based on projections and estimates by the inanagement of 
the Group of the expected revenues and costs to cmnpletion, there are no provision for losses to completion and/ or write off of costs carried to 
inventories, other than already providetl. ht the opinion of the manage1nent, the net realisable value of the construction work-in-progress will not be 
lower than the costs so included therein. 

8.3 The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year in respect of continuing operations was~ 713.90 crores (for the year ended 31 March, 
2019 ~ 1,014.83 crores) 

8.4 Refer note 37 in respect of above mentioned inventory under lien. 

9(a) Investments - current 

Investments in Mutual Funds-unquoted- at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss 
204,042.259 Units (As at 31 March, 2018: 204,042.259 Units) of Birla Sun Life - Shott Tetm 
Fund - Monthly Dividend - Regular Plan -Payout of~ 10 each (refer note 28) 
2,975,401.883 Units (As at 31 March, 2019: Nil Units) of Adilya Birla Sunlife Liquid Fund -
Direct Growth Plan 

9(b) Trade ret:civables 

Unsecured, considered good- [refer note 26(c)] 
Less: Provision for impainnent 

9(c) Cash and cash equivalents 

Balances with Banks - in Cmrent Accounts # 
Cheques on Hand 
Cash on Hand 
Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 

# Includes balances with banks - in RERA specified accounts, which shall be used only tbr specified 
pmposes as defined under Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016. 

As at 
31March2020 

0.24 

95.00 

95.24 

169.10 
(13.86) 

155.24 

40.26 
0.01 
0.05 

119.48 

159.80 

18.29 

As at 
31 March2019 

0.24 

0.24 

162.75 
(10.28) 

152.47 

55.12 

0.03 
61.54 

116.69 

40.33 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued) 
as at 31 March 2020 

('( in crores) 

9(d) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 

Deposits with original maturity between 3 to 12 months 
Earmarked Current Accounts 
Eannarked Deposit Accounts 

9(e) Loans - current 
(Unsecured, considered good) 

Loans and lnterMCorporate Deposits to related parties (refer note 33) 
Less: Provision forimpainnent 

Loans and lnter..C01porate Deposits with others 
Less: Provision tbr impainnent 

9(1) Other financial assets - current 
(unsecured) 

Contractually rehnbursable expenses 
Less: Provision for i1npainnent 

Advance recoverable from related parties (refer note 3 3) 
Advances recoverable fr01n others 
Unbilled Revenue 

Interest accrued 
Less: Provision for acc1ued interest 

Deposit with others 

10 Other Current Assets 
(unsecured) 

Advance fur p1ujects 
Less: Provision for impainnent 

Deposit with Govem1nent Authorities 
Less: Provision for impaitment 

Mobilisation Advance 
Less: Provision for impainnent 

Prepaid expenses 
Balances wilh government authorities (OST) 

As at As at 
31 March 2020 31 Marcb 2019 

1.58 1.61 
5.31 6.61 

72.17 54.08 

79.06 62.30 

21.54 415.60 

21.54 415.60 
28.07 25.99 

(14.90) 
13.17 25.99 

34.71 441.59 

10.31 14.41 
(10.31) (10.31) 

4.10 

57.20 52.85 
38.46 8.79 
3.12 

49.18 10.05 
(10.05) (10.05) 
39.13 

1.73 3.46 

139.64 69.19 

392.61 228.77 
(63.62) (56.27) 
328.99 172.50 

0.59 2.78 
(2.25) 

0.59 0.53 

10.48 12.28 
(1.78) (1.78) 
8.70 10.50 

16.83 12.96 
34.98 47.31 

390.09 243.81 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued) 
as at 31March2020 

(~in crores) 

11 Equity share capital and other equity 

ll(a) Equity share capital 

Particulars 

Authorised 

1000,000,000 (As at 31 March, 2018 : 1000,000,000) Ordinru:y Shares of ~ 10/- each 

Issued, Subscribed and fully Pald:up 

730, 152,723 (As at JI March, 2018 : 405,380,912) Ordinary Shares oft 10/- each 

""' 31 March 2020 

1,000.00 

730.15 

730.15 

11.1 Reconciliation of number of Ordinary Shares and amount Outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Year: 

As at 

31 March 2019 

1,000.00 

730.15 

730.15 

Particulars As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019 

Number Of Shares t In crores Nwnbcr Of Shares t in crores 

At the Beginning ofthe Year 73,01,52,723 730,15 40,53,80,912 405.38 

Issued during the Year 32,47,71,81 I 324.77 

Outstanding at the End of the Year 73,01,52,723 730.15 73,01,52,723 730.15 

11.2 The Ordinary Shares rank pari-passu, having voting rights and are subject to preferences and restrictions as per Companies Act, 2013. The shareholders 
of Ordinary shares are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Parent after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their 
shareholdings, at the event of liquidation. 

11.3 Shares held by Parent and Its subsidiary: 

729,867,398 (As at 31 March, 2019 : 729,867 ,398) [including 98 shares held jointly} Onlinary shares are held by the Holding Company, Tata Sons 
Litnited. 
284,338 (As at 31 March, 2019 : 284,338) Ordinary Shares are held by Tata Industries Limited, a Subsidiruy of Tata Sons Limited. 

11.4 Details of Ordhiary Shares held by Shareholders holding more than 5°/o of Ordinary Shares in the Parent: 

Particulars 

Tata Sons Limited (Ordinary Shares of'{ 10 each) 

ll(b) Othcrequity 

Par lieu la rs 

Securities Premium Account 

Debenture Redemption Reserve 

General Reserve 

Retained earnings 

Capital Redemption Reserve 

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 

Corpus Fund 

As at31 Mareh2020 

Number Of Shares 0/ 0 Holding 

72,98,67,398 99.96°/o 

As at 31 March 2019 

Number Of Shares % Holding 

72,98,67,398 99.96% 

As at As at 
31March2020 31 Mareli 2019 

1,781.05 1,781.05 

199.79 199.79 

23.41 23.41 

(1,946.52) (964.82) 

0.02 0.02 

(2.85) 0.77 

1.46 1.46 

56.36 \,041.68 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued) 
as at 31 March 2020 

(~ in crores) 

11 Equity share capital and other equity (Continued) 

ll(b) Other equity (Continued) 

Particulars 

Securities Premium Reserve 

Opening balance 

Add: Premium on shares issued during the year 

Closing Balance 

Debenture Redemption Reserve 

Opening balance 

(Less)/ Add: Transfer (to)/from Retained earnings (net) 

Closing Balam:e 

General Reserve 
Opening balance 

Add: Transfer from Surplus in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 

Closing Balance 

Capital Redemption Reserve 

Retained earnings 

Opening balance 

Less: Impact of Ind-AS 115, net of tax (refer note 25) 

Less: Loss for the year 

(Less): Othc;ir comprehensive incomel(loss) for the year 

Closing Balance 

Foreign Curl'Cncy Translation Reserve on corumlldaUon 

As per last Balance Sheet 

(Less): Effect of foreign exchange rare variatiooo during the year 

Closing Balance 

Corpus Fund 

Nature and purpose of reserves 

(i) Securities premium account 

As at ""' 31 Marcli 2020 31March2019 

1,781.05 806.74 

- 974.31 

1,781.05 1,781.05 

199.79 199.79 

199.79 199.79 

23.41 23.41 

23.41 23.41 

0.02 0.02 

(964.82) (105.45) 

- (422.68) 

(964.82) (528.13) 

(981.49) (436.12) 

(0.21) (0.57) 

(1,946.52) (964.82) 

0.77 0.90 

(3.62) (0.13) 

(2.85) 0.77 

l,46 1.46 

56.36 1,041.68 

Securities premium account represents the pretnium on issue of shares. The account is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Co1npanies Act, 
2013. 

(ii) Debenture redemption reserve (DRR) 

The Parent is required to create ORR out of the profits which is available ibr paytnents of dividend for lhe pllrpose of redemption of debentures until such 
debenlures are redeemed. 

(iii) General reserve 

The general reserve is used from time to ti1ne to transfur profits from retained eantings for appropriation purpose. As the general reserve is created by 
h11nsfer frotn one component of equity to another and is not an itetn of other comprehensive incotne, items included in the general reserve will not be 
reclassified subsequently to profit and loss. 

(iv) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 

Exchange difference arising on translation of the foreign operation arc recognised in other cotnprehensive income and accumulated in a separate reserve 
for equity. The cumulalive atTIOWlt is reclassified to profit or loss when the investtnent is disposed off. 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued) 
as at 31 March 2020 

(~in crores) 

11 Equity share capital and other equity (Continued) 

ll(b) Other equity (Continued) 

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued) 

(v) Retained earnings 

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, debenture redetnption reserve, dividends or 
other distributions paid to shareholders. 

ll(c) 

(vi) Capital Redemption Reserve 

Capital Rede1nption Reserve is created out of profit on redemption of capital. 

(vii) Corpus Fund 

Corpus Fund is a fimd generated and kept for the existence and sustenance of the organisation, it pertains to one of the subsidiroy registered under section 
8 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Non Controlling Interest 

PnrtieuJars As at Asnt 
31March2020 31 March 2019 

Balance at the beginning of the year (21.10) (12.61) 

Movements 

Share of profit f (loss) 1.64- (7.91) 

Share of other comprehensive income (1.82) (0.58) 

Balance at the end of the year (21.28) (21.10) 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued) 
as at 31 March 2020 

(~ in crores) 

12(a) Borrowings 

Particulars As at 

31March2020 

Long-term Current maturities of 
long-term debts 

Secured - at amortised cost: 

(a) Debentures 

(b) Term Loan from Banks 

Unsecured - at amortised cost: 

(a) Debentures 

(b) Tenn Loan from Banks 

(c) Lease liabilities 

700.00 

295.00 

231,93 

6.27 

1,233.20 

389AO 

0.12 

500.00 

0.48 

890.00 

As at 
31 March 2019 

Long-term 

800.00 

0.10 

599.63 

189.76 

1,589.49 

Current maturities ol 
long-term debts 

350.00 

149.22 

200.00 

699.22 

12.1 Security and terms of repaytnent in respect of the above borrowings are detailed in note 35 to the consolidated financial state1nents 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued) 
as at 31March2020 

(~in crores) 

Particulars 

12(b) Trade Payables - Non-current 

12(c) 

13 

14 

Trade payables other than acceptances 
Retention troney payable 

Other financial Iiabilites - Non-current 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 
Security and other deposits payable 

Non~current Provisions 

Provision for Employee Benefits (refer note 32) 
R Post relire1nent medical benefits 

Other non-current liabilities 

Advance fro1n customers 

As at 
31 March 2020 

16.47 

16.47 

73.98 
1.64 

75.62 

147.05 

147.05 

As at 
31 March2019 

19.70 

19.70 

38.55 
1.17 

39.72 

0,41 

o.41 

199.29 

199.29 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued) 
as at 31 March 2020 

(~in crores) 

15(a) Current borrowings 

Secured - at amortised cost 
Loans repayable on demand from banks (includes cash credits, working capital demand loans and 
short-teim loans) 
[Note: Security diclosure in respect of the secured borrowings are 
detailed in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements] 

Unsecured - at amortised cost 
Loans repayable on demand ftum banks 
futer Corporate Deposits front related parties (refer note 33) 
Com1nercial papers 

Notes: 15(a) 1 

As at 
31March2020 

633.31 

579.47 
10.50 

870.90 

2 094.18 

Secmity and terms of repayment in respect of the above borrowings are detailed in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements 

As at 
31 March 2020 

15(b) Trade Payables 

Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (refer note 42) 
Others 827.30 
Retention monies payable 50.26 

877.56 

15(c) Other financial liabilities 

Current maturities oflong-tenn debts (refer notes l2(a) and 35) 890.00 
Payable to joint venture companies 423.94 
btterest accrued on borrowings 82.04 
Employees related payables 0.82 
Eainest money deposits 0.20 
Sccutity attd other deposits payable 14.06 
Payable to societies 62.43 

1473.49 

As at 
31 March2019 

304.63 

269.04 
75.50 

798.29 

1447.46 

As at 
31 March2019 

939.74 
59.89 

999.63 

699.22 
132.00 
113.92 

1.14 
0.25 

22.23 
60.53 

1,029.29 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued) 
as at 31 March 2020 

(~ in crores) 

16 Provisions 

Provision for Employee Benefits (refer note 32) 
Gratuity 
C01npensated absences 
Provision for Contingencies Costs 
Provision for forseable loss on inventory 
Provision for customer cotnpensation 

17 Other Current Liabilities 

Revenue received in advance (Unearned revenue) 
Advances received pending allobnent of flats 
Statutocy dues payable (PF, PT, ESIC, Withholding tax and GST) 

As at 
31 March 2020 

7.66 
6.10 

26.21 

39.97 

683.17 
0.82 

13.82 

697.81 

As at 
31 March2019 

5.33 
7.56 
7.10 

72.26 
4.19 

96.44 

942.78 
0.78 

17.27 

960.83 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31March2020 

(~in crores) 

18 Revenue from Operations 

Sale of propertles 
Sale of services 

- Project & society n1anagement and marketing charges 
Other operating revenues 
- Professional Fees 
- Other inc01ne frotn customel'S 

19 Other Income 

20 

2l 

(a) Interest Income 
Interest inc01ne on financial assets at amortised cost 
Interest on delayed payment 
Interest on CCD 

(b) Dividend Jncotne fi:otn investinents measured at fair value through profit and loss 

(c) Other non-operating income 
Penal interest 
Interest on Income-tax refund 
Scrap Sales 
Sund1y Balances & Provisions Written-back 
Miscellaneous Income 

(d) Other galns/(losses) 
Gain on sale of current investments 
Net Gain on sale of Prope1ty, plant and equip1nent 
Net Gain on Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations (net) 

Construction Costs 

Consltuction Costs 

Employee Benefits Expense (refer notes 32 and 33) 

Salaties 
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 
Staff Welfare Expenses 

Less : App01tiomnent to projects 
Less : Reimbursement from group companies 

For the Year Ended 
31March2020 

894.56 

21.91 

34.99 

951.46 

157.97 
1.25 

13.65 
172.87 

0.01 

3.04 
0.27 
0.10 
6.54 
1.04 

10.99 

0.86 
(0.01) 

0.85 

184.72 

713.90 

713.90 

97.81 
5.33 
3.52 

106.66 

8.57 

98.09 

For the Year Ended 
31March2019 

l,414.98 

19.05 

0.85 
40.66 

1,475.54 

109.46 
3.48 

11.59 
124.53 

0,07 

31.96 
0.06 
0.88 
0.28 
2.83 

36.0l 

1.64 
0.09 
7.96 
9.69 

170.29 

1,014.83 

1,014.83 

103.17 
3.77 
2.11 

109.05 

24.76 
0.87 

83.42 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2020 

(~in crores) 

22 Finance Cost 

Interest and finance charges on financial liabilities not at fair value 
through profit or loss 
- Interest on Borrowings 
- Interest on Leased Liability 
- Interest on Vehicle Loans 

Less: Apportionment to construction work in progress 

23 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 

Year Ended 
31 March 2020 

345.75 
0.21 
O.ot 

345.97 
46.19 

299.78 

4.50 

4.50 

Year Ended 
31March2019 

367.30 

O.QJ 

367.33 
56.77 

310.56 

6.32 

6.32 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2020 

(~in crores) 

24 Other Expenses 

Professional Fees 
Travelling Expenses 
Rent 
Repairs and Maintenance 
- Buildings 
- others 

Electricity Expenses 
Adve1tisement 
Insmance 
Rates and Taxes 
Directors' Sitting Fees 
Payable to Statutory Auditors 
As Auditor 
-Audit Fees 
In Other Capacity 
- Certification Fees 
- In Other Capacity 
- Rei1nbursement of Expenses 

Payable to Auditors of Subsidiaries 
Payable to Cost Auditors 
Net Loss on Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations 
Goodwill written off 
Donations 
Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility 
Customer C01npensation 
Administrative and Other Expenses 
Selling Exoenses 
-Brokerage 
-Advettising & others 
Provision for contingencies 
Provision for foreseeable loss on inventory 
Provision for doubtful advances and other receivables 
Impaitment loss of inventory 

Year Ended Year Ended 
31March2020 31 March2019 

18.05 18.56 
1.38 1.94 
5.68 8.99 

50.07 25.50 
1.50 2.10 
0.32 0.16 
5.76 5.53 
0.28 2.38' 
0.34 0.28 

0.40 0.24 

0.02 
0.o7 0.15 
0.03 0.03 
0.56 0.49 
0.02 0.02 
5.27 

25.58 
0.05 0.03 
1.35 0.46 
9.48 28.83 

22.86 74.92 

30.49 25.11 
32.10 46.51 
15.93 7.52 

2.81 

31.55 34.95 
88.57 248.16 

322.11 561.27 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued) 
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25 Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers notified by the Ministiy of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on 28 March 2018 is effective 
from accounting period beginning on or after 1 April 2018 and replaces Jnd AS 18 the existing revenue recognition standard. The 
application of Ind AS 115 has impacted the Co1npany1s accounting for recognition of revenue from real estate residential projects. The 
Company1s contracts with its custo1ners did not meet the criteria for recognisition of revenue over time as per Ind AS 115, accordingly, it 
has reversed the revenue recognised over a period of time and has recognised/will recognise revenue at a point in time. 

The Cotnpany adopted Ind AS 115 using the 1nodified retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial application of 1 April 
2018. Under this method, the standard can be applied either to all contracts at the date of initial application or only to contracts that are not 
co1npleted at this date. The Cotnpany elected to apply the standard to all contracts as at 1 April 2018. 

The cumulative effect of initially applying Ind AS 115 is recognised at the date of initial application as an adjustlnent to the opening 
balance of retained earnings. 
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26 Financial risk management 

The Group's business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, na1nely liquidity risk, 1narket risks and credit risk. The Group1s senior managetnent has 
the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework. The Group has constituted a Risk Management 
COJntnittee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group's risk management policies. The Group's risk tnanage1nent policies are established to 
identify and analyse the dsks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk lb.nits and controls and to 1nonitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management 
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities. 

The Risk Manageinent C01nmittee of the Group is supported by the Finance department that provides assurance that the Group's financial risk activities are 
governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group's policies and risk 
objectives. The Finance deparbnent activities are designed to: 
- protect the Group's financial results and position fro1n :financial risks 
- maintain market risks within acceptable paraineters, while optimising retwns; and 
- protect the Group's financial investments, while maximising returns. 

A) Management of liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Group's approach to managing liquidity 
is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incuning unacceptable losses. In doing this, management considers both 
normal and stressed conditions. 

Maturities of financial liabi1ities 
The following table shows the maturity analysis of the Group's financial liabilities based on contractually agreed undiscounted cash flows as at the Balance 
sheet date: 

All at31March2020 earring Amount Less than 1 year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 

Borrowings 4,217.32 3,342,61 1,421.06 

Trade payables 894.03 877.56 16.47 

Other liabilities 844.86 697.81 75.62 

As at31 Marcb2019 earring Amount Less tlum 1 year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 

Borrowings 3,736.17 2,239.52 1,792.15 

Trade payables 1,019.33 999.63 19.70 

Other liabilities 369.79 330.07 39.72 

8) Management of market risk 

The Group's si7..e and operations result in it being exposed to the tbllowing n1arket risks that arise from its use of financial instnnnents: 
• interest rate risk 
• currency risk 

Total 

4,763.66 

894.03 

773.43 

Total 

4,031.67 

1,019.33 

369.79 

The above risks tnay affect the Group's income and expenses, or the value of its financial instruments. The objective of the Group's management of tnarket risk 
is to tnaintain this risk within acceptable parameters, while optitnising retmns. The Group's exposure to, and management of, these risks is explained below: 

Particulars As at Asal 

31March2020 31March2019 

Fixed rate lustruments 

Debentures - Non·Couveillble Redeemable 1,884.03 1,949.63 

Short tenn loan from others 

Inter Corporate Deposits 10.50 75.50 

Commercial papers 870.90 798.29 

Term loan from banks 231.93 338.85 
Working Capital Demand loan from Banks 815,00 

Vehicle loans 0.12 0.23 

Total 3,812.48 3,162.50 

Variable-rate lnstnnncntll 

Loans repayable on demand from banks 397.78 573.67 

Total 397.78 573.67 
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26 Financial risk management (Continued) 

B) Management of market risk (Continued) 

POTENTIAL IMPACT OF RISK 

(i) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that tht: future cash 
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. 
The Group is mainly exposed to interest rate risk 
due to its variable interest rate borrowings. The 
interest rate risk arises due to uncertainties about 
the lhture market interest rate of these 
investments. 

MANAGEMENT POLICY 

The Group's strategy is to mitigate interest rate risk by ensuring 
a proper mix ofborrowings at 
fixed and variable interest rates. 
The Group's interest rate risk is monitored by the management 
and treasury team on a monthly basis. Management analyses the 
Group's interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Various 
scenarios are simulated, taking into consideration refmanciug, 
renewal of existing positions and alternative financing sources. 
Based on these scenarios, tl1e Group calculates the impact on 

The Gr6up's fixed rate h1>rrowings are carried at profit and loss of a defined interest rate shift. The scenarios are 
amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to run only for liabilities that represent the major interest-bearing 
interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since positions. The simulation is done on a monthly basis to verify 
neither the carrying amount nor the future cash that the maximum potential loss is within the limits set by 
flows will fluctuate because of a change in management. 
market interest rates. 

As at March 31, 2020, borrowings amounted to 
~ 397.78 crores (as at 31March,2019·: ~ 573.67 
crores) is exposed to interest rate risk. 

(ii) Currency risk 

The Group undertakes transactions denominated The Group has not hedged any of its assets or liabilities 
in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to repayable in a foreign currency. 
exchange rate fluctuations arise. 

SENSITIVITY TO RISK 

As an estimation of the approximate impact ofthe interest rate 
risk, with respect to financial instruments, the Group has 
calculated the impact ofa 0.25% change in interest rates. 0.25% 
p.a. decrease in interest on aforesaid loans would reduce interest 
expense by ~ 0,99 crores for financial year ended 31 March, 

2020 

0.25% p.a. decrease in interest 011 aforesaid loans would reduce 
interest expense by ~ 1.43 crores for financial year ended 31 
March, 2019 

A 0.25% increase in interest rates would have led to an equal but 
opposite effect. 

As an estimation of the approximate impact of the currency risk, 
with respect to financial instruments, the Group has calculated 
the impact ofa 5% change in currencies. 

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period areas foJlows: 

Foreign Currency (FC) 

MVR 

LKR 

MVR = Mali:livian Rnfiyaa, LKR =Sri Lanlrnn Ruixic, USO= US Dollars, 
SGD =Singapore Dollars 

Sensitivity Analysis 
The Group is mainly exposed to the cunency ofMVR & LKR. 

Liabilities 

As at 
31March2020 

16.71 

333.33 

Below is the Group's sensitivity to a 5o/o increase and decrease in ~ against the relevant foreign currencies. 

Particulars 

Holding all other variable constant, impact on profit before tax - MVR 

Holding all other variable constant, impact on profit before tax - LKR 

C) Management of credit risk 

As at 
31 March 2019 

33.41 

294.14 

Assets 

Aul As at 
31March2020 31March2019 

47.47 48.63 

3.62 4.38 

For tile year ended For the year e1lded 
31 Marcli 2020 31 March 2019 

1.54 

16.49 

0.76 

14.49 

C1edit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counlerparty to a financial instrument fails to tneet its contractual obligations, ancl arises 
principally frmn the Group's receivables frmn customers, invesbnents in clcbt sccurilies, loans given to related patties and project deposits. 

Trade receivables 
Customer credit risk is managed by requiring customers to pay advances through progress billings before transfer of ownership, therefore substantially 
eliminating the Group's credit risk in this respect. 

The Group's credit risk with regard to trade receivable has a high degree of risk diversification, due to the large number of projects of varying sizes and types 
with nmnerous different customer categories in a large number of geographical tnarkcts. 
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26 Financial risk manage1nent (Continued) 

C) Management of credit l'isk (Continued) 

Investment in Debt Securities, Loans to Related Parties and Projoct Deposits 
The Group has invesbnents in compulsorily conve1tible debentures I optionally convertible debentures, loans to related parties and project deposits. The 
settlement of such instruments is linked to the c01npletion of the respective lUlderlying projects. Such Financial Assets are not impaired as on the repo1ting 
date. 

Cash and Bank balances 
Credit risk frmn cash and bank balances is managed by the Group1s treasury departtnent in accordance with the Group's policy. 

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 March, 2020 and 2019 is the carrying value of each class offmancial assets as disclosed in notes S(b), 
5(c) and 9(a) to 9(fj. 

27 Capital Management 

:Q.isk management 

The Group tnanages its capital to ensure that the Group will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the retutn to stakeholders through 
optimisation of debt and equity balance. 

The Group's tisk 1nanage1nent committee reviews the capital structure of the Group on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the c01n1nittee considers the 
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. 

The Group monitors capital using Debt-Eq_uity ratio, which is total debt divided by total equity. For the purposes of the Group's capital management, the Group 
considers the following components of its Balance Sheet to be managed capital: 
Total equity as shown in the Balance Sheet includes General reserve, Retained earnings, Share capital, Security premium. Net debt includes ClUTent debt plus 
non-cutTent debt less cash and bank balances. 

31March2020 31 March 2019 

Long-tenn Borrowings 1,226.93 l ,589.49 

Current maturities oflong-teon debts 889.15 699.22 

Current borrowings 2,094.18 1,447.46 

Interest Accrued on Borrowings 156.02 152.47 

Total debt 4,366.28 3,888.64 

Total Equity 759.85 l,771.83 

Net debt to equity ratio (No. of times) 5.75 2.19 
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28 Fair value measurements 

Financial instruments by category 

Carrying amount as at 31 March 2020 Fair Value 

FVTPL Amortised cost Total Level I Level2 Level 3 Tomi 

Current Non- Current Non- Current Non-
current current current 

Financial assets 

i. Investments - Preference Shares 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 

- Compulsory convertible Debentures 5.24 5.24 5.24 5.24 

- Mutual funds 95.24 95.24 95.24 95.24 

ii. Trade receivables 155.24 155.24 155.24 155.24 

iii. Loans 34.71 999.09 34.71 999.09 1,033.80 1,033.80 

iii. Cash and cash equivalents 159.80 159.80 159.80 159.80 

iv. Bank balances other than cash and cash 79.06 79.06 79.06 79.06 
equivalents 
v. Other fmancial assets 139.64 6.47 139.64 6.47 146.11 146Jl 

Total financial assets 95.24 5.24 568.45 1,005.61 663.69 1,010.85 95.24 1,039.09 540.21 1,674.54 

Financial liabilities 
i. Borrowings 2,094.18 1,233.20 2,094.18 1,233.20 3,327.38 3,327.38 
ii. Trade payables 877.56 16.47 877.56 16.47 894.03 894.03 
iii. Other financial liabilites 1,497.32 75.62 1,497.32 75.62 1,572.94 1,572.94 

Total financial liabilities 4,469.06 1,325.29 4,469.06 1,325.29 5,794.35 S,794.35 

Financial instruments by category 

Carrying amow1t as at 31 March 2019 Fair Value 
FVTPL Amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Current Non- Current No11- Current Non-
current current current 

Financial assets 
i. Investments - Preference Shares 0.05 0.05 
- Compulsory convertible Debentures 60.90 60.90 60.90 60.90 
- Mutual fumls 0.24 0.24 0.24 0.24 
ii. Trade receivables 152.47 152.47 
iii. Loans 441.61 504.83 441.61 504.83 
iii. Cash and cash equivalents 116.69 116.69 
iv. B.ank balances other than cash and cash 62.30 62.30 
equivalents 
v. Other fmancial assets 69.19 5.91 69J9 5.91 

Total financial assets 0.24 60.90 842.26 510.79 842.51 571.69 0.24 60.90 61.14 

Financial liabilities 
i. Borrowings 1,447.46 1,589.49 1,447.46 1,589.49 
ii. Trade payables 999.63 19.70 999.63 19.70 
iii. Other financial liabilitcs 1,029.29 39.72 1,029.29 39.72 

Total financial llabllltlcs 3,476.38 1,648.91 3,476.38 1,648.91 

Fair value hierarchy 

This section explains the judgemenls and estimates 1nade in detennining lhe fair values of the financial instnunents that are (a) recognised and measured 
at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statetnents. To provide an indication about the 
reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instnunents into the three levels prescribed under the 
accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table. 

The fair value of financial instnunents as referred to in note above have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation 
technique. The hierarachy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active 1narket for identical assets or liabilities (level l measure1nents) and lowest 
priority to unobse1vable inputs (level 3 measure1nents). The categories used are as follows : 

Level 1 ; Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instnunents measured using quoted prices. 

Level 2: The fuir value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the-counter derivatives) is 
detennined using valuation techniques which maxi1nise the use of observable tnarket data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estitnates. 
Considedng that all significant inputs required to fair value such instruments are obsetvable, these are included in level 2. 
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28 Fair value measurements (Continued) 

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) 

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrmnent is included in level 3. 

The canying amounts of trade receivables, inter coiporate deposits, current investments, contractually reimbursable expenses, cash and cash equivalents 
and other bank balances, cunent bade payables and cun-ent borrowings are considered to be the saine as their fair values, due to their short-tenn nature. 

For financial assets and liabilities that are n1easured at fair value, the canying amounts are equal to the fair values. 

Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs 

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in 1neasuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values for financial instruments measured at fair value in 
the stateinent of financial position as well as the significant unobservable inputs used. 

Financial instruments measured at fair value 

Typo 

Investments in unlisted corporate debt 
Instruments: 

Compulsorily Convertible Debentures of Ardent 
Properties Private Limited 

Valuation teclmique 

Dlseounted cash flow Method: For the purpose of value of the 
equity holders of the Company based on free cash flows 
available from operations undertaken by the company, 
Discounted Cash Flow (DCfl) Method has been adopted. 

Free cash flows to equity in the explicit forecast period and 
those in perpetuity are discounted by Cost ofEquity ('Ke'). Ke 
is the appropriate rate of discount to calculate presi::nt value of 
future cash flows for valuing the equity shares of the company 
as it considers risk and expected return to the equity 
stockholders. 

Significant 
unobse1·vable Inputs 

Not applicable 

Inter-relationsliip 
between 

slgnlfleant 
unobservable inputs 

and fair value 
measurement 

Not applicable 
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29 Earnings Per Share 

Particulars 

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Parent-(\! in crores) 

Number of Ordinary shares 

Weighted average number of Ordinary shares outstanding during the year 

Weighted average number of Ordinary shares for diluted EPS 

Total basic earnings per share attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Parent of i! 10 each - ('{) 

Total diluted earnings per share attributable to the.ordinary shareholders of the Parent of i! 10 each - (~) 

Face Value Per Share - (l{) 

30 Segment information 

For tile Year Ended For tlte Year Ended 
31Mareli2020 31 March 2019 

(1,005.32) (436.12) 

73,01,52,723 73,01,52,723 

73,01,52,723 44,45,31,486 

73,01,52,723 44,45,31,486 

(13.77) (9.81) 

(13.77) (9.81) 

10 JO 

The strategic steering committee, consisting of the Managing Director & CEO is the Parent's chief operating decision-maker. Management has 
detennined the operating segments based on the infonnation reviewed by the strategic steering c01nmittee for the purposes of allocating resources and 
assessing performance. 

Presently, the Group is engaged in only one segment viz 'Real estate and allied activities' and as such there is no separate reportable segment as per Ind AS 
108 'Operating Seginents'. 

The Group has operations within India as well as outside fudia.The Geographical Seginent is considered as secondaty fonnat for reporting and is 
identified by taking into account the location of cust01ners, size and risks prevailing in the market, internal organisational structure and the internal 
management reporting system. 

Particulars Revenue from External Customers Non-current assets* 

For tile year ended 31 For the year ended 31 As at As at 
March 2020 March 2019 31 March 2020 31March2019 

India 920.18 1,431.88 245.52 216.15 

Outside India 31.28 43.66 0.29 0.39 

Tow 951.46 1,475.54 245.81 216.54 

* Non-cmrent assets other than financial assets and defened tax assets 

Information about major customers 

No single custmner contributed 10% or 111ore to the Group's revenue tbr the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019. 
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31 Contin2ent liabilities and commitments 

(i) Contingent liabilities 

(a) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts in respect of suits filed by owners and cust01ners of certain properties constructed/developed by the 
Group runounting to~ 40.54 crores (As at 31 March, 2019 ~ 37.25 crores) (inclusive of interest) against which the Group has made counter claims of mil 
(As at 31 March, 2019 ~Nil). The Group based on past experience does not anticipate any material liability to devolve on it as a result thereof. 

Future ultimate outflow of resources etnbodying economic benefits in respect of the matter stated above is unceltain as it depends on the final outcome of 
the matters involved. 

(b) Demands raised by tax authorities ~ 30.61 crores (As at 31 March, 2019 ~ 0.05 crores) 

(c) The Group is party to the following litigations: 

i) i) In respect of one of the projects, the Group has canying atnount of assets of~ 118.24 crores (As at 31 March, 2019 ~ 118.24 crores). The subject matter 
of dispute relating to environment issues. The Hon 'ble High Court of Delhi by its decision dated 12 April, 2017 has set aside the pennissions granted by 
the Nagar Panchayat Naya Gaon and environtnent clearance granted by SEIAA Punjab. It has also stated that the project is within the catchment area of 
Sukhna Lake. Based on legal advice received, the Group believes that it has good grounds of appeal and accordingly will try to get favourable order fron1 
the Supreme Court. 

ii) ii) With regard to another project, the Cmnpany has disputed the detnand for property tax atnounting to~ 6.66 crores (As at 31 March 2019 ~ 6.66 crores). 
The tnatter is pending before the Hon'ble High Court of Bombay. 

In all the above cases, the Group has been legally advised that the claims/stand made by the Group before the respective Hon'ble Courts are legally tenable 
and have good merits. Based on the presently known facts, the management is of the view that the outco1nes of these litigations are not expected to have 
any 1naterial itnpact on the fmancials and operations of the Group. 

(ii) Commitments 

(a) Estimated amount of contracts retnaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for: Tangible assets - ~Nil crores (As at 31 March, 2019 ~ 
1.41 crores) and for Intangible assets - 0.34 (As at 31 March, 2019 ~Nil crores) 

(b) Cmnmitinent towards uncalled portion on partly paid 11 % Redeemable, Cumulative, Non-participating, Non-convertible Preference Shares of Ornate 
Housing Private Ltd (1101nate") atnounting to~ 0.15 crores (As at 31March,2019 ~ 0.15 crores). The Group is com1nitted to this ainount only in the event 
of Ornate winning the bid for a project. 
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32 Employee Benefits 

A Defined benefit plans: 

(i) Gratuity (funded) 

The Group makes annual contributions to the Tata Housing Development Company Litnited Employees' Cotnprehensive Gratuity Sche1ne, which in tu1n 
has invested in a group gratuity cum life insurance policy of Tata AIG Lite Insurance Company. The sche1ne provides for lump sum paytnent to vested 
employees at retiretnent, death while in employinent or on tennination of employment as per Company's Grah1ity Scheme. Vesting occurs on completion 
of five years. 

(ii) Post~retirement medical benefits (PRMB) {Unfunded) 

The Group operates post-retirement medical benefit schemes. The plan is a unfunded plan. The method of accounting, significant assmnptions and the 
frequency of valuations are similar to those used for the gratuity scheme set out above 

(iii) Pension (unfunded) 

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan for certain specified employees and is payable upon the employee satisfyjng certain conditions, as 
approved by the Board of Directors. 

(iv) Long term service award scheme (LTSA) (unfunded) 

The Company operates Long tenn service award scheme. The plan is a unfimded plan. The tnethod of accounting, significant assmnptions and the 
frequency of valuations are similar to those used for the gratuity sche1ne set out above. 

Balance sheet amount 

Particulars Gratuity Pension PRMB LTSA 

Present value of Fair value of Net amount (unfunded) (unfunded) {unfunded) 

obligation plan assets 

1April,2018 11.79 (7.18) 4.61 (0.00) 0.46 0.85 

Current service cost 0.20 (0.04) 0.16 

Interest expense/(income) 0.82 (0.51) OJI 
Past Service Cost 0.00 (0.05) (0.85) 

Total amount recognised in profit and loss 1.02 (0.55) 0.47 0.00 (0.05) (0.85) 

Remeasurements 

Return on plan assets, excluding amount included in interest 0.17 0.17 
expense/{income) 

(Gain) 1 Loss from change in demograpllic assumptions (0.01) (0.03) (0.05) 

(Gain) I Loss from change in financial assmnptions 0.22 0.22 -
Experience (gains)llosscs 0.51 0.51 

Total amount recognised in other eomprcilcwivc income 0.72 0.14 0.86 

Employer contributions (0.52) (0.52) -
Benefit payments (5.08) 5.03 (0.05) 

Liability /Assets of Entity Ceased to be subsidiary (0.04) (0.04) 

31 Marcb,2019 8.45 (3.12) 5.33 0.41 0.00 

Particulars Gratuity Pension PRMB LTSA 

Present value of Fair value of Net amount (llllfllllded) {unfunded) (unfw1ded) 

obligation plan assets 

l April, 2019 8.45 (3.12) 5.33 0.41 

Current service cost 1.31 (0.01) 1.31 (0.41) 

Interest expensel(incomc) 0.60 (0.19) 0.42 

Past Service Cost 0.38 0.38 

Total amount recognised in profit and loss 2.29 (0.19) 2.10 (0.41) -
Remeasurements 

Return on plan assets, excluding amount included in interest (0.29) (0.11) (0.40) -
expensel(income) 

(Gain) I Loss from change in demographic assumptions (0.01) (0.01) 

(Gain) I Loss from change in fmancial assumptions 077 0.77 

Experience (gains)/!osses (0.12) (0.12) 

Total amount recognised in other comprcbcnsivc income 0.35 (0.11) 0.24 - -
Employer contributions 

Benefit payments (1.61) 1.61 

Liability/Asset on acquistion of subsidiary 

31March,2020 9.48 (1.81) 7.66 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31March2020 

(~in crores) 

32 Employee Benefits (Continued) 

A Defined benefit plans: (Contini1ed) 

Balance sheet amount (Continued) 

The net liability disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans are as follows: 

Particulars Gratuity Pension PRMB LTSA 
(Unfunded) (unfunded) (unfunded) 

31March,2019 

Present value of funded obligations 

Fair value of plan assets 

Deficit 

31 March, 2020 

Present value offunded obligations 

Fair value of plan assets 

Deficit 

Major category of plan assets for Gratuity fm1d are as follows: 

The Group has invested entire runount of plan assets in insurance fund. 

Insurer Managed Fwtd Detailed Pattern 

I. TATAAIA MANAGED FUND 

Government Securities 

Corporate Bonds 

Infrastructure Bonds 

Reverse Rcpos' 

II, KOT AK GRATUITY GROUP PLAN (few subsidiaries oftl1e 

Group) 

Group Boud Fund 

Risk exposure 

"/., Invested 

As at 31 Marcil As at 31 Marcil 
2020 2019 

57.01% 

17.18% 

24.18"/o 

1.63"/n 

100.00"/n 

57.01% 

17.18% 

24.18% 

1.63% 

100.00% 

100.00% 

8.45 

(3.12) 

5.33 

9.48 

(1.81) 

7.66 

Through its defined benefit plans, the Group is exposed to a nwnber of risks, the tnost significant of which are detailed below: 

Asset volatility 

0.41 0.00 

0.41 o.oo 

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields; if plan assets underperform this yield, this will create a deficit. 
Most of the plan asset investments is in fixed income securilies with high grades and in govenunent securities. These are subject to interest rate risk and 
the fund manages interest rate risk with derivatives to ininimise risk to an acceptable level. 

Changes in bond yields 

A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the plans' bond holdings. 

Life expectancy 

The pension and tnedical plan obligations are to provide benefits for the lifu of the tnember, so increases in life expectancy will result in an increase in the 
plans' liabilities. This is particularly significant where inflationary increases result in higher sensitivity to changes in life expectancy. 

Salary Risk 

The Present value of the def med benefit liability is calculated by reference to the futtu-e salaries of plan pmticipant. As such, an increase in salary of the 
plan participants will increase the plan's liability. 

The Parent ensures that the investment positions arc 1nanaged within an asset-liability matching (ALM) frainework that has been developed to achieve 
long-tenn investtnents that are in line with the obligations under the employee benefit plans. Within this fratnework, the Parent's ALM objective is to 
tnatch assets to the benefit obligations by investing in long-lenn fixed interest securities with maturities lhat match the benefit payments as they fall due 
and in the appropriate currency. 
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32 Employee Benefits (Continued) 

A Defined benefit plans: (Continued) 

Defined benefit Liability and employer contribution 

Expected contribution to post einployment benefit plans for the year ending March 31, 2021 are ~ 7.66 crores. 

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 7 years (2016- 7 years) 

Gratuity PRMB LTSA 
Maturity analysis of Projected benefit obligation: from the fimd: 31March2019 31March2018 31March2019 31 March2018 31 March2019 31 Marc112018 

Isl following year 

2nd following year 

3rd following year 

4th following year 

5th following year 

Sutn of years 6 to 10 

B Defined contribution plans: 

Benefit (Contribntlon to) 

Provident Fund 

Superannuation Fund 

Total 

(i) Superannuation fund 

1.65 

0.15 

1.34 

1.12 

0.89 

3.15 

For the Year 
Ended 

31 March 2019 

2.31 

0.27 

2.58 

1.58 

1.19 

1.08 

1.14 

1.02 

4.70 

For the Year 
Ended 

31March2018 

2.14 

0.55 

2.69 

The company has superannuation scheme administrated by LIC, in which the company contributes 15% on basic salary. 
The payinents to defined contribution retirement benefit scheme for eligible employees in the fonn of superannuation fund are charged as an expense as 
they fall due. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Scheines as the Company docs not cany any further obligations, apart from the 
contributions made. 

(ii) Provident fund and superannuation fund 

The Parent also has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to Tata Housing provident fimd trust for employees at the rate of 12% of 
basic salary as per regulations. The obligation of the group is limited to the amount conbibutcd and it has no further contractual nor any constructive 
obligation. 

The Trustees of the Fund are required by law and by its bust deed to act in the interest of the Fund and of all relevant stakeholders in the scheme. The 
Tn1stees of the Fund arc responsible for the investment policy with regard to the assets of the Fund. 

The Parent's contributions paid I payable during the year towards Provident Fund and Superannuation Fillld are charged to the Consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss or debited to the project costs every year. These fimds and the schemes thereunder are recognised by the Income-tax authorities and 
adtninistered by trusts. 

The delails of provident fimd and p1an asset position are given below: 

Particulars 

Plan assets as period end 

Present value of funded obligation 

Amount recognised In Balance sheet 

31March,2020 31March,2019 

36.40 

35.65 

37.81 

36.60 

Assumplions used in detennining present value of obligation of interest rate guarantee under a detenninistic approach: 

Particulars 

Guaranteed rate of return 

Discount rate for remaining tenn to maturity ofinvestnients 

Expected rate of re tum on investments 

31 March,2020 31March,2019 

8.50o/., 

5.5so/ .. 

8.50°1 .. 

8.65% 

7.31% 

8,40% 
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32 Employee Benefits (Continue</) 

C Compensated absences 

The leave obligations cover the Parent's liability for sick and earned leave. The leave obligation is cotnputed by actuary who gives a bifurcation for 
cun-ent and non-cmrent. 

a) Changes in Present Value of Obligation: 

ParticuJars 

Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning 

Interest Cost 

Service Cost 

Benefits Paid 

Actuarial (Gain) I Loss on obligations 

Past Service Cost 

Present Value of Obligation as at the end 

Compensated absences 
For the Year For the Year 

Ended Ended 
31 Mareil2020 31 Marcl12019 

7.56 15.41 

0.64 LIS 

4.56 0.99 

(1.87) (10.10) 

0.78 (1.03) 

(5.57) I.II 

6.10 1.SG 

b) Bifurcation of Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the year: 

Partlculal'll 

Current liability 

Non-Current liability 

Present Value of Obligation as at the end 

c) Expenses Recognised during the year: 

Particu1al'S 

Interest Cost 

Service Cost 

Actuarial Loss /(Gain) recognised 

Past Service Cost 

Expenses Rccog1dsed during the year 

Compensated absences 

For the Year For the Year 
Ended Ended 

31March2020 31March2019 

6.10 7,56 

6.10 7.56 

Compensated absences 

For the Year For the Year 
· Ended Ended 

31Marcil2019 31March2018 

0.64 1.18 

4.56 0.99 

0.78 (1.03) 

(5,57) I.II 

0.41 2.25 
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32 Employee Benefits (Continued) 

D Significant estimates: Actual'ial assumptions and sensitivity 

The significant actuarial assumptions for were as follows: 

Particulars 

Gratuity 

Discount rate 

Rate of return on plan assets 

Salary growth rate 

Retirement age 

Mortality Rate During employment 

Mortality Rate After employment 

Maximum gratuity payable per person 

Compensated absences 

Discounting Rate 

Retirement Age 

Future Salary Rise 

Mortality Table 

Withdrawal Rates 

Post Retirement Medieal Benefits and Pension Liability 

Expected Return on plan assets 

Rate of discounting 

Medical cost inflation 

Rate of emploayee turnover 

Mortality Rate During employment 

Mortality Rale After employment 

Long term service award scheme 

Discounting Rate 

Retirement Age 

Mortality Table 

Attrition I Withdrawal rate (per annum) 

""' 31 March2020 

S.55o/o 

7.00% 

60 years 

Indian Assured Lives Mortality 
(2012-14) 

Indian Assured Lives Mortality 
(2012-14) 

Unlimited 

5.5So/o 

60 years 

7.00% 

Indian Assured Lives Mortality 
(2012-14) 

23.00'% 

N.A. 

N.A. 

N.A. 

N.A. 

N.A. 

N,A, 

N.A. 

N.A. 

N.A. 

N.A. 

As at 
31March2019 

7.15% 

7.00% 

60 years 

Indian Assured Lives Mortality 
(2006-08) 

Indian Assured Lives Mortality 
(2006-08) 

Unlimited 

7.15% 

60 years 

7.00% 

Indian Assured Lives Mortality 
(2006-08) 

15.00% 

NA. 

N.A. 

N.A. 

N.A. 

N.A. 

N.A. 

N.A. 

N.A. 

N.A. 

N.A. 

Significant ac.tuarial assumption tbr the detennination of defined obligation arc rate of discounting, rate of salary increase and rate of employee turnover. 
The sensitivity analysis below have been detem1ined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the 
reporting period, while holding all other assun1ptions constant. 

Particulars 

Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions 

Delta effect of +I% change in rate of discounting 

Delta effect of -I% change in rate of discounting 

Delta eITec! of+!% change in rate of salary increase 

Delta effect of- l % change in rate of salary increase 

Delta effect of+ I% change in rate of employee turnover 

Delta effect of - I% change in rate of employee turnover 

Gratuity 

31 March 2020 31 Marcll2019 

9.48 8.45 

0.64 (0.09) 

0.18 1.12 

0.76 1.02 

0.03 (0.03) 

0.42 0.51 

0.39 0.33 

PRMB LTSA 

31 March 2020 31March2019 31March2020 31 March 2019 

0.41 0.00 

(0.07) (0.05) 

0.10 0.07 

0.09 NA 
(0.08) NA 
(0.06) (0.05) 

0.06 0.09 

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in 
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as sotne of the assumptions may be correlated. Furthennore, in presenting the above sensitivity 
analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, 
which is the san1e as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. 
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33 Related Party Transactions 

As per Indian Accounting Standard on "Related Party Disclosures" (Ind AS~24) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 2013 Act") are as follows: 

33.1 List of Related Parties and Relationships 

Sr. No. Related Party 

Holding Company 

Tata Sons Private Limited 

Joint Ventures (including step down Joint Ventures) 

2 Princeton Infrastructure Private Limited (ceased to be a joint venture and is a subsidiary w.e.f. 1:5.03.2019) 

3 Ardent Properties Private Li1nited (ceased to be a subsidiary and is an associate 

4 Arvind and Smart Value Homes LLP 

Solma City LLP 

Sector 113 Gatevida Developers Private Limited (formally known as Lemon Tree Land & Developers Private Limited) 

Promont Hilltop Private Limited 

·One Bangalore Luxury Projects LLP 

Kolkata-One Excelton Private Limited 

10 Smart Value Homes (Peenya Project) Private Limited 

11 Smart Value Homes (New Project) LLP 

12 HL Promoters Private Limited 

13 Landkart Builders Pvt. Ltd. ( w.e.f. 18th July 2019) 

Fellow Subsidiaries with whom transactions are entered 

14 h1finiti Retail Limited 

15 Tata Consultancy Services Limited 

16 Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited 

17 Eco first Services Limited 

18 Tata Communications Limited 

19 Tata Teleservices Limited 

20 Tata Teleservices (Maharashtra) Limited 

21 Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited 

22 International lufrabuild Pvt. Ltd. 

23 TRIL Infupark Lhnited 

24 Arrow lnftaestate Private Limited 

2 5 Gurgaon Realtech Limited 

Associates of Parent Company with wlmm tl'ansactlons al'e entered 

26 Tata Coffee Lhnited 

27 Voltas Limited 

28 Tata Business Support Services Limited 

29 The Indian Hotels Company Limited 

30 Trent Limited 

31 Tata Global Beverages Limited 

32 Titan Company Limited 

Employee Trusts where there is significant Influence 

33 Tata Housing Development Company Ltd- Employees Provident Fund 

34 Tata Housing Development Company Ltd- Employees Group Super Annuation 

35 Tata Housing Devdopment Company Ltd- Employees Comprehensive Gratuity Tmst 

Key M11n11gement Persom1cl, with whom transactions al'e entered 

36 San jay Dutt - Managing Director & CEO (appointed w.e.f. 1 April, 2018) 

37 DileepCboksi 

38 S Santhanakrislman 

39 Sucheta Shah 
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33 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 

33.11 Transactions and balances with related parties: 

Key Management Personnel 

a. Transactions 

Particulars 

Sale of Property 

Early payment rebate 

Short tenn Benefit 

Post payment Benefit 

31March,2020 31 March, 2019 

The remuneration of Managing Director & CEO is detamined by the remuneriltion co1nmittee having regard to the perfonnance of the individual and the 
Group. The same excludes gratuity and compensated absence. 

b. Outstanding Balances managing Director & CEO 

Particulars 

Liability 

Income Received in Advance (Unearned Ri::venue) 

Advance against allotment of Plat 

Outstanding Payable - Other Payable 

Outstanding Payable - Remuneration 

2 Related Parties 

31March,2020 31Marcl1,2019 

The Group's material related party bllnsaction and oustanding balances are with its fellow subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates with whom the Group 
routinely enters into trasactions in the ordinary course of business 

a. Transactions 

Particulars 

(I) EXPENSl~S 

Receiving of Services 

Holding Company 

Purclrnse of Materials 

Joint Ventures 

Certification Fees 

Fellow subsidiaries 

Insurance Prcmlwn paid 

Fellow subsidiaries 

Rent 

Fellow associates 

Fellow subsidiaries 

Repairs and Maintenance~ Others 

Fellow subsidiaries 

Fellow associates 

Fellow Joint ventures 

Donation- CSR 

Joint Venture 

Admlulstratlvc & Other expenses 

Fellow subsidiaries 

Fellow associates 

Contribution to Employee Benefit Plan 

Employee Trust 

fl 
31 Marcil, 2020 

0.11 

0.12 

0.16 

5.57 

2.54 

0.25 

1.41 

0.82 

0.01 

0.12 

1.45 

1.75 

5.45 

31 March,2019 

0.01 

0.08 

0.15 

5.15 

2.32 

1.88 

0.01 

0.04 

1.43 

1.41 

4,65 
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·33 Related Party Transactions (Continuetl) 

2 Related Parties (Continued) 

a. Transactions (Continued) 

Particulars 

(II) INCOME 

Service Income 

Joint ventures 

Mlseellancous Income 

Fellow subsidiaries 

Fellow associates 

Sale of Development Rlgl1ts 

Joint ventures 

Sale of Property (Land) 

Joint ventures 

(III) REIMBURSEMENT TRANSACTIONS 

Expenses Incurred on behalf of Related Party 

Holding Company 

Joint ventures 

Fellow associates 

Expenses Incurred by Related Party on our behalf 

Joint ventures 

Fellow subsidiaries 

(IV) OTHER INCOME 

Interest Income on Loan, Inter Corporate De110slts and Capital Contribution 

Joint ventures 

FeJlow subsidiaries 

Interest income on Compnlsory ConYertlble Debentures 

Joint ventures 

Interest Income on Capital Contribution 

Joint ventures 

Interest on Project Management Fees 

Joint ventures 

Sale of Material 

Joint ventures 

Rent Income 

Fellow Subsdiaries 

(V) INTEREST EXPENSE 

Interest Expense on Inter Corporate Deposits 

Fellow associ.itcs 

(VI) INVESTMENTS 

Investment made 
Joint ventures 

Compnlimrlly Convertible Debentures made 

Joint ventures 

31 March, 2020 

20.71 

0.62 

1.48 

4.81 

1.20 

0.32 

2.94 

0

136.51 

8.46 

13.65 

9.96 

5A3 

5.30 

24.95 

31March,2019 

18.58 

0.12 

0.03 

0,83 

2.73 

2.18 

4.24 

0.03 

6.05 

97.49 

0.21 

11.59 

7.12 

5.19 

0.06 

0.35 

7.55 

44.55 
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33 Related Party Transactions (ContinuetQ 

b. Outstanding Balances arising from sale/purchase of goods and services: 

Particulars 

(A) ASSETS 

Purclmse of Intangibles 

Fellow subsidiaries 

Purchase of Assets 

Joint ventures 

Fellow subsidiaries 

Outstanding Receivables 

Joint ventures 

Fellow subsidiaries 

Advances 

Holding Company 

Fellow subsidiaries 

Joint ventures 

Deposits 

Fellow associates 

Prepaid Expenses 

Fellow subsidiaries 

(B)PAYABLES 

Outstanding Payable 

Holding Company 

Fellow subsidiaries 

Joint ventures 

Associates 
Fellow Joint vc;intures 

Employee Trust 

3 Loans to/from related party 

Particulars 

Loans to Joint ventures 

Beginning of the year 

Addition 

Loan advanced 

Loan repayment received 

Conversion of subsidiaries to joint ventures 

Conversion ofJoint Ventures in to Subsidiary 

Interest charged [net ofTDS] 

Interest re<:eived 

End of the year 

Loans from Fellow Subsidiary 

Beginning of the year 

Loan received 

Interest Charged (Net ofTDS) 

Interest received 

Loan repayments made 

End of the year 

Loans from Fellow Associates 

Beginning of tlie year 

Loan received 

Loan repayments made 

End of tl1e year 

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 

4.30 0.38 

0.04 

0.89 

111.48 108.50 

0.19 

43.11 38.30 

• 0.05 

13.11 13.10 

1.80 1.80 

1.71 2.33 

0.01 

4.44 6.88 

1.09 7.51 

2.02 

0.67 0.05 

7.92 6.72 

31 March, 2020 31 March,2019 

800.40 586.37 

6.47 

490.08 283.23 

(297.01) (58.79) 

-
(102.84) 

135.00 95.78 

(0.02) (3.33) 

1,134.93 800.40 

140.19 

435.90 140.00 

7.61 0.19 

-7.80 

-575.90 

0.00 140.19 

65.00 50.00 

95.00 65.00 

-160.00 {50.00) 

65.00 
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33 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 

4 Significant related party disclosures 

Particulars 

Nature of Transactions 

Insurance Premium paid 

Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited 

Repairs and Maintenance - Olhcrs 

Tata Consultancy Services Limited 

Conhibution .to Employee Benefit Plan 

Tata Housing Development Company Ltd- Employees Provident Fund 
Tata Housing Development Company Ltd- Employees Group Super Annuation 

Tata Housing Development Company Ltd - Employees Comprehensive Gratuity Trust 

Investment made In Compulsorily Convertible Debentures 

Ardent Properties Private Limited 

Investment made In Limited Liability Partuership/Company 

One Banglore Luxary Project LLP 

Solina City LLP 

Smart Value Homes (New Project) LLP 

Landkart Builders Pvt Ltd 

Loans and Advances given 

Promont Hilltop Private Limited 

Princeton lnfrastmcture Private Limited 

Sector 113 Gatevida Developers Private Limited 

1-IL Promoter Private Limited 

Kolkata-One Ex:celtou Private Limited 

Smart Value home (Peenya Project) Private Limited 

Ardent Properties Private Limited 

Landkart Builders Pvt. Ltd. 

Advances repaid 

Promont Hilltop Private Limited 

Landkart Builders Pvt. Ltd. 

Smart Value home (Peenya Project) Private Limited 

Service Income 

Ardent Properties Private Limited 

Smart Value borne (Peenya Project) Private Limited 

Sector 113 Gatevida Developers Private Limited 

Kolkata-Oue Ex:celtou Private Limited 

HL Promoter Private Limled 

Interest Income 

Sector 113 Gatevida Developers Private Limited 

Princeton infrastructure Pvt Ltd. 

Kolkata One E11:celton Pvt Ltd' 

Promont Hilltop Pvt Ltd 

Ardent Properties Private Limited 

Smart Value Homes (Peen ya Project) Pvt Ltd 

Smart Value Homes (New Project) LLP 

HL Promoter Private Limited 

Sohtm City LLP 

Interest Expense on Inter Corporate Deposits 

Titan Co. Ltd 

TATA Coffee Limited 

TATA Global Ilevemges Limited 

Interest on Project Management Fees 

Promont Hilltop Pvt Ltd 

Smart Value Homes (Peenya Project) Pvt Ltd 

Sector 113 Gatcvida Developers Private Limited 

Sale of Development Rights 

Promont Hilltop Private Limited 

Interest Income on Compulsorily Convertible Debentures 

Ardent Properties Private Limited 

31 March, 2020 

5.57 

1.35 

2.31 

0.86 

2.28 

22.32 

2.60 

0.02 

0.01 

7.57 

92.62 

73.42 

18.32 

176.13 

8.47 

113.55 

29.59 

86.77 

165.15 

7.06 

3.03 

5.33 

435 

0.93 

96.98 

9.36 

0.99 

3.59 

0.24 

8.39 

19.75 

9.96 

3.04 

2.25 

2.59 

2.84 

1.48 

13.65 

31 Mnrch,2019 

5.11 

1.88 

1.55 

0.52 

2.58 

22.55 

21.88 

0.12 

20.69 

35.95 

96.85 

32.77 

93.03 

3.94 

5.00 

3.09 

8.28 

2.37 

4.68 

3.66 

64.21 

9.33 

8.49 

1.90 

3.59 

0.05 

2.47 

7.12 

3.90 

2.63 

1.02 

2.59 

2.60 

(I.SI) 

0.83 

l l.59 
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34 Details of current borrowings: 

Particulars 

Secured: 

Loans repayable on demand from banks 

STL I 

S-STL2 

S-STL3 

S-STL4 

S-STLS 

S-STL6 

Unsecured: 

Loans repayable on demand from banks (Includes cash credits, working capital demand loans and short tenn loans) 

STL7 

S-STLS 

Inter Corpomte Deposits from related parties 

ICDI 

Inter Corporate Deposits from others 

S-ICD2 

Commercial Paper 

CPI 

S-CP2 

As at 

31March,2020 

417.11 

210.36 

30.00 

465.28 

90.03 

10,50 

870.90 

2,094.18 

As at 

31 Marcl11 2019 

144.53 

27.74 

65.85 

45.10 

8.17 

4.16 

201.08 

76.1}4 

50.00 

25.50 

700.00 

98.29 

1,447.46 

l Loan (STL I) availed by the Parent are secured by pari passu hypothecation of construction materials, book debts, current assets and tnoney receivables of the 
Parent Company, both present and future. Fu1ther, there is negative lien on the Premises admeasuring about 2,338 sq. ft. situated at Eruchshaw building, 
Mumbai for"t 52.97 crores (As at 31 March, 2019 Z 52.97 crores). 

2 Loans repayable on demand frmn banks availed by a Subsidiary (S-STL 2) are secured by mortage of leasehold rights ofLand,equitable 1nortage of Building and 
other structures constructed on Land and hypothecation of stocks and receivables of the Subsidiary. 

3 Loans repayable on detnand from a bank availed by a Subsidimy (S-STL 3) arc sr...'Cured by Subsidiary's mortgage of Land, Building (both present & future) 
situated at Kuthambakkam, Taluka Poonmnallee and District Thiruvallur and at Kezhakottiayur Village, Ta! Chengapattu, Dist - Kancheepurain in the State of 
Tamil Nadu. Hypothecation charge on Subsidiary's construction work-in-progress, construction materials, book debts, Current assets, both present and future and 

. money receivable of Project at Kuthmnbakkatn and Mmnbakkam in the State of Tamil Nadu. 

4 Loans repayable on demand from a bank availed by a Subsidiary (S-STL 4) are secured against equitable mortgage of Land bearing S. No. 333,334/1, Village 
Panchali, Tai & District PalghU:- Maharashtra and hypothecation of Stocks and receivables of the subsidia1y. 

5 This tenn loan facility agreement (S-STL 5) of a subsidiary has been entered into with Cmnmercial Bank of Maldives and the Cmnpany for the amount of USD 
1,500,000/-. The interest agreed for the loan is 3% p.a + 6 months LIBOR. The principal should be repaid in 6 months frotn the disbursement date. 

6 Unsecured loans repayable on demand fron1 banks (STL 7) includes Cash Credit oft 0.11 crores and t 6.18 crores carrying interest rate 8.10% and 8.85o/o 
respectively, working capital loan of Z 65 crores and t 140 crores carrying interest rate 8.30% and 8.35% respectively. 

7 Overdraft facility from Standard Chartered Bank Colotnbo availed by a Subsidiary Cmnpany (S-STL 8), interest rate is SLIBOR + 1 % p.a. for LKR borrowings 
and LIBOR + 2.5% p.a. for FCY borrowings. 

8 Inter Corporate Deposits (ICD 1) canying interest rate@ 8.10% availed by holding co1npany frmn related parties oft Nil crores (As at 31 March, 2019 t 50 
crores) .. 

9 As per the shareholder agreement tnade on 14 January 2011, shareholders of a Subsidiary company (SNICD 2) should grant unsecured loans in the satne 
proportion as holding of cquily in the company in order to finance projects in the Maldives. The interest rate is I 0.65% p.a. Above loans are repayable within 12 
1nonths from the reporting date. 

10 Holding Con1pany (CP 1) has outstanding Cmnmercial Papers aggregating face value oft 870.90 crores (net proceeds t 853.88 crores) [As at 31 March, 2019 Z 
700.00 crores (net proceeds Z 687, 11 crores )]. The Corrnnercial Papers cany interest ranging from 6.30o/o to 8.50% (As at 31 March, 2019 7.75% p.a. to 8.06% 
p.a.) & are repayable within a period ranging frmn 60 days to 91 days fro1n the date of allotment. 

11 The subsidiary company (SNCP 1) has outstanding Commercial Papers aggregating t Nil (net proceeds Z Nil crores) as at 31 March 2020 
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35 Details of Long~term borrowings: 

Secured: 

Debentures - Non-Convertible Redeemable (refer foot note (i)] 

(1) 1600 (previous year4000), 8.19%- Debentures of" 1,000,000 each 

(Due for redemption on 23 April, 2020 i.e. at the end of three years and three months from the date of issue) 

(2) 541 (previous year 2000), 8.19% - Debentures of' 1,000,000 each 

(Due for redemption:~ 54. I crores on 23 April, 2020 i.e. at the end of three years 
and four months from the date of issue and~ 100 crores on 23 December, 2019 
i.e. at the end of'three years from the date of issue) 

(3) 1753 (previous year 2000), 8.50%. Debentures of~ 1,000,000 each 

(Due forredemplion on 20 April, 2020 i.e. at the end of three and half years from the date of issue) 

(4) 2000 (previous year2000), 8.25%- Debentures of'{ 1,000,000 each 

(Due fur redemption on 27 February, 2020 i.e. at the end of three years and three months from the date of issue) 

(5) '1500 (previous year 1500), 9.55%- Debentures of'{ J,000,000 each 

(Due fur redemption: '{ 100 crores on 25 January, 2019 i.e. at the end of three 
years from the date of issue and'{ SO crores on 26 April, 2019 i.e. at the end of 
three years three months from the date ofissue) 

(6) 1000 (previous year Nil), 9.15% - Debentures of'{ 1,000,000 each 

'(Due for redemption on 27 September, 2021 i.e. at the end of three years and one months from the date ofissue) 

(7) 1000 (previous year Nil), 8.80 %- Debentures of'{ 1,000,000 each 

(Due for redemption on 26 December, 2022 i.e. at the end of three years and one months from the date of issue) 

(8) 5000 (previous year Nil), 8.60 % - Debentures of'{ 1,000,000 each 

(Due for redemption on 06 Feburary 2023 i.e. at the end of three years from the date of issue) 

Term Loan from Banks: 

State Ilank ofBikaner and Jaipur [refer foot note (ii)] 

Vehicle Loans from HDFC Bank Limited [refer foot note (iii)] 

State bank of India [refer foot note (iv)] 

Unsecured: 

2,000, 8.80% Debentures of'{ 1,000,000 each 

(Due for redemption on 29 September, 2019 i.e. at the end of three years from the date of 

issue) 

1,000, 8.35% Debentures of". 1,000,000 each 
(Due for redemption on 15 June, 2020) 

1,000, 8.40% Debentures of". 1,000,000 each 
(Due fur redemption on 30 April, 2021) 

1,950, 9.35% Debentures of'{ 1,000,000 each 
(Due for redemption on 23 September, 2022) 

4,000, Non- Convertible debentures of'{ 10,00,000 each 

(Due for redemption on 26th June 2020 i.e. at the end of thirty six months from the date of issue by providing 
overall yield to maturity of8.40% p.a.) 

Loan from Banks: 

Hongkong and Slrnnghai Banking Corporation [refer foot note (v) 

As at 

31Marcil,2020 

As at 

31Marcl1,2019 

Long-term Current Long-term Current 
maturities o 

long-term 
debts 

maturities of 
long-term 

debts 

160.00 400.00 

54.10 100.00 100.00 

175.30 200.00 

200.00 

50.00 

100.00 100.00 

100.00 

500.00 

700.00 389.40 S00.00 350.00 

99.73 

0.12 0.10 0.13 

49.36 

200.00 

100.00 100.00 

100.00 100.00 

195.00 

399.63 399.63 

231.93 189.76 

1,226.93 889.15 1,589.49 699.22 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2020 

(~in crores) 

35 Details of Long-term borrowings: (Continued) 

(i) Details of secutity provided in respect of the Secured Debentures of the Group: 

1 Security for Item Nos. 1 to 6 : 
Secured by way of token security by first charge on retail units in the complex known as Shubh Griha, being constructed on the property bearing Gut 
Nos. 110, 107/5 situated at Village Betgaon, Taluka Palghar, Disb"ict Thane: 

For Debentures disclosed at 

Item No. I 

ItemNo.2 

ItemNo.3 

llemNo.4 

ItemNo.5 

Item No. 6 

2 Security for Item Nos, 1 to 6: 

Block No. 

IA 

IC 

lB 

lB 

M24 

SLll 

Retail Unit 
No.on 

Ground Floor 

IA-8 

IC-3 

IB-2 

IB-3 

IA-I 

001 

Carpet Area Saleable Area 
(In sq. ft.) (in sq. ft.) 

464 559 

464 559 

422 511 

422 5ll 

441 537 

307 374 

First Charge of 1.25 times at book value on loans and advances including loans and advances to subsidiaries, Non-Current Invesbnents, Interest 
acc1ued on Loans with related parties (excluding those charged in favour ofbanks), present and future. 

(ii) (a) Secured by FSI available for Free Sale Cotnponent admeasuring 144,052.89 sq.mtrs. in the project situated on land bearing CTS No, 1320 A (Part) of 
Vi11age Mulund (E), Taluka Kurla, District Mumbai Suburban and secured by exclusive charge on stock and receivables ofMulund project. 

(b) Tenn Loan of~ Nil crores (previous year '{ 99. 73 crores): The tenn loan is due for repayment in 8 quarterly installments starting June 2018 of~ 25 
crores each. The rate of interest is 8.60% p.a. 

(iii) (a) Secw'Cd by first and exclusive charge of the Vehicles acquired under said loans. 

(b) Loan is to be repaid ill Equated Monthly htstallments (EMI) between 54 months to 60 months. The rate of interest 9.46% p.a .. 

(iv) Unsecured tenn loan from bank by One Colotnbo Project Private Lin1ited,the interest agreed for the loan is 6 1nonths LIBOR + 2.75o/o p.a. and the 
principal should be repaid in 4 instahnents ofUSD 12,500,000 payable every 6 months, from the 42nd 1nonth from the date of sanction. 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31March2020 

('t in crores) 

36 For Disclosures mandated by Scltedule III of Companies Act, 2013, by way of additional information, refer below: 

a) As at and for the year ended 31March,2020 

Name of the enflty Asal For the year ended For the year ended For Ille year ended 
31March202() 31March2020 31 March 2020 31March1020 

Net assets Share in P1:ofit/ (loss) Share In Other Share In total 
0.1m11rehenslve Income I (l!ISS) Comprehensive l11come/ (Joss) 

As%of Amount Aso/oof Amount As% of Other Amount As% of total Amount 
consolidated (f b1 crores) consolidated ('In crores) Comprehensive ('In crores) compreheru;lve ('In crores) 

net assets profit or loss Income lneome/ {loss) 

Parent 82,14 1,345.99 81.46 (988.10) 3.28 (0.18) 81.11 {988.28) 

Subsidiaries 

Indian 

Tata Value Homes Limited 0.77 12.66 8.95 (108.59) 1.98 (0.11) 8.92 (108.70) 

Concept Developers & Leasing Limited (fonnerly known as 0.17 2.73 (0.01) 0.16 (0.01) 0.16 
Concept Marketing and Advertising Limited) 
Kriday Realty Private Limited 1.34 21.94 0.% (11.70) {0.99) 0.05 0.% (11.64) 

Pdnceton Infrastructure Pdvate Limited O•• 4.58 (9.87) (0.00) 0.00 0.81 (9.87) 

Promont Hillside Private Limited 12.82 210.07 3.76 (45.65) 3.75 (45.65) 

Ardent Properties Private Limited 

THDC Management Services Limited (formerly known as 0,06 0.94 0.29 (3.50) 0.29 (3,50) 
THDC Facility Management Limited) 
Smart Value Homes (Bt1isar) Private Limited (1.34) (21.96) 0.42 (5.13) (0.30) 0.02 0.42 (5.12) 

HL T Residency Private Limited 0.43 6.99 0.11 (1.33) 0.11 (L33) 

North Bombay Real Estate Private Limited • • 
Synergizers Sustainable Poundation 0.10 1.72 (0.00) 0.03 - (0.00) 0.03 

Technopolis Knowledge Pal'k Limited (0,00) • 0.00 (0.04) 0.00 (0.04) 

Foreign 

Ape1' Realty Private Limited (3.71) (60.77) (0.39) 4.67 94.71 (5.20) 0.04 (0.53) 

World-One Development Company Pte. Limited 1.06 17.40 (0.07) 0.82 (0.07) 0.82 

World-One (Srilanka) Projects Pte. l.imited (1.42) (23.33) 0.12 (I.SI) 0.12 (1,51) 

One Colombo Project (Private) Limited 7.30 119.65 3,57 (43.27) 1.33 (0.07) 3.56 (43.34) 

TOTAL 100.00 1,638.56 99.19 (1,213,02) 100.00 (5.49) 100.00 (l,218.51) 

n) Adjuslments arising out of consolldatlon (873.78) 454,11 l.64 455.75 

bl Mlnol'ity Interest 

Foreign Sub!lldlary 

Apex Realty Private Limited (21.27) 1.64 (1.82) (0.18) 

c) Joint Ycntures {a~ 11er egulb'. method) 

Indian 

Arvind and Smart Value Homes LLP 60.39 (0.14) • (0.14) 

Sohna City LLP 64.49 0.07 • 0.07 

One Bangalore Luxury Projects LLP 186.95 0.03 • 0.03 

HL Promoters Private Limited (84.92) 46.S6 • 46.56 

Smart Value Homes {New Project) ILP 27.98 (0,01) • (0.01) 

Kolkata-One H1'celton Private Limited (14.29) (4.37) • (4.37) 

Promont Hilltop Private Limited 59.13 (lB.01) • (18,01) 

Sector 113 Gatevida Developers Private Limited (formerly (295.05) (216.49) • (216.49) 
known as Leqmn Tree Land & Developers Private Limited) 

Smart Value Homes (Peenya Project) Private Limited 2.21 (25.95) 0.03 (25.92) 

Ardent Properties Private Limited (13,37) (28.09) (0.01) (28.10) 

Landkai1 Builders Pvl Ltd. (16.30) (10.12) • (10.12) 

TOTAL 737.03 (1,003.68) (5.65) (256.50) 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued) 
for tlie year ended 31March2020 

(~in crores) 

For Disclosures mandated by Schedule ill of Companies Act, 2013, by way of additional information, refer below: 

b) As at and for the year ended 31 March, 2019 

Name of tile entity Asnt For tile year ended For tile year ended For tile year ended 
31 March 2019 31 Marcli 2019 31 Marcl1 2019 31 Marcl1 2019 

Netnssets Share in Profit I (loss) Share in Other Sl1are In total 
Compre11enslve Income f (loss) Comprcliemlvc income/ (loss) 

As%or Amount As%of Amount As %of0thcr Amount As% of total Amount 
consolldatccl (fin crorcs) consolidated (f In crores) Comprcl1enslve (f Ill crores) comprehensive (f In crores) 

net assets profit or loss Income l11comel (loss) 

Pareat 108.37 2,334.27 22.99 (116,24) 27.06 (0.62) 23.01 (116.86) 

Subsldlalies 

Indian 

Tata Value Homes Limited 5.63 121.37 44.49 (224.99) (2.41) 0.06 44.28 (224.94) 

Concept Developers & Leasing Limited 0.12 2.58 (0.08) 0.41 (0.08) 0.41 
(fonnerly known as Concept Marketing and 
Advei:tising Limited) 

Kdday Realty Plivate Limited (0,48) (10.29) 1,83 (9.25) 1.78 (0.04) 1.83 (9.29) 

Premont Hillside Private Limited (7.63) (164.42) 9.96 (50.37) - 9.92 (50.37) 

Ardent Properties Private Limited - -
TIIDC Management Services Limited (formerly 0;21 4.44 (0.66) 3.33 (0.66) 3.33 
known as THDC Facility Mmmgement Limited) 

Smart Valne Homes (Boisar) Private Limited (0.78) (16.84) 1.01 (5.12) I.IO (0.03) 1.01 (5.15) 

HL T Residency Private Limited 0.39 8.31 (0.28) 1.41 (0.28) 1.41 

North Bombay Real Estate Private Limited • -, o.oo • 
Synergizers Sustainable Foundation 0.08 1.69 0.02 (0.09) 0.02 (0.09) 

Tcclmopolis Knowledge Park Limited • - • 
Princeton Infrastructure Piivate Limited 0.67 14.45 0.42 (2.10) (1.07) 0.02 0.41 (2.08) 

Foreign 

Apex Realty Private Limited (2.80) (60.28) 4.48 (22.64) 76.12 (1.74) 4.80 (24.38) 

World-One Development Corn11any Pte. Limited 0.75 16.08 (0.10) 0.50 (0.10) 0.50 

World-One (Srilanlra) Projects Pte. Limited (0.98) (21.15) 1.76 (8.89) 1.75 (8.89) 

One Colombo Project (Private) Limited (3.54) (76.31) 14.16 (71.62) (2.59) 0.06 14.09 (71.56) 

TOTAL 100.00 2,153.91 100.00 (505.66) 100.00 (2.29) (507.96) 

a) Adjustments arising out of consolldndou (712.45) 172.76 1.01 173.76 

b} MinoriD: Intc1·est 

Foreign Snbsldlnry 

Apex Realty Private Limited (21.IO) (7.91) - (7.91) 

c} Joint Venhn·cs <as per oonity method} 

ludian 

Princeton Infraslmcture Private Limited 0.25 • 0,25 

Arvind and Smart Value Homes LLP 60.59 (0.17) • (0.17) 

Sobna City LLP 88.64 (28.11) • (28.11) 

One Bangalore Luxury Projects LLP 165.30 (0.04) • (0.04) 

HL Promoters Private Limited (37.86) (25.57) • (25.57) 

Smart Value Homes (New Project) LLP 27.97 (0.02) • (0.02) 

Kolkata-One Excclton PriVatc Limited (6.28) (0.70) • (0.70) 

Premont Hilltop Piivate Limited 75.41 (13.67) • (13.67) 

Sector 113 Gatevi<la Developers Pdvate Limited (87.86) (33.80) (33.80) 
(fonnerly known as Lemon Tree Land & 
Developers Pdvate Limited) • 
Smart Value Homes (Peenya Project) Private 26.07 4.87 4,87 
Limited • 
Ardent Properties Private Limited 18.40 (6.27) • (6.27) 

TOTAL 1,750.73 (444.03) (1.28) (445.33) 



Tata Housing Development Company Limited 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued) 

for the year ended 31 March 2020 

(~ in crores) 

37 Assets pledged as Security 

The canying mnounts of financial and non-financial assets pledged as secutity for non-cun'Cnt and current borrowings are disclosed below: 

Particulars Refer Asnt As at 
Note 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 

(A) Current 

Financial assets 

First charge 

Trade receivables 9(b) 142.05 134.67 

Cash and cash equivalents 9(c) 143.66 82.36 

Bank balances other than above 9(d) 0.01 0.04 

Loans 9(e) 34.71 38.36 

Other financial assets 9(~ 53.62 56.23 

Non-flmmelal assets 

First charge 

Inventories 8 3,923.22 4,710.54 

Total current assets pledged as security 4,297.28 5,022.20 

(B) Non-current 

Financial assets 

First charge 

Investments 5(a) 702.35 461.92 

Loans 5(b) 1,217.15 942.79 

Other financial assets S(c) 4,28 6.16 

Non financial assets 

Property, plant and equipment 3 0.41 0.44 

Total non-currents assets pledged as security 1,924.19 1,411.31 

Total assets pledged as security 6,221.47 6,433.SO 



Tata Housing Development Company 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2020 

(~in crores) 

38 Interests in other entities 

(a) Subsidiaries 

The group's subsidiaries at 31 March, 2020 are set out below. Unless othe1wise stated, they have share capital consisting solely of equity shares that are 
held directly by the group. The countty of incorporation or regisln1tion is also their principal place of business. 

Name of entity 

Concept Developers & Leasing Limited 

Tata Value Homes Limited 

Apex. Realty Private Limited 

Kriday Realty Private Limited 

THDC Management Services Lhnited (fonnerly known as 
THDC Facility.Management Limited) 

Teclmopolis Knowledge Park Limited 

Promont Hillside Private Limited 

World-One Development Company Pte. Limited 

World-One (Sri Lanka) Projects Pie. Limited 

One Colombo Project (Private) Lhnited 

Smart Value Homes (Boisar) Private Limited 

HLT Residency Private Limited 

North Bombay Real Estate Private Limited 

Synergizers Sustainable Foundation 

Princeton hifrastructure Private Limited 
(w.e.f.15thMarch2019) 

(b) Non-controlling interests (NCI) 

Place of 
business/ 

Country of 
incorporation 

India 

India 

Maldives 

India 

India 

India 

India 

Singapore 

Singapore 

Sri Lanka 

India 

India 

India 

India 

India 

Ownership interest held by the 
group 

31 March 31 March 
2020 2019 

% % 

100 JOO 

100 JOO 

65 65 

100 JOO 

100 JOO 

so 50 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 JOO 

100 100 

Ownership Interest held by the 
non-controlling Interest 

31 March 
2020 

% 

35 

so 

31 March 
2019 

% 

50 

0 

Principal 
activities 

Real estate & allied activities 

Real estate & allied activities 

Real estate & allied activities 

Real estate & allied activities 

Real estate & allied activities 

Real estate & allied activities 

Real estate & allied activities 

Inveslmenl Company 

Investment Company 

Real estate & allied activities 

Real estate & allied activities 

Real estate & allied activities 

Real estate & allied activities 

Corporate Social Responsibility 
activities 

Real estate & allied activities 

Set out below is summarised financial intbnnation for each subsidiaty that has non-controlling interests that are material to the group. The amounts 
disclosed for each subsidiaty irre before inter-c01npany eliminations. 

Summarised balance sheet Apex Realty Private Limited 

31 March 31 March 
2020 2019 

Current assets 79.69 82.7 

Current liabilities 146.70 143.18 

Net current assets (67.02) (60.48) 

Non-current assets 6.25 0.20 

Non-current liabilities 

Net 11011-curreut assets 6.25 0.20 

Net assets (60.77) (60.28) 

Accumulated NCI (21.28) (21.10) 

Summarised statement of Profit and Loss Apex Realty Private Limited 

31 Marcil 31 March 
2020 2019 

Total Income 18.72 21.88 

Profit/(Loss) for the year 4.67 (22.60) 

Other comprehensive income (5.20) (1.74) 

Total compl'ehensive income (0.53) (24.34) 

Prolit/(Loss) allocated to NCI 1.64 (7.91) 

Dividends paid to NCI 

Tech11opolis Knowledge Park 
Limited 

31 March 31 March 
2020 2019 

0.00 0.01 

0.05 0.01 

(0.05) 

-
-
-

(0.05) . 
(0.02) . 

Technopolis Knowledge Park 
Limited 

31 March 
2020 

(0.04) 

(0.04) 

(0.02) 

31 March 
2019 
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38 Interests in other entities (Continued) 

(b) Non-controlling interests (NCI) (Continued) 

Summarised casl1 Dows Apex Realty Private Limited TechnopoJis Knowledge Park 
Limited 

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 Marel1 
2020 2019 2020 2019 

Cash flows from operating activities 0.77 7.59 (0.01) (') 

Cash flows from investing activities (15.07) 0.2 

Cash flows from financing activities (8.85) (31.49) 

Net Increase/ (decrease) In cash and cash (17.16) (23.70) (0.01) (') 
equivalents 

(c) Transactions with Non-Controlling interest- No Transactions 

(d) Interests in Joint Ventures 

Set out below are the joint venture of the Group as at 31 March, 2020 which, in the opinion of the management are material to the Group.The entities listed 
below have share capital Consisting solely of equity shares which are held directly by the Group.The counby of incorporation is also their principle place of 
business and proportion of ownership interest is the satne as the prop01tion of voting rights held. 

Name of entity 

Sector 113 Gatevida Developers Private Limited (fonnerly 
known as Lemon Tree Land & Developers Private Limited) 
Promont Hilltop Private Limited 

Smart Value Homes (Pccnya project) Piivate Limited 

Kolkata-one Excelton Private Limited [Refur note 15 ( c)] 

HL Promoters Private Limited [Refer note 15 ( c )] 

Sohua City LLP 

Arvind and Smart Value Homes LLP 

Smart Value names (New Project) LLP 

One Bangalore Luxury Projects LLP 

Ardent Properties Private Limited ( w.e.f.04.12.2017) 

Landkart Builders Pvt. Ltd. ( w.e.E 18.07 .20 l 9) 

Total eq1dty accounted investments (net) 

Place of 
business/ 
country of 

incorporation 

India 

India 

India 

India 

India 

India 

India 

India 

India 

India 

India 

(l) Commitments and contingent liabilities in respect of joint ventures 

Commitments 

Commitments (share of the Group) 

Contingent liabilities 

Contingent liabilities (share ofthe Group) 

Total commitments and contingent liabilitlcs 

o/o of ownersllip 
Interest 

31 March 2020 

51.00% 

74.00% 

51.00% 

51.00% 

51.00% 

50.00% 

50.00% 

51.00% 

51.00% 

30.00% 

51.00% 

Relationship 

Joint Venture 

Joint Venture 

Joint Venture 

Joint Venture 

Joint Venture 

Joint Venture 

Joint Venture 

Joint Venture 

Joint Venture 

Joint Venture 

Joint Venture 

Accounting 
metilod 

Equily 

Equity 

Equity 

Equity 

Equity 

Equity 

Equity 

Equity 

Equity 

Equity 

Equity 

Carrying amount (fin crores) 

31 March 31 March 
2020 2019 

(295.04) (87.86) 

SIJ.14 75.41 

2.21 26.07 

(14.29) (6.28) 

(84.92) (37.86) 

64.49 88.64 

60.39 60.59 

27.98 27.97 

186.95 !65.30 

(13.37) 18.40 

(16.30) 

(22.76) 330.311 

31 March,2020 31March,2019 

54.36 4.18 

54.36 4.18 
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38 Interests in other entities (Continued) 

(d) Interests in Joint Ventures (Continued) 

(ii) Summarised financial information for joint ventures 

The tables below provide smnmarised financial intbnnation for those joint ventures that are 1naterial to the Group. The infonnation disclosed reflects the 
amounts presented in the financial statements of the relevant joint ventures and not the Parent's share of those amounts. They have been atnended to reflect 
adjustments made by the entity when using the equity method, inclu9.ing fair value adjustments inade at the tiJ.ne of acquisition and n1odifications for 
differences in accounting policies. 

Summarised balance sheet Arvind and Smart Value Homes Smart Value Homes (New HL Promoters Private Limited 
LLP Pr-0ject) LLP 

31 March 31 Marcl1 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 

Current assets 

Cash & cash equivalents 033 0.41 0,00 3.90 0,23 

Other assets 128.58 130.73 39.42 39.33 323.44 343.53 

Total current assets 128.91 131.14 39.43 39.33 327.34 343.76 

Total non-currcnl assets 2.04 2.11 0.01 0.35 0.59 

Current liabilities 

Financial liabilities (excluding trade 0.40 10.35 10.27 0.60 195.20 
payables) 

Other Liabilitfos 3.29 5.69 0.26 - 0.24 224.00 203.37 

Total current llabllltles 3.69 5.69 10.60 10.51 224.60 398.57 

Non-current liabilities 

Financial liabilities (excluding trade - 249.74 
payables) 

Other Liabilities 0.01 0.03 - 0.52 1.60 

Total non-current liabilities 0.01 0.03 - 250.26 1.60 

Net assets 127.25 127.53 28.82 28.83 (147.18) (55.82) 

Reconciliation to carrying amounts Arvlnd and Smart Value Homes Smart Value Homes (New I-IL Promoters Private Limited 
LLP Project) LLP 

31 March 31 Morch 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 

Opening net assets 127.53 128.36 28.83 28.71 (55.82) (9.74) 

Profit/(Loss) for the year (0.29) (0.33) (0.01) (0.05) (91.29) (50.00) 

Ind AS 115 impact (net of tax) (0.50) 4.06 

Capital infused I (withdrawn) during the year 0.02 0.12 

Other comprehensive income (0.07) (0.14) 

Dividends paid 

Closing net assets 127.24 127.53 28.84 2S.79 (147.18) (55.S2) 

Group's share in% 50% 50% 51% 51% 51'% 51% 

Group's share 63.5S 63.77 14.71 14.71 (75.06) (2S.47) 

Additional investment by the Group 13.27 13.26 

Goodwill 

Consolidation Eliminations (3.19). (3.18) (9.86) (9.39) 

Carrying amount 60.39 60,59 27.98 27.97 (84.92) (37.S6) 

Smnmarlscd statement of profit and Joss Arvind and Smart Value Homes Smart Value Homes (New HL Promoters Private Limited 
LLP P1'0ject) LLP 

31 March 31 March 31 Marcil 31 March 31 March 31 Marcl1 
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 

Total Income 3.78 3.55 0.54 0.21 

Interest income 0.02 

Depreciation and amortisation 0,01 0.01 o.oo 0.02 0.02 

Interest expense 0.01 

Iucome !ax expense/( credit) 0.04 0.01 0.01 6.16 

Profil/(Loss) for the year (0.28) (0.33) (0.02) (0.05) 91.29 (50.00) 

Otl1er comprehensive incomel(Loss) 0.07 (0.14) 

Total comprehensive lncome/(Loss) (0.28) (0.33) (0.02) (0.05) 91.36 (50.14) 

Dividends received 
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38 Interests in other entities (Continued) 

(d) Interests in Joint Ventures (Continue,/) 

(ii) Summarised financial information for joint ventures (Continued) 

The tables below provide summarised financial infonnation for those joint ventures that are material to the group. The infonnation disclosed reflects the 
amounts presented in the financial statements of the relevant joint ventures and not the Parent's share of those amounts. They have been runended to reflect 
adjustments tnade by the entity when using the equity 111ethod, including fair value adjustments niade at the tilne of acquisition and modifications for 
differences in accounting policies. 

Summarised b11hmcc sheet One Bangalore Luxury Projects LLP Kolkata-One Excelton Private Sector 113 Gatevlda Developers 
Limited Private Limited (formerly known as 

Lemon Tree Land & Developers 
Private Limited) 

31March2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31March2019 31 March 2020 31March2019 

Current assets · 

Cash & cash equivalents 0.33 0,08 0.57 0.29 3.53 4.13 

Other assets 48.08 45.76 293.58 224.25 1,032.80 895.52 

Total current assets 48.41 45.84 294.15 224.54 1,036.33 899.65 

Total non-current assets 140.16 121.09 3.78 1.25 34.48 34.23 

Current liabilities 

Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) 132.62 68.81 459.03 330.44 

Other Liabilities t.32 1.69 20.79 9.53 405.53 156.13 

Total current liabilities 1.32 l.69 153.41 78.34 864.57 486.57 

Non-current liabllltlcs -
Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) - 155.31 150.74 549.88 516.47 

Ot\ler Liabilities 0.17 1.20 0.13 106.75 3,72 

Total non-current Ilabllltles 0.17 156.51 150.87 656.63 520.19 

Net assets 187.08 165.24 (11.99) {3.42) (450.39) (72.88) 

Reconciliation to carrying amounts One Bangalore Luxury Projects LLP Kolkata-One Excelton Private Sector 113 Gatevida Developers 
Limited Private Limited (formerly known as 

Lemon Tree Land & Developers 
Private Limited) 

31March2020 31 Marcl12019 31 March 2020 31 Marcil2019 31 March2020 31Marcil2019 

Opening net assets 165.24 142.76 (3.42) (2.05) (72,88) 17.36 

Profit/(Loss) ror the year 0.05 (0.07) (8.57) (1.35) (377.16) (66.32) 

Ind AS 115 impact (net ortax) (23.97) 

capital infused I (withdrawn) during the year 21.79 22.55 

Other comprehensive income (0.02) (0.03) 0,04 

Dividends, paid 

CIOlling net assets 187.08 165.24 (11.99) (3.42) (450.07) (72.89) 

Group's share in% 51"/o 51% 51"/o 51% 51% 51% 

Group's share 95.41 84.27 (6.11) (1.74) (229.67) (37.17) 

Additional investment by the Group 91.54 81.03 

Goodwill 

Consolidation Eliminations (8.18) (4.54) (65.37) (50.69) 

Carrying amount 186.95 165.30 (14.29) (6.28) (295.04) (87.86) 

Summarised statement of profit anll loss One Bangalore Luxury Projects LLP Kolkata-One Excelton l'rlvate Sector ll3 Gatcvlda Developers 
Limited Private Limited (formerly known as 

Lemon Tree La nil & Developers 
Private Limited) 

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31Marcil2020 31 March2019 31Marcil2020 31March2019 

Total Income 0.02 55.42 107.85 

Interest income 0.29 0.40 

Depreciation and amortisation 0"6 0"4 031 0.49 

Interest expense 0.17 34.68 36.53 

Income tax expense/( credit) 0.07 (0.03) (2.22) (0.45) 0.31 35.34 

Profit/(Loss) for the year 0.05 (0.07) (8.57) (l.35) (424,50) (66.32) 

Other comprehensive incomc/(Loss) (0.02) (0.03) 0.04 

Total comprehensive income/(Loss) 0.05 (0.07) (8.57) {l.37) (424.53) (66.28) 

Dividends received 
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38 Interests in other entities (Continued) 

(d) Interests in Joint Ventures (Continued) 

(Ii) Summarised financial information for joint ventures (Continued) 

The tables below provide sum1narised financial infonnation for those joint ventures that are material to the group. The infonnation disclosed reflects the 
ainounts presented in the financial statements of the relevant joint ventures and not Parent's share of those a1nounts. They have been a1nended to reflect 
adjusttnents tnade by the entity when using the equity tnethod, including fair value adjushnents made at the time of acquisition and tnodifications for 
differences in accounting policies. 

Sununnrised balance sheet Promont Hilltop Private Smart Value Homes (Peenya Landkart Builders Pvt. Ltd Suhna City LLP 
LlmJted Project) Private Limited 

31 Marcl1 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 Ma1·ch 31 March 
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 

Current assets 

Cash & cash equivalents 0.25 L36 0.38 2.63 4.91 0.18 0.02 

Other assets 307.96 347.22 365.43 369.31 441.53 178.84 166.88 

Total e1rrrent assets 308.21 348.58 365.81 356.63 446.43 179.02 166.90 

Total non-current assets 7.55 7.01 2.47 7.16 0.66 2.98 2.94 

Current liabilities 

Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) 137.84 146.49 256,97 201.93 12.64 - 21.36 

Other Liabilities 77.46 82.57 94.47 108.56 163.33 43.03 12.17 

Toto! current Uablllties 215.30 229.06 351.44 275.93 175.97 43.03 33.53 

Non-cun·ent liabilities 

Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) 0.13 0.38 0.33 302.75 
Other Liabilities 0.14 1.73 3.51 4.39 0.08 

Total non-c1ll'reut liabilities 0.14 1.86 3,89 5.02 302.75 - 0.16 

Net assets 100.32 124.67 12.95 82.84 (31.63) 138.96 136.15 

Reconciliation to carryi:Hg amounts Prumont Hilltop Pdvnte Smnrt Value Ilomes (Peenya Landlmrt Builders Pvt. Ltd Sohna City LLP 
Limited Project) Private Limited 

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 Ma1·ch 31 Marcl1 
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 

Opening net assets 124.67 150.58 63.89 79.81 0.02 136.23 174.90 

Profit for the year (24.33) (18.50) (50.88) 9.52 (22.39) (56.22) 

Ind AS 115 hnpact (net of tax) (7.44) (25.47) (4.34) 

Capital infused I (withdrawn) during the year 21.88 
Other comprehensive income (0.01) 0.02 (0.07) 0.03 

Dividends paid 

Closing net assets 100.32 124.66 12.94 63.89 (22.37) 136.23 136.22 

Group's share in% 74% 74% 51"/o 51% 51% 100% 50% 50% 
Group's share 74.24 92.25 6.60 32.57 (11.43) 68.13 68.11 

Additional investment by the Group 24.53 

Goodwill (4.86) 

Consolidation Blimi11atio11s (15.10) (16.84) (4.39) (6.50) (0.01) (3.64) (4.00) 

Carrying amount 59.14 75.41 2.21 26.07 (16.30) 64.49 88.64 

Sununnrised statement of profit and loss Pro moot Ililltop Private Smart Vaine Homes (Peeuya Landkart Bullde1·s Pvt. Ltd Sohna City LLP 
Limited Project) Private Limited 

31 Marel1 31 Marcil 31Ma1·eh 31 March 31 Miwch 31 Murch 31 March 31 Marcl1 
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 

Total Income 47.28 53.34 69.37 130.36 0.11 0.25 0.01 
Interest income 0.24 0.22 0.55 0.01 

Depreciation and amortisation 0.03 0.02 0.02 0.03 0.14 0.01 0.01 
Interest expense 14.65 11.73 5.41 4.24 0.16 
Income tax expense/(credit) 1.04 4.92 5.98 2.34 2.27 

Profit/(Loss) for the year (24.33) (18.50) (50.88) 9.52 (19.84) 0.14 (56.22) 

Other comprehensive i11come/(Loss) (0.01) 0.03 (0.07) 0.03 

Total comprehensive income/(Loss) (24.35) (18.47) (50.95) 9.55 (19.84) 0.14 (56.22) 

Dividends received 

Note on significant restrictions: The joint venture entities cannot distribute their profits by way of dividends until they obtain consent from their joint venture 
partners. 
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38 Interests in other entities (Continued) 

(d) Interests in Joint Ventures (Continued) 

·(II) Summarised financial information for joint ventures (Co11tinued) 

The tables below provide summa1ised financial information for those joint ventures that are material to the group. The information disclosed reflects the 
amounts presented in the financial statements of the relevant joint ventures and not Parent's share of those amounts. They have been amended to reflect 
adjustments made by the entity when using the equity method, including fair value adjustments made at the time of acquisition and modifications for 
differences in accounting policies. 

Summarised balance sheet 

Cun'eill assets 

Cash & cash equivalents 

Other 11SSets 

Total current assets 

Totnl non-cnneut assets 

Current liabilities 

Financial liabilities ( exch1ding trade payables) 

Other Liabilities 

Total current llablllttes 

Non-current liabilities 

Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) 

Other Liabilities 

Total non-c11r1"<lnt liabilities 

Net assets 

Reconcilialio11 to carrying amounts 

Opening net assets 

Profit for the year 

Ind AS 115 impact (net of tax) 

Other comprehensive inoomc 

Dividends paid 

Closing net assets 

Group's share in% 

Group's share 

Fair value of investment on the date of diversion of invcstmc11\ in subsidiary 

Consolidatio11 Eliminations 

Carrying amount 

Summarised statement of profit am! loss 

Total Income 

Interest income 

Depreciation and amortisation 

Interest expense 

Income tax expcns.V(credit) 

Profilf(Loss) for the year 

Other comprehensive incomc/(Loss) 

Total comprehensive incomef(Loss) 

Dividends reccived 

Arden! Properties Private Limited 

31 M1n·ch 2020 31 M11rcl1 2019 

1.92 4.96 

706.92 656.36 

708.84 661.32 

2.70 1.96 

'51.0S 93.39 

338.40 194.67 

389.45 288.06 

44.42 394.47 

273.45 0.92 

317.86 395.39 

4.23 (20.17) 

Ardent Properties Private Limited 

31 Marc11 2020 31 Man~h 2019 

(28.64) (4.90) 

(93.63) (20.91) 

(2.85) 

(0.0S) 0.02 

(122.32) (28.64) 

30% 30% 

(36.70) (8.59) 

31.91 31.91 

(8,58) (4.91) 

(13.37) 18.40 

Anlcnl Properties Private Limited 

31 Marc112020 31 Marcl1 2019 

0.21 0.71 

0.06 \.'H 

0.25 0.13 

(0.56) 6.48 

(93.63) (20.91) 

(O.OS) 0.02 

(93.68) (20.89) 

Note on significant resliictions: The joint venture entities cannot distribute their profits by way of dividends until they obtain consent from their joint 
venture partners. 
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39 Loans and Investments under Section 186 of the Act 

The details of loons, guarantees and investments under Section 186 of the Act read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 
2014 are as follows: 

A. 

B. 

Details of investments made by the Group as on 31 March 2020 (including Investments made In the previous year) 

Investment in equity shares 

Nnrnc (Ir tho entity A~at 

31 Mnrcll2!120 

Ardent Properties Private Limited 40,90 

Promont Hi1\top Private Limited 44.44 

Se<:kir 113 Gatevlda Developers Private Limited 0.01 

Smart Value Homes (Peenya project) Private ~imited 18.00 

103.35 

Investment in Preference Shares 

Nmue of tlte entity ""' 31 March 2020 

Ornate Hoosing Private Limited 0,05 

Investment in Other Non-current lnvestmcnl:ll 

Nnmc of the enlliy Asnt 
31 Mnrc112020 

One Bangalore LUKnry Projects LLP 186.95 

Arvind and Smart Value Homes LLP 60.39 

Smart Value Homes New Project LLP 27.97 

Soll!lll City LLP 64.49 

339,llO 

Investment in CompulsoJ"ily ConveJ'tible DebentuJ"es 

Name oft11c entity As at 
31 Mureh2020 

Ardent Properties Private LilJlited 79.98 

(II) Investment in Mutual Fund uilll:ll 

Nnme orthe entity As nt 
31 Mnrch 2020 

Birln Sun Lifo- Short TC!lll Fund - Monthly Dividend Rcgularl'lan- 0.24 

"'"' 
Adilya Bifla Sunlife Liquid Fund - Direct Growth Plan 95.00 

95.24 

Details of loans given by the Company are as follows : 

Name nfthe entity (rcfor note 1) Rote of btlcrcst (p.a.) Asal 
31 Murch 2020 

Standard Fanm Private Limited 18.00"Ai 24.40 

Promout Hilltop Private Lin:iited 12.00% 3.75 

Princeton Tnfrashucture Private Limited 12.65% 
(Sub:sidiuy w.e.£ I Stlt March 2019) 
Se<:tm ! 13 Gatevida Dev~lopers Privat<: 18.CXI% 386.76 
Limired 
Ardent Properlies Private Limited 10.00% 44.32 

Kolkata-One Excclton Private Limited 12.00"A. 78.71 

Smart Value home (PCCllJla Proje<:t) Private 12.0()% 11.83 
Limired 
HL Promoter.: Private Limited 12.00% 188.00 

737.77 

Note 1: 

Purpose of utilization ofloan given to the entities - General purpose loau 

Loan repayment tenns - Repayable on demand 

Daring tllc year Asal 
31 March 2019 

40.90 

44.44 

0.01 

18.00 

103.35 

During the year As at 
31 Murch 2019 

0.05 

Ourh1g Ille ycnr ""' 31Mnrch2019 

21.58 165.37 

(3.46) 63.85 

{0.09) 28.06 

(60.10) 124.59 

(42,07) 381.87 

During tlw yea1· Asnt 
31 March 2019 

79.98 

Durl11g the year "'" 31 Mnrdt2019 

0.24 

0.24 

Loon given during Ille Lonn rcl'undcd 1lurlug: 
,~, the ycnr 

6.16 

7.57 2959 

31.55 

92.62 

8.47 

93.03 

3.94 165.15 

7'.1.42 

322,76 194.74 

Asnt 
31 Mnreh2019 

18.24 

25.77 

294.14 

35.85 

75.119 

r>.as 

114 . .58 

565.32 
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40 IND AS 116 Disclosure: 

Minislty of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through Cotnpanies (Indian Accounting Standards) An1endment Rules, 2019 and C01npanies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Second Amendtnent Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS t 7 leases, and other 
interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. It 
introduces a single, onMbalance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. 

All of the Company leases at 1 April 2019 were either cancellable or short.term or had a retnaining period of less than one year from that date, 
Accordingly, the transition to Ind AS 116 did not have any iinpact on the financial statements of the Company as at that date. 

Company as a Lessor: 
The Co1npany has no assets that are given out on lease and hence has no there is no impact in the current financial year. 

Company as a Lessee: 

A) Breakdown of lease eJ:penses 

Short-tenn lease expense 

Low value lease expense 

Total lease expense 

Rl Maturltv ana1"n:~ 

31 Marclt 2020 
Lease liabilities 
Repayment of lease liabilitieS 
Interest on lease liabilities 

Total 
31 Marcl12019 
Lease liabilities 
Repayment oflease liabilities 

Interest on lease liabilities 

Total 

Particuars 31March,2020 

5.46 

5.46 

PartlcuJars Less than 
I year 

0.47 
0.53 
1.00 

(~ iu crorcs) 

31 March,2019 
9.07 

9.07 

Between 1 and 2 2 and Syears 
years 

0.51 2.04 

0.49 1.18 

1.00 3.22 

(tin crores) 
Over 5 years Weighted average 

effective interest 
rate "lo 

3.71 8.25% 
0.58 8.25% 
4.29 

41 The World Health Organisation (WHO) declared the outbreak of Coronaviius Disease (COVID-19) as a global pandemic on March 11, 2020. Consequent 
to this, Government of India declared a nation wide lockdown on March 25, 2020 and the Company suspended the operations in all of its ongoing 
projects. The lockdown bas itnpacted the nonnal business operations of the Company inter alia by intenupting project execution, supply chain distuption 
and unavailability of personnel. 

The Company has 1nade detailed assessment of its liquidity position for the next year and the recoverability and carrying value of its assets comprising 
investtnents, inventory, advances, trade receivables, deferred taxes, other financial and non-financial assets. Based on current indicators of future 
economic conditions, business operations and consequently demand for its residential units are expected to be at significantly curtailed level at least 
during the year ending 31 March 2021. 

While the Company has n1adc the necessary provisions in the financial slatc1nenls and expects to recover the carrying amount of its asscls, it has also 
made necessruy arrange1nents to 1neet its liquidity needs (See Note 1 (b)) and service its debt obligation. 
The actual impad of the global health pandentic may be different frotn that which has been estimated, as the COVID ~ 19 situation evolves in India and 
globally. The Company will continue to closely monitor any matetial changes lo fllture economic conditions. 
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42 Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. 

Based on the infonnation available with the Company, the balance due to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medimn 
Enterprises Develop1nent (MS MED) Act, 2006 is ~ Nil (31 March, 2018 : ~ Nil) and no interest has been paid or is payable during the year under the 
tenns of the MS MED Act, 2006. The inibtnmtion provided by the Company has been relied upon by the auditors. 

Parliculnrs 

a. Amounts payable to suppliers under MS MED (suppliers) as on 31 March, 2020 

Principal 

Interest due thereon 

b. Payments made to suppliers beyond the appointed day during the year 

Principal 

Interest due !hereon 

c. Amount ~finterest due and payable for delay in payment (which have been paid bul beyond the appointed day during the 
year) but without adding the interest under MSMED 

d. Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as on 31 March, 2020 

e. Amount ofinteresl remaining due and payable to suppliers disallowable as deducl!ble expenditure under Income Tax 
Act, 19-61 

""' 31March2020 

As at 

31March2019 
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43 Notes reproduced from joint ventures /subsidiaries standalone fmancials 

Name of the entity Note as per standalone financials 

Subsidia1·y 
Promont Hillside Private Limited 

Apex Realty Private Limited (Maldives) 

Joint Venture 
Arvind and Smart Value Homes LLP 

Smart Value Homes (New Project) Private Limited 

Tiie opening Work-in-progress of Rs 366.03 crores consist of cost of land Rs 233.26 crores 
acquired in FY 2012-13 and other cost capitalized over the years in accordance oflndian 
Accounting Standards. During the year, the Company bas obtained report from Independent 
professional valuer, according to which valuation is Rs 365,00 crores. Accordingly, impai1ment 
of Rs 1.12 crores has been provided in the value of Work-in-progress to cany the Work-in­
progress as per valuation report. 

With respect to the ongoing legal dispute between Apex Realty Private Limited and 
Govenunent of Maldives on the Government intention to tenninate the agreement, the 
Company has received interim orders dated on 27th April 2017 and 04th May 2017 
respectively in their favour. Nonetheless, the Government of Maldives has appealed against 
the interim orders, and the same was rejected on 01 August2017 by the Court and reinstated 
the order on 15th September2017. 
Cun'ently the dispute has been referred to arbitration by the Goverrunent and as of date the 
conclusion has not been reached. Next hearing date of the matter is schedule on 14th June 
2019. Since 14th June 2019 and hearing date prior thereto, no hearing has taken place, TI1e 
Arbitrator keeps adjourning the hearing on the ground of settlement talks going on in beteween 
the parties. No fresh date of hearing assign in the matter. However the Companies lawyers 
opine although the outcome can not be predicted based on information available if appears the 
Company has a good case of merits. 

Phase l : Finished Goods as at 31.3.2020 of Rs t 9. 71 croroes represents cost (including 
capitalisaton of interest and overheads over the years) of unsold units. Despite non movement 
of such stock for 4 years, the management has reasonable belief that the ultimate realizable 
value would be more than such cost and therefore does not need any provision towards 
impainunent in value. 
Phase 2: Work-in-progress as at 31.3.2020 represents initial cost of land acquired in 2012 for 
Rs 102.53 crores for development. Despite the delay in project implementation. in view of the 
appreciarion in the value ofland. the management has reasonable belief that the ultimate 
realizable value would be more than such cost and therefore does not need any provision 
towards impainnent in value. 

The partners oftlre LLP are under advanced discussion regarding exit of one of the partner 
group and determining the settlement tenns between tl1em. The Deed of Settlement has not yet 
been executed as on date of signing these accounts and therefore existing WIP of'38.53 crores 
has been carried forward at cost without impairment, if any, which can be determined only 
after execution of the agreement. 

44 In respect of two joint ventures of the Group, disagreements have ruisen between the shareholders of the joint ventures regarding positions taken on 
specific provisions and obligations of the joint ventures under the Share Subscription ru1d Shareholder Agreement which are not in alignment. In view of 
the same, the joint venture partner has written to the aforesaid joint ventures and the Group that an Enforcement Event has occurred, which has been 
denied by the Group. However, there are ongoing discussions with the joint venture partner in this regard to amicably resolve the disagreements. 
Accordingly, Manage1nent believes that this matter would not have any material impact on the consolidated financial statements. 
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45 No material events have occu1red after the balance sheet date and upto the approval of the financial statements. 

46 As per the provisions of section 203 of Company Act2013, Cotnpany is required to appoint a whole titne Chief financial officer. Due to vacation of the 
office, the said vacance shall be filled upon requisite recommendation of the Notnination and Remuneration C01nmittee within due course. 

47 The financial state1nents were approved for issue by the board of directors on 30th December 20 

48 Figures below ~ 50,000 are denoted by '*' 
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Film's Registration No: 101248W/WM100022 
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Statement pursuant to first proviso to su~ (3) of section U9 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in the prescnOed Form AOC-1 

Statement containing salient features of the flnanclal statement of Subsidiaries/ Associate companies / Jolnt Ventures 

Reporting period for 

the subsidiary fxchange rate as on the 

Sr. The date since when concerned, If Reporting last date of the relevant Share Reserves & Total Total 

No. 
Name of the subsidiary 

subsidiary was acquired different from the currency financial year in case of Capital Surplus Assets Liabilities 

holding company's foreign subsidiaries 

reporting period 

1 Tata Housing Development Company Limited 19 March 1942 NA INR NA 730.15 614.01 5,850.82 

2 Promont HiUside Private Limrted 10 March 2012 NA INR NA O.Ql (210.08) 365.04 

3 Tata Value Hornes Limited 08 Seolember 2009 NA INR NA 400.00 (387.34) 949.80 

4 Smart Value Homes (Bcxsar) Private limited 24 August 2012 NA INR NA 0.01 (21.97) 181.59 

5 HL T Residencv Pnvate Limited 03July2013 NA INR NA 0.01 6.98 315.07 

6 
THOC ManagGIY*lt SeMces Limited (fonnerly 

14 Septen'lb« 2000 NA INR NA 0.05 0.89 66.63 
knOIMl as THOC Facility Management limiled) 

7 North Bombay Real Estate Private limited 05 Marcl'l 2014 NA INR NA O.Ql -0.01 
I i;oncept oevelQPtlf$ & Leasing Limited (fonmerly 

8 known as Concept Marlleoog and Advertising 06 September 1969 NA INR NA 
Limited) 0.05 2.68 3.06 

9 Kriday Realty Private Limiled 18 November 2011 NA INR NA 0.01 (21.951 166.90 
10 Svnerolzers Sustainable Foundation 15 Mav2012 NA INR NA 0.00 1.72 1.78 

11 Technooolls Kno~edae Park Limited 25 Seotember 1997 NA INR N.A 3.62 (3.66) 0.00 

12 Princeton Infrastructure Private Limited 15 March 2019 NA INR NA 2.55 2.03 199.88 

13 Anex Realtv Pnvate limited 25 November 2010 NA MVR 4.81334 0.04 (60.81) 85.90 

14 World-One Oevelooment Company Pte. ltd. 18 December 2012 N.A. SGD 52.6789 10.90 6.50 103.87 

15 World-One (Snlanka) Projects Pte. Ltd. 25 July 2013 NA SGD 52.6789 0.05 (23.37) 79.82 

16 One Colombo Pr,_., (Private) Lmted 30 October 2013 NA LKR 0.3951 0.05 (119.70) 306.34 

8,676.50 
Notes: 

1 Share Capital ISsued ·No. <:A shares: 73,01 .52,723. Tata Sons holds 72,98,67,398 shares (99.96%) and Tata Industries Limited, a subsidiary of Tata Sons Llmrted holds 2,84,338 shares. 

2 Names of subsidiaries Which are yet to commence operations: None 

3 Names of Jcxnt Venture "'1ich is ceased to be Joint Venture and become subsidiary during Che year. Norie 

4 All the subsidianes have financial year ended ·31st March. 2020 

5 Tho Foreign Currency figures have been converted into Indian Rupees on the basis of appropriate exchange rates. The Exchange rates as on 31st March, 2020 are : 

(a) Average rate : 1 Maldivian Rufiyaa (MVR) = 4.6144: 1 Singapore Dollar (SGD) = 51.8972: 1 Srilankan Rupee (LKR) = 0.3950 

(bl CIOsing rate : 1 Mald ivian Rufiyaa (MVR) = 4.81334: 1 Singapore Dollar (SGD) = 52.6789: 1 Srilankan Rupee ( l KR) = 0.3951 

(c) The amount of foreign entities has been reponed In INR. 

6 Fi11Ures belOw Rs. 50.000 are denoted by··· 

4,5-06.66 

575.11 

937.13 

203.55 

308.08 

65.69 

. 

0.33 

188.83 

O.D7 

0.05 

195.30 

146.67 

86.47 

103.14 

425.99 

Total 
Investments Turnover 

Revenue 

797.59 670.61 924.47 

0.00 

109.95 99.55 118.88 

82.81 82.87 

4.08 19.n 

. 1.88 2.07 

. . 

0.05 0.34 0.34 
. 61.04 61.26 
. 0.88 0.98 

7.99 8.04 

7.23 18.72 

0.05 5.82 

0.05 4.54 

20.94 20.94 

953.27 1,268.70 

For and on behalf of the Board of Dfrec!Ols of Tata Housing 
OeYetopment Company Umlted 

CIN : U45300MH1942PLC003573 

~~ .. ~~" ~~ 
Director 

DIN No: 00120029 

Sanjay Dutt 

Managing Director & CEO 

OIN No.05251670 

Profit 

before 

taxation 

1808.92 
(45.65) 

(90.05) 

(5.U 

(1.72 

(2.43) 

0.20 

(11.18) 

0.03 

(0.041 

(9.85) 

10.SO' 

0.82 

(1.511 

143.271 

f'aoresl 

Provision 

for 
Profit after NetCash % of 

taxation Flow shareholding • 
taxation 

181.03 (989.95' 106.84 Note 1 

145.65) 0.03 100 

18.55 (108.59) -48.36 100 

0.01 (5.13 4.20 100 

(0.391 (1.33) OAO 100 

1.08 (3.50) 2.19 
100 

. . 100 

0 .04 0.16 0.11 100 

0.52 (11.70) 0.07 100 
. 0.03 0.09 100 
. (0.04) 0.01 50 

0.02 (9.87) (0.351 100 

(5.17) 4.67 (17.l6) 65 

0.82 100 

(1.51) 100 

0.00 (43.27) 0.23 100 

48.30 



Part B: Associates and Join t Ventures 

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related t o Associate Companies and Joint Ventures 

Date on which the 

Name of the entity 
Latest audited balance Associate or Joint 

sheet date Venture was 

associated or acquired 

B. Joint Ve<1tures 

1 HL Promoters Private limited 31 March 2020 03 July 2013 

2 Landkart Builders Pvt. Ltd. 31 March 2020 18 Julv 2019 

3 Kol<ata-One Excelton Pnvate Limited 31 March 2020 08 November 2013 

Sector 113 Gatevida Developers Private Umhed (fooner1y 
31 March 2018 30 December 2011 

4 known as Lemon Tree Land & DeveloPQl'S Private Umrted) 

s Smart Value Homes (Peenva Proieetl Private Limited 31 March 2019 19 March 2013 

6 Promont Hilltoo Private Limited 31 March 2019 24 September 2012 

7 Ardent Propeoiies Private Limited /Note 3 l 31 March 2020 04 December 2017 

8 Smart Value Homes /New Proiectl LLP 31 March 2020 22 March 2015 

9 One Bangalore Luxurv Prolect LLP 31 March 2020 09 October 2015 

10 Sohna City LLP 31 March 2020 22 November 2012 

11 Arvind and Smart Value Hornes LLP 31 March 2020 25 April 2011 

•Number of shares, amount of investmentand extent of holding by the Company and its subsidiaries 

t Name of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operation 
Notes: 

1 Figures below Rs. 50.000 are denoted by··· 

Reporting curre11cy 

INR 

INR 

INR 

INR 

INR 

INR 

INR 

INR 

INR 

INR 

INR 

Shares of the Associate I Joint Ventures held by the Share of Profit I Loss for the year 

Company as on March 31, 2020 
Networth 

No of shares held Amount of Extent of Description of how 
Reason why the 

attrlbutable to 
by the company in investment in holding there Is significant 

Associate I Joint 
shareholding as per 

associate I joint associat e I joint (in influence 
Ve<1ture Is not 

latest balance 
venture• venture• (" crores) percentage)• consolidat ed Considered in Not Considered 

sheet(" crores) 
Consolidation (" in Consolidation 

crores) (" crores} 

Jomt venture - By 
virtue of 
shareholdinc NA 

interest and 
legal agreement 

40.80.000 4.08 51% NA (75.06) (46.56) (44.73) 

10,410 o.oi 51% NA (14.99) (10.13) (14.71) 

5.100 O.Q1 51% NA (6.12) (4.37) (4.20) 

12,750 o.oi 51% NA 
(229.70) (192.51) 1184.96) 

12,75.000 18.00 51% NA 6.60 (25.95) (24.93) 

33,30.000 44.44 74% NA 74.24 (18.01) (6.33) 

99.200 40.90 30% NA 1.27 (28.09) (65.54) 

NA 51% NA 27.98 (0.01) (0.01) 

NA 51% NA 187.12 0.02 0.02 

NA 50% NA 95.31 0.07 O.Q7 

NA 50% NA 63.63 (0.14) 10.14) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Tata Housing Development Company Umlted 

CtN : U45300MH1942PLC003573 

(\,~;~,,~~ 
DIN No: 00120029

1 u 
---=---~u.tt-

San)ay Dutt 

Managing Director & CEO 

DIN No.05251670 
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